.
)

75]
)
@
O
O
=
v
—
5
=
4o}
5

Kimm
yg8dn
1=S0

W
K






P L U S accessible, affordable,
active learning

www.wileyplus.com

WileyPLUS is an innovative, research-based, online environment for
effective teaching and learning.

2 D]
a2 d
WileyPLUS...

...motivates students with ...supports instructors with
confidence-boosting reliable resources that
feedback and proof of reinforce course goals
progress, 24/7. inside and outside of

the classroom.

S (VIVELOY

. . i
|... - * COLLEGE ALGEBRA

HINANGIAL ACCOUNTING

Includes
Interactive
. Textbook &
Resources

WileyPLUS... Learn More.

www.wileyplus.com




PWILEY o

PLUS C

www.wileyplus.com

ALL THE HELP, RESOURCES, AND PERSONAL SUPPORT
YOU AND YOUR STUDENTS NEED!

151'. DAY OF

CLASS
.. AND BEYOND!

2-Minute Tutorials and all
of the resources you & your
students need to get started.

PLUS

QuickStart_

Pre-loaded, ready-to-use
assignments and presentations.

Created by subject matter experts.

WILEY ©

Student Partner Program

Student support from an
experienced student user.

Technical Support 24 /7
FAQs, online chat,
and phone support.
www.wileyplus.com/support

L www.wileyplus.com/resources J

Collaborate with your colleagues,
find a mentor, attend virtual and live
events, and view resources.
www.WhereFacultyConnect.com

Your WileyPLUS Account Manager.
Personal training and
implementation support.




"-.

. ' * / .
kKimm |
W ygandt

Kl-SO -

team for success

FON MAKING

5S 14.\ L !

Paul D. Kimmel PhD, (PA

University of Wisconsin—Milwaukee
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Jerry J. Weygandt PhD, (PA

University of Wisconsin—Madison

WILEY Madison, Wisconsin

John Wiley & Sons, Inc Donald . ieo Po,
) ' Northern Illinois University

DeKalb, Illinois




Dedicated to
the Wiley sales representatives

who sell our books and service

our adopters in a professional
and ethical manner and to
Enid, Merlynn, and Donna

Vice President & Publisher
Associate Publisher

Project Editor

Development Editor

Project Manager

Production Manager

Project Editor

Production Editor

Senior Production Editor
Associate Director of Marketing
Senior Marketing Manager
Executive Media Editor
Media Editor

Creative Director

Senior Designer

Production Management Services
Senior lllustration Editor
Senior Photo Editor

Editorial Assistant

Senior Marketing Assistant
Assistant Marketing Manager
Cover Design

Cover Photo

This book was set in New Aster by Aptara®, Inc. and printed and bound by RR Donnelley. The
cover was printed by RR Donnelley.

To order books or for customer service please, call 1-800-CALL WILEY (225-5945).

George Hoffman
Christopher DeJohn
Ed Brislin

Terry Ann Tatro

Paul Lopez
Dorothy Sinclair
Yana Mermel

Erin Bascom

Trisha McFadden
Amy Scholz
Ramona Sherman
Allison Morris

Greg Chaput

Harry Nolan
Madelyn Lesure
Ingrao Associates
Sandra Rigby

Mary Ann Price
Jacqueline Kepping
Laura Finley

Diane Mars
Maureen Eide
©Peter McBride/Getty Image, Inc.

Copyright © 2011 John Wiley & Sons, Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any
means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without
either the prior written permission of the Publisher, or authorization through payment of the appropriate per-copy fee to the Copyright Clearance Center, Inc. 222 Rosewood Drive,
Danvers, MA 01923, website www.copyright.com. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River
Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774, (201)748-6011, fax (201)748-6008, website http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions.

Paul D. Kimmel, PhD, CPA,; Jerry J. Weygandt, PhD, CPA;

and Donald E. Kieso, PhD, CPA
Financial Accounting, Sixth Edition

ISBN-13  978-0-470-53477-9
Printed in the United States of America

10987654321


http://www.copyright.com
http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions

From the

Authors

Dear Student,

Why This Course? Remember your biology course in high school? Did you have

one of those “invisible man” models (or maybe something more high-tech than that)
that gave you the opportunity to look “inside” the human body? This accounting
course offers something similar: To understand a business, you have to understand the
financial insides of a business organization. An accounting course will help you under-
stand the essential financial components of businesses. Whether you are looking at a
large multinational company like Microsoft or Starbucks or a single-owner software
consulting business or coffee shop, knowing the fundamentals of accounting will help
you understand what is happening. As an employee, a manager, an investor, a business
owner, or a director of your own personal finances—any of which roles you will have at
some point in your life—you will be much the wiser for having taken this course.

Why This Book? Hundreds of thousands of students have used this textbook. Your
instructor has chosen it for you because of its trusted reputation. The authors have
worked hard to keep the book fresh, timely, and accurate.

This textbook contains features to help you learn best, whatever your learning style. To
understand what your learning style is, spend about ten minutes to take the learning
style quiz at the textbook companion website. Then, look at page xxv for how you can
apply an understanding of your learning style to this course. When you know more
about your own learning style, browse through the Student Owner’s Manual on pages
Xxviii-xxxi. It shows you the main features you will find in this textbook and explains
their purpose.

How To Succeed? We've asked many students and many instructors whether there

is a secret for success in this course. The nearly unanimous answer turns out to be not
much of a secret: “Do the homework.” This is one course where doing is learning, and
the more time you spend on the homework assignments—using the various tools

that this textbook provides—the more likely you are to learn the essential concepts,
techniques, and methods of accounting. Besides the textbook itself, the textbook
companion website offers various support resources.

Good luck in this course. We hope you enjoy the experience and that you put to good
use throughout a lifetime of success the knowledge you obtain in this course. We are
sure you will not be disappointed.

Paul D. Kimmel
Jerry J. Weygandt
Donald E. Kieso



Your Team for Success in Accounting

Wiley Accounting is your partner in accounting
education. We want to be the first publisher you
think of when it comes to quality content, reliable
technology, innovative resources, professional
training, and unparalleled support for your
accounting classroom.

Author Commitment:

A Proven Author Team
of Inspired Teachers

The Team for Success authors bring

i d years of industry and academic
. . _ VO ‘M experience to the development
Your Wiley Accounting Team for Success is teamforsuccess! f cach textbook that relates

comprised of three distinctive advantages that

. accounting concepts to real-world
you won't find with any other publisher: g P

experiences. This cohesive team brings continuity of

e Author Commitment writing style, pedagogy, and problem material to
e Wiley Faculty Network each course from Principles to Intermediate so you
e WileyPLUS and your students can seamlessly progress from

introductory through advanced courses
in accounting.

The authors understand the mindset and time
limitations of today’s students. They demonstrate
an intangible ability to effectively deliver complex
information so it is clear and understandable while
staying one step ahead of emerging global trends
in business.
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professional development in an online environment
that is relevant, convenient, and collaborative. The
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strictest standards, so we are proud to be able to
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With 24 faculty mentors in accounting, it's easy
to find help with your most challenging curriculum
questions—ijust ask our experts!

WileyPLUS:
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The WileyPLUS Account
www.wileyplus.com  Managers understand the
time constraints of busy
instructors who want to provide the best resources
available to their students with minimal headaches
and planning time. They know how intimidating

new software can be, so they are sure to make
the transition easy and painless.

Account Managers act as your personal contact
and expert resource for training, course set-up, and
shortcuts throughout the WileyPLUS experience.

Your success as an educator directly correlates to
student success, and that's our goal. The Wiley
Accounting Team for Success truly strives for
YOUR success! Partner with us today!

www.wileyteamforsuccess.com
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Author Commitment.

After decades of success as authors of textbooks like this one,
Paul Kimmel, Jerry Weygandt, and Don Kieso understand that
teaching accounting goes beyond simply presenting data. The
authors are truly effective because they know that teaching is
about telling compelling stories in ways that make each
concept come-to-life.

Through their textbooks, supplements, online learning tools,
and classrooms, these authors have developed a comprehensive
pedegogy that engages students in learning and faculty

with teaching.

These authors collaborate throughout the entire process. The
end result is a true collaboration where each author brings his
individual experience and talent to the development of every
paragraph, page, and chapter, thus creating a truly well-rounded,
thorough view on any given accounting topic.

Our Team for Success has developed a learning system that
addresses every learning style. Each year brings new insights,
feedback, ideas, and improvements on how to deliver the material
to every student with a passion for the subject in a format that
gives them the best chance to succeed.

The key to the team’s approach is in understanding that, just as
there are many different ways to learn, there are also many
different ways to teach.

Visit the Wiley Team for Success website to hear from the authors
first-hand as they discuss their teaching styles, collaboration, and
the future of accounting.
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Jerry Weygandt

Jerry J. Weygandt, PhD, CPA, is Arthur
Andersen Alumni Emeritus Professor of
Accounting at the University of Wisconsin—
Madison. He holds a Ph.D. in accounting
from the University of lllinois. Articles by Pro-
fessor Weygandt have appeared in the
Accounting Review. Journal of Accounting
Research, Accounting Horizons, Journal of
Accountancy, and other academic and
professional journals. These articles have
examined such financial reporting issues

as accounting for price-level adjustments,
pensions, convertible securities, stock option
contracts, and interim reports. Professor
Weygandt is author of other accounting and
financial reporting books and is a member
of the American Accounting Association,

the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Wisconsin Society of
Certified Public Accountants. He has seved
on numerous committees of the American
Accounting Association and as a member

of the editorial board of the Accounting
Review; he also has served as President

and Secretary-Treasurer of the American
Accounting Association. In addition, he has
been actively involved with the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

and has been a member of the Accounting
Standards Executive Committee (AcSEC) of
that organization. He has served on the FASB
task force that examined the reporting issues
related to accounting for income taxes

and served as a trustee of the Financial
Accounting Foundation. Professor Weygandt
has received the Chancellor's Award for
Excellence in Teaching and the Beta Gamma
Sigma Dean’s Teaching Award. He is on the
board of directors of M & | Bank of Southern
Wisconsin. He is the recipient of the Wiscon-
sin Institute of CPA's Outstanding Educator’s
Award and the Lifetime Achievement Award.
In'2001 he received

the American Accounting Association’s Out-
standing Educator Award.

Paul Kimmel

Paul D. Kimmel, PhD, CPA, received his
bachelor’s degree from the University of Min-
nesota and his doctorate in accounting from
the University of Wisconsin. He'is an Assogis
ate Professor at the University of Wisconsin—
Milwaukee, and has

public accounting experience with Deloitte

& Touche (Minneapalis). He was the recipient
of the UWM School of Business Advisory
Council Teaching Award, the'Reggie

Taite Excellence in Teaching Award and a
three-time winner of the Outstanding Teach-
ing Assistant Award at the University

of Wisconsin. He is also a recipient of the Eli-
jah Watts Sells Award for Honorary Distinc-
tion for his results on the CPA exam. He is a
member of the American Accounting Associ-
ation and the Institute of Management
Accountants and has published articles in
Accounting Review, Accounting Horizons,
Advances in Management Accounting, Man-
agerial Finance, Issues in Accounting Educa-
tion, Journal of Accounting Education, as
well as other journals. His research

interests include accounting for financial
instruments and innovation in accounting
education. He has published papers-and
given numerous talks on incorporating
critical thinking into accounting education,
and helped prepare a catalog of critical
thinking resources for the Federated Schools
of Accountancy.

Don Kieso

Donald E. Kieso, PhD, CPA, received his
bachelor’s degree from Aurora University

and his doctorate in accounting from the
University of lllinois. He has served as
chairman of the Department of Accountancy
and is currently the KPMG Emeritus Professor
of Accountancy at Northern lllinois University.
He has public accounting experience with
Price Waterhouse & Co. (San Francisco and
Chicago) and Arthur Andersen & Co. (Chica-
go) and research experience with the
Research Division of the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (New York). He
has done'post doctorate work as a Visiting
Scholar at the University of California at
Berkeley and isia recipient of NIU's Teaching
Excellence Award and four Golden Apple
Teaching Awards. Professor Kieso'is the
author of ether accounting and husiness
books and is a member of the American
Accounting Association, the American Insti-
tute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
llinois CPA Society. He hasiserved as a mem-
ber of the Board of Directors of the lllinois
CPA Society, then AACSB's Accounting
Accreditation Committees, the State of Illi-
nois Comptroller's Commission, as Secretary-
Treasurer of the Federation

of Schools of Accountancy, and as
Secretary-Treasurer of the American Account-
ing Association. Professor Kieso is currently
serving on'the Board of Trustees and Execu-
tive.Committee of Aurora University, as a
member of the Board of Directors of Kish-
waukee Community Hospital, and as Treasur-
er and Director of Valley West Community
Hospital. From 1989

to 1993 he served as a charter member of
the national Accounting Education Change
Commission. He is the recipient of the Out-
standing Accounting Educator Award from
the lllinois CPA Society, the FSA's Joseph A.
Silvoso Award of Merit, the NIU Foundation’s
Humanitarian Award for Service to Higher
Education, a Distinguished Service Award
from the Illinois CPA Society, and

in 2003 an honorary doctorate from

Aurora University.
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What do INSTRUCTORS receive with WileyPLUS?
Support and Insight into Student Progress

WileyPLUS provides reliable, customizable resources that reinforce
course goals inside and outside of the classroom, as well as visibility
into individual student progress. Pre-created materials and activities
help instructors optimize their time.

For class preparation and classroom use:
- Lecture Notes, PowerPoint Slides, and Tutorials
- Classroom Response System (Clicker) Questions
- Image Gallery

For assignments and testing:
- Gradable Reading Assignment Questions
(embedded with online text)
- Question Assignments: all end-of-chapter problems
coded algorithmically with hints, links to text

For course planning: WileyPLUS comes with a pre-created
Course Plan designed by a subject matter expert uniquely for
this course. Simple drag-and-drop tools make it easy to assign
the course plan as-is or modify it to reflect your course syllabus.

For progress monitoring: WileyPLUS provides instant access
to reports on trends in class performance, student use of course
materials, and progress toward learning objectives, helping
inform decisions and drive classroom discussions.

Experience WileyPLUS for effective teaching and learning
at www.wileyplus.com.

Powered by proven technology and built on a foundation
of cognitive research, WileyPLUS has enriched the education
of millions of students, in over 20 countries around the world.
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The Place Where
Faculty Connect ...

The Wiley Faculty Network is a global community

of faculty connected by a passion for teaching

and a drive to learn and share. Connect with

the Wiley Faculty Network to collaborate with

your colleagues, find a mentor, attend virtual |
and live events, and view a wealth of resources
all designed to help you grow as an educator.
Embrace the art of teaching—great things

The Wiley Faculty
Network

| FACULTY
NETWORK

happen where faculty connect!
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Attend &

Discover innovative ideas and
gain knowledge you can use.

e Training
e Virtual Guest Lectures
e | ive Events

Ve @

Explore your resources and
development opportunities.

e Teaching Resources

e Archived Guest Lectures

e Recorded Presentations

e Professional Development Modules

Collabﬂ?ate

Connect with colleagues—
your greatest resource.

e Find a Mentor
e Interest Groups
* Blog

Find out more at

www.WHEREFACULTYCONNECT.com

“Virtual Guest Lectures

Connect with recognized leaders-acrossdisciplines
and collaborate with your peers on timely topics
and discipline specific issues, many of which offer
CPE credit.

Live and Virtual Events

These invitation-only, discipline-specific events are
organized through a close partnership between the
WEFN, Wiley, and the academic community near the
event location.

Technology Training

Discover a wealth of topic- and technology-specific
training presented by subject matter experts,
authors, and faculty where and when you need it.

Teaching Resources

Propel your teaching and student learning to the
next level with quality peerreviewed case studies,
testimonials, classroom tools, and checklists.

Connect with Colleagues

Achieve goals and tackle challenges more easily by
enlisting the help of your peers. Connecting with
colleagues through the WFN can help you improve
your teaching experience.
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The Wiley Accounting Team for Success is ready when you
are to help prepare you and your students for the integration of IFRS into your courses.

No matter where you are in this transition, Wiley Accounting is here to provide the tools you
need to fully incorporate IFRS into your accounting courses. We offer the most extensive
Products, Content, Services, Support, and Training available today—Ileading the way

to prepare you and your students for success!

TIrnovalive Produc?s: New IFRS Editions of Kieso, Intermediate Accounting
and Weygandt, Financial Accounting are the most current and only textbooks available based
fully on International Financial Reporting Standards. Wiley Accounting also offers numerous IFRS
resources that can serve to supplement your course.

Excl/usive Content: our accounting publications feature more quality and
current coverage of IFRS topics than any other textbook available today! The Wiley Accounting
Team for Success authors integrate IFRS content within each chapter through features like

A Look at IFRS, which demonstrates how international standards apply to each

U.S. GAAP topic, as well as provides an opportunity for practical application. International
Insights also provide an international perspective of the accounting topic discussed in the text.

Sappo/‘f & Services: Wiley Accounting features a dedicated IFRS website
(at www.wileyifrs.com) and an Accounting Weekly Updates website (at www.
wileyaccountingupdates.com) to make sure you have the most current resources available.

77/)73/}/ T;Q/‘n/‘n - Wiley Accounting and the Wiley Faculty Network provides free
IFRS virtual training workshops, IFRS Guest Lectures, and IFRS “Boot Camps” featuring authors
Paul Kimmel and Terry Warfield. You can also earn CPE credit for attending these sessions.

To learn more about how the Wiley Accounting Team for Success can help your students succeed,
visit www.wileyteamforsuccess.com or contact your Wiley sales representative today.
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What's new?

The Sixth Edition expands our emphasis on student learning and improves upon a
teaching and learning package that instructors and students have rated the highest
in customer satisfaction in the following ways:

The Accounting Cycle

For many students, success in an introductory accounting course hinges on developing

a sound conceptual understanding of the accounting cycle. In the past, we have received
positive feedback regarding the framework that we have employed to introduce the
recording process in Chapter 3. In this edition, we have expanded our use of this
framework to cover the entire accounting cycle in Chapters 3 and 4.

Anatomy of a Fraud

In the Fifth Edition, we added a new feature, called Anatomy of a Fraud, to Chapter 7 to illustrate
how the lack of specific internal controls resulted in real-world frauds. Many users responded
favorably to this new feature and requested that we expand it throughout the textbook to
demonstrate the importance of internal controls to all assets and liabilities. Accordingly, in this
edition, we have expanded the Anatomy of a Fraud feature to Chapters 5-13.

Chart of Accounts

It is important to always try to eliminate unnecessary barriers to student understanding.

Sometimes, the accounting course can seem unnecessarily complicated to students because

so many account titles are used. In order to reduce possible confusion, and to keep students
focused on those concepts that really matter, in this edition of the textbook we undertook to reduce
the number of account titles used. In some chapters, we were able to cut the number of accounts
used by more than half. See inside the front cover of the textbook for a sample chart of accounts,
which represents the majority of account titles used in the text.

Enhanced Homework Material

In each chapter, we have revised all Self-Test Questions, Questions, Brief Exercises,

Do it! Review, Exercises, Problems, and Research Cases. New Challenge Exercises are available
online at the textbook companion website and offer another resource for students to practice
chapter concepts. Bloom's taxonomy codes have been added to end-of-chapter material.
Financial analysis and reporting problems have been updated in accordance with the new
Tootsie Roll and Hershey financial statements. Finally, new FASB Codification Activities now
appear at the end of every chapter and offer students experience in using this

system.

Updated International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Content

As we continue to strive to reflect the constant changes in the accounting environment,
we have added new material on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

A new end-of-chapter section, A Look at IFRS, includes an overview section, differences
between GAAP and IFRS, IFRS/GAAP convergence efforts, and IFRS Self-Test

Questions and IFRS Concepts and Applications. An international financial reporting
problem is also included, based on Zetar plc (a U.K. candy company) financial statements,
provided in a new Appendix C of the textbook. This will allow students to compare

Zetar with U.S. companies Tootsie Roll and Hershey.

This edition was also subject to an overall, comprehensive revision to ensure that it is
technically accurate, relevant, and up-to-date. A chapter-by-chapter summary of content
changes is provided in the chart on the next page.



Chapter 1 Introduction to Financial Statements

® More background information/student involvement
with hypothetical company Sierra Corporation.

o Interrelationships of Statements illustration rewritten, using
Tootsie Roll instead of Sierra Corporation as example.
As a result, A Quick Look at Tootsie Roll's Financial
Statements section deleted.

¢ Updated end-of-chapter material with new data.

Chapter 2 A Further Look at Financial Statements

e Use of hhgregg instead of Circuit City, as comparison
to Best Buy performance.

e Using the Statement of Cash Flows section deleted,
as material covered in following Keeping an Eye
on Cash section.

e Financial Reporting Concepts section heavily rewritten.
The Standard-Setting Environment now includes IASB/IFRS
discussion, as well as most recent conceptual framework
material (e.g., fundamental and enhancing qualities of
useful accounting information). Measurement principles
now include cost and fair value; constraints are now
materiality and cost (instead of conservatism).

¢ Updated end-of-chapter material with new data.

Chapter 3 The Accounting Information System
e For all transaction events, have reformatted to be
consistent, that is, have added Basic Analysis and
Equation Analysis sections.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material with new
data and a new Exercise.

Chapter 4 Accrual Accounting Concepts

e Terminology changes: Matching principle to expense
recognition principle; time period assumption to
periodicity assumption.

® 2 new Insight boxes: one Business Insight on
iPhone/Apple, other Int’l Insight on China’s inconsistent
use of accrual/cash basis of accounting.

e Consistent use of transaction analysis format (e.g.,
Basic Analysis, Equation Analysis, Debit-Credit Analysis,
Journal Entry, and Posting) for Adjusting Entries
examples, carried over from Chapter 3.

e Updated end-of-chapter material with
new data and added a new Research Case.

Chapter 5 Merchandising Operations and the
Multiple-Step Income Statement
e Addition of Anatomy of a Fraud box
(previously only included in Chapter 7).
e Updated end-of-chapter material with new
data and added a new Research Case.

Chapter 6 Reporting and Analyzing Inventory
e Addition of Anatomy of a Fraud box.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material with
new data and added a new Research Case.

Chapter 7 Fraud, Internal Control, and Cash
¢ Replaced Investor Insight box with new
one on Madoff's Ponzi scheme.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added a new
Research Case, new Ethics Case on NFIC.

Chapter 8 Reporting and Analyzing Receivables
® More journal entry detail in the Recognizing Accounts
Receivable section.
o Additional explanation about percentage of receivables
basis.

e New Anatomy of a Fraud box.

e Explanation of maturity date of promissory note,
in Determining the Maturity Date section.

e New Int’l Insight box on fair value, and new AATO box on eBay
for receivables (Receivables Exchange).

¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added 2 new Brief
Exercises and a new Research Case.

Chapter 9 Reporting and Analyzing Long-Lived Assets

¢ Expanded explanation for how to determine revised
depreciation, including new Do it! box.

e New Anatomy of a Fraud box about WorldCom.

¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added
a new Do it! Review.

Chapter 10 Reporting and Analyzing Liabilities

e Heavy edit of Feature Story, about U.S. auto industry.
e New Anatomy of a Fraud box about school district
substitute-teacher fraud scheme.
e New Investor Insight box on debt masking.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added
1 new Self-Test Question, 3 new Brief Exercises,
1 new Exercise, and a new Research Case.

Chapter 11 Reporting and Analyzing

Stockholders’ Equity
¢ Replaced AATO box with box on Facebook maintaining its
private-company status.
e New Anatomy of a Fraud box on SafeNet's stock options
being misused by top officers.
e New Investor Insight box on Warren Buffet's philosophy
of keeping Berkshire Hathaway's stock prices high as
well as avoiding stock splits.
¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added 1 new
Brief Exercise and a new Research Case.

Chapter 12 Statement of Cash Flows

e New Anatomy of a Fraud box, about Parmalat’s
multiple frauds.

¢ New Appendix 12B, on preparing statement
of cash flows using T accounts.

¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added
a new Research Case.

Chapter 13 Financial Analysis: The Big Picture

® New Feature Story with profile of Warren Buffett.

¢ Replaced financial data with hypothetical company, as better
basis for later comparison with General Mills.

e New Anatomy of a Fraud box, about how relationships
between numbers can be used to detect fraud.

e New Investor Insight box, about credit rating agencies.

¢ Updated end-of-chapter material and added a new
Research Case.

End-of-Textbook

New Appendix C, financial statements of Zetar plc
(U.K. candy company).
Appendix D: Updated end-of-chapter material.
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What [ YPE of learner are you?

By understanding each of these basic learning styles it enables the authors to engage students minds and

Intake:
To take in the information

e Pay close attention to charts,
drawings, and handouts
your instructors use.

e Underline.

e Use different colors.

e Use symbols, flow charts,
graphs, different
arrangements on the page,
white spaces.

o Attend lectures and tutorials.

e Discuss topics with students
and instructors.

e Explain new ideas to
other people.

e Use a tape recorder.

e Leave spaces in your lecture
notes for later recall.

e Describe overheads, pictures,
and visuals to somebody
who was not in class.

e Use lists and headings.

e Use dictionaries, glossaries,
and definitions.

e Read handouts, textbooks,
and supplementary
library readings.

e Use lecture notes.

e Use all your senses.

* Go to labs, take field trips.

e Listen to real-life examples.
e Pay attention to applications.
e Use hands-on approaches.

e Use trial-and-error methods.

To make a study package

Convert your lecture notes into
"page pictures.”

To do this:

e Use the “Intake” strategies.

® Reconstruct images in
different ways.

e Redraw pages from memory.

® Replace words with symbols
and initials.

e Look at your pages.

You may take poor notes
because you prefer to listen.
Therefore:

e Expand your notes by talking
with others and with
information from
your textbook.

® Tape-record summarized
notes and listen.

® Read summarized notes
out loud.

e Explain your notes to
another “aural” person.

e Write out words again
and again.
® Reread notes silently.
® Rewrite ideas and principles
into other words.
® Turn charts, diagrams,
and other illustrations
into statements.

You may take poor notes

because topics do not seem

concrete or relevant.

Therefore:

e Put examples in
your summaries.

¢ Use case studies and
applications to help with
principles and abstract
concepts.

e Talk about your notes with
another “kinesthetic” person.

e Use pictures and
photographs that
illustrate an idea.

Text features that may
help you the most

The Navigator/Feature

Story/Preview
Infographics/Illustrations
Accounting Equation Analyses
Highlighted words
Demonstration Problem/

Action Plan
Questions/Exercises/Problems
Financial Reporting Problem
Comparative Analysis Problem
Exploring the Web

Preview

Insight Boxes

Review It/Do it!/Action Plan

Summary of Study Objectives

Glossary

Demonstration Problem/Action
Plan

Self-Study Questions

Questions/Exercises/Problems

Financial Reporting Problem

Comparative Analysis Problem

Exploring the Web

Decision Making Across the
Organization

The Navigator/Feature
Story/Study
Objectives/Preview
Review It/Do it!/Action Plan
Summary of Study Objectives
Glossary/Self-Study Questions
Questions/Exercises/Problems
Writing Problems
Financial Reporting Problem
Comparative Analysis Problem
“All About You" Activity
Exploring the Web
Decision Making Across
the Organization
Communication Activity

The Navigator/Feature
Story/Preview
Infographics/Illustrations
Review It/Do it!/Action Plan
Summary of Study Objectives
Demonstration Problem/
Action Plan
Self-Study Questions
Questions/Exercises/Problems
Financial Reporting Problem
Comparative Analysis Problem
Exploring the Web
Decision Making Across
the Organization
Communication Activity
“All About You" Activity

motivate them to do their best work, ultimately improving the experience for both students and faculty.

Output:
To do well on exams

e Recall your “page pictures.”

e Draw diagrams where
appropriate.

e Practice turning your visuals
back into words.

Communication Activity

Ethics Case

e Talk with the instructor.

* Spend time in quiet places
recalling the ideas.

e Practice writing answers
to old exam questions.

e Say your answers out loud.

® \Write exam answers.

e Practice with multiple-choice
questions.

® Write paragraphs, beginnings
and endings.

e Write your lists in
outline form.

e Arrange your words into
hierarchies and points.

® Write practice answers.
® Role-play the exam situation.



Active Teaching and Learning
Supplementary Material

Financial Accounting, Sixth Edition, features a full line of teaching and learning resources. Driven by the same basic
beliefs as the textbook, these supplements provide a consistent and well-integrated learning system. This hands-on,
real-world package guides instructors through the process of active learning and gives them the tools to create an
interactive learning environment. With its emphasis on activities, exercises, and the Internet, the package encourages
students to take an active role in the course and prepares them for decision making in a real-world context.

KIMMEL’S INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY
SOLUTIONS HELPING TEACHERS
TEACH AND STUDENT LEARN—
www.wiley.com/college/kimmel

For Instructors

Textbook Companion Website

On this website, instructors will find electronic versions
of the Solutions Manual, Test Bank, Instructor's Manual,
Computerized Test Bank, and other resources.

Wiley Faculty Network

When it comes to improving the classroom experience,
there is no better source of ideas and inspiration than
your fellow colleagues. The Wiley Faculty Network
connects teachers with technologies, facilitates the
exchange of best practices, and helps to enhance
instructional efficiency and effectiveness. For details,
visit www.wherefacultyconnect.com.

Active-Teaching Aids

An extensive support package, including print and
technology tools, helps you maximize your teaching
effectiveness. We offer useful supplements for
instructors with varying levels of experience and
different instructional circumstances.

Instructor’s Resource CD.

The Instructor’s Resource CD (IRCD) contains an
electronic version of all instructor supplements. The
IRCD gives you the flexibility to access and prepare
instructional materials based on your individual needs.

Solutions Manual.

The Solutions Manual contains detailed solutions to all
questions, brief exercises, exercises, and problems in the
textbook as well as suggested answers to the questions
and cases.

Solution Transparencies.

The solution transparencies feature detailed solutions to
brief exercises, exercises, problems, and “Broadening
Your Perspectives”activities. Transparencies can be easily
ordered from the Instructor’s textbook companion website.

Instructor’s Manual.
Included in each chapter are lecture outlines with teaching
tips, chapter reviews, illustrations, and review quizzes.

Teaching Transparencies.

The teaching transparencies are 4-color acetate images
of the illustrations found in the Instructor’s Manual.
Transparencies can be easily ordered from the Instructor’s
textbook companion website.

Test Bank and Computerized Test Bank.
The test bank and computerized test bank allow instructors
to tailor examinations according to study objectives and
Bloom'’s taxonomy. Achievement tests, comprehensive
examinations, and a final exam are included.

PowerPoint™.

The new PowerPoint™ presentations contain a
combination of key concepts, images and problems
from the textbook. Review exercises and “All About
You" summaries are included in each chapter to
encourage classroom participation.

WebCT and Desire2Learn.

WebCT or Desire2Learn offer an integrated set of course
management tools that enable instructors to easily
design, develop, and manage Web-based and
Web-enhanced courses.


http://www.wherefacultyconnect.com
http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel

For Students

Active-Learning Aids

Textbook Companion Website.

The Financial Accounting student website provides a
wealth of support materials that will help students
develop their conceptual understanding of class material
and increase their ability to solve problems. On this
website, students will find Excel templates, PowerPoint
presentations, web quizzing, and other resources. In
addition, students can access the new B Exercises and

C Problems at this site. Finally, full versions of the
Continuing Cookie Chronicle problem are included at the
student website.

Working Papers.

Working papers are partially completed accounting
forms (templates) for all end-of-chapter brief exercises,
exercises, problems, and cases. They are a convenient
resource for organizing and completing homework
assignments, and they demonstrate how to correctly
set up solution formats. Also available on CD-ROM and
within WileyPLUS is an electronic version of the print
working papers, which are Excel-formatted templates
that will help you learn to properly format and present
end-of-chapter textbook solutions.

Study Guide.

The Study Guide is a comprehensive review of
accounting. It guides you through chapter content,
tied to study objectives. Each chapter of the Study
Guide includes a chapter review and for extra practice,
true/false, multiple-choice, matching questions,

and problems, with solutions. The Study Guide is an
excellent tool for use on a regular basis during the
course and also when preparing for exams.

Primer on Using Excel in Accounting.
This online manual and collection of Excel templates
allow students to complete select end-of-chapter
exercises and problems identified by a spreadsheet
icon in the textbook.

Mobile Applications.
Quizzing and reviewing content is available for down-
load to an iPod and/or other mobile devices.




Student Owner's Manual
Using Your Textbook Effectively

Helpful Hints in the ma rgins further cla rify Helpful Hint Stock is sometimes ~ we discuss the accounting for paid-in capital. In a later section, we discuss re-
. . . issued in exchange for services tained earnings.
concepts bein g discussed. They are like (payment 1o attomeys or Let’s now look at how to account for new issues of common stock. The pri-
. . . consultants, for example) or for mary objectives in accounting for the issuance of common stock are (1) to iden-
h aving an Instructor Wlth you as you I"ead . noncash assets (land or tify the specific sources of paid-in capital and (2) to maintain the distinction be-
buildings). The value recorded for  tween paid-in capital and retained earnings. As shown below, the issuance of
the shares issued is determined common stock affects only paid-in capital accounts.
by either the market value of the As discussed earlier, par value does not indicate a stock’s market value. The
shares or the value of the good cash proceeds from issuing par value stock may be equal to, greater than, or less
or service received, depending than par value. When a company records the issuance of common stock for cash,
Ethics Note Managers who are The chief executive officer (CEO) has overall responsibility]  ypon which value the company it credits the par value of the shares to Common Stock, and records in a sepa-
ot owners are often compensated  business. As the organization chart shows, the CEO delegates  can more readily determine. rate paid-in capital account the portion of the proceeds that is above or below
based on the performance of the other officers. The chief accounting officer is the controller. T par value.
company. They thus may be sponsibilities are to (1) maintain the accounting records, (2)
tempted to exaggerate company quate system of internal control, and (3) prepare financial statements, tax re-
performance by inflating income turns, and internal reports. The treasurer has custody of the corporation’s funds
figures. and is responsible for maintaining the company’s cash position. . .
The organizational structure of a corporation enables a company to hire pro- Eth ICS N otes a nd Internatl Onal N otes
fessional managers to run the business. On the other hand, the separation of . . . . .
ownership and management often reduces an owner’s ability to actively manage pO Nt out eth ICa | a nd Intern atlonal pol nts

the company.

related to the nearby text discussion.

Insight examples give you more

. . . Investor Insight
glimpses into how actual companies

How to Read Stock Quotes

make deCiSiOnS using aCCOunting Organized exchanges trade the stock of publicly held companies at dollar
. . . . prices per share established by the interaction between buyers and sellers. For each
Inform ation. These h | gh—l nterest bOXeS listed security, the financial press reports the high and low prices of the stock during
. . the year, the total volume of stock traded on a given day, the high and low prices for the
fOCUS on various themes—ethlcs, day, and the closing market price, with the net change for the day. Nike is listed on the
. . . New York Stock Exchange. Here is a recent listing for Nike:
international, and investor concerns. o2 Weeke
Stock High Low Volume High Low Close Net Change
Nike 78.55 48.76 5,375,651 72.44 69.78 70.61 -1.69
These numbers indicate the following: The high and low market prices for the last 52
H 1 1 H weeks have been $78.55 and $48.76. The trading volume for the day was 5,375,651
A Crltlcal thln klng queStlon as ks yOU to shares. The high, low, and closing prices for that date were $72.44, $69.78, and $70.61,
a pp |y yo ur accou nt| n g |ea rn | n g to th e respectively. The net change for the day was a decrease of $1.69 per share.
H . i For stocks traded on organized exchanges, how are the dollar prices per share es-
Story in the eXample. Gu’dehne AnsWerS ? tablished? What factors might influence the price of shares in the marketplace?
appear at the end of the chapter. (See page 619)

Accounting Across the Organization
examples show the use of accounting by
people in non-accounting functions—such
as finance, marketing, or management.

4mm | Accounting Across the Organization
‘ Wall Street No Friend of Facebook

In the 1990s, it was the dream of every young technology entrepreneur to
start a company and do an initial public offering (IPO), that is, list company shares on
a stock exchange. It seemed like there was a never-ending supply of 20-something year-
old technology entrepreneurs that made millions doing IPOs of companies that never made
a profit and eventually failed. In sharp contrast to this is Mark Zuckerberg, the 25-year-old
founder and CEO of Facebook. If Facebook did an IPO, he would make billions of dol-
lars. But, he is in no hurry to go public. Because his company doesn't need to invest

in factories, distribution systems, or even marketing, it doesn’t need to raise a lot of Guide“ne AnsWers to the Critical thln kl ng
cash. Also, by not going public, Zuckerberg has more control over the direction of the . h d _F h h
company. Right now, he and the other founders don't have to answer to outside share- q uestions appea r at the end ot the ¢ apter.

holders, who might be more concerned about short-term investment horizons rather
than long-term goals. In addition, publicly traded companies face many more financial
reporting disclosure requirements.

Source: Jessica E. Vascellaro, “Facebook CEO in No Rush to ‘Friend’ Wall Street” Wall Street Journal Online
(March 4, 2010).

Why has Mark Zuckerberg, the CEO and founder of Facebook, delayed taking his
= company's shares public through an initial public offering (IPO)? (See page 618.)

Anatomy of a Fraud boxes illustrate how

L The president, chief operating officer, and chief financial officer of SafeNet, a software
the |aCk Of speaﬁ c Intern al COﬂtI’OlS encryption company, were each awarded employee stock options by the company's board
resu |ted in rea |-WOF| d fra u dS of directors as part of their compensation package. Stock options enable an employee to

buy a company's stock sometime in the future at the price that existed when the stock
option was awarded. For example, suppose that you received stock options today, when the
stock price of your company was $30. Three years later, if the stock price rose to $100,
you could “exercise” your options and buy the stock for $30 per share, thereby making $70
per share. After being awarded their stock options, the three employees changed the award
dates in the company’s records to dates in the past, when the company's stock was trad-
ing at historical lows. For example, using the previous example, they would choose a past
date when the stock was selling for $10 per share, rather than the $30 price on the actual




Brief Do it! exercises ask you to put to Eeno before you go on...
work your newly acquired knowledge. e . oRGaEATION
Th ey o Utl Ineé an ACtlon Plan necessa ry ;‘fi ].'::.‘flly casy for a corporation to obtain capital through the issuance of
to complete the exercise, and -
they show a Solution.

~

ke

The separation of ownership and management is an advantage of the corporate
form of business.

-

. The journal entry to record the authorization of capital stock includes a credit

to the appropriate capital stock account.

All states require a par value per share for capital stock. Action Plan

* Review the characteristics of a
corporation and understand
which are advantages and
which are disadvantages.

o

Solution

1. False. The liability of stockholders is normally limited to their investment in the
corporation.

5 T * Understand that corporations
. i itl

Comprehensive 2 Comprehensive Do it! problem

— — . with Action Plan- gives students an
Rolman Corporation is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of $5 par value common . . .
stock. In its first year, the company has the following stock transactions. opportur”ty to see a deta”ed SOlUtIOh to a
an. 10 Issued 400,000 shares of stock at $8 per share. . .
i representative problem before they do their

Dec. 24 Declared a cash dividend of 10 cents per share on common stock outstanding.

C
Q.
®
S
—
O
s
S
@
-
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=
-
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homework. Coincides with the Do it!
problems within the chapter.

Instructions

(a) Journalize the transactions.
(b) Prepare the stockholders’ equity section of the balance sheet, assuming the company
had retained earnings of $150,600 at December 31.

Do it! Review problems appear in the
homework material and provide another way
for students to determine whether they have
mastered the content in the chapters.

Accounting equation analyses Declaration Date - e
) : Dec. 1| Cash Dividends 50,000 50,000 Div
appear next to key journal entries. Dividends Payable y 50000 #5000
h il help student derstand th (To record declaration of cash dividend) cash Flows
no effect
T ey Wi € p stugents understan € In Chapter 3, we used an account called Dividends to record a cash divi-
im pac‘t Of an accou nt| n g ‘tra nsact|o n on dend. Here, we use the more specific title Cash Dividends to differentiate from
. other types of dividends, such as stock dividends. Dividends Payable is a current
‘th e Components Of the accounti ng eq ua- liability: It will normally be paid within the next several months.
. . . At the record date, the company determines ownership of the outstanding  Helpful Hint The record date is
tion , on the Stockho | ders eq u |ty accou ntS, shares for dividend purposes. The stockholders’ records maintained by the cor-  important in determining the
5 poration supply this information. dividend to be paid to each
a nd on the com pa ny S CaSh ﬂ OWS. For Media General, the record date is December 22. No entry is required on  stockholder.

the record date.

Hlustration 11-1 Financial Statements appear regularly.
Disclosure of unrestricted TEKTR_OND_( INC. . . o[
retained camings Notes to the Financial Statements Those from actual companies are identified
Certain of the Company’s deb Teements T ire mpliance with deb venants.
The Company had unrestricted retined carmings of $223.8 million after meeting by a company logo or a photo.

those requirements.

Decision Toolkits highlight the o
important analytical tools integrated

DECISION TOOLKIT A SUMMARY

g DECISION CHECKPOINTS  INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS
th roug h out th @ tethOO k, d esigne d Should the company Capital needs, growth Corporations have limited liability, easier capital Must carefully weigh the
. . . incorporate? expectations, type of raising ability, and professional managers; but costs and benefits in light
tO aSS|St StUdentS In eva | u atln 9 an d business, tax status they suffer from additional taxes, government of the particular
. . . regulations, and separation of ownership from circumstances.
using the information at hand. N

A Using the Decision Toolkit exercise, just

‘US'NG THE DECISION TOOLKIT before the chapter summary, asks students

adidas is one of Nikes|ercest competitors: In suchiacompetitive andlrapidly chang: .. .
e et G gl e s to use the decision tools presented in the
Instructions chapter and takes them through the

e el s e e e i el s, 9 G Gy .

Habs s Uil I el el e S e hrls (1730), Uil o) roblem-solvin g steps.

information, evaluate its (1) dividend record and (2) earnings performance, and con-

trast them with those for Nike for 2009 and 2008. Nike’s earnings per share were

$3.07 in 2009 and $3.80 in 2008.

(in millions)* 2008 2007 2006

Dividends declared €99 €85 €66

Net income €642 €551 €496

Preferred stock dividends 0 0 0

Shares outstanding at end of year 204 204 203

Common stockholders’ equity €3,400 €3,034 €2,836

*Nike has a yearend of May 31, 2009. For comparative purpose, we used adidas’s December 31,
2008, data since that represents the closest year-end.




KEEPING AN EYE

The balance sheet presents the balances of a company’s stockholders’ equity accounts
at a point in time. Companies report in the “Financing Activities” section of the state-
ment of cash flows information regarding cash inflows and outflows during the year
that resulted from equity transactions. The excerpt below presents the cash flows
from financing activities from the statement of cash flows of Sara Lee Corporation
in a recent year. From this information, we learn that the company’s purchases of

ON CASH

Excercises: Set B and Challenge
Exercises are available online at
www.wiley.com/college/kimmel.

In the textbook, two similar sets of
Problems —A and B—are keyed
to the same study objectives.

Journalize stock
transactions, post, and
prepare paid-in capital
section.

(S02,4,7), AN

=
Selected problems, identified by this

icon, can be solved using the General
Ledger Software (GLS) package.

/

Prepare a stockholders’
equity section.

(807), AP

5

An icon identifies Exercises and
Problems that can be solved using
Excel templates at the student website.

Problems: Set C

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose the

Student Companion site to access Problem Set C.

Keeping an Eye on Cash sections highlight
differences between accrual accounting and
cash accounting while increasing students’
understanding of the statement of cash flows.

Exercises: Set B and
Challenge Exercises

Visit the book's companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose the
Student Companion site to access Exercise Set B and Challenge Exercises.

Problems: Set A

P11-1A  Whitten Corporation was organized on January 1, 2012. It is authorized to issue
20,000 shares of 6%, $50 par value preferred stock and 500,000 shares of no-par common
stock with a stated value of $1 per share. The following stock transactions were completed
during the first year.

Jan. 10 Issued 70,000 shares of common stock for cash at $4 per share.
Mar. 1 Issued 12,000 shares of preferred stock for cash at $53 per share.
May 1 Issued 120,000 shares of common stock for cash at $6 per share.
ot M T d EOOD Lo 6o bl B et CE e e,

P11-6A  On January 1, 2012, Neville Inc. had these stockholders’ equity balances.
Common Stock, $1 par (2,000,000 shares authorized,

600,000 shares issued and outstanding) $ 600,000
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par Value 1,500,000
Retained Earnings 700,000

An additional parallel set of C Problems
appears at the textbook companion website.

The Continuing Cookie Chronicle
exercise follows the continuing saga of
accounting for a small business begun

by an entrepreneurial student.

The Broadening Your Perspective
section helps to pull together
concepts from the chapter and apply
them to real-world business situations.

The Financial Reporting Problem
focuses on reading and understanding
the financial statements of Tootsie Roll,

which are printed in Appendix A.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll vs. Hershey

BYP11-2 The financial statements of The Hershey Company are presented in Appendix B, fol-

lowing the financial statements for Tootsie Roll in Appendix A.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS ON THE WEB

Continuing Cookie Chronicle

(Note: This is a continuation of the Cookie Chronicle from Chapters 1 through 10.)
ccci11

Part 1 Because Natalie has been so successful with Cookie Creations and her friend
Curtis Lesperance has been just as successful with his coffee shop, they conclude that
they could benefit from each other’s business expertise. Curtis and Natalie next evaluate
the different types of business organization. Because of the advantage of limited personal
liability, they decide to form a corporation.

Natalie and Curtis are very excited about this new business venture. They come to you

@

broadening your perspective

Financial Reporting and Analysis
FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc.

BYP11-1 The stockholders’ equity section of Tootsie Roll Industries’ balance sheet is shown in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in Appendix A. You will also find data relative to
this problem on other pages of Appendix A. (Note that Tootsie Roll has two classes of common
stock. To answer the following questions, add the two classes of stock together.)

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) What is the par or stated value per share of Tootsie Roll's common stock?

(b) What percentage of Tootsie Roll's authorized common stock was issued at December 31, 2009?
(Round to the nearest full percent.)

How many shares of common stock were outstanding at December 31, 2008, and at Decem-
ber 31, 2009?

Calculate the payout ratio, earnings per share, and return on common stockholders’ equity
ratio for 2009.

(c

(d)

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll vs. Hershey

A Comparative Analysis Problem compares

B and contrasts the financial reporting of

Tootsie Roll and Hershey.

BYP11-5 Purpose: Use the stockholders’ equity section of an annual report and identify the
major components.
Address: www.annualreports.com, or go to www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
Steps
1. Select a particular company.
2. Search by company name.
3. Follow instructions below.

Exploring the Web exercises guide students
to websites where they can find and analyze
information related to the chapter topic.


http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
http://www.annualreports.com
http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel

RAPID REVIEW
Chapter Content

ACCOUNTING CONCEPTS (Chapters 2—-4)

Note: Each adjusting entry will affect one or more income statement accounts and one or
more balance sheet accounts.

Interest Computation
Interest = Face value of note X Annual interest rate X Time in terms of one year

CLOSING ENTRIES (Chapter 4)

Purpose

1. Update the Retained Earnings account in the ledger by transferring net income
(loss) and dividends to retained earnings.

2. Prepare the temporary accounts (revenue, expense, dividends) for the next

period’s postings by reducing their balances to zero.

ACCOUNTING CYCLE (Chapter 4)

Analyze business
transactions

9 2

Prepare a post-closing
trial balance

Journalize the
transactions

t '

Journalize and post
closing entries

Post to
ledger accounts

t V

7 4
Prepare financial Prepare a
statements: trial balance
Income statement
Retained earnings statement ¢

Balance sheet
T 5
6 Journalize and post

adjusting entries:

g s Deferrals/Accruals

trial balance

t

Fund tal Enh g
Qualities Qualities Assumptions Principles Constraints
Relevance Comparability Monetary unit Cost Materiality
Faithful Consistency Economic entity Fair value Cost
representation Verifiability Periodicity Full disclosure
Timeliness Going concern Revenue recognition
Understandability Accrual basis Expense recognition
BASIC ACCOUNTING EQUATION (Chapter 3) INVENTORY (Chapters 5 and 6)
Ownership
Basic . Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Equation Ownership of goods on public
Freight Terms carrier resides with:
Expanded s Common Retained o - L .
Ba':ic Equation Assets | = Liabilities| 4+ g o0+ Earnings  — Di + _ p FOB Shipping point Buyer
Debit/Credic 4 || 2|l T RS ST PO s FOB Destination Seller
Rules
ADJUSTING ENTRIES (Chapter 4) Perpetual vs. Periodic Journal Entries
Type Adjusting Entry
Event Perpetual Periodic

Deferrals 1. Prepaid expenses Dr. Expenses Cr. Assets

2. Unearned revenues Dr. Liabilities Cr. Revenues Purchase of goods Inventory Purchases

Cash (A/P) Cash (A/P)

Accruals 1. Accrued revenues Dr. Assets Cr. Revenues . o . L

2. Accrued expenses Dr. Expenses Cr. Liabilities Freight (shipping point) | Inventory Freight-in

Cash Cash

Return of goods Cash (or A/P)

Inventory

Cash (or A/P)
Purchase Returns and Allowances

Sale of goods Cash (or A/R) Cash (or A/R)

Sales Sales
Cost of Goods Sold | No entry
Inventory
End of period No entry Closing or adjusting entry required

FRAUD, INTERNAL CONTROL, AND CASH (Chapter 7)

Principles of Internal Control The Fraud Triangle

Opportunity

Financial ARational—

pressure ization

Establishment of responsibility
Segregation of duties
Documentation procedures
Physical controls

Independent internal verification
Human resource controls

Bank Reconciliation

Bank Books

Balance per bank statement
Add: Deposits in transit

Balance per books

Add: Unrecorded credit memoranda from bank
statement

Deduct: Unrecorded debit memoranda from
bank statement

Adjusted cash balance

Deduct: Outstanding checks

Adjusted cash balance

Note: 1.  Errors should be offset (added or deducted) on the side that made the error.
2. Adjusting journal entries should only be made for items affecting books.

STOP AND CHECK: Does the adjusted cash balance in the Cash account equal the
reconciled balance?




RECEIVABLES (C

RAPID REVIEW
Chapter Content

hapter 8)

Two Methods to Account for Uncollectible Accounts

Direct write-off
method

Record bad debts expense when the company determines a
particular account to be uncollectible.

Allowance method

At the end of each period, estimate the amount of
uncollectible receivables. Debit Bad Debts Expense and
credit Allowance for Doubtful Accounts in an amount that
results in a balance in the allowance account equal to the
estimate of uncollectibles. As specific accounts become
uncollectible, debit Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and
credit Accounts Receivable.

Steps to Manage Accounts Receivable

Determine to

ISR

whom to extend credit.

Establish a payment period.

Monitor collections.

Evaluate the receivables balance.

Accelerate cash receipts from receivables when necessary.

PLANT ASSETS (Chapter 9)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Chapter 12)

Cash flows from operating activities (indirect method)
Net income

Add: Amortization and depreciation $X
Losses on disposals of assets X
Decreases in current assets X
Increases in current liabilities X

Deduct: Increases in current assets X)
Decreases in current liabilities X)
Gains on disposals of assets X

Cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities (direct method)
Cash receipts

<+
=

(Examples: from sales of goods and services to customers, from receipts

of interest and dividends)
Cash payments

$X

(Examples: to suppliers, for operating expenses, for interest, for taxes) _(X)

Cash provided (used) by operating activities

FINANCIAL STATEMENT ANALYSIS (Chapter 13)

@
bed

Computation of Annual Depreciation Expense

Straight-line

Cost — Salvage value
Useful life (in years)

*Declining-balance

Book value at beginning of year X Declining balance rate*
*Declining-balance rate = 1 + Useful life (in years)

Depreciable cost

Discontinued operations

Income statement (presented separately after
“Income from continuing operations”)

Extraordinary items

Income statement (presented separately after
“Discontinued operations”)

Changes in accounting principle

In most instances, use the new method in

current period and restate previous years’ results
using new method. For changes in depreciation
and amortization methods, use the new method

*Units-of-activity

m X Units of activity during year

Note:

If depreciation is calculated for partial periods, the straight-line and declining-

balance methods must be adjusted for the relevant proportion of the year.
Multiply the annual depreciation expense by the number of months expired in
the year divided by 12 months.

BONDS (Chapter

10)

Premium Market interest rate < Contractual interest rate
Face Value Market interest rate = Contractual interest rate
Discount Market interest rate > Contractual interest rate

Computation of Annual Bond Interest Expense

Interest expense = Int

erest paid (payable) + Amortization of discount
(OR — Amortization of premium)

*Straight-line amortization

Bond discount (premium)

Number of interest periods

*Effective-interest
amortization
(preferred
method)

Bond interest expense Bond interest paid

Face amount of bonds X
Contractual interest rate

Carrying value of bonds
at beginning of period X
Effective-interest rate

STOCKHOLDERS’” EQUITY (Chapter 11)

No-Par Value vs. Par Value Stock Journal Entries

No-Par Value

Par Value

periods.

in the current period, but do not restate previous

Income Statement and Comprehensive Income

Sales $ XX
Cost of goods sold XX
Gross profit XX
Operating expenses XX
Income from operations XX
Other revenues (expenses) and gains (losses) XX
Income before income taxes XX
Income tax expense JEEATAS
Income before irregular items XX
Irregular items (net of tax) _XX
Net income XX
Other comprehensive income items (net of tax) _XX
Comprehensive income $ XX

INVESTMENTS (Appendix E)

Comparison of Long-Term Bond Investment and Liability Journal Entries
Event Investor Investee

Debt Investments
Cash

Purchase / issue of bonds

Cash
Bonds Payable

Cash
Interest Revenue

Interest receipt / payment

Interest Expense
Cash

Comparison of Cost and Equity Methods of Accounting for Long-Term Stock Investments

Cash
Common Stock

Cash
Common Stock (par value)
Paid-in Capital in Excess of Par Value

Comparison of Dividend Effects

dividends Dividend Revenue

Event Cost Equity
Acquisition Stock Investments Stock Investments
Cash Cash
Investee reports No entry Stock Investments
earnings Investment Revenue
Investee pays Cash Cash

Stock Investments

Cash Common Stock Retained Earnings
Cash dividend l No effect {
Stock dividend No effect T {
Stock split No effect No effect No effect

*Items with asterisk are covered in appendix.




RAPID REVIEW
Financial Statements

Retained Earnings Statement
Order of Preparation Date
1. Income statement For the period ended Name of Company
i P Retained Earnings Statement

2. Retained earnings statement | For the period ended For the Period Ended

3. Balance sheet As of the end of the period Retained earnings, beginning of period $X
Add: Net income (or deduct net loss) X

4. Statement of cash flows For the period ended X
Deduct: Dividends X
Retained earnings, end of period $X

Income Statement (perpetual inventory system)

STOP AND CHECK: Net income (loss) presented on the retained earnings statement

Name of Company must equal the net income (loss) presented on the income statement.
Income Statement
For the Period Ended Balance Sheet
Sales revenues Name of Company
Sales $X Balance Sheet
Less: Sales returns and allowances X As of the End of the Period
Sales discounts X
Net sales $X Assets
Cost of go9ds sold X Current assets
Gross Pmﬁt X (Examples: cash, short-term investments, accounts
Operating expenses X . X receivable, inventory, prepaids) $X
(Exam}l)lels: store' .sz'ilarl'es, advertising, delivery, rent, Long-term investments
depreciation, ut'lhtles, insurance) X (Examples: investments in bonds, investments in stocks) X
Income from operatmr\? X Property, plant, and equipment
Other revenues and gains Land $X
(Examples: interest, gains) X Buildings and equipment $X
Other expenses and losses Less: Accumulated depreciation X X X
(Examples: ulxterest, losses) X X Intangible assets - - X
Income before income taxes X Total assets X
Income tax expense X ==
Net income $X
— Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Income Statement (periodic inventory system) Liabilities o
Current liabilities
Name of Company (Examples: notes payable, accounts payable, accruals,
Income Statement unearned revenues, current portion of notes payable) $X
For the Period Ended Long-term liabilities
(Examples: notes payable, bonds payable) X
Sales revenues Total liabilities X
Sales $X Stockholders” equity
Less: Sales returns and allowances X Common stock X
Sales discounts X Retained earnings X
Net sales $X Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $X
Cost of goods sold =

Beginning inventory X STOP AND CHECK: Total assets on the balance sheet must equal total liabilities plus
Purchases $X stockholders’ equity; and, ending retained earnings on the balance sheet must equal
Less: Purchase returns and allowances X ending retained earnings on the retained earnings statement.
Net purchases X
Add: Freight in X Statement of Cash Flows
Cost of goods purchased X e ———
Cost of goods available for sale X Name of Company
Less: Ending inventory X Statement of Cash Flows
Cost of goods sold X For the Period Ended
Gross profit X
Operating expenses Cash flows from operating activities
(Examples: store salaries, advertising, delivery, rent, Note: May be prepared using the direct or indirect method
depreciation, utilities, insurance) X Cash provided (used) by operating activities $X
Income from operations X Cash flows from investing activities
Other revenues and gains (Examples: purchase / sale of long-term assets)
(Examples: interest, gains) X Cash provided (used) by investing activities X
Other expenses and losses Cash flows from financing activities
(Examples: interest, losses) X X (Examples: issue / repayment of long-term liabilities,
Income before income taxes X issue of stock, payment of dividends)
Income tax expense X Cash provided (used) by financing activities X
Net income $X Net increase (decrease) in cash X
Cash, beginning of the period X
Cash, end of the period $_X

STOP AND CHECK: Cash, end of the period, on the statement of cash flows must
equal cash presented on the balance sheet.



TOOLS FOR ANALYSIS

Liquidity

Working capital

Current ratio

Current assets — Current liabilities

Current assets
Current liabilities

Cash provided by operations

p. 59
p. 59

Current cash debt coverage ratio et . 643
Average current liabilities

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of g(_)ods sold . 297
Average inventory

Days in inventory 365 days . . 297

Inventory turnover ratio
Receivables turnover ratio Net credit sal'es . 415
Average net receivables
) . 365 days 415

Average collection period Receivables turnover ratio '

Solvency

Debt to total assets ratio Total liabilities . 60

Total assets
Cash debt coverage ratio Cash provided by operations . 644
Average total liabilities
Times interest earned ratio Net income + Interest expense + Tax expense 529
Interest expense
Cash provided by Capital Cash

Free cash flow operations  ~ expenditures ~ dividends - 62

Profitability

Earnings per share Net income — Preferred stock divide_nds 56

Average common shares outstanding

Price-earnings ratio Stock.price per share . 703
Earnings per share

Gross profit rate Gross profit . 246

Net sales
Profit margin ratio Net income . 247
Net sales

Return on assets ratio Net income . 467
Average total assets

Asset turnover ratio Net sales . 468
Average total assets

Payout ratio Cash dividends decl_ared on common stock 593

Net income
Return on common stockholders’ equity ratio Net income — Preferred stock dividends . 594

Average common stockholders’ equity




Critical Thinking Decision Making Across the D
DECISION MAKING ACROSS THE ORGANIZATION - Organlzatlon cases hel 9] students o)
BYP11-6 During a recent period, the fast-food chain Wendy's International purchased many i ision- i i I —t
treasury shares. This caused the number of shares outstanding to fall from 124 million to 105 mil- build decision-makin gs kills by anal yzing
lion. The following information was drawn from the company’s financial statements (in millions). accountin g ich rmation in a Iess O

Information for the Information for the H 8

Year after Purchase  Year before Purchase structured situation. These cases s

of Treasury Stock of Treasury Stock .

et income ey Rty require teams of students to evaluate a S
Total assets 2,076.0 1,837.9 / o o8
D e e s manager’s decision or lead to a decision D
Total common stockholders’ equity 1,029.8 1,068.1 . . -
Average common stockholders’ equity 1,078.0 1,126.2 amon g a |te m at Ive courses Of a Ctl on. l
Total liabilities 1,046.3 769.9 U’)
Average total liabilities 939.0 763.7
Interest expense 30.2 19.8
Income taxes 113.7 84.3
Cash provided by operations 305.2 2338
Cash dividends paid on common stock 26.8 31.0 Q_)
Preferred stock dividends 0 0 3
Average number of common shares outstanding 109.7 119.9

Ethics Cases ask students to reflect ETHiCS cAsES

on typical ethical dilemmas, analyze the

BYP11-8 The R&D division of Mozy Corp. has just developed a chemical for sterilizing the vicious
Brazilian “killer bees” which are invading Mexico and the southern United States. The president of
Mozy is anxious to get the chemical on the market because Mozy profits need a boost—and his job

g 8 is in jeopardy because of decreasing sales and profits. Mozy has an opportunity to sell this chemical
stakeholders and the issues involved, PR o ST, I s R e W i
d d . d . The director of Mozy’s R&D division strongly recommends further research in the laboratory
an ecide on an appropriate to test the side effects of this chemical on other insects, birds, animals, plants, and even humans.
o He cautions the president, “We could be sued from all sides if the chemical has tragic side effects
course Of a C'thI’] . that we didn’t even test for in the lab.” The president answers, “We can’t wait an additional year

for your lab tests. We can avoid losses from such lawsuits by establishing a separate wholly owned

A Look at IFRS provides an overview

g mALookauFRs of the International Financial Reporting

It is often difficult for companies to determine in what time period they should report particular Standards (| F RS) that relate to
revenues and expenses. Both the IASB and FASB are working on a joint project to develop a com- h h . h . h | K h h
mon conceptual framework, as well as a revenue recognition project, that will enable companies

to better use the same principles to record transactions consistently over time. the cha pte rto p ICs, NI g I g ts the

KEY POINTS differences between GAAP and IFRS,

* In this chapter, you learned accrual-basis accounting applied under GAAP. Companies applying H
PR sl e seemist bass necounling 1o ensure st ihey record (ransastions th uanse s discusses IFRS/GAAP convergence
company’s financial statements in the period in which events occur. ’ .
« Similar to GAAP, cash-basis accounting is not in accordance with IFRS. eﬂ:O rtS, an d tests stu d ents un d erstan d N g

IFRS also divides the economic life of companies into artificial time periods. Under both GAAP

and TFRS, this is referred to as the periodicity assumption. th rou g h IFRS Se If_ Test Qu estions an d
* IFRS requires that companies present a complete set of financial statements, including compar-
ative information annually. / I
GAAP has more than 100 rules dealing with revenue recognition. Many of these rules are industry- ,F RS Con cep ts an d Ap P II cation.
specific. In contrast, revenue recognition under IFRS is determined primarily by a single
standard. Despite this large disparity in the amount of detailed guidance devoted to revenue
recognition, the general revenue recognition principles required by GAAP that are used in
this textbook are similar to those under IFRS.

As the Feature Story illustrates, revenue recognition fraud is a major issue in U.S. financial
reporting. The same situation occurs in other countries, as evidenced by revenue recognition
e NV S e it o Ducl
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Many students who take this course do not plan to be
accountants. If you are in that group, you might be
thinking, “If I'm not going to be an accountant, why do
| need to know accounting?” In response, consider
this quote from Harold Geneen, the former chairman
of IT&T: “To be good at your business, you have to
know the numbers—cold” Success in any business
comes back to the numbers. You will rely

on them to make decisions, and man-
agers will use them to evaluate your
performance. That is true whether your
job involves marketing, production,
management, or information systems.

In business, accounting and financial statements
are the means for communicating the numbers. If you
don't know how to read financial statements, you can't
really know your business.

Many companies spend significant resources
teaching their employees basic accounting so that they
can read financial statements and understand how
their actions affect the company’s financial results.
One such company is Springfield ReManufacturing
Corporation (SRC). When Jack Stack and 11 other
managers purchased SRC for 10 cents a share, it
was a failing division of International Harvester. Jack’s
119 employees were counting on him for their liveli-
hood. He decided that for the company to survive,
every employee needed to think like a businessperson
and to act like an owner. To accomplish this, all em-
ployees at SRC took basic accounting courses and
participated in weekly reviews of the company'’s finan-
cial statements. SRC survived, and eventually thrived.
To this day, every employee (now numbering more than
1,000) undergoes this same training.

INSIDE CHAPTER 1 ...

e The Scoop on Accounting (p. 6)
e Spinning the Career Wheel (p. 7)

KNOWING THE

NUMBERS

feature story |-

Many other companies have °
adopted this approach, which is
called “open-book management” Even in companies
that do not practice open-book management, employ-
ers generally assume that managers in all areas of the
company are “financially literate.

Taking this course will go a long way to making you

financially literate. In this book you will learn
how to read and prepare financial state-
ments, and how to use basic tools to eval-
uate financial results. In this first chapter

we will introduce you to the financial
statements of a real company whose
products you are probably familiar with—Tootsie Roll.
Tootsie Roll's presentation of its financial results is com-
plete, yet also relatively easy to understand.

Tootsie Roll started off humbly in 1896 in a small
New York City candy shop owned by an Austrian im-
migrant, Leo Hirshfield. The candy’'s name came from
his five-year-old daughter’s nickname—"Tootsie." Today
the Chicago-based company produces more than
49 million Tootsie Rolls and 16 million Tootsie Pops
each day. In fact, Tootsie Pops are at the center of one
of science's most challenging questions: How many
licks does it take to get to the Tootsie Roll center of
a Tootsie Pop? The answer varies: Licking machines
created at Purdue University and the University of
Michigan report an average of 364 and 411 licks, re-
spectively. In studies using human lickers, the answer
ranges from 144 to 252. We recommend that you take
a few minutes today away from your studies to deter-
mine your own results.

Source: Tootsie Roll information adapted from
www.tootsie.com.

e The Numbers Behind Not-for-Profit Organizations (p. 8)

e Rocking the Bottom Line (p. 75)
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preview of chapter 1

How do you start a business? How do you determine whether your business is making or losing money? How
should you finance expansion—should you borrow, should you issue stock, should you use your own funds?
How do you convince lenders to lend you money or investors to buy your stock? Success in business requires
making countless decisions, and decisions require financial information.

The purpose of this chapter is to show you what role accounting plays in providing financial information. The
content and organization of the chapter are as follows.

Introduction to Financial Statements

Forms of Business

Organization

¢ Sole proprietorship
¢ Partnership
¢ Corporation

study objective 1

Describe the primary forms
of business organization.

Sole Proprietorship

-Simple to establish
-Owner controlled
-Tax advantages

Partnership

-Simple to establish

-Shared control

-Broader skills and resources
-Tax advantages

Corporation

-Easier to transfer ownership
-Easier to raise funds
-No personal liability

Users and Uses of

Communicating

Business Activities

Financial Information with Users
¢ Internal users ¢ Financing * Income statement
e External users ¢ Investing ¢ Retained earnings statement
¢ Ethics in financial reporting ¢ Operating * Balance sheet

« Statement of cash flows

¢ Interrelationships of
statements

¢ Other elements of an annual

report
navigator
Forms of Business Organization

Suppose you graduate with a business degree and decide you want to start your
own business. But what kind of business? You know that you enjoy working with
people, especially teaching them new skills. And, ever since you were young, you
have spent most of your free time outdoors, kayaking, backpacking, skiing, rock
climbing, and mountain biking. You therefore realize that you might be most suc-
cessful in opening an outdoor guide service where you grew up, in the Sierra
Nevada mountains.

Your next decision is to determine what organizational form your business will
have. You have three choices—sole proprietorship, partnership, or corporation.

You might choose the sole proprietorship form for your outdoor guide service.
A business owned by one person is a sole proprietorship. It is simple to set up
and gives you control over the business. Small owner-operated businesses such as
barber shops, law offices, and auto repair shops are often sole proprietorships, as
are farms and small retail stores.

Another possibility is for you to join forces with other individuals to form a
partnership. A business owned by two or more persons associated as partners
is a partnership. Partnerships often are formed because one individual does not
have enough economic resources to initiate or expand the business. Some-
times, partners bring unique skills or resources to the partnership. You and
your partners should formalize your duties and contributions in a written part-
nership agreement. Retail and service-type businesses, including professional
practices (lawyers, doctors, architects, and certified public accountants), often
organize as partnerships.

As a third alternative, you might organize as a corporation. A business or-
ganized as a separate legal entity owned by stockholders is a corporation. In-
vestors in a corporation receive shares of stock to indicate their ownership claim.
Buying stock in a corporation is often more attractive than investing in a part-
nership because shares of stock are easy to sell (transfer ownership). Selling a
proprietorship or partnership interest is much more involved. Also, individuals
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can become stockholders by investing relatively small amounts of money. There-
fore, it is easier for corporations to raise funds. Successful corporations of-
ten have thousands of stockholders, and their stock is traded on organized stock
exchanges like the New York Stock Exchange. Many businesses start as sole pro-
prietorships or partnerships and eventually incorporate. For example, in 1896
Leo Hirshfield started Tootsie Roll as a sole proprietorship, and by 1919 the com-
pany had incorporated.

Other factors to consider in deciding which organizational form to choose
are taxes and legal liability. If you choose a sole proprietorship or partnership,
you generally receive more favorable tax treatment than a corporation. However,
proprietors and partners are personally liable for all debts of the business; cor-
porate stockholders are not. In other words, corporate stockholders generally
pay higher taxes but have no personal liability. We will discuss these issues in
more depth in a later chapter.

The combined number of proprietorships and partnerships in the United
States is more than five times the number of corporations. However, the revenue
produced by corporations is eight times greater. Most of the largest enterprises
in the United States—for example, Coca-Cola, ExxonMobil, General Motors,
Citigroup, and Microsoft—are corporations. Because the majority of U.S. busi-
ness is transacted by corporations, the emphasis in this book is on the corpo-
rate form of organization.

m In choosing the organizational form for your outdoor guide service, you

should consider the pros and cons of each. Identify each of the following organizational
characteristics with the organizational form or forms with which it is associated.

1. Easier to raise funds
2. Simple to establish

S

No personal legal liability

>

Tax advantages

4

Easier to transfer ownership
Solution

Easier to raise funds: Corporation.

Simple to establish: Sole proprietorship and partnership.
No personal legal liability: Corporation.

Tax advantages: Sole proprietorship and partnership.

vtk e

Easier to transfer ownership: Corporation.

Related exercise material: BE1-1 and 231 1-1.

Users and Uses of Financial Information

The purpose of financial information is to provide inputs for decision making.
Accounting is the information system that identifies, records, and communicates
the economic events of an organization to interested users. Users of accounting in-
formation can be divided broadly into two groups: internal users and external users.

INTERNAL USERS

Internal users of accounting information are managers who plan, organize, and
run a business. These include marketing managers, production supervisors,
finance directors, and company officers. In running a business, managers
must answer many important questions, as shown in Illustration 1-1 (page 6).

Alternative Terminology
Stockholders are sometimes called
shareholders.

Alternative Terminology
notes present synonymous
terms that you may come
across in practice.

before you go on...

BUSINESS
ORGANIZATION FORMS

Do it! exercises prompt
you to stop and review
the key points you have
just studied.

Action Plan

* Know which organizational form
best matches the business type,
size, and preferences of the
owner(s).

Action Plans give you

tips about how to
approach the problem.

@ the
navigator

study objective 2

Identify the users and uses
of accounting information.
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Questions Asked by Internal Users

Finance Marketing Human Resources Management
Is cash sufficient to pay What price for an Apple iPod Can we afford to give Which PepsiCo product line is
dividends to will maximize the company's General Motors employees the most profitable? Should any
Microsoft stockholders? net income? pay raises this year?! product lines be eliminated?

lllustration 1-1

Questions that internal To answer these and other questions, you need detailed information on a timely
users ask basis. For internal users, accounting provides internal reports, such as financial
Hlustrations like this comparisons of operating alternatives, projections of income from new sales cam-

one convey information  pajong and forecasts of cash needs for the next year. In addition, companies pre-

in pi ial for hel . . .7 . . .
in pictoriatform to ielp gt symmarized financial information in the form of financial statements.
you visualize and apply

the ideas as you study.

Accounting Across the Organization

‘ The Scoop on Accounting

Accounting can serve as a useful recruiting tool even for the human resources
department. Rhino Foods, located in Burlington, Vermont, is a manufacturer of specialty
ice cream. lts corporate website includes the following:

“Wouldn't it be great to work where you were part of a team? Where your input and
hard work made a difference? Where you weren't kept in the dark about what man-
agement was thinking? . .. Well-it's not a dream! It's the way we do business . ..
Rhino Foods believes in family, honesty and open communication—we really care about
and appreciate our employees—and it shows. Operating results are posted and
monthly group meetings inform all employees about what's happening in the Company.
Employees also share in the Company's profits, in addition to having an excellent
comprehensive benefits package.

Source: www.rhinofoods.com/workforus/workforus.html.

Accounting Across the

Organization stories o What are the benefits to the company and to the employees of making the finan-
show applications of m cial statements available to all employees? (See page 41.)

accounting information

]i‘n v:aI_‘iou\s business EXTERNAL USERS

unctions.

There are several types of external users of accounting information. Investors
(owners) use accounting information to make decisions to buy, hold, or sell stock.
Creditors such as suppliers and bankers use accounting information to evalu-

lllustration 1-2 ate the risks of selling on credit or lending money. Some questions that investors
Questions that external and creditors may ask about a company are shown in Illustration 1-2.
users ask

Questions Asked by External Users

What do we do
/ if they catch us?
| 3 e

Investors Investors Creditors

Is General Electric earning How does Disney compare in size Will United Airlines be able
satisfactory income? and profitability with Time Warner? to pay its debts as they come due?
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The information needs and questions of other external users vary considerably.
Taxing authorities, such as the Internal Revenue Service, want to know whether
the company complies with the tax laws. Customers are interested in whether a
company like General Motors will continue to honor product warranties and oth-
erwise support its product lines. Labor unions, such as the Major League Base-
ball Players Association, want to know whether the owners have the ability to pay
increased wages and benefits. Regulatory agencies, such as the Securities and Ex-
change Commission or the Federal Trade Commission, want to know whether the
company is operating within prescribed rules. For example, Enron, Dynegy, Duke
Energy, and other big energy-trading companies reported record profits at the same
time as California was paying extremely high prices for energy and suffering from
blackouts. This disparity caused regulators to investigate the energy traders to make
sure that the profits were earned by legitimate and fair practices.

Accounting Across the Organization
Spinning the Career Wheel

#

One question that business students frequently ask is, “How will the study
of accounting help me?” It should help you a great deal, because a working knowledge
of accounting is desirable for virtually every field of business. Some examples of how
accounting is used in business careers include:

General management: Imagine running Ford Motors, Massachusetts General Hospital,
California State University—Fullerton, a McDonald'’s franchise, a Trek bike shop. All general
managers need to understand accounting data in order to make wise business decisions.

Marketing: A marketing specialist at a company like Procter & Gamble develops strate-
gies to help the sales force be successful. But making a sale is meaningless unless it
is a profitable sale. Marketing people must be sensitive to costs and benefits, which ac-
counting helps them quantify and understand.

Finance: Do you want to be a banker for Citicorp, an investment analyst for Goldman
Sachs, a stock broker for Merrill Lynch? These fields rely heavily on accounting. In all of
them you will regularly examine and analyze financial statements. In fact, it is difficult to
get a good job in a finance function without two or three courses in accounting.

Real estate: Are you interested in being a real estate broker for Prudential Real
Estate? Because a third party—the bank—is almost always involved in financing a real
estate transaction, brokers must understand the numbers involved: Can the buyer af-
ford to make the payments to the bank? Does the cash flow from an industrial property
justify the purchase price? What are the tax benefits of the purchase?

#7 How might accounting help you? (See page 41.)
m

ETHICS IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

People won't gamble in a casino if they think it is “rigged.” Similarly, people
won't “play” the stock market if they think stock prices are rigged. In recent years
the financial press has been full of articles about financial scandals at Enron,
WorldCom, HealthSouth, and AIG. As more scandals came to light, a mistrust of
financial reporting in general seemed to be developing. One article in the Wall Street
Journal noted that “repeated disclosures about questionable accounting practices
have bruised investors’ faith in the reliability of earnings reports, which in turn
has sent stock prices tumbling.”! Imagine trying to carry on a business or invest
money if you could not depend on the financial statements to be honestly prepared.

1“U.S. Share Prices Slump,” Wall Street Journal (February 21, 2002).
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Ethics Note Circus-founder P.T.
Barnum is alleged to have said,
“Trust everyone, but cut the deck’’
What Sarbanes-Oxley does is to
provide measures that (like cutting
the deck of playing cards) help
ensure that fraud will not occur.

lllustration 1-3  Steps in
analyzing ethics cases

Information would have no credibility. There is no doubt that a sound, well-
functioning economy depends on accurate and dependable financial reporting.

United States regulators and lawmakers were very concerned that the econ-
omy would suffer if investors lost confidence in corporate accounting because
of unethical financial reporting. In 2002, Congress passed the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act (SOX) to reduce unethical corporate behavior and decrease the likelihood
of future corporate scandals. As a result of SOX, top management must now cer-
tify the accuracy of financial information. In addition, penalties for fraudulent
financial activity are much more severe. Also, SOX increased the independence
of the outside auditors who review the accuracy of corporate financial state-
ments, and increased the oversight role of boards of directors.

Effective financial reporting depends on sound ethical behavior. To sensitize
you to ethical situations and to give you practice at solving ethical dilemmas,
we address ethics in a number of ways in this book: (1) A number of the Fea-
ture Stories and other parts of the text discuss the central importance of ethical
behavior to financial reporting. (2) Insight boxes with an ethics perspective high-
light ethics situations and issues in actual business settings. (3) At the end of
the chapter, an Ethics Case simulates a business situation and asks you to put
yourself in the position of a decision maker in that case.

When analyzing these various ethics cases and your own ethical experiences,
you should apply the three steps outlined in Illustration 1-3.

Solving an Ethical Dilemma

I. Recognize an ethical 2. Identify and analyze 3. Identify the alternatives,
situation and the ethical the principal elements and weigh the impact of
issues involved. in the situation. each alternative on various
Use your personal ethics to  Identify the stakeholders— stakeholders.

identify ethical situations and persons or groups who may  Select the most ethical

issues. Some businesses and  be harmed or benefited. Ask  alternative, considering all the
professional organizations the question: What are the consequences. Sometimes there
provide written codes of responsibilities and obligations will be one right answer. Other
ethics for guidance in some  of the parties involved? situations involve more than
business situations. one right solution; these

situations require you to
evaluate each alternative and
select the best one.

Insights provide
examples of business
situations from various
perspectives—ethics,
investor, and
international.

Ethics Insight
512

w | The Numbers Behind Not-for-Profit Organizations

Accounting plays an important role for a wide range of business organiza-
tions worldwide. Just as the integrity of the numbers matters for business, it matters at
least as much for not-for-profit organizations. Proper control and reporting help ensure
that money is used the way donors intended. Donors are less inclined to give to an or-
ganization if they think the organization is subject to waste or theft. The accounting chal-
lenges of some large international not-for-profits rival those of the world'’s largest busi-
nesses. For example, after the Haitian earthquake, the Haitian-born musician Wyclef Jean
was criticized for the poor accounting controls in a relief fund that he founded. Since
then, he has hired a new accountant and improved the transparency regarding funds
raised and spent.

What benefits does a sound accounting system provide to a not-for-profit organiza-
m tion? (See page 41.)



Business Activities

All businesses are involved in three types of activity—financing, investing,
and operating. For example, Leo Hirshfield, the founder of Tootsie Roll, ob-
tained cash through financing to start and grow his business. Some of this
financing came from personal savings, and some likely came from outside
sources like banks. Hirshfield then invested the cash in equipment to run
the business, such as mixing equipment and delivery vehicles. Once this
equipment was in place, he could begin the operating activities of making
and selling candy.

The accounting information system keeps track of the results of each of
the various business activities—financing, investing, and operating. Let’s look in
more detail at each type of business activity.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

It takes money to make money. The two primary sources of outside funds for
corporations are borrowing money and issuing (selling) shares of stock in ex-
change for cash.

Tootsie Roll Industries may borrow money in a variety of ways. For exam-
ple, it can take out a loan at a bank or borrow directly from investors by issu-
ing debt securities called bonds. Persons or entities to whom Tootsie Roll owes
money are its creditors. Amounts owed to creditors—in the form of debt and
other obligations—are called liabilities. Specific names are given to different
types of liabilities, depending on their source. Tootsie Roll may have a note
payable to a bank for the money borrowed to purchase delivery trucks. Debt se-
curities sold to investors that must be repaid at a particular date some years in
the future are bonds payable.

A corporation may also obtain funds by selling shares of stock to investors.
Common stock is the term used to describe the total amount paid in by stock-
holders for the shares they purchase.

The claims of creditors differ from those of stockholders. If you loan
money to a company, you are one of its creditors. In lending money, you spec-
ify a payment schedule (e.g., payment at the end of three months). As a cred-
itor, you have a legal right to be paid at the agreed time. In the event of
nonpayment, you may legally force the company to sell property to pay its
debts. In the case of financial difficulty, creditor claims must be paid before
stockholders’ claims.

Stockholders, on the other hand, have no claim to corporate cash until the
claims of creditors are satisfied. If you buy a company’s stock instead of loan-
ing it money, you have no legal right to expect any payments until all of its cred-
itors are paid. However, many corporations make payments to stockholders on
a regular basis as long as there is sufficient cash to cover required payments to
creditors. These payments to stockholders are called dividends.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Once the company has raised cash through financing activities, it will then use
that cash in investing activities. Investing activities involve the purchase of the
resources a company needs in order to operate. A growing company purchases
many resources, such as computers, delivery trucks, furniture, and buildings.
Resources owned by a business are called assets. Different types of assets are
given different names. Tootsie Roll’s mixing equipment is a type of asset referred
to as property, plant, and equipment.

Cash is one of the more important assets owned by Tootsie Roll or any other
business. If a company has excess cash that it does not need for a while, it might

Business Activities 9

study objective

Explain the three principal
types of business activity.
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Financing

Essential terms are
printed in blue. They are
defined again in the
glossary at the end of
the chapter.
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Investing

Property, plant, and equipment is
sometimes called fixed assets.
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Operating

choose to invest in securities (stocks or bonds) of other corporations. Investments
are another example of an investing activity.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Once a business has the assets it needs to get started, it can begin its opera-
tions. Tootsie Roll is in the business of selling all things that taste, look, or
smell like candy. It sells Tootsie Rolls, Tootsie Pops, Blow Pops, Caramel Ap-
ple Pops, Mason Dots, Mason Crows, Sugar Daddy, and Sugar Babies. We call
amounts earned on the sale of these products revenues. Revenue is the in-
crease in assets resulting from the sale of a product or service in the normal
course of business. For example, Tootsie Roll records revenue when it sells a
candy product.

Revenues arise from different sources and are identified by various names
depending on the nature of the business. For instance, Tootsie Roll’s primary
source of revenue is the sale of candy products. However, it also generates in-
terest revenue on debt securities held as investments. Sources of revenue com-
mon to many businesses are sales revenue, service revenue, and interest
revenue.

The company purchases its longer-lived assets through investing activities as
described earlier. Other assets with shorter lives, however, result from operating
activities. For example, supplies are assets used in day-to-day operations. Goods
available for future sales to customers are assets called inventory. Also, if Tootsie
Roll sells goods to a customer and does not receive cash immediately, then the
company has a right to expect payment from that customer in the near future.
This right to receive money in the future is called an account receivable.

Before Tootsie Roll can sell a single Tootsie Roll, Tootsie Pop, or Blow Pop,
it must purchase sugar, corn syrup, and other ingredients, mix these ingredi-
ents, process the mix, and wrap and ship the finished product. It also incurs
costs like salaries, rents, and utilities. All of these costs, referred to as expenses,
are necessary to produce and sell the product. In accounting language, expenses
are the cost of assets consumed or services used in the process of generating
revenues.

Expenses take many forms and are identified by various names depend-
ing on the type of asset consumed or service used. For example, Tootsie
Roll keeps track of these types of expenses: cost of goods sold (such as
the cost of ingredients); selling expenses (such as the cost of salespersons’
salaries); marketing expenses (such as the cost of advertising); adminis-
trative expenses (such as the salaries of administrative staff, and telephone
and heat costs incurred at the corporate office); interest expense (amounts
of interest paid on various debts); and income taxes (corporate taxes paid
to government).

Tootsie Roll may also have liabilities arising from these expenses. For exam-
ple, it may purchase goods on credit from suppliers; the obligations to pay for
these goods are called accounts payable. Additionally, Tootsie Roll may have
interest payable on the outstanding amounts owed to the bank. It may also
have wages payable to its employees and sales taxes payable, property taxes
payable, and income taxes payable to the government.

Tootsie Roll compares the revenues of a period with the expenses of
that period to determine whether it earned a profit. When revenues exceed
expenses, net income results. When expenses exceed revenues, a net loss
results.
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m Classify each item as an asset, liability, common stock, revenue, or

expense.

Cost of renting property
Truck purchased

Notes payable

Issuance of ownership shares

Amount earned from providing service

O

Amounts owed to suppliers
Solution

Cost of renting property: Expense.

Truck purchased: Asset.

Notes payable: Liabilities.

Issuance of ownership shares: Common stock.

Amount earned from providing service: Revenue.

I T o

Amounts owed to suppliers: Liabilities.

Related exercise material: BE1-3, [2¥:¥i4 1-2, and E1-3.

Communicating with Users

Assets, liabilities, expenses, and revenues are of interest to users of accounting
information. This information is arranged in the format of four different financial
statements, which form the backbone of financial accounting:

e To present a picture at a point in time of what your business owns (its as-
sets) and what it owes (its liabilities), you prepare a balance sheet.

e To show how successfully your business performed during a period of time,
you report its revenues and expenses in an income statement.

¢ To indicate how much of previous income was distributed to you and the
other owners of your business in the form of dividends, and how much was
retained in the business to allow for future growth, you present a retained
earnings statement.

e To show where your business obtained cash during a period of time and how
that cash was used, you present a statement of cash flows.

To introduce you to these statements, we have prepared the financial state-
ments for your outdoor guide service, Sierra Corporation, after your first month
of operations. To summarize, you officially started your business in Truckee,
California, on October 1, 2012. Sierra provides guide services in the Lake Tahoe
area of the Sierra Nevada mountains. Its promotional materials describe out-
door day trips, such as rafting, snowshoeing, and hiking, as well as multi-day
backcountry experiences. To minimize your initial investment, at this point the
company has limited outdoor equipment for customer use. Instead, your cus-
tomers either bring their own equipment or you arrange for them to rent equip-
ment through local outfitters. The financial statements for Sierra’s first month
of business are provided in the following pages.

INCOME STATEMENT

The income statement reports the success or failure of the company’s opera-
tions for a period of time. To indicate that its income statement reports the

before you go on...

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Action Plan

* Classify each item based on its
economic characteristics. Proper
classification of items is critical
if accounting is to provide
useful information.

study objective

Describe the content and
purpose of each of the
financial statements.

International Note The primary
types of financial statements
required by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) are the same.
Neither IFRS nor GAAP is very
specific regarding format
requirements for the primary
financial statements. However, in
practice, some format differences
do exist in presentations commonly
employed by [FRS companies
compared to GAAP companies.
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Illustration 1-4 Sierra
Corporation’s income
statement

Helpful Hint The heading
identifies the company, the type
of statement, and the time period
covered. Sometimes, another line
indicates the unit of measure, e.g.,
“in thousands” or “in millions”’

Ethics Note When companies
find errors in previously released
income statements, they restate
those numbers. Perhaps because
of the increased scrutiny shortly
after Sarbanes-Oxley was
implemented, companies filed a
record 1,195 restatements.

Decision Toolkits
summarize the financial
decision-making process.

Introduction to Financial Statements

results of operations for a period of time, Sierra dates the income statement
“For the Month Ended October 31, 2012.” The income statement lists the com-
pany’s revenues followed by its expenses. Finally, Sierra determines the net in-
come (or net loss) by deducting expenses from revenues. Sierra Corporation’s
income statement is shown in Illustration 1-4. Congratulations, you are already
showing a profit!

SIERRA CORPORATION
Income Statement
For the Month Ended October 31, 2012

Revenues
Service revenue $10,600
Expenses
Salaries expense $5,200
Supplies expense 1,500
Rent expense 900
Insurance expense 50
Interest expense 50
Depreciation expense 40
Total expenses 7,740
Net income $ 2,860

Why are financial statement users interested in net income? Investors are in-
terested in a company’s past net income because it provides useful informa-
tion for predicting future net income. Investors buy and sell stock based on
their beliefs about a company’s future performance. If investors believe that Sierra
will be successful in the future and that this will result in a higher stock price,
they will buy its stock. Creditors also use the income statement to predict future
earnings. When a bank loans money to a company, it believes that it will be re-
paid in the future. If it didn’t think it would be repaid, it wouldn't loan the money.
Therefore, prior to making the loan the bank loan officer uses the income state-
ment as a source of information to predict whether the company will be profitable
enough to repay its loan. Thus, reporting a strong profit will make it easier for
Sierra to raise additional cash either by issuing shares of stock or borrowing.

Amounts received from issuing stock are not revenues, and amounts
paid out as dividends are not expenses. As a result, they are not reported on
the income statement. For example, Sierra Corporation does not treat as rev-
enue the $10,000 of cash received from issuing new stock, nor does it regard as
a business expense the $500 of dividends paid.

DECISION TOOLKIT

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

Are the company’s operations
profitable?

INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Income statement The income statement reports on
the success or failure of the
company’s operations by reporting

its revenues and expenses.

If the company’s revenue exceeds
its expenses, it will report net
income; otherwise it will report

a net loss.

RETAINED EARNINGS STATEMENT

If Sierra is profitable, at the end of each period it must decide what portion
of profits to pay to shareholders in dividends. In theory, it could pay all of its
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current-period profits, but few companies do this. Why? Because they want to
retain part of the profits to allow for further expansion. High-growth companies,
such as Google and Cisco Systems, often pay no dividends. Retained earnings
is the net income retained in the corporation.

The retained earnings statement shows the amounts and causes of changes
in retained earnings during the period. The time period is the same as that cov-
ered by the income statement. The beginning retained earnings amount appears
on the first line of the statement. Then the company adds net income and deducts
dividends to determine the retained earnings at the end of the period. If a com-
pany has a net loss, it deducts (rather than adds) that amount in the retained
earnings statement. Illustration 1-5 presents Sierra Corporation’s retained earn-
ings statement.

SIERRA CORPORATION
Retained Earnings Statement
For the Month Ended October 31, 2012

Retained earnings, October 1 $ 0
Add: Net income 2,860

2,860
Less: Dividends 500
Retained earnings, October 31 $2,360

By monitoring the retained earnings statement, financial statement users can
evaluate dividend payment practices. Some investors seek companies, such as
Dow Chemical, that have a history of paying high dividends. Other investors seek
companies, such as Amazon.com, that reinvest earnings to increase the com-
pany’s growth instead of paying dividends. Lenders monitor their corporate cus-
tomers’ dividend payments because any money paid in dividends reduces a
company’s ability to repay its debts.

DECISION TOOLKIT
INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION

13

lllustration 1-5 Sierra
Corporation’s retained
earnings statement

Helpful Hint The heading of this
statement identifies the company,
the type of statement, and the
time period covered hy the
statement.

HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

A company striving for rapid
growth will pay a low (or no)
dividend.

Retained earnings statement How much of this year’s income

did the company pay out in

What is the company’s policy
toward dividends and growth?

dividends to shareholders?

BALANCE SHEET

The balance sheet reports assets and claims to assets at a specific point in time.
Claims to assets are subdivided into two categories: claims of creditors and claims
of owners. As noted earlier, claims of creditors are called liabilities. Claims of
owners are called stockholders’ equity.

Ilustration 1-6 shows the relationship among the categories on the balance
sheet in equation form. This equation is referred to as the basic accounting
equation.

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity

study objective [ 5

Explain the meaning of
assets, liabilities, and
stockholders’ equity, and
state the basic accounting
equation.

Illustration 1-6 Basic
accounting equation
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Liabilities are also referred to as
debt.

lllustration 1-7  Sierra
Corporation’s balance
sheet

Helpful Hint The heading of a
balance sheet must identify the
company, the statement, and
the date.

This relationship is where the name “balance sheet” comes from. Assets must
balance with the claims to assets.

As you can see from looking at Sierra’s balance sheet in Illustration 1-7, the
balance sheet presents the company’s financial position as of a specific date—
in this case, October 31, 2012. It lists assets first, followed by liabilities and stock-
holders’ equity. Stockholders’ equity is comprised of two parts: (1) common stock
and (2) retained earnings. As noted earlier, common stock results when the com-
pany sells new shares of stock; retained earnings is the net income retained in
the corporation. Sierra has common stock of $10,000 and retained earnings of
$2,360, for total stockholders’ equity of $12,360.

SIERRA CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
October 31, 2012

Assets
Cash $15,200
Accounts receivable 200
Supplies 1,000
Prepaid insurance 550
Equipment, net 4,960
Total assets $21,910
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Notes payable $ 5,000
Accounts payable 2,500
Salaries payable 1,200
Unearned service revenue 800
Interest payable 50
Total liabilities $ 9,550
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 10,000
Retained earnings 2,360
Total stockholders’ equity 12,360
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $21,910

Creditors analyze a company’s balance sheet to determine the likelihood that
they will be repaid. They carefully evaluate the nature of the company’s assets
and liabilities. In operating the Sierra Corporation guide service, the balance
sheet will be used to determine whether cash on hand is sufficient for immedi-
ate cash needs. The balance sheet will also be used to evaluate the relationship
between debt and stockholders’ equity to determine whether the company has
a satisfactory proportion of debt and common stock financing.

i DECISION TOOLKIT

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

Does the company rely primarily
on debt or stockholders’ equity to
finance its assets?

INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Balance sheet The balance sheet reports the Compare the amount of debt
company’s resources and claims versus the amount of stockholders’
to those resources. There are two  equity to determine whether the
types of claims: liabilities and company relies more on creditors
stockholders’ equity. or owners for its financing.
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—&—  Ethics Insight

u= Rocking the Bottom Line

>

What topic has performers such as Tom Waits, Clint Black, Sheryl Crow, and
Madonna so concerned that they are pushing for new laws regarding its use? Account-
ing. Recording-company accounting to be more precise. Musicians receive royalty pay-
ments based on the accounting done by their recording companies. Many performers
say that the recording companies—either intentionally or unintentionally—have very poor
accounting systems, which, the performers say, has resulted in many inaccurate royalty
payments. They would like to see laws created that would hit the recording companies
with stiff fines for accounting errors.

o What is one way that some of these disputes might be resolved? (See page 41.)
=

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The primary purpose of a statement of cash flows is to provide financial in-
formation about the cash receipts and cash payments of a business for a spe-
cific period of time. To help investors, creditors, and others in their analysis of
a company’s cash position, the statement of cash flows reports the cash effects
of a company’s operating, investing, and financing activities. In addition, the
statement shows the net increase or decrease in cash during the period, and the
amount of cash at the end of the period.

Users are interested in the statement of cash flows because they want to
know what is happening to a company’s most important resource. In operating
Sierra, the statement of cash flows will provide answers to these simple but im-
portant questions:

e  Where did cash come from during the period?
e How was cash used during the period?
e  What was the change in the cash balance during the period?

The statement of cash flows for Sierra, in Hlustration 1-8, shows that cash
increased $15,200 during the month. This increase resulted because operating

SIERRA CORPORATION
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Month Ended October 31, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from operating activities $11,200
Cash payments for operating activities (5,500)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 5,700
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchased office equipment (5,000)
Net cash used by investing activities (5,000)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of common stock 10,000
Issued note payable 5,000
Payment of dividend (500)
Net cash provided by financing activities 14,500
Net increase in cash 15,200
Cash at beginning of period 0

Cash at end of period $15,200

lllustration 1-8 Sierra
Corporation’s statement of
cash flows

Helpful Hint The heading of this
statement identifies the company,
the type of statement, and the
time period covered by the
statement. Negative numbers are
shown in parentheses.
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activities (services to clients) increased cash $5,700, and financing activities in-
creased cash $14,500. Investing activities used $5,000 of cash for the purchase
of equipment.

: o 1<
L DECISION TOOLKIT
DECISION CHECKPOINTS INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Does the company generate Statement of cash flows The statement of cash flows Compare the amount of cash

sufficient cash from operations to shows the amount of cash provided by operating activities

fund its investing activities? provided or used by operating with the amount of cash used by
activities, investing activities, and investing activities. Any deficiency
financing activities. in cash from operating activities

must be made up with cash from
financing activities.

INTERRELATIONSHIPS OF STATEMENTS

PLUS Ilustration 1-9 shows simplified financial statements of Tootsie Roll Industries,
Tootsie Roll Annual Inc. (We have simplified the financial statements to assist your learning.) Tootsie
Report Walkthrough Roll’'s actual financial statements are presented in Appendix A, at the end of

the textbook. Note that the numbers in Tootsie Roll’s statements are presented
in thousands—that is, the last three 000s are omitted. Thus, Tootsie Roll’s net
income in 2009 is $53,475,000, not $53,475. Because the results on some finan-
cial statements become inputs to other statements, the statements are interre-
lated. These interrelationships can be seen in Tootsie Roll’s financial statements,
as follows.

1. The retained earnings statement depends on the results of the income state-
ment. Tootsie Roll reported net income of $53,475,000 for the period. It adds
the net income amount to the beginning amount of retained earnings in order
to determine ending retained earnings.

2. The balance sheet and retained earnings statement are also interrelated.
Tootsie Roll reports the ending amount of $145,928,000 on the retained earn-
ings statement as the retained earnings amount on the balance sheet.

3. Finally, the statement of cash flows relates to information on the balance
sheet. The statement of cash flows shows how the Cash account changed
during the period. It shows the amount of cash at the beginning of the
period, the sources and uses of cash during the period, and the
$90,990,000 of cash at the end of the period. The ending amount of cash
shown on the statement of cash flows must agree with the amount of
cash on the balance sheet.

Study these interrelationships carefully. To prepare financial statements, you
must understand the sequence in which these amounts are determined and how
each statement impacts the next.
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TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC. lllustration 1-9  Tootsie
J Income Statement Roll Industries, Inc!s

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands) financial statements
Revenues $499,331
Expenses . .
Cpost of goods sold $319,497 Helpful Hint Note that final
Selling, marketing, and administrative expense and other 115,655 sums are double-underlined,
Income tax expense 10,704 . .
Total expenses == 445,856 and negative amounts (in the
Net income $ 53,475 <« Statement of cash flows) are

presented in parentheses.

7 TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC. —(f‘
J Retained Earnings Statement

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands)

Retained earnings, January 1, 2009 $142,872 ) L
T T e — 53.475 <« Helpful Hint The arrows in this

196,347 illustration show interrelationships
Less: Dividends and other (net) 50,419 of the four financial statements.
Retained earnings, December 31, 2009 $145,928 <«—

e TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC.
J Balance Sheet

December 31, 2009 (in thousands)

Assets

Cash $ 90,990
Investments 8,663
Accounts receivable 45,909
Inventories 56,387
Prepaid expenses 8,562
Property, plant and equipment, net 220,721 —k@
Other assets 407,015 -

Total assets $838,247

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 9,140

Dividends payable 4,458

Accrued liabilities 42,468

Deferred income taxes payable 44,582

Bonds payable 7,500

Employee benefits payable and other 77,614 $185,762
Stockholders’ equity

Common stock 506,557

Retained earnings 145,928 652,485 «—
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $838,247

—3)

wyth TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC.
J . Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2009 (in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from operating activities $491,344
Cash payments for operating activities (416,063)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 75,281
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures and acquisitions (20,831)
Net purchases/sales of investment securities and other 6,180
Net cash used by investing activities (14,651)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchase of common stock (20,723)
Dividends paid in cash (17,825)
Net cash used by financing activities (38,548)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 22,082
Cash at beginning of year 68,908

Cash at end of year $ 90,990 ——
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before you go on...

FINANCIAL m CSU Corporation began operations on January 1, 2012. The following
STATEMENTS information is available for CSU Corporation on December 31, 2012:
Accounts receivable 1,800 Retained earnings ? Supplies expense 200
Accounts payable 2,000 Equipment 16,000 Cash 1,400
Building rental expense 9,000 Insurance expense 1,000 Dividends 600
Notes payable 5,000 Service revenue 17,000
Common stock 10,000 Supplies 4,000
Action Plan Prepare an income statement, a retained earnings statement, and a balance sheet.

* Report the revenues and

. . Solution
expenses for a period of time
in an income statement. CSU CORPORATION
* Show the amounts and causes Income Statement
(net income and dividends) of For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
changes in retained earnings
during the period in the Revenues
retained earnings statement. Service revenue $17,000
. Expenses
* Present the assets and claims Rent expense $9.000
to those assets at a specific Insurance expense 1,000
point in time in the balance Supplies expense 200
sheet. Total expenses 10,200
Net income $ 6,800
CSU CORPORATION
Retained Earnings Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Retained earnings, January 1 $ 0
Add: Net income 6,800
6,800
Less: Dividends 600
Retained earnings, December 31 $6,200
CSU CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012
Assets
Cash $ 1,400
Accounts receivable 1,800
Supplies 4,000
Equipment 16,000
Total assets $23,200
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Notes payable $ 5,000
Accounts payable ~ 2,000
Total liabilities $ 7,000
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 10,000
Retained earnings 6,200
Total stockholders’ equity 16,200
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $23,200

Related exercise material: BE1-5, BE1-6, BE1-7, BE1-8, BE1-9, BE1-10, [2E¥]] 1-3, E1-4, E1-5,
E1-6, E1-7, E1-8, E1-9, E1-10, E1-11, and E1-14.
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OTHER ELEMENTS OF AN ANNUAL REPORT

U.S. companies that are publicly traded must provide shareholders with an
annual report. The annual report always includes the financial statements intro-
duced in this chapter. The annual report also includes other important informa-
tion such as a management discussion and analysis section, notes to the finan-
cial statements, and an independent auditor’s report. No analysis of a company’s
financial situation and prospects is complete without a review of these items.

Management Discussion and Analysis

The management discussion and analysis (MD&A) section covers various finan-
cial aspects of a company, including its ability to pay near-term obligations, its
ability to fund operations and expansion, and its results of operations. Man-
agement must highlight favorable or unfavorable trends and identify significant
events and uncertainties that affect these three factors. This discussion obviously
involves a number of subjective estimates and opinions. A brief excerpt from the
MD&A section of Tootsie Roll's annual report is presented in Illustration 1-10.

Jm\) TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC.

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The Company has a relatively straightforward financial structure and has historically
maintained a conservative financial position. Except for an immaterial amount of
operating leases, the Company has no special financing arrangements or “off-balance
sheet” special purpose entities. Cash flows from operations plus maturities of short-
term investments are expected to be adequate to meet the Company’s overall financ-
ing needs, including capital expenditures, in 2010.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Explanatory notes and supporting schedules accompany every set of financial
statements and are an integral part of the statements. The notes to the finan-
cial statements clarify the financial statements, and provide additional detail.
Information in the notes does not have to be quantifiable (numeric). Examples
of notes are descriptions of the significant accounting policies and methods used
in preparing the statements, explanations of uncertainties and contingencies,
and various statistics and details too voluminous to be included in the state-
ments. The notes are essential to understanding a company’s operating perform-
ance and financial position.

Ilustration 1-11 is an excerpt from the notes to Tootsie Roll’s financial state-
ments. It describes the methods that Tootsie Roll uses to account for revenues.

Jm\) TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements

Revenue recognition

Revenue, net of applicable provisions for discounts, returns, allowances, and certain
advertising and promotional costs, is recognized when products are delivered to cus-
tomers based on a customer purchase order, and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Auditor’s Report

An auditor’s report is prepared by an independent outside auditor. It states the
auditor’s opinion as to the fairness of the presentation of the financial position
and results of operations and their conformance with generally accepted ac-
counting standards.

study objective

Describe the components
that supplement the
financial statements in an
annual report.

lllustration 1-10 Tootsie
Roll's management
discussion and analysis

lllustration 1-11  Notes
to Tootsie Roll's financial
statements
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Illustration 1-12 Excerpt
from auditor's report on
Tootsie Roll's financial
statements

before you go on...

COMPONENTS OF
ANNUAL REPORTS

Action Plan

* Realize that financial statements
provide information about a
company’s performance and
financial position.

* Be familiar with the other
elements of the annual report
in order to gain a fuller
understanding of a company.

Introduction to Financial Statements

An auditor is an accounting professional who conducts an independent ex-
amination of a company’s financial statements. Only accountants who meet cer-
tain criteria and thereby attain the designation Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) may perform audits. If the auditor is satisfied that the financial state-
ments provide a fair representation of the company’s financial position and re-
sults of operations in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
then the auditor expresses an unqualified opinion. If the auditor expresses any-
thing other than an unqualified opinion, then readers should only use the finan-
cial statements with caution. That is, without an unqualified opinion, we can-
not have complete confidence that the financial statements give an accurate
picture of the company’s financial health. For example, in April 2009 Blockbuster,
Inc.’s auditor stated that its financial situation raised “substantial doubt about
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.”

Ilustration 1-12 is an excerpt from the auditor’s report from Tootsie Roll’s
2009 annual report. Tootsie Roll received an unqualified opinion from its audi-
tor, PricewaterhouseCoopers.

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc.

TOOTSIE ROLL INDUSTRIES, INC.
Excerpt from Auditor's Report

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position and
the related consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive earnings and retained
earnings, and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).

m State whether each of the following items is most closely associated with

the management discussion and analysis (MD&A), the notes to the financial statements,
or the auditor’s report.

. Descriptions of significant accounting policies

. Unqualified opinion

. Explanations of uncertainties and contingencies

. Description of ability to fund operations and expansion
. Description of results of operations

. Certified Public Accountant (CPA)

N Ul AW N =

Solution

. Descriptions of significant accounting policies: Notes.

. Ungqualified opinion: Auditor’s report.

. Explanations of uncertainties and contingencies: Notes.

. Description of ability to fund operations and expansion: MD&A.
. Description of results of operations: MD&A.

. Certified Public Accountant (CPA): Auditor’s report.

N Ul AW N

s |: Related exercise material: BE1-11, 234 1-4, and E1-17.
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‘USING THE DECISION TOOLKIT

The Hershey Company, located in Hershey, Pennsylvania, is the leading North
American manufacturer of chocolate—for example, Hershey’s Kisses, Reese’s Peanut
Butter Cups, Kit Kat, and Take 5 bars. Imagine that you are considering the pur-
chase of shares of Hershey's common stock.

Using the Decision
Toolkit exercises ask you
to use information from
financial statements to
make financial decisions.
Instructions

Answer these questions related to your decision whether to invest.

(a) What financial statements should you request from the company?

(b) What should these financial statements tell you?

(c¢) Should you request audited financial statements? Explain.

(d) Appendix B at the end of this book contains financial statements for Hershey.
What comparisons can you make between Tootsie Roll and Hershey in terms of
their respective results from operations and financial position?

Solution

(a) Before you invest, you should investigate the income statement, retained earn-
ings statement, statement of cash flows, and balance sheet.

(b) You would probably be most interested in the income statement because it
tells about past performance and thus gives an indication of future performance.
The retained earnings statement provides a record of the company’s dividend
history. The statement of cash flows reveals where the company is getting
and spending its cash. This is especially important for a company that wants to
grow. Finally, the balance sheet reveals the relationship between assets and
liabilities.

(c) You would want audited financial statements. These statements indicate that a
CPA (certified public accountant) has examined and expressed an opinion that
the statements present fairly the financial position and results of operations of
the company. Investors and creditors should not make decisions without study-
ing audited financial statements.

(d) Many interesting comparisons can be made between the two companies. Tootsie
Roll is smaller, with total assets of $838,247,000 versus $3,675,031,000 for Hershey,
and it has lower revenue—$499,331,000 versus $5,298,660,000 for Hershey. In
addition, Tootsie Roll’s cash provided by operating activities of $75,281,000 is less
than Hershey’s $1,065,749,000.

While useful, these basic measures are not enough to determine whether one
company is a better investment than the other. In later chapters, you will learn of
tools that will allow you to compare the relative profitability and financial health of
these and other companies.

Summary of Study Objectives

1 Describe the primary forms of business organization. or sell shares of a company’s stock. Creditors (suppli-

A sole proprietorship is a business owned by one per-
son. A partnership is a business owned by two or more
people associated as partners. A corporation is a sep-
arate legal entity for which evidence of ownership is
provided by shares of stock.

Identify the users and uses of accounting information.
Internal users are managers who need accounting in-
formation to plan, organize, and run business opera-
tions. The primary external users are investors and
creditors. Investors (stockholders) use accounting in-
formation to help them decide whether to buy, hold,

ers and bankers) use accounting information to assess
the risk of granting credit or loaning money to a busi-
ness. Other groups who have an indirect interest in a
business are taxing authorities, customers, labor
unions, and regulatory agencies.

Explain the three principal types of business activity.
Financing activities involve collecting the necessary
funds to support the business. Investing activities in-
volve acquiring the resources necessary to run the busi-
ness. Operating activities involve putting the resources
of the business into action to generate a profit.
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4 Describe the content and purpose of each of the finan-
cial statements. An income statement presents the
revenues and expenses of a company for a specific pe-
riod of time. A retained earnings statement summa-
rizes the changes in retained earnings that have oc-
curred for a specific period of time. A balance sheet
reports the assets, liabilities, and stockholders’ equity
of a business at a specific date. A statement of cash
flows summarizes information concerning the cash in-
flows (receipts) and outflows (payments) for a specific
period of time.

5 Explain the meaning of assets, liabilities, and stockhold-
ers’ equity, and state the basic accounting equation. As-
sets are resources owned by a business. Liabilities are
the debts and obligations of the business. Liabilities
represent claims of creditors on the assets of the busi-
ness. Stockholders’ equity represents the claims of

Introduction to Financial Statements

owners on the assets of the business. Stockholders’
equity is subdivided into two parts: common stock and
retained earnings. The basic accounting equation is:
Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity.

6 Describe the components that supplement the financial
statements in an annual report. The management dis-
cussion and analysis provides management’s interpre-
tation of the company’s results and financial position
as well as a discussion of plans for the future. Notes
to the financial statements provide additional expla-
nation or detail to make the financial statements more
informative. The auditor’s report expresses an opinion
as to whether the financial statements present fairly
the company’s results of operations

and financial position. —f
# the
navigator

DECISION TOOLKIT A SUMMARY

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION

Are the company’s operations Income statement

profitable?

What is the company’s policy
toward dividends and growth?

Retained earnings statement

Does the company rely primarily ~ Balance sheet
on debt or stockholders’ equity to

finance its assets?

Does the company generate Statement of cash flows
sufficient cash from operations to

fund its investing activities?

Glossary

Accounting (p. 5) The information system that identi-
fies, records, and communicates the economic events of
an organization to interested users.

Annual report (p. 19) A report prepared by corporate
management that presents financial information includ-
ing financial statements, notes, a management discus-

TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

The income statement reports on
the success or failure of the
company'’s operations by reporting
its revenues and expenses.

If the company’s revenue exceeds
its expenses, it will report net
income; otherwise it will report a
net loss.

How much of this year's income
did the company pay out in
dividends to shareholders?

A company striving for rapid
growth will pay a low (or no)
dividend.

The balance sheet reports the
company’s resources and claims
to those resources. There are
two types of claims: liabilities
and stockholders’ equity.

Compare the amount of debt
versus the amount of stockholders’
equity to determine whether the
company relies more on creditors
or owners for its financing.

The statement of cash flows
shows the amount of cash
provided or used by operating
activities, investing activities,
and financing activities.

Compare the amount of cash
provided by operating activities
with the amount of cash used

by investing activities. Any
deficiency in cash from operating
activities must be made up with
cash from financing activities.

sion and analysis section, and an independent auditor’s

report.
Assets (p. 9) Resources owned by a business.

Auditor’s report (p. 19) A report prepared by an inde-
pendent outside auditor stating the auditor’s opinion as



to the fairness of the presentation of the financial posi-
tion and results of operations and their conformance with
generally accepted accounting standards.

Balance sheet (p. 13) A financial statement that reports
the assets and claims to those assets at a specific point
in time.

Basic accounting equation (p. 13) Assets = Liabilities
+ Stockholders’ Equity.

Certified Public Accountant (CPA) (p. 20) An individ-
ual who has met certain criteria and is thus allowed to
perform audits of corporations.

Common stock (p. 9) Term used to describe the total
amount paid in by stockholders for the shares they
purchase.

Corporation (p. 4) A business organized as a separate
legal entity having ownership divided into transferable
shares of stock.

Dividends (p. 9) Payments of cash from a corporation
to its stockholders.

Expenses (p. 10) The cost of assets consumed or ser-
vices used in the process of generating revenues.

Income statement (p. 1/) A financial statement that
presents the revenues and expenses and resulting net in-
come or net loss of a company for a specific period of time.
Liabilities (p. 9) The debts and obligations of a busi-
ness. Liabilities represent the amounts owed to creditors.
Management discussion and analysis (MD&A) (p. 19)
A section of the annual report that presents manage-
ment’s views on the company’s ability to pay near-term
obligations, its ability to fund operations and expansion,
and its results of operations.

Comprehensive m
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Net income (p. 10)
ceed expenses.
Net loss (p. 10)
revenues.

Notes to the financial statements (p. /9) Notes that
clarify information presented in the financial statements,
as well as expand upon it where additional detail is needed.

The amount by which revenues ex-

The amount by which expenses exceed

Partnership (p. 4) A business owned by two or more
persons associated as partners.

Retained earnings (p. /3) The amount of net income
retained in the corporation.

Retained earnings statement (p. /3) A financial state-
ment that summarizes the amounts and causes of
changes in retained earnings for a specific period of time.
Revenue (p. 10) The increase in assets that result from
the sale of a product or service in the normal course of
business.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act (p. 8) Regulations passed by Con-
gress in 2002 to try to reduce unethical corporate behavior.
Sole proprietorship (p. 4) A business owned by one
person.

Statement of cash flows (p. 15) A financial statement
that provides financial information about the cash re-
ceipts and cash payments of a business for a specific pe-
riod of time.

Stockholders’ equity (p. 13)
assets.

The owners’ claim to

Jeff Andringa, a former college hockey player, quit his job and started Ice Camp, a hockey
camp for kids ages 8 to 18. Eventually, he would like to open hockey camps nationwide.
Jeff has asked you to help him prepare financial statements at the end of his first year of
operations. He relates the following facts about his business activities.

In order to get the business off the ground, he decided to incorporate. He sold shares
of common stock to a few close friends, as well as buying some of the shares himself. He
initially raised $25,000 through the sale of these shares. In addition, the company took out
a $10,000 loan at a local bank.

Ice Camp purchased, for $12,000 cash, a bus for transporting kids. The company also
bought hockey goals and other miscellaneous equipment with $1,500 cash. The company
earned camp tuition during the year of $100,000 but had collected only $80,000 of this
amount. Thus, at the end of the year its customers still owed $20,000. The company rents
time at a local rink for $50 per hour. Total rink rental costs during the year were $8,000,
insurance was $10,000, salary expense was $20,000, and supplies used totaled $9,000, all
of which were paid in cash. The company incurred $800 in interest expense on the bank
loan, which it still owed at the end of the year.

The company paid dividends during the year of $5,000 cash. The balance in the cor-
porate bank account at December 31, 2012, was $49,500.

The Comprehensive
Do it! is a final review
before you begin
homework.



24 chapter 1 Introduction to Financial Statements

Instructions

Using the format of the Sierra Corporation statements in this chapter, prepare an income
statement, retained earnings statement, balance sheet, and statement of cash flows. (Hint:
Prepare the statements in the order stated to take advantage of the flow of information
from one statement to the next, as shown in Illustration 1-9 on page 17.)

Solution to Comprehensive XX

Action Plan

* (On the income statement: Show
revenues and expenses for a

period of time.

On the retained earnings
statement: Show the changes in
retained earnings for a period

ICE CAMP

Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

. Revenues
of time. Service revenue $100,000
* On the balance sheet: Report Expenses
assets, liabilities, and stockhold- Salaries and wages expense $20,000
ers’ equity at a specific date. Insurance expense 10,000
« On the statement of cash flows: Supplies expense 9,000
Rent expense 8,000
Report sources and uses of
o Interest expense 800
cash from operating, investing,
and financing activities for a Total expenses __ 47,800
permd of time. Net income $ 52,200
ICE CAMP
Retained Earnings Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Retained earnings, January 1, 2012 $ 0
Add: Net income 52,200
52,200
Less: Dividends 5,000
Retained earnings, December 31, 2012 $47,200
ICE CAMP
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012
Assets
Cash $49,500
Accounts receivable 20,000
Equipment 13,500
Total assets $83,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities
Notes payable $10,000
Interest payable 800
Total liabilities $10,800
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 25,000
Retained earnings 47,200
Total stockholders’ equity 72,200
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $83,000




Self-Test Questions 25

ICE CAMP

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from operating activities
Cash payments for operating activities

$80,000
(47,000)

Net cash provided by operating activities $33,000
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of equipment (13,500)

Net cash used by investing activities (13,500)

Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of notes payable

Dividends paid

25,000

10,000

(5,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities 30,000
Net increase in cash 49,500
Cash at beginning of period 0

$49,500

Cash at end of period

@ the
navigator

This would be a good time to look at the Student Owner’s Manual in the Preface to the book. Knowing the
purpose of the different types of homework will help you understand what each contributes to your accounting
skills and competencies.
The tool icon @==(8 indicates that an activity employs one of the decision tools presented in the chapter. The
indicates that an activity relates to a business function beyond accounting. The pencil icon OIE=> indicates
that an activity requires written communication.

(W“_EY\, Self-Test, Brief Exercises, Exercises, Problem Set A, and many
PLU S more resources are available for practice in WileyPLUS
Self-Test Questions

Answers are on page 42. (a) Top management must now certify the accuracy
of financial information.

(b) Penalties for fraudulent activity increased.

(c) Independence of auditors increased.

(d) Tax rates on corporations increased.

(S01) 1. Which is not one of the three forms of business
organization?
(a) Sole proprietorship.
(b) Creditorship.

(S01) 2. Which is an advantage of corporations relative to
partnerships and sole proprietorships?
(a) Lower taxes.
(b) Harder to transfer ownership.
(c) Reduced legal liability for investors.

(c) Partnership.
(d) Corporation.
5. Which is not one of the three primary business (S03)
activities?
(a) Financing.
(b) Operating.

(c) Advertising.
(d) Investing.

6. Which of the following is an example of a financing (S0 3)

(d) Most common form of organization.

activity?

(802 3. Which statement about users of accounting infor- (a) Issuing shares of common stock.
mation is incorrect? (b) Selling goods on account.
(a) Management is considered an internal user. (c) Buying delivery equipment.
(b) Taxing authorities are considered external users. (d) Buying inventory.
(c) Present creditors are considered external users. . Net income will result during a time period when: (S04)
(d) Regulatory authorities are considered internal (a) assets exceed liabilities.
USETS. (b) assets exceed revenues.
(S02) 4. Which of the following did not result from the (c) expenses exceed revenues.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act?

(d) revenues exceed expenses.
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(S04) 8

(S04,5 9

(804,510

(S05) 11
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. The financial statements for Joseph Corporation
contained the following information.
Accounts receivable $ 5,000
Sales revenue 75,000
Cash 15,000
Salaries and wages expense 20,000
Rent expense 10,000
What was Joseph Corporation’s net income?
(a) $60,000. (c) $65,000.
(b) $15,000. (d) $45,000.

. @&—— What section of a statement of cash flows
indicates the cash spent on new equipment during
the past accounting period?

(a) The investing section.

(b) The operating section.

(c) The financing section.

(d) The cash flow statement does not give this
information.

. Which statement presents information as of a spe-
cific point in time?
(a) Income statement.
(b) Balance sheet.
(c) Statement of cash flows.
(d) Retained earnings statement.

. Which financial statement reports assets, liabilities,
and stockholders’ equity?
(a) Income statement.
(b) Retained earnings statement.
(c¢) Balance sheet.
(d) Statement of cash flows.

Questions

1

. - What are the three basic forms of business
organizations?

. What are the advantages to a business of being formed
as a corporation? What are the disadvantages?

. What are the advantages to a business of being
formed as a partnership or sole proprietorship? What
are the disadvantages?

. “Accounting is ingrained in our society and is vital to
our economic system.” Do you agree? Explain.

Who are the internal users of accounting
data? How does accounting provide relevant data to
the internal users?

. Who are the external users of accounting data? Give
examples.

. What are the three main types of business activity?
Give examples of each activity.

. Listed here are some items found in the financial
statements of Ellyn Toth, Inc. Indicate in which fi-
nancial statement(s) each item would appear.

(a) Service revenue. (d) Accounts receivable.
(b) Equipment. (e) Common stock.
(c) Advertising expense. (f) Interest payable.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Go to the book’s companion website, www.
wiley.com/college/kimmel, to access addi-
tional Self-Test Questions.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.

16.

Stockholders’ equity represents: (S0 5)
(a) claims of creditors.

(b) claims of employees.

(c) the difference between revenues and expenses.

(d) claims of owners.

As of December 31, 2012, Stoneland Corporation (S0 5)
has assets of $3,500 and stockholders’ equity of
$1,500. What are the liabilities for Stoneland Cor-
poration as of December 31, 2012?

(a) $1,500. (c) $2,500.

(b) $1,000. (d) $2,000.

[ME=> The element of a corporation’s annual re- (S0 6)
port that describes the corporation’s accounting
methods is the:

(a) notes to the financial statements.

(b) management discussion and analysis.

(c) auditor’s report.

(d) income statement.

The element of the annual report that presents an (S0 6)
opinion regarding the fairness of the presentation

of the financial position and results of operations
is/are the:

(a) income statement.

(b) auditor’s opinion.

(c¢) balance sheet.

(d) comparative statements.

@ the
navigator

& o—= Why would a bank want to monitor
the dividend payment practices of the corporations it
lends money to?

“A company’s net income appears directly on the in-
come statement and the retained earnings statement,
and it is included indirectly in the company’s balance
sheet.” Do you agree? Explain.

@——€ What is the primary purpose of the state-
ment of cash flows?

What are the three main categories of the statement
of cash flows? Why do you think these categories
were chosen?

What is retained earnings? What items increase the
balance in retained earnings? What items decrease
the balance in retained earnings?

What is the basic accounting equation?

(a) Define the terms assets, liabilities, and stockhold-
ers’ equity.

(b) What items affect stockholders’ equity?

Which of these items are liabilities of White Glove

Cleaning Service?

(a) Cash.

(b) Accounts payable.

(c) Dividends.
(d) Accounts receivable.
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17.

18.

(e) Supplies. (h) Service revenue.

(f) Equipment. (i) Rent expense.

(g) Salaries and wages payable.

How are each of the following financial statements in-
terrelated? (a) Retained earnings statement and income
statement. (b) Retained earnings statement and balance
sheet. (c) Balance sheet and statement of cash flows.

@——€ What is the purpose of the management

Brief Exercises 27

20. @& What types of information are presented in

21.

the notes to the financial statements?

Bl The accounting equation is: Assets =
Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity. Appendix A, at the
end of this book, reproduces Tootsie Roll’s financial
statements. Replacing words in the equation with
dollar amounts, what is Tootsie Roll’s accounting
equation at December 31, 2009?

discussion and analysis section (MD&A)?

19. @& Why is it important for financial statements
to receive an unqualified auditor’s opinion?

Brief Exercises

BE1-1 Match each of the following forms of business organization with a set of char-
acteristics: sole proprietorship (SP), partnership (P), corporation (C).

(a) Shared control, tax advantages, increased skills and resources.
(b) Simple to set up and maintains control with founder.
(c) Easier to transfer ownership and raise funds, no personal liability.

BE1-2 Match each of the following types of evaluation with one of the listed users of
accounting information.

1. Trying to determine whether the company complied with tax laws.

2. Trying to determine whether the company can pay its obligations.

3. Trying to determine whether a marketing proposal will be cost effective.
4

. Trying to determine whether the company’s net income will result in a stock price
increase.

5. Trying to determine whether the company should employ debt or equity financing.

(a) Investors in common stock. (d) Chief Financial Officer.

(b) Marketing managers. (e) Internal Revenue Service.
(c) Creditors.

BE1-3 Indicate in which part of the statement of cash flows each item would appear:
operating activities (O), investing activities (I), or financing activities (F).

(a) Cash received from customers.

(b) Cash paid to stockholders (dividends).

(c) Cash received from issuing new common stock.

(d) Cash paid to suppliers.

(e) Cash paid to purchase a new office building.

BE1-4 Presented below are a number of transactions. Determine whether each trans-
action affects common stock (C), dividends (D), revenue (R), expense (E), or does not
affect stockholders’ equity (NSE). Provide titles for the revenues and expenses.

(a) Costs incurred for advertising.

(b) Assets received for services performed.

(c¢) Costs incurred for insurance.

(d) Amounts paid to employees.

(e) Cash distributed to stockholders.

(f) Assets received in exchange for allowing the use of the company’s building.

(g) Costs incurred for utilities used.

(h) Cash purchase of equipment.

(1) Issued common stock for cash.

BE1-5 In alphabetical order below are balance sheet items for Wyoming Company at
December 31, 2012. Prepare a balance sheet following the format of Illustration 1-7.

Accounts payable $65,000
Accounts receivable 71,000
Cash 22,000
Common stock 28,000

@ the
navigator

Describe forms of business
organization.

S01), K

Identify users of accounting
information.

(802, K

e,

Classify items by activity.
(S03,4),K

Determine effect of
transactions on stockholders’
equity.

S04),C

Prepare a balance sheet.

(S0 4, 5), AP
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Determine where items
appear on financial
statements.

(S04,5),K

Determine proper financial
statement.

(S0 4), K

e,

Use basic accounting
equation.

(S0 5), AP

Use basic accounting
equation.

(S0 5), AP

Identify assets, liabilities,
and stockholders’ equity.

(80 5), K

Determine required parts of
annual report.

(S0 6), K
e——=C

Identify benefits of business
organization forms.

(801),C

Classify business activities.

(803), K
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BE1-6 Eskimo Pie Corporation markets a broad range of frozen treats, including its
famous Eskimo Pie ice cream bars. The following items were taken from a recent income
statement and balance sheet. In each case, identify whether the item would appear on the
balance sheet (BS) or income statement (IS).

(a) Income tax expense. () Net sales.

(b) Inventories. (2) Cost of goods sold.

(c) Accounts payable. (h) Common stock.

(d) Retained earnings. (i) Receivables.

(e) Property, plant, and equipment. €) Interest expense.

BE1-7 Indicate which statement you would examine to find each of the following items:

income statement (I), balance sheet (B), retained earnings statement (R), or statement of
cash flows (C).

(a) Revenue during the period.

(b) Supplies on hand at the end of the year.

(c) Cash received from issuing new bonds during the period.

(d) Total debts outstanding at the end of the period.

BE1-8 Use the basic accounting equation to answer these questions.

(a) The liabilities of Daley Company are $90,000 and the stockholders’ equity is $230,000.
What is the amount of Daley Company’s total assets?

(b) The total assets of Laven Company are $170,000 and its stockholders’ equity is
$80,000. What is the amount of its total liabilities?

(c) The total assets of Peterman Co. are $800,000 and its liabilities are equal to one-
fourth of its total assets. What is the amount of Peterman Co.’s stockholders’ equity?

BE1-9 At the beginning of the year, Peale Company had total assets of $800,000 and

total liabilities of $500,000.

(a) If total assets increased $150,000 during the year and total liabilities decreased
$80,000, what is the amount of stockholders’ equity at the end of the year?

(b) During the year, total liabilities increased $100,000 and stockholders’ equity decreased
$70,000. What is the amount of total assets at the end of the year?

(c) If total assets decreased $80,000 and stockholders’ equity increased $110,000 during
the year, what is the amount of total liabilities at the end of the year?

BE1-10 Indicate whether each of these items is an asset (A), a liability (L), or part of
stockholders’ equity (SE).

(a) Accounts receivable.

(b) Salaries and wages payable.
(¢c) Equipment.

BE1-11 Which is not a required part of an annual report of a publicly traded company?
(a) Statement of cash flows.

(b) Notes to the financial statements.

(¢) Management discussion and analysis.

(d) All of these are required.

(d) Supplies.
(e) Common stock.
(f) Notes payable.

XX Review

m 1-1 Identify each of the following organizational characteristics with the orga-
nizational form or forms with which it is associated.

(a) Easier to transfer ownership
(b) Easier to raise funds

(c) More owner control

(d) Tax advantages
(e) No personal legal liability

XXM 12 Classify each item as an asset, liability, common stock, revenue, or expense.

(a) Issuance of ownership shares

(b) Land purchased

(c) Amounts owed to suppliers

(d) Bonds payable

(e) Amount earned from selling a product
(f) Cost of advertising



XX 1-3  Gould Corporation began operations on January 1, 2012. The following in-
formation is available for Gould Corporation on December 31, 2012.

Accounts payable $ 5,000 Notes payable $ 7,000
Accounts receivable 2,000 Rent expense 10,000
Advertising expense 4,000 Retained earnings ?
Cash 3,100 Service revenue 25,000
Common stock 15,000 Supplies 1,900
Dividends 2,500 Supplies expense 1,700
Equipment 26,800

Prepare an income statement, a retained earnings statement, and a balance sheet for
Gould Corporation.

XX 14 Indicate whether each of the following items is most closely associated
with the management discussion and analysis (MD&A), the notes to the financial state-
ments, or the auditor’s report.

(a) Description of ability to pay near-term obligations

(b) Unqualified opinion

(c) Details concerning liabilities, too voluminous to be included in the statements
(d) Description of favorable and unfavorable trends

(e) Certified Public Accountant (CPA)

(f) Descriptions of significant accounting policies

Exercises

E1-1 Here is a list of words or phrases discussed in this chapter:
1. Corporation 4. Partnership 7. Accounts payable
2. Creditor 5. Stockholder 8. Auditor’s opinion
3. Accounts receivable 6. Common stock

Instructions

Match each word or phrase with the best description of it.

(a) An expression about whether financial statements conform with generally ac-
cepted accounting principles.

(b) A business enterprise that raises money by issuing shares of stock.

(c) The portion of stockholders’ equity that results from receiving cash from
investors.

(d) Obligations to suppliers of goods.

(e) Amounts due from customers.

(f) A party to whom a business owes money.

(g) A party that invests in common stock.

(h) A business that is owned jointly by two or more individuals but does not
issue stock.

E1-2 All businesses are involved in three types of activities—financing, investing, and
operating. Listed below are the names and descriptions of companies in several different
industries.

Abitibi Consolidated Inc.—manufacturer and marketer of newsprint

Cal State-Northridge Stdt Union—university student union

Oracle Corporation—computer software developer and retailer

Sportsco Investments—owner of the Vancouver Canucks hockey club

Grant Thornton LLP—professional accounting and business advisory firm
Southwest Airlines—discount airline

Instructions

(a) For each of the above companies, provide examples of (1) a financing activity, (2) an
investing activity, and (3) an operating activity that the company likely engages in.

(b) Which of the activities that you identified in (a) are common to most businesses?
Which activities are not?

Exercises 29

Prepare financial statements.

(S0 4), AP

Identify components of
annual reports.

(S0 6),C

Match items with
descriptions.

(801,2,4,6),K

Identify business activities.
(S03),C
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Classify accounts.

(803, 4),C

Prepare income statement
and retained earnings
statement.

(S0 4), AP

Prepare income statement
and retained earnings
statement.

(S0 4), AP

==

Prepare a retained earnings
statement.

(S0 4), AP

Interpret financial facts.

(S0 4), AP

E1-3 The Fair View Golf & Country Club details the following accounts in its financial

statements.

Accounts payable

Accounts receivable
Equipment

Sales revenue

Service revenue

Inventory

Mortgage payable

Supplies expense

Rent expense

Salaries and wages expense

Instructions

(a) Classify each of the above accounts as an asset (A), liability (L), stockholders’ equity

(SE), revenue (R), or expense (E) item.

(b) Classify each of the above accounts as a financing activity (F), investing activity (I),
or operating activity (O). If you believe a particular account doesn'’t fit in any of these

activities, explain why.

(@)

E1-4 This information relates to Alexis Co. for the year 2012.

$67,000
1,800
6,000
10,400
58,000
2,400
30,000

Retained earnings, January 1, 2012

Advertising expense
Dividends paid during 2012
Rent expense

Service revenue

Utilities expense

Salaries and wages expense

Instructions

After analyzing the data, prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement

for the year ending December 31, 2012.

E1-5 The following information was taken from the 2009 financial statements of phar-
maceutical giant Merck and Co. All dollar amounts are in millions.

Retained earnings, January 1, 2009
Materials and production expense
Marketing and administrative expense

Dividends
Sales revenue

Research and development expense

Tax expense
Other revenue

Instructions

(a) After analyzing the data, prepare an income statement and a retained earnings state-

ment for the year ending December 31, 2009.

(b) Suppose that Merck decided to reduce its research and development expense by 50%.
What would be the short-term implications? What would be the long-term implica-

(b)

$43,698.8
9,018.9
8,543.2
3,597.7
27,428.3
5,845.0
2,267.6
11,147.7

tions? How do you think the stock market would react?

E1-6 Presented here is information for Packee Inc. for 2012.

$130,000
400,000
175,000
65,000

Retained earnings, January 1
Revenue from legal services
Total expenses

Dividends

Instructions

Prepare the 2012 retained earnings statement for Packee Inc.

E1-7 Consider each of the following independent situations.

(a) The retained earnings statement of Scott Corporation shows dividends of $68,000,

while net income for the year was $75,000.



(b) The statement of cash flows for Silberman Corporation shows that cash provided by
operating activities was $10,000, cash used in investing activities was $110,000, and
cash provided by financing activities was $130,000.

Instructions
For each company provide a brief discussion interpreting these financial facts. For exam-
ple, you might discuss the company’s financial health or its apparent growth philosophy.

E1-8 The following items and amounts were taken from Linus Inc.’s 2012 income state-
ment and balance sheet.

Cash $ 84,700 Accounts receivable 88,419

Retained earnings 123,192 Sales revenue 584,951

Cost of goods sold 438,458 Income taxes payable 6,499

Salaries and wages expense 115,131 Accounts payable 49,384

Prepaid insurance 7,818 Service revenue 4,806

Inventory $ 64,618 Interest expense 1,882
Instructions

(a) In each, case, identify on the blank line whether the item is an asset (A), liability (L),
stockholder’s equity (SE), revenue (R), or expense (E) item.
(b) Prepare an income statement for Linus Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2012.

E1-9 Here are incomplete financial statements for Liam, Inc.

LIAM, INC.
Balance Sheet
Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Cash $ 7,000 Liabilities
Inventory 10,000 Accounts payable $ 5,000
Buildings 45,000 Stockholders’ equity
Total assets $62,000 Common stock (a)
— Retained earnings (b)
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity $62,000

Income Statement

Revenues $85,000
Cost of goods sold (c)
Salaries and wages expense 10,000
Net income $ (d)

Retained Earnings Statement

Beginning retained earnings $12,000
Add: Net income (e)

Less: Dividends 5,000
Ending retained earnings $27,000

Instructions
Calculate the missing amounts.

E1-10 Deer Track Park is a private camping ground near the Lathom Peak Recreation
Area. It has compiled the following financial information as of December 31, 2012.

Revenues during 2012: camping fees $132,000 Dividends $ 9,000
Revenues during 2012: general store 25,000 Notes payable 50,000
Accounts payable 11,000 Expenses during 2012 126,000
Cash 8,500 Supplies 5,500
Equipment 114,000 Common stock 40,000

Retained earnings (1/1/2012) 5,000

Exercises 31
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Identify financial statement
components and prepare
income statement.
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Calculate missing amounts.
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prepare a balance sheet.
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Identify financial statement
components and prepare an
income statement.

(S0 4,5), AP

Prepare a statement of cash
flows.

(S0 5), AP

==

Prepare a statement
of cash flows.

(S0 5), AP

Correct an incorrectly
prepared balance sheet.

(S0 5), AP

Introduction to Financial Statements

Instructions

(a) Determine Deer Track Park’s net income for 2012.

(b) Prepare a retained earnings statement and a balance sheet for Deer Track Park as of
December 31, 2012.

(¢) Upon seeing this income statement, Ken Zilber, the campground manager, imme-
diately concluded, “The general store is more trouble than it is worth—let’s get
rid of it.” The marketing director isn’t so sure this is a good idea. What do you

think?

E1-11 Kellogg Company is the world’s leading producer of ready-to-eat cereal and a
leading producer of grain-based convenience foods such as frozen waffles and cereal bars.
The following items were taken from its 2009 income statement and balance sheet. All
dollars are in millions.

____ Retained earnings $5,481 ____ Long-term debt $ 4,835
____ Cost of goods sold 7,184 __ Inventories 910
____ Selling and _ Net sales 12,575

administrative expenses 3,390 ____Accounts payable 1,077
__ Cash 334 __ Common stock 105
____ Notes payable 44 ____Income tax expense 476
____ Interest expense 295 ____ Other expense 22

Instructions

Perform each of the following.

(a) In each case identify whether the item is an asset (A), liability (L), stockholders’ eq-
uity (SE), revenue (R), or expense (E).

(b) Prepare an income statement for Kellogg Company for the year ended December 31,
2009.

E1-12 This information is for O’Brien Corporation for the year ended December 31,
2012.

Cash received from lenders $20,000
Cash received from customers 50,000
Cash paid for new equipment 28,000
Cash dividends paid 8,000
Cash paid to suppliers 16,000
Cash balance 1/1/12 12,000

Instructions

(a) Prepare the 2012 statement of cash flows for O'Brien Corporation.

(b) Suppose you are one of O’'Brien’s creditors. Referring to the statement of cash flows,
evaluate O'Brien’s ability to repay its creditors.

E1-13 The following data are derived from the 2009 financial statements of Southwest
Airlines. All dollars are in millions. Southwest has a December 31 year-end.

Cash balance, January 1, 2009 $1,390
Cash paid for repayment of debt 122
Cash received from issuance of common stock 144
Cash received from issuance of long-term debt 500
Cash received from customers 9,823
Cash paid for property and equipment 1,529

Cash paid for dividends 14
Cash paid for repurchase of common stock 1,001
Cash paid for goods and services 6,978

Instructions

(a) After analyzing the data, prepare a statement of cash flows for Southwest Airlines
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(b) Discuss whether the company’s cash from operations was sufficient to finance
its investing activities. If it was not, how did the company finance its investing
activities?

E1-14 Andrew Davis is the bookkeeper for Cheyenne Company. Andrew has been try-
ing to get the balance sheet of Cheyenne Company to balance. It finally balanced, but
now he’s not sure it is correct.



CHEYENNE COMPANY
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Cash $18,000 Accounts payable $16,000

Supplies 9,500 Accounts receivable (12,000)

Equipment 40,000 Common stock 40,000

Dividends 8,000 Retained earnings 31,500
Total assets $75,500 Total liabilities and

B stockholders’ equity $75,500

Instructions
Prepare a correct balance sheet.

E1-15 The following items were taken from the balance sheet of Nike, Inc.

1. Cash $2,291.1 7. Inventories $2,357.0
2. Accounts receivable 2,883.9 8. Income taxes payable 86.3
3. Common stock 2,874.2 9. Property, plant, and equipment 1,957.7
4. Notes payable 342.9 10. Retained earnings 5,818.9
5. Other assets 3,759.9 11. Accounts payable 2,815.8
6. Other liabilities 1,311.5

Instructions

Perform each of the following.

(a) Classify each of these items as an asset, liability, or stockholders’ equity and deter-
mine the total dollar amount for each classification. (All dollars are in millions.)

(b) Determine Nike’s accounting equation by calculating the value of total assets, total
liabilities, and total stockholders’ equity.

(¢) To what extent does Nike rely on debt versus equity financing?

E1-16 The summaries of data from the balance sheet, income statement, and retained
earnings statement for two corporations, Bates Corporation and Wilson Enterprises, are
presented below for 2012.

Bates Corporation Wilson Enterprises

Beginning of year

Total assets $110,000 $150,000

Total liabilities 70,000 (d)

Total stockholders’ equity (a) 70,000
End of year

Total assets (b) 180,000

Total liabilities 120,000 55,000

Total stockholders’ equity 60,000 (e)
Changes during year in retained

earnings

Dividends (c) 5,000

Total revenues 215,000 ()

Total expenses 165,000 80,000

Instructions
Determine the missing amounts. Assume all changes in stockholders’ equity are due to
changes in retained earnings.

E1-17 The annual report provides financial information in a variety of formats, includ-
ing the following.

Management discussion and analysis (MD&A)
Financial statements

Notes to the financial statements

Auditor’s opinion

Instructions
For each of the following, state in what area of the annual report the item would be pre-
sented. If the item would probably not be found in an annual report, state “Not disclosed.”

Exercises 33
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Determine forms of business
organization.
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Identify users and uses of
financial statements.
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(a) The total cumulative amount received from stockholders in exchange for common
stock.

(b) An independent assessment concerning whether the financial statements present a
fair depiction of the company’s results and financial position.

(c) The interest rate that the company is being charged on all outstanding debts.

(d) Total revenue from operating activities.

(e) Management's assessment of the company’s results.

(f) The names and positions of all employees hired in the last year.

Exercises: Set B and
Challenge Exercises

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose
the Student Companion site to access Exercise Set B and Challenge Exercises.

Problems: Set A

P1-1A Presented below are five independent situations.

(a) Three physics professors at MIT have formed a business to improve the speed of in-
formation transfer over the Internet for stock exchange transactions. Each has con-
tributed an equal amount of cash and knowledge to the venture. Although their ap-
proach looks promising, they are concerned about the legal liabilities that their
business might confront.

(b) Ed Toth, a college student looking for summer employment, opened a bait shop in
a small shed at a local marina.

(c) Joan Stuebben and Ron Klinke each owned separate shoe manufacturing businesses.
They have decided to combine their businesses. They expect that within the coming
year they will need significant funds to expand their operations.

(d) Crystal, Allie, and Harry recently graduated with marketing degrees. They have been
friends since childhood. They have decided to start a consulting business focused on
marketing sporting goods over the Internet.

(e) Mark Willis wants to rent CD players and CDs in airports across the country. His
idea is that customers will be able to rent equipment and CDs at one airport, listen
to the CDs on their flights, and return the equipment and CDs at their destination
airport. Of course, this will require a substantial investment in equipment and CDs,
as well as employees and locations in each airport. Mark has no savings or personal
assets. He wants to maintain control over the business.

Instructions
In each case, explain what form of organization the business is likely to take—sole pro-
prietorship, partnership, or corporation. Give reasons for your choice.

P1-2A  Financial decisions often place heavier emphasis on one type of financial state-

ment over the others. Consider each of the following hypothetical situations independently.

(a) The North Face, Inc. is considering extending credit to a new customer. The terms
of the credit would require the customer to pay within 30 days of receipt of goods.

(b) An investor is considering purchasing common stock of Amazon.com. The investor
plans to hold the investment for at least 5 years.

(c) Chase Manhattan is considering extending a loan to a small company. The company
would be required to make interest payments at the end of each year for 5 years, and
to repay the loan at the end of the fifth year.

(d) The president of Campbell Soup is trying to determine whether the company is gen-
erating enough cash to increase the amount of dividends paid to investors in this and
future years, and still have enough cash to buy equipment as it is needed.

Instructions

In each situation, state whether the decision maker would be most likely to place pri-
mary emphasis on information provided by the income statement, balance sheet, or state-
ment of cash flows. In each case provide a brief justification for your choice. Choose only
one financial statement in each case.
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P1-3A  On June 1, Beardsley Service Co. was started with an initial investment in the
company of $22,100 cash. Here are the assets and liabilities of the company at June 30,
and the revenues and expenses for the month of June, its first month of operations:

Cash $ 4,600 Notes payable $12,000
Accounts receivable 4,000 Accounts payable 500
Service revenue 7,500 Supplies expense 1,000
Supplies 2,400 Maintenance and repairs expense 600
Advertising expense 400 Utilities expense 300
Equipment 26,000 Salaries and wages expense 1,400

In June, the company issued no additional stock, but paid dividends of $1,400.

Instructions

(a) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the month of
June and a balance sheet at June 30, 2012.

(b) Briefly discuss whether the company’s first month of operations was a success.

(c) Discuss the company’s decision to distribute a dividend.

P1-4A Presented below is selected financial information for Yvonne Corporation for
December 31, 2012.

Inventory $ 25,000 Cash paid to purchase equipment $ 12,000
Cash paid to suppliers 104,000 Equipment 40,000
Building 200,000 Revenues 100,000
Common stock 50,000 Cash received from customers 132,000
Cash dividends paid 7,000 Cash received from issuing
common stock 22,000
Instructions

(a) Determine which items should be included in a statement of cash flows and then
prepare the statement for Yvonne Corporation.

(b) Comment on the adequacy of net cash provided by operating activities to fund the
company'’s investing activities and dividend payments.

P1-5A  Gabelli Corporation was formed on January 1, 2012. At December 31, 2012, John
Paulus, the president and sole stockholder, decided to prepare a balance sheet, which ap-
peared as follows.

GABELLI CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Cash $20,000 Accounts payable $30,000
Accounts receivable 50,000 Notes payable 15,000
Inventory 36,000 Boat loan 22,000
Boat 24,000 Stockholders’ equity 64,000

John willingly admits that he is not an accountant by training. He is concerned that his
balance sheet might not be correct. He has provided you with the following additional
information.

1. The boat actually belongs to Paulus, not to Gabelli Corporation. However, because
he thinks he might take customers out on the boat occasionally, he decided to list it
as an asset of the company. To be consistent, he also listed as a liability of the cor-
poration his personal loan that he took out at the bank to buy the boat.

2. The inventory was originally purchased for $25,000, but due to a surge in demand
John now thinks he could sell it for $36,000. He thought it would be best to record
it at $36,000.

3. Included in the accounts receivable balance is $10,000 that John loaned to his brother
5 years ago. John included this in the receivables of Gabelli Corporation so he
wouldn't forget that his brother owes him money.

Instructions

(a) Comment on the proper accounting treatment of the three items above.

(b) Provide a corrected balance sheet for Gabelli Corporation. (Hint: To get the balance
sheet to balance, adjust stockholders’ equity.)

Problems: Set A 35

Prepare an income
statement, retained earnings
statement, and balance sheet;
discuss results.
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Marginal check figures
(in blue) provide a key
number to let you know
you are on the right track.
(a) Net income $3,800
Ret. earnings $2,400
Tot. assets $37,000

Determine items included in
a statement of cash flows,
prepare the statement, and
comment.
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(a) Net increase $31,000

Comment on proper
accounting treatment and
prepare a corrected balance
sheet.
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Tot. assets $85,000
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(a) Net income
Ret. earnings
Tot. assets

$4,300
$2,600
$78,000

Problems: Set B

P1-1B Presented below are five independent situations.

(a) Rachel Jackson, a college student looking for summer employment, opened a veg-
etable stand along a busy local highway. Each morning she buys produce from local
farmers, then sells it in the afternoon as people return home from work.

(b) Colin Doyle and Jason Elliot each owned separate swing-set manufacturing busi-
nesses. They have decided to combine their businesses and try to expand their reach
beyond their local market. They expect that within the coming year they will need
significant funds to expand their operations.

(¢c) Three chemistry professors at FIU have formed a business to employ bacteria to clean
up toxic waste sites. Each has contributed an equal amount of cash and knowledge
to the venture. The use of bacteria in this situation is experimental, and legal obli-
gations could result.

(d) Brittany Medler has run a successful, but small cooperative health food store for over
20 years. The increased sales of her store have made her believe that the time is right
to open a national chain of health food stores across the country. Of course, this
will require a substantial investment in stores, inventory, and employees in each store.
Brittany has no savings or personal assets. She wants to maintain control over the
business.

(e) Cheryl Lamb and Tom Majors recently graduated with masters degrees in economics.
They have decided to start a consulting business focused on teaching the basics of
international economics to small business owners interested in international trade.

Instructions
In each case, explain what form of organization the business is likely to take—sole pro-
prietorship, partnership, or corporation. Give reasons for your choice.

P1-2B Financial decisions often place heavier emphasis on one type of financial state-

ment over the others. Consider each of the following hypothetical situations independently.

(a) An investor is considering purchasing common stock of the Bally Total Fitness com-
pany. The investor plans to hold the investment for at least 3 years.

(b) Boeing is considering extending credit to a new customer. The terms of the credit
would require the customer to pay within 60 days of receipt of goods.

(c) The president of Northwest Airlines is trying to determine whether the company is
generating enough cash to increase the amount of dividends paid to investors in this
and future years, and still have enough cash to buy new flight equipment as it is
needed.

(d) Bank of America is considering extending a loan to a small company. The company
would be required to make interest payments at the end of each year for 5 years, and
to repay the loan at the end of the fifth year.

Instructions

In each of the situations above, state whether the decision maker would be most likely
to place primary emphasis on information provided by the income statement, balance
sheet, or statement of cash flows. In each case, provide a brief justification for your choice.
Choose only one financial statement in each case.

P1-3B  Special Delivery was started on May 1 with an investment of $45,000 cash. Fol-
lowing are the assets and liabilities of the company on May 31, 2012, and the revenues
and expenses for the month of May, its first month of operations.

Accounts receivable $ 6,200 Notes payable $28,000
Service revenue 10,400 Salaries and wages expense 2,000
Advertising expense 800 Equipment 56,000
Accounts payable 2,400 Maintenance and repairs expense 2,900
Cash 15,800 Insurance expense 400

No additional common stock was issued in May, but a dividend of $1,700 in cash was paid.

Instructions
(a) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the month of
May and a balance sheet at May 31, 2012.
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(b) Briefly discuss whether the company’s first month of operations was a success.
(c) Discuss the company’s decision to distribute a dividend.

P1-4B Presented below are selected financial statement items for Rowe Corporation for
December 31, 2012.

Inventory $ 55,000 Cash paid to purchase equipment $ 30,000
Cash paid to suppliers 154,000 Equipment 40,000
Buildings 400,000 Revenues 200,000
Common stock 20,000 Cash received from customers 172,000
Cash dividends paid 6,000 Cash received from issuing

bonds payable 40,000

Instructions

(a) Determine which items should be included in a statement of cash flows, and then
prepare the statement for Rowe Corporation.

(b) Comment on the adequacy of net cash provided by operating activities to fund the
company’s investing activities and dividend payments.

P1-5B Austin Corporation was formed during 2011 by Joanna Kay. Joanna is the pres-
ident and sole stockholder. At December 31, 2012, Joanna prepared an income statement
for Austin Corporation. Joanna is not an accountant, but she thinks she did a reasonable
job preparing the income statement by looking at the financial statements of other com-
panies. She has asked you for advice. Joanna’s income statement appears as follows.

AUSTIN CORPORATION
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Accounts receivable $17,000
Service revenue 47,000
Rent expense 10,000
Insurance expense 7,000
Vacation expense 4,000
Net income $43,000

Joanna has also provided you with these facts.

1. Included in the service revenue account is $3,000 of revenue that the company earned
and received payment for in 2011. She forgot to include it in the 2011 income state-
ment, so she put it in this year’s statement.

2. Joanna operates her business out of the basement of her parents’ home. They do
not charge her anything, but she thinks that if she paid rent it would cost her
about $10,000 per year. Therefore, she included $10,000 of rent expense in the income
statement.

3. To reward herself for a year of hard work, Joanna went to Greece. She did not use
company funds to pay for the trip, but she reported it as an expense on the income
statement since it was her job that made her need the vacation.

Instructions
(a) Comment on the proper accounting treatment of the three items above.
(b) Prepare a corrected income statement for Austin Corporation.

Problems: Set C

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose the
Student Companion site to access Problem Set C.

Continuing Cookie Chronicle

CCC1 Natalie Koebel spent much of her childhood learning the art of cookie-making
from her grandmother. They spent many happy hours mastering every type of cookie
imaginable and later devised new recipes that were both healthy and delicious. Now at

Determine items included in
a statement of cash flows,
prepare the statement, and
comment.
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(a) Net increase $22,000

Comment on proper
accounting treatment and
prepare a corrected income
statement.
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(a) Net income $37,000
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This serial problem the start of her second year in college, Natalie is investigating possibilities for starting
starts in Chapter 1 and her own business as part of the entrepreneurship program in which she is enrolled.

continues in every A long-time friend insists that Natalie has to include cookies in her business plan.
chapter. You can also After a series of brainstorming sessions, Natalie settles on the idea of operating a cookie-

find this problem at

the book’s companion
website, www.wiley.com/
college/kimmel.

making school. She will start on a part-time basis and offer her services in people’s homes.
Now that she has started thinking about it, the possibilities seem endless. During the fall,
she will concentrate on holiday cookies. She will offer group sessions (which will prob-
ably be more entertainment than education) and individual lessons. Natalie also decides
to include children in her target market. The first difficult decision is coming up with
the perfect name for her business. She settles on “Cookie Creations,” and then moves on
to more important issues.

Instructions

(a) What form of business organization—proprietorship, partnership, or corporation—
do you recommend that Natalie use for her business? Discuss the benefits and weak-
nesses of each form that Natalie might consider.

(b) Will Natalie need accounting information? If yes, what information will she need and
why? How often will she need this information?

(c) Identify specific asset, liability, revenue, and expense accounts that Cookie Creations
will likely use to record its business transactions.

(d) Should Natalie open a separate bank account for the business? Why or why not?

(e) Natalie expects she will have to use her car to drive to people’s homes and to pick
up supplies, but she also needs to use her car for personal reasons. She recalls from
her first-year accounting course something about keeping business and personal as-
sets separate. She wonders what she should do for accounting purposes. What do
you recommend?

broadening your perspective

Financial Reporting and Analysis

S FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll Industries Inc.

BYP1-1 The 2009 financial statements of Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc. are provided in
Appendix A.

Instructions

Refer to Tootsie Roll’s financial statements to answer the following questions.

(a) What were Tootsie Roll’s total assets at December 31, 2009? At December 31, 2008?

(b) How much cash did Tootsie Roll have on December 31, 2009?

(c) What amount of accounts payable did Tootsie Roll report on December 31, 2009? On Decem-
ber 31, 2008?

(d) What were Tootsie Roll’s total revenues in 2009? In 2008?

(e) What is the amount of the change in Tootsie Roll’s net income from 2008 to 2009?

"B  COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll vs. Hershey

BYP1-2 Tootsie Roll’s financial statements are presented in Appendix A, and the financial state-
ments of The Hershey Company are presented in Appendix B.

Instructions
(a) Based on the information in these financial statements, determine the following for each
company.
(1) Total assets at December 31, 2009.
(2) Net property, plant, and equipment at December 31, 2009.
(3) Total revenue for 2009.
(4) Net income for 2009.

(b) What conclusions concerning the two companies can you draw from these data?
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RESEARCH CASE

BYP1-3 The September 3, 2009, issue of BusinessWeek includes an article by Lindsey Gerdes
entitled “The Best Places to Launch a Career.” It provides interesting information regarding the job
opportunities for accounting students.

Instructions

Read the article and answer the following questions. (The article can be found at

www.businessweek.com/magazine/content/09_37/b4146032027785.htm.)

(a) What position did each of the “Big Four” (the four largest international accounting firms) re-
ceive in the survey?

(b) To what did the article attribute the accounting firms’ success?

(c) What was the starting salary for a new employee at Deloitte and Touche?

(d) The accounting firms’ hiring was affected by the recession although not as much as many
of the other employers in the survey. Which one of the Big Four firms had the smallest de-
cline in hiring, and which had the largest?

INTERPRETING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BYP1-4 Xerox was not having a particularly pleasant year. The company’s stock price had
already fallen in the previous year from $60 per share to $30. Just when it seemed things couldn’t
get worse, Xerox’s stock fell to $4 per share. The data below were taken from the statement of cash
flows of Xerox. All dollars are in millions.

Cash used in operating activities $ (663)
Cash used in investing activities (644)
Financing activities
Dividends paid $ (587)
Net cash received from issuing debt 3,498
Cash provided by financing activities 2,911

Instructions

Analyze the information above, and then answer the following questions.

(a) If you were a creditor of Xerox, what reaction might you have to the above information?

(b) If you were an investor in Xerox, what reaction might you have to the above information?

(c) If you were evaluating the company as either a creditor or a stockholder, what other infor-
mation would you be interested in seeing?

(d) Xerox decided to pay a cash dividend. This dividend was approximately equal to the amount
paid in the previous year. Discuss the issues that were probably considered in making this
decision.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS ON THE WEB

BYP1-5 Purpose: Identify summary information about companies. This information includes
basic descriptions of the company’s location, activities, industry, financial health, and financial
performance.

Addpress: http://biz.yahoo.com/i, or go to www.wiley.com/college/kimmel

Steps
1. Type in a company name, or use the index to find company name.
2. Choose Quote, then choose Profile, then choose Income Statement. Perform instructions
(a) and (b) below.
3. Choose Industry to identify others in this industry. Perform instructions (c)-(e) below.

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) What was the company’s net income? Over what period was this measured?

(b) What was the company’s total sales? Over what period was this measured?

(c) What is the company’s industry?

(d) What are the names of four companies in this industry?

(e) Choose one of the competitors. What is this competitor’s name? What were its sales? What
was its net income?


http://www.businessweek.com/magazine/content/09_37/b4146032027785.htm
http://biz.yahoo.com/i
http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
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Critical Thinking

DECISION MAKING ACROSS THE ORGANIZATION

BYP1-6 Kim Walters recently accepted a job in the production department at Tootsie Roll.
Before she starts work, she decides to review the company’s annual report to better understand its
operations.

Instructions

Use the annual report provided in Appendix A to answer the following questions.

(a) What CPA firm performed the audit of Tootsie Roll’s financial statements?

(b) What was the amount of Tootsie Roll’s earnings per share in 2009?

(c) What are the company’s net sales in foreign countries in 2009?

(d) What did management suggest as the cause of the decrease in the earnings from operations
in 2009?

(e) What were net sales in 2005?

(f) How many shares of Class B common stock have been authorized?

(g) How much cash was spent on capital expenditures in 2009?

(h) Over what life does the company depreciate its buildings?

(i) What was the value of raw material and supplies inventory in 2008?

COMMUNICATION ACTIVITY

BYP1-7 Jane Noonan is the bookkeeper for Wilson Company, Inc. Jane has been trying to get the
company’s balance sheet to balance. She finally got it to balance, but she still isn't sure that it is
correct.

WILSON COMPANY, INC.

Balance Sheet
For the Month Ended December 31, 2012

Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Equipment $18,000 Common stock $12,000
Cash 9,000 Accounts receivable (6,000)
Supplies 1,000 Dividends (2,000)
Accounts payable (4,000) Notes payable 10,000
Ttz memais $24,000 Retained earnings 10,000
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity $24,000

Instructions
Explain to Jane Noonan in a memo (a) the purpose of a balance sheet, and (b) why this balance
sheet is incorrect and what she should do to correct it.

ETHICS CASE

BYP1-8 Rules governing the investment practices of individual certified public accountants pro-
hibit them from investing in the stock of a company that their firm audits. The Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) became concerned that some accountants were violating this rule.
In response to an SEC investigation, PricewaterhouseCoopers fired 10 people and spent $25 million
educating employees about the investment rules and installing an investment tracking system.

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) Why do you think rules exist that restrict auditors from investing in companies that are
audited by their firms?

(b) Some accountants argue that they should be allowed to invest in a company’s stock as long
as they themselves aren’t involved in working on the company’s audit or consulting. What do
you think of this idea?

(c) Today a very high percentage of publicly traded companies are audited by only four very large
public accounting firms. These firms also do a high percentage of the consulting work that
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is done for publicly traded companies. How does this fact complicate the decision regarding
whether CPAs should be allowed to invest in companies audited by their firm?

(d) Suppose you were a CPA and you had invested in IBM when IBM was not one of your firm'’s
clients. Two years later, after IBM’s stock price had fallen considerably, your firm won the
IBM audit contract. You will be involved in working with the IBM audit. You know that your
firm’s rules require that you sell your shares immediately. If you do sell immediately, you will
sustain a large loss. Do you think this is fair? What would you do?

(e) Why do you think PricewaterhouseCoopers took such extreme steps in response to the SEC
investigation?

“ALL ABOUT YOU” ACTIVITY

BYP1-9 Some people are tempted to make their finances look worse to get financial aid.
Companies sometimes also manage their financial numbers in order to accomplish certain goals.
Earnings management is the planned timing of revenues, expenses, gains, and losses to smooth
out bumps in net income. In managing earnings, companies’ actions vary from being within the
range of ethical activity, to being both unethical and illegal attempts to mislead investors and
creditors.

Instructions
Provide responses for each of the following questions.
(a) Discuss whether you think each of the following actions (adapted from www.finaid.
orglfafsa/maximize.phtml) to increase the chances of receiving financial aid is ethical.
(i) Spend down the student’s assets and income first, before spending parents’ assets and
income.
(i) Accelerate necessary expenses to reduce available cash. For example, if you need a new
car, buy it before applying for financial aid.
(iii) State that a truly financially dependent child is independent.
(iv) Have a parent take an unpaid leave of absence for long enough to get below the “thresh-
old” level of income.
(b) What are some reasons why a company might want to overstate its earnings?
(c) What are some reasons why a company might want to understate its earnings?
(d) Under what circumstances might an otherwise ethical person decide to illegally overstate or
understate earnings?

FASB CODIFICATION ACTIVITY

BYP1-10 The FASB has developed the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codification (or more simply “the Codification”). The FASB’s primary goal in develop-
ing the Codification is to provide in one place all the authoritative literature related to a particu-
lar topic. To provide easy access to the Codification, the FASB also developed the Financial
Accounting Standards Board Codification Research System (CRS). CRS is an online, real-time
database that provides easy access to the Codification. The Codification and the related CRS pro-
vide a topically organized structure, subdivided into topic, subtopics, sections, and paragraphs,
using a numerical index system.

You may find this system useful in your present and future studies, and so we have provided an
opportunity to use this online system as part of the Broadening Your Perspective section.

Instructions

Academic access to the FASB Codification is available through university subscriptions, obtained
from the American Accounting Association (at http://aaahq.org/FASB/Access.cfm), for an annual fee
of $150. This subscription covers an unlimited number of students within a single institution. Once
this access has been obtained by your school, you should login (at http://aaahq.org/ascLogin.cfm)
and familiarize yourself with the resources that are accessible at the FASB Codification site.

Answers to Insight and Accounting Across the Organization Questions

p. 6 The Scoop on Accounting Q: What are the benefits to the company and to the employees
of making the financial statements available to all employees? A: If employees can read and use
financial reports, a company will benefit in the following ways. The marketing department will


http://www.finaid
http://aaahq.org/FASB/Access.cfm
http://aaahq.org/ascLogin.cfm
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make better decisions about products to offer and prices to charge. The finance department
will make better decisions about debt and equity financing and how much to distribute in divi-
dends. The production department will make better decisions about when to buy new equipment
and how much inventory to produce. The human resources department will be better able to de-
termine whether employees can be given raises. Finally, all employees will be better informed about
the basis on which they are evaluated, which will increase employee morale.

p. 7 Spinning the Career Wheel Q: How might accounting help you? A: You will need to under-
stand financial reports in any enterprise with which you are associated. Whether you become a
manager, a doctor, a lawyer, a social worker, a teacher, an engineer, an architect, or an entrepre-
neur, a working knowledge of accounting is relevant.

p. 8 The Numbers Behind Not-for-Profit Organizations Q: What benefits does a sound account-
ing system provide to a not-for-profit organization? A: Accounting provides at least two benefits
to not-for-profit organizations. First, it helps to ensure that money is used in the way that donors
intended. Second, it assures donors that their money is not going to waste and thus increases the
likelihood of future donations.

p. 15 Rocking the Bottom Line Q: What is one way that some of these disputes might be re-
solved? A: Frequently, when contractual payments depend on accounting-based financial results,
interested parties employ outside auditors to evaluate whether the financial information has been
prepared fairly and accurately. The musicians would like auditors to have easy access to inven-
tory and manufacturing information of the recording companies.

Answers to Self-Test Questions
1.b 2.¢c 3.d 4.d 5.¢ 6.a 7.d 8.d 9.a 10.b 11.c 12.d 13.d 14.a 15.b

A Look at IFRS

Most agree that there is a need for one set of international accounting standards. Here is why:

Multinational corporations. Today’s companies view the entire world as their market. For exam-
ple, Coca-Cola, Intel, and McDonald’s generate more than 50% of their sales outside the United
States, and many foreign companies, such as Toyota, Nestlé, and Sony, find their largest market to
be the United States.

Mergers and acquisitions. The mergers between Fiat/Chrysler and Vodafone/Mannesmann sug-
gest that we will see even more such business combinations in the future.

Information technology. As communication barriers continue to topple through advances in
technology, companies and individuals in different countries and markets are becoming more
comfortable buying and selling goods and services from one another.

Financial markets. Financial markets are of international significance today. Whether it is cur-
rency, equity securities (stocks), bonds, or derivatives, there are active markets throughout the
world trading these types of instruments.

KEY POINTS

¢ International standards are referred to as International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
developed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

e Recent events in the global capital markets have underscored the importance of financial dis-
closure and transparency not only in the United States but in markets around the world. As a
result, many are examining which accounting and financial disclosure rules should be followed.
As indicated in the graphic on the next page, much of the world has voted for the standards
issued by the TASB. Over 115 countries require or permit use of IFRS.
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Countries that require
or permit IFRS or have
fixed dates for adoption

Countries seeking conver-
gence with the IASB or
pursuing adoption of IFRS

Source: http://www.pwe.com/us/en/issues/ifrs-reporting/country-adoption/index.jhtml.

e U.S standards, referred to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), are developed
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB). The fact that there are differences
between what is in this textbook (which is based on U.S. standards) and IFRS should not be
surprising because the FASB and IASB have responded to different user needs. In some coun-
tries, the primary users of financial statements are private investors; in others, the primary
users are tax authorities or central government planners. It appears that the United States and
the international standard-setting environment are primarily driven by meeting the needs of
investors and creditors.

e The internal control standards applicable to Sarbanes-Oxley (SOX) apply only to large public
companies listed on U.S. exchanges. There is a continuing debate as to whether non-U.S. com-
panies should have to comply with this extra layer of regulation. Debate about international
companies (non-U.S.) adopting SOX-type standards centers on whether the benefits exceed the
costs. The concern is that the higher costs of SOX compliance are making the U.S. securities
markets less competitive.

e The textbook mentions a number of ethics violations, such as Enron, WorldCom, and AIG.
These problems have also occurred internationally, for example, at Satyam Computer Services
(India), Parmalat (Italy), and Royal Ahold (the Netherlands).

e IFRS tends to be simpler in its accounting and disclosure requirements; some people say it is
more “principles-based.” GAAP is more detailed; some people say it is more “rules-based.” This
difference in approach has resulted in a debate about the merits of “principles-based” versus
“rules-based” standards.

e U.S. regulators have recently eliminated the need for foreign companies that trade shares in
U.S. markets to reconcile their accounting with GAAP.

e The three most common forms of business organization, proprietorships, partnerships, and
corporations, are also found in countries that use IFRS. Because the choice of business organ-
ization is influenced by factors such as legal environment, tax rates and regulations, and degree
of entrepreneurism, the relative use of each form will vary across countries.

e The conceptual framework that underlies IFRS is very similar to that used to develop GAAP.
The basic definitions provided in this textbook for the key elements of financial statements, that
is, assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenses, are simplified versions of the official defi-
nitions provided by the FASB. The more substantive definitions, using the IASB definitional
structure, are as follows.

Assets. A resource controlled by the entity as a result of past events and from which future
economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.
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Liabilities. A present obligation of the entity arising from past events, the settlement of
which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources embodying economic
benefits. Liabilities may be legally enforceable via a contract or law, but need not be, i.e.,
they can arise due to normal business practice or customs.

Equity. A residual interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities.

Income. Increases in economic benefits that result in increases in equity (other than those
related to contributions from shareholders). Income includes both revenues (resulting from
ordinary activities) and gains.

Expenses. Decreases in economic benefits that result in decreases in equity (other than
those related to distributions to shareholders). Expenses includes losses that are not the
result of ordinary activities.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

Both the TASB and the FASB are hard at work developing standards that will lead to the elimi-
nation of major differences in the way certain transactions are accounted for and reported. In
fact, at one time the IASB stated that no new major standards would become effective until
2009. The major reason for this policy was to provide companies the time to translate and imple-
ment IFRS into practice, as much has happened in a very short period of time. Consider, for
example, that as a result of a joint project on the conceptual framework, the definitions of the
most fundamental elements (assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenses) may actually
change. However, whether the IASB adopts internal control provisions similar to those in SOX
remains to be seen.

IFRS Self-Test Questions

1. Which of the following is not a reason why a single set of high-quality international account-
ing standards would be beneficial?
(a) Mergers and acquisition activity.
(b) Financial markets.
(c) Multinational corporations.
(d) GAAP is widely considered to be a superior reporting system.
2. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act determines:
(a) international tax regulations.
(b) internal control standards as enforced by the TIASB.
(c) internal control standards of U.S. publicly traded companies.
(d) U.S. tax regulations.
3. IFRS is considered to be more:
(a) principles-based and less rules-based than GAAP.
(b) rules-based and less principles-based than GAAP.
(¢) detailed than GAAP.
(d) None of the above.
4. Which of the following statements is false?
(a) IFRS is based on a conceptual framework that is similar to that used to develop GAAP.
(b) Assets are defined by the IASB as resources controlled by the entity as a result of past
events and from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.
(c¢) Non-U.S. companies that trade shares in U.S. markets must reconcile their accounting with
GAAP.
(d) Proprietorships, partnerships, and corporations are also found in countries that use IFRS.
5. Which of the following statements is true?
(a) Under IFRS, the term income refers to what would be called revenues and gains under
GAAP.
(b) The term income is not used under IFRS.
(c) The term income refers only to gains on investments.
(d) Under IFRS, expenses include distributions to owners.

IFRS Concepts and Application

IFRS1-1 Who are the two key international players in the development of international account-
ing standards? Explain their role.
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IFRS1-2 What might explain the fact that different accounting standard-setters have developed
accounting standards that are sometimes quite different in nature?

IFRS1-3 What is the benefit of a single set of high-quality accounting standards?

IFRS1-4 Discuss the potential advantages and disadvantages that countries outside the United
States should consider before adopting regulations, such as those in the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, that
increase corporate internal control requirements.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM: Zetar plc

IFRS1-5 The financial statements of Zetar plc are presented in Appendix C. The company’s
complete annual report, including the notes to its financial statements, is available at
www.zetarplc.com.

Instructions
Visit Zetar’s corporate website and answer the following questions from Zetar’s 2009 annual
report.

(a) What accounting firm performed the audit of Zetar’s financial statements?

(b) Over what life does the company depreciate its buildings?

(¢) What is the address of the company’s corporate headquarters?

(d) What is the company’s reporting currency?

(e) What two segments does the company operate in, and what were the sales for each segment

in the year ended April 30, 2009?

Answers to IFRS Self-Test Questions
1.d 2.c 3.a 4.c 5.a

Remember to go back to the navigator box on the chapter opening page and check off your completed work. }
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Few people could have predicted how dramatically the
Internet would change the investment world. One of
the most interesting results is how it has changed the
way ordinary people invest their savings. More and
more people are striking out on their own, making their
own investment decisions.

Two early pioneers in providing investment infor-
mation to the masses were Tom and
David Gardner, brothers who created
an online investor bulletin board called
The Motley Fool. The name comes from
Shakespeare's As You Like It. The fool
in Shakespeare's plays was the only one who could
speak unpleasant truths to kings and queens without
being killed. Tom and David view themselves as 21st-
century “fools," revealing the “truths” of Wall Street to
the small investor, who they feel has been taken ad-
vantage of by Wall Street insiders. Their online bulletin
board enables investors to exchange information and
insights about companies.

Critics of these bulletin boards contend that they
are high-tech rumor mills. They suggest that the fervor
created by bulletin board chatter causes investors to
bid up stock prices to unreasonable levels. Because
bulletin board participants typically use aliases, there
is little to stop people from putting misinformation on
the board to influence a stock’s price. For example,
the stock of PairGain Technologies jumped 32 percent
in a single day as a result of a bogus takeover rumor
on an investment bulletin board. Some observers are
concerned that small investors—ironically, the very peo-
ple the Gardner brothers are trying to help—will be hurt
the most by misinformation and intentional scams.

JUST FOOLING

AROUND?

feature story |=.

To show how these bulletin
boards work, suppose that in a re-
cent year you had $10,000 to invest. You were con-
sidering Best Buy Company, the largest seller of elec-
tronics equipment in the United States. You scanned
the Internet investment bulletin boards and found mes-
sages posted by two different investors. Here are
excerpts from actual postings during the

same year:

TMPVenus: “Where are the prospects
for positive movement for this com-
pany? Poor margins, poor management,

astronomical P/E!”

broachman: “| believe that this is a LONG TERM

winner, and presently at a good price.”

One says sell, and one says buy. Whom should
you believe? If you had taken “broachman’s” advice
and purchased the stock, the $10,000 you invested
would have been worth over $300,000 five years later.
Best Buy was one of America’s best-performing stocks
during that period of time.

Deciding what information to rely on is becoming
increasingly complex. For example, shortly before its
share price completely collapsed, nearly every profes-
sional analyst who followed Enron was recommending
its stock as a “buy

Rather than getting swept away by rumors, investors
must sort out the good information from the bad. One
thing is certain—as information services such as The
Motley Fool increase in number, gathering information
will become even easier. Evaluating it will be the harder
task.

< the
navigator

INSIDE CHAPTER 2...

e Can a Company Be Too Liquid? (p. 60)
e When Debt Is Good (p. 67)
e The Korean Discount (p. 64)
e What Do These Companies Have in Common? (p. 65)
47




preview of chapter 2

If you are thinking of purchasing Best Buy stock, or any stock, how can you decide what the stock is worth? If
you manage J. Crew's credit department, how should you determine whether to extend credit to a new cus-
tomer? If you are a financial executive of IBM, how do you decide whether your company is generating ade-
quate cash to expand operations without borrowing? Your decision in each of these situations will be influenced
by a variety of considerations. One of them should be your careful analysis of a company’s financial statements.
The reason: Financial statements offer relevant and reliable information, which will help you in your decision making.

In this chapter, we take a closer look at the balance sheet and introduce some useful ways for evaluating
the information provided by the financial statements. We also examine the financial reporting concepts under-
lying the financial statements.

A Further Look At Financial Statements

The Classified Balance Sheet Using the Financial Statements Financial Reporting Concepts
¢ Current assets ¢ Ratio analysis ¢ The standard-setting environment
* Long-term investments e Using the income statement * Qualities of useful information
* Property, plant, and equipment e Using the statement of stockholders’ * Assumptions
* Intangible assets equity * Principles

¢ Using a classified balance sheet

Current liabilities ¢ Constraints

- Long-term liabilities * Using the statement of cash flows

Stockholders’ equity

(VT
navigator

In Chapter 1, we introduced the four financial statements. In this section, we
review the financial statements and present tools that are useful for evaluating
them. We begin by introducing the classified balance sheet.

The Classified Balance Sheet
In Chapter 1, you learned that a balance sheet presents a snapshot of a com-

pany’s financial position at a point in time. The balance sheet in Chapter 1 listed

Identify the sections of a individual asset, liability and stockholders’ equity items in no particular order.

classified balance sheet. To improve users’ understanding of a company’s financial position, companies
often use a classified balance sheet. A classified balance sheet groups together
similar assets and similar liabilities, using a number of standard classifications
and sections. This is useful because items within a group have similar economic
characteristics. A classified balance sheet generally contains the standard clas-
sifications listed in Illustration 2-1.

Illustration 2-1 Standard

balance sheet classifications Assets Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current assets Current liabilities
Long-term investments Long-term liabilities
Property, plant, and equipment Stockholders’ equity

Intangible assets

These groupings help readers determine such things as (1) whether the com-
pany has enough assets to pay its debts as they come due, and (2) the claims of
short- and long-term creditors on the company’s total assets. Many of these

48
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groupings can be seen in the balance sheet of Franklin Corporation shown in
Illustration 2-2. In the sections that follow, we explain each of these groupings.

CURRENT ASSETS

Current assets are assets that a company expects to convert to cash or use up
within one year or its operating cycle, whichever is longer. In Illustration 2-2,
Franklin Corporation had current assets of $22,100. For most businesses, the
cutoff for classification as current assets is one year from the balance sheet date.
For example, accounts receivable are current assets because the company will

FRANKLIN CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
October 31, 2012

Assets

Current assets

Cash $ 6,600

Short-term investments 2,000

Accounts receivable 7,000

Notes receivable 1,000

Inventory 3,000

Supplies 2,100

Prepaid insurance 400

Total current assets $22,100

Long-term investments

Investment in stock of Walters Corp. 5,200

Investment in real estate 2,000 7,200
Property, plant, and equipment

Land 10,000

Equipment $24,000

Less: Accumulated

depreciation—equipment 5,000 19,000 29,000

Intangible assets

Patents 3,100
Total assets $61,400

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Notes payable $11,000
Accounts payable 2,100
Salaries and wages payable 1,600
Unearned sales revenue 900
Interest payable 450
Total current liabilities $16,050
Long-term liabilities
Mortgage payable 10,000
Notes payable 1,300
Total long-term liabilities 11,300
Total liabilities 27,350
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 14,000
Retained earnings 20,050
Total stockholders’ equity 34,050

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $61,400

lllustration 2-2 Classified
balance sheet

Helpful Hint Recall that the
accounting equation is Assets =
Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity.
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lllustration 2-3 Current
assets section

Long-
term investments are often
referred to simply as investments.

lllustration 2-4 Long-
term investments section

collect them and convert them to cash within one year. Supplies is a current as-
set because the company expects to use them up in operations within one year.

Some companies use a period longer than one year to classify assets and
liabilities as current because they have an operating cycle longer than one year.
The operating cycle of a company is the average time that it takes to go from
cash to cash in producing revenue—to purchase inventory, sell it on account,
and then collect cash from customers. For most businesses, this cycle takes less
than a year, so they use a one-year cutoff. But, for some businesses, such as vine-
yards or airplane manufacturers, this period may be longer than a year. Except
where noted, we will assume that companies use one year to determine
whether an asset or liability is current or long-term.

Common types of current assets are (1) cash, (2) short-term investments
(such as short-term U.S. government securities), (3) receivables (notes receiv-
able, accounts receivable, and interest receivable), (4) inventories, and (5) pre-
paid expenses (insurance and supplies). Companies list current assets in the
order in which they expect to convert them into cash. Follow this rule when
doing your homework.

Illustration 2-3 presents the current assets of Southwest Airlines Co. in a re-
cent year.

# SOUTHWEST AIRLINES CO.

Balance Sheet (partial)

(in millions)
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $1,390
Short-term investments 369
Accounts receivable 241
Inventories 181
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 420

Total current assets $2,601

As explained later in the chapter, a company’s current assets are important in
assessing its short-term debt-paying ability.

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Long-term investments are generally: (1) investments in stocks and bonds of
other corporations that are held for more than one year, and (2) long-term as-
sets such as land or buildings that a company is not currently using in its oper-
ating activities. In Illustration 2-2, Franklin Corporation reported total long-term
investments of $7,200 on its balance sheet.

Yahoo! Inc. reported long-term investments on its balance sheet in a recent
year as shown in Illustration 2-4.

YAHOO! INC.
Balance Sheet (partial)
(in thousands)

Long-term investments
Long-term investments in marketable securities $90,266
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PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant, and equipment are assets with relatively long useful lives that
are currently used in operating the business. This category includes land, build-
ings, equipment, delivery vehicles, and furniture. In Illustration 2-2, Franklin
Corporation reported property, plant, and equipment of $29,000.

Depreciation is the practice of allocating the cost of assets to a number of
years. Companies do this by systematically assigning a portion of an asset’s cost
as an expense each year (rather than expensing the full purchase price in the
year of purchase). The assets that the company depreciates are reported on the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation. The accumulated depre-
ciation account shows the total amount of depreciation that the company has
expensed thus far in the asset’s life. In Illustration 2-2, Franklin Corporation
reported accumulated depreciation of $5,000.

Illustration 2-5 presents the property, plant, and equipment of Cooper Tire
& Rubber Company in a recent year.

Property, plant, and equipment

COOPER TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY
Balance Sheet (partial)
(in thousands)

Land and land improvements $ 41,553

Buildings 298,706

Machinery and equipment 1,636,091

Molds, cores, and rings 268,158 $2,244,508

Less: Accumulated depreciation 1,252,692
$ 991,816

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Many companies have assets that do not have physical substance yet often are
very valuable. We call these assets intangible assets. One common intangible
is goodwill. Others include patents, copyrights, and trademarks or trade names
that give the company exclusive right of use for a specified period of time.
Franklin Corporation reported intangible assets of $3,100.

Illustration 2-6 shows the intangible assets of media giant Time Warner, Inc.
in a recent year.

TICKETS

TIME WARNER, INC.
Balance Sheet (partial)
(in millions)

Intangible assets

Goodwill $40,953
Film library 2,690
Customer lists 2,540
Cable television franchises 38,048
Sports franchises 262
Brands, trademarks, and other intangible assets 8,313

$92,806

Property, plant, and equipment is
sometimes called fixed assets or
plant assets.

International Note In 2007,
China adopted International
Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). This was done in an effort
to reduce fraud and increase
investor confidence in financial
reports. Under these standards,
many items, such as property,
plant, and equipment, may be
reported at current fair values,
rather than historical cost.

Illustration 2-5 Property,
plant, and equipment
section

Helpful Hint Sometimes
intangible assets are reported
under a broader heading called
“Other assets.’

Illlustration 2-6
assets section

Intangible
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before you go on...

ASSETS SECTION OF
BALANCE SHEET

Action Plan

* Present current assets first.
Current assets are cash and
other resources that the
company expects to convert to

cash or use up within one year.

Present current assets in the
order in which the company
expects to convert them into
cash.

Subtract accumulated
depreciation—equipment from
equipment to determine net
equipment.

m Baxter Hoffman recently received the following information related to

Hoffman Corporation’s December 31, 2012, balance sheet.

Prepaid insurance $ 2,300 Inventory $3,400
Cash 800 Accumulated depreciation—
Equipment 10,700 equipment 2,700
Accounts receivable 1,100
Prepare the assets section of Hoffman Corporation’s balance sheet.
Solution
HOFFMAN CORPORATION
Balance Sheet (partial)
December 31, 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 800
Accounts receivable 1,100
Inventory 3,400
Prepaid insurance 2,300
Total current assets $ 7,600
Equipment 10,700
Less: Accumulated depreciation—
equipment 2,700 8,000
Total assets $15,600
Related exercise material: BE2-2, [2X:¥7H 2-1, and E2-4. U.. o
navigator

CURRENT LIABILITIES

In the liabilities and stockholders’ equity section of the balance sheet, the first
grouping is current liabilities. Current liabilities are obligations that the com-
pany is to pay within the coming year or operating cycle, whichever is longer.
Common examples are accounts payable, wages payable, bank loans payable,
interest payable, and taxes payable. Also included as current liabilities are cur-
rent maturities of long-term obligations—payments to be made within the next
year on long-term obligations. In Illustration 2-2, Franklin Corporation reported
five different types of current liabilities, for a total of $16,050.

Within the current liabilities section, companies usually list notes payable
first, followed by accounts payable. Other items then follow in the order of their
magnitude. In your homework, you should present notes payable first, followed by
accounts payable.

Illustration 2-7 shows the current liabilities section adapted from the bal-
ance sheet of Marcus Corporation in a recent year.

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liabilities are obligations that a company expects to pay after one
year. Liabilities in this category include bonds payable, mortgages payable, long-
term notes payable, lease liabilities, and pension liabilities. Many companies re-
port long-term debt maturing after one year as a single amount in the balance
sheet and show the details of the debt in notes that accompany the financial
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-
“‘

Lty MARCUS CORPORATION
Balance Sheet (partial)
(in thousands)

—

Current liabilities

Notes payable $ 239
Accounts payable 24,242
Current maturities of long-term debt 57,250
Other current liabilities 27,477
Taxes payable 11,215
Accrued compensation payable 6,720

Total current liabilities $127,143

statements. Others list the various types of long-term liabilities. In Tllustration 2-2,
Franklin Corporation reported long-term liabilities of $11,300.

Illustration 2-8 shows the long-term liabilities that The Procter & Gamble
Company reported in its balance sheet in a recent year.

g THE PROCTER & GAMBLE COMPANY
Balance Sheet (partial)
(in millions)

Long-term liabilities

Long-term debt $23,375
Deferred income taxes 12,015
Other noncurrent liabilities 5,147

Total long-term liabilities $40,537

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Stockholders’ equity consists of two parts: common stock and retained earnings.
Companies record as common stock the investments of assets into the business
by the stockholders. They record as retained earnings the income retained for
use in the business. These two parts, combined, make up stockholders’ equity
on the balance sheet. In Illustration 2-2, Franklin reported common stock of
$14,000 and retained earnings of $20,050.

m The following financial statement items were taken from the financial

statements of Callahan Corp.

Salaries and wages payable Equipment

Service revenue Accumulated depreciation—
Interest payable equipment

Goodwill Depreciation expense
Short-term investments Retained earnings

Mortgage payable (due in 3 years) Unearned service revenue

Investment in real estate

Illustration 2-7 Current
liabilities section

lllustration 2-8 Long-
term liabilities section

Common stock is sometimes called
capital stock.

before you go on...

BALANCE SHEET
CLASSIFICATIONS
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Action Plan

* Analyze whether each financial
statement item is an asset,
liability, or stockholders’ equity
item.

* Determine if asset and liability
items are current or long-term.

lllustration 2-9 Financial
ratio classifications

Match each of the items to its proper balance sheet classification, shown below. If the
item would not appear on a balance sheet, use “NA.”

Current assets (CA) Current liabilities (CL)
Long-term investments (LTT) Long-term liabilities (LTL)
Property, plant, and equipment (PPE) Stockholders’ equity (SE)
Intangible assets (IA)

Solution
CL Salaries and wages payable LTI Investment in real estate
& Service revenue Iﬂ Equipment
CL Interest payable PPE Accumulated depreciation—
TA  Goodwill equipment
_CA Short-term investments NA Depreciation expense
LTL Mortgage payable SE  Retained earnings

(due in 3 years) CL  Unearned service revenue

Related exercise material: BE2-1, [2X:¥14 2-2, E2-1, E2-2, E2-3, E2-5 and E2-6. ViTam
navigator

Using the Financial Statements

In Chapter 1, we introduced the four financial statements. We discussed how
these statements provide information about a company’s performance and finan-
cial position. In this chapter, we extend this discussion by showing you specific
tools that you can use to analyze financial statements in order to make a more
meaningful evaluation of a company.

RATIO ANALYSIS

Ratio analysis expresses the relationship among selected items of financial state-
ment data. A ratio expresses the mathematical relationship between one quan-
tity and another. For analysis of the primary financial statements, we classify
ratios as follows.

N\ . Profitability Ratios

— o

— 5D — i
=2 T Measure the income or

| operating success of a company
Refoques 31 — | Baege | = for a given period of time

Liquidity Ratios

Measure short-term ability

of the company to pay its
maturing obligations and to
meet unexpected needs for cash

Solvency Ratios
[ .1

Measure the ability of
the company to survive
over a long period of time
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A single ratio by itself is not very meaningful. Accordingly, in this and the
following chapters, we will use various comparisons to shed light on company
performance:

1. Intracompany comparisons covering two years for the same company.

2. Industry-average comparisons based on average ratios for particular
industries.

3. Intercompany comparisons based on comparisons with a competitor in
the same industry.

USING THE INCOME STATEMENT

Best Buy Company generates profits for its stockholders by selling electronics.
The income statement reports how successful it is at generating a profit from

its sales. The income statement reports the amount earned during the period
(revenues) and the costs incurred during the period (expenses). Illustration 2-10
shows a simplified income statement for Best Buy.

Identify and compute ratios
for analyzing a company’s
profitability.

lllustration 2-10 Best
BEST BUY CO,, INC. Buy’s income statement

Income Statements
For the Years Ended February 28, 2009,
and March 1, 2008 (in millions)

2009 2008

Revenues
Net sales and other revenue $45,015 $40,023
Expenses
Cost of goods sold 34,017 30,477
Selling, general, and

administrative expenses and other 9,321 7,324
Income tax expense 674 815
Total expenses 44,012 38,616
Net income $ 1,003 $ 1,407

From this income statement, we can see that Best Buy’s sales increased but
net income decreased during the period. Net income decreased from $1,407 mil-
lion to $1,003 million. A much smaller competitor of Best Buy is hhgregg. It op-
erates 111 stores in 9 states and is headquartered in Indianapolis, Indiana. It re-
ported net income of $36.5 million for the year ended March 31, 2009.

To evaluate the profitability of Best Buy, we will use ratio analysis. Prof-
itability ratios measure the operating success of a company for a given period
of time.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share (EPS) measures the net income earned on each share of
common stock. We compute EPS by dividing net income by the average num-
ber of common shares outstanding during the year. Stockholders usually
think in terms of the number of shares they own or plan to buy or sell, so stat-
ing net income earned as a per share amount provides a useful perspective for
determining the investment return. Advanced accounting courses present more
refined techniques for calculating earnings per share.
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lllustration 2-11 Best
Buy's earnings per share

For now, a basic approach for calculating earnings per share is to divide
earnings available to common stockholders by average common shares out-
standing during the year. What is “earnings available to common stockhold-
ers”? It is an earnings amount calculated as net income less dividends paid
on another type of stock, called preferred stock (Net income — Preferred stock
dividends).

By comparing earnings per share of a single company over time, one
can evaluate its relative earnings performance from the perspective of a stock-
holder—that is, on a per share basis. It is very important to note that com-
parisons of earnings per share across companies are not meaningful because
of the wide variations in the numbers of shares of outstanding stock among
companies.

Illustration 2-11 shows the earnings per share calculation for Best Buy in
2009 and 2008, based on the information presented below. (Note that to sim-
plify our calculations, we assumed that any change in the number of shares for
Best Buy occurred in the middle of the year.)

(in millions) 2009 2008

Net income $1,003 $1,407
Preferred stock dividends -0- -0-
Shares outstanding at beginning of year 411 481
Shares outstanding at end of year 414 411

Earnings per _ Net Income — Preferred Stock Dividends

Share Average Common Shares Outstanding
($ and shares in millions) 2009 2008
Earnings per share $1,008 — $0 _ $2.43 $1,407 — $0 _ $3.15
(414 + 411)/2 ' (411 + 481)/2 '

DECISION TOOLKIT

DECISION CHECKPOINTS ' INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS
How does the company’s  Net income available to Earnings ) - A higher measure suggests
earnings performance common stockholders and per  _ Netincome — Preferred stock d“'"!e"ds improved performance,
compare with that of average common shares share Average common shares outstanding  athough the number is
previous years? outstanding subject to manipulation.

study objective | 3

Explain the relationship
between a retained
earnings statement and a
statement of stockholders’
equity.

Values should not be
compared across companies.

USING THE STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As discussed in Chapter 1, the retained earnings statement describes the changes
in retained earnings during the year. This statement adds net income and then
subtracts dividends from the beginning retained earnings to arrive at ending re-
tained earnings.

Stockholders’ equity is comprised of two parts: retained earnings and com-
mon stock. Therefore, the stockholders’ equity of most companies is affected by
factors other than just changes in retained earnings. For example, the company
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may issue or retire shares of common stock. Most companies, therefore, use
what is called a statement of stockholders’ equity, rather than a retained earn-
ings statement, so that they can report all changes in stockholders’ equity
accounts. Illustration 2-12 is a simplified statement of stockholders’ equity for
Best Buy.

lllustration 2-12 Best

BEST BUY CO, INC. Buy's statement of
Statement of Stockholders’ Equity stockholders’ equity
(in millions)
Common Retained
Stock Earnings

Balances at March 3, 2007 $ 478 $5,723
Issuance of common stock 268
Repurchase of common stock (697)
Net income 1,407
Dividends (204)
Other adjustments (2,491)
Balances at March 1, 2008 49 4,435
Issuance of common stock 197
Net income 1,003
Dividends (222)
Other adjustments (819)

Balances at February 28, 2009

R%]
[N}
N
(@)}

$4,397

We can observe from this financial statement that Best Buy’s common stock
decreased during the first year. Even though it had an issuance of common stock,
that increase was much smaller than the decrease caused by a stock repurchase.
It increased in the second year as the result of an issuance of shares. Another
observation from this financial statement is that Best Buy paid dividends each
year. This is a relatively recent practice for Best Buy. Prior to 2003, it did not
pay dividends, even though it was profitable and could do so. You might won-
der why Best Buy paid no dividends during prior years when it was profitable.
In fact, in a prior year, two Best Buy stockholders discussed this question about
the company’s dividend policy on an investor bulletin board. Here are excerpts:

Katwoman: “Best Buy has a nice price increase. Earnings are on the way up. But why no
dividends?”

AngryCandy: “| guess they feel they can make better use of the money by investing
back in the business. They still view Best Buy as a rapidly growing company and would
prefer to invest in expanding the infrastructure (building new stores, advertising, etc.)
than in paying out dividends. ... If Best Buy gets to the stage of ‘stable, big company’
with little room for expansion, then I'm sure you’ll see them elect to pay out a
dividend.”

AngryCandy’s response is an excellent explanation of the thought process that
management goes through in deciding whether to pay a dividend. Manage-
ment must evaluate what its cash needs are. If it has uses for cash that will
increase the value of the company (for example, building a new, centralized
warehouse), then it should retain cash in the company. However, if it has more
cash than it has valuable opportunities, it should distribute its excess cash as

a dividend.
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study objective 4

Identify and compute ratios
for analyzing a company’s
liquidity and solvency using
a balance sheet.

lllustration 2-13 Best
Buy's balance sheet

USING A CLASSIFIED BALANCE SHEET

You can learn a lot about a company’s financial health by also evaluating the re-
lationship between its various assets and liabilities. Illustration 2-13 provides a
simplified balance sheet for Best Buy.

BEST BUY CO., INC.
Balance Sheets

(in millions)
Assets February 28, 2009 March 1, 2008
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 498 $ 1,438
Short-term investments 11 64
Receivables 1,868 549
Merchandise inventories 4,753 4,708
Other current assets 1,062 583
Total current assets 8,192 7,342
Property and equipment 6,940 5,608
Less: Accumulated depreciation 2,766 2,302
Net property and equipment 4,174 3,306
Other assets 3,460 2,110
Total assets $15,826 $12,758

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 4,997 $ 4,297
Accrued liabilities 1,382 975
Accrued income taxes 281 404
Accrued compensation payable 459 373
Other current liabilities 1,316 720
Total current liabilities 8,435 6,769
Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt 1,126 627
Other long-term liabilities 1,622 878
Total long-term liabilities 2,748 1,505
Total liabilities 11,183 8,274
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 246 49
Retained earnings 4,397 4,435
Total stockholders’ equity 4,643 4,484
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $15,826 $12,758
Liquidity

Suppose you are a banker at CitiGroup considering lending money to Best Buy,
or you are a sales manager at Hewlett-Packard interested in selling computers
to Best Buy on credit. You would be concerned about Best Buy’s liquidity—its
ability to pay obligations expected to become due within the next year or oper-
ating cycle. You would look closely at the relationship of its current assets to
current liabilities.
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WORKING CAPITAL. One measure of liquidity is working capital, which is the
difference between the amounts of current assets and current liabilities:

lllustration 2-14  Working
Working Capital = Current Assets — Current Liabilities capital

When current assets exceed current liabilities, working capital is positive.
When this occurs, there is greater likelihood that the company will pay its li-
abilities. When working capital is negative, a company might not be able to pay
short-term creditors, and the company might ultimately be forced into bank-
ruptcy. Best Buy had working capital in 2009 of —$243 million ($8,192 million —
$8,435 million). Best Buy’s negative working capital does not necessarily mean
the company has liquidity problems. It does warrant further investigation
though.

CURRENT RATIO. Liquidity ratios measure the short-term ability of the com-
pany to pay its maturing obligations and to meet unexpected needs for cash.
One liquidity ratio is the current ratio, computed as current assets divided by
current liabilities.

The current ratio is a more dependable indicator of liquidity than working
capital. Two companies with the same amount of working capital may have sig-
nificantly different current ratios. Illustration 2-15 shows the 2009 and 2008 cur-
rent ratios for Best Buy and for hhgregg, along with the 2009 industry average.

Illustration 2-15 Current

"
Current Ratio = Current Assets ratio

Current Liabilities

Best Buy Industry
($ in millions) hhgregg Average
2009 2008 2009 2009
8,192
%8, = .97:1 1.08:1 1.68:1 1.50:1
$8,435

What does the ratio actually mean? Best Buy’s 2009 current ratio of .97:1
means that for every dollar of current liabilities, Best Buy has 97¢ of current as-
sets. Best Buy’s current ratio decreased in 2009. When compared to the indus-
try average of 1.5:1, Best Buy’s liquidity seems low. It is also less than hhgregg’s.

One potential weakness of the current ratio is that it does not take into ac-  Ethics Note A company that has
count the composition of the current assets. For example, a satisfactory cur- more current assets than current
rent ratio does not disclose whether a portion of the current assets is tied up in liabilities can increase the ratio of
slow-moving inventory. The composition of the current assets matters because current assets to current liabilities
a dollar of cash is more readily available to pay the bills than is a dollar of in- by using cash to pay off some
ventory. For example, suppose a company’s cash balance declined while its mer-  current liabilities. This gives the
chandise inventory increased substantially. If inventory increased because the  appearance of being more liuid.
company is having difficulty selling its products, then the current ratio might Do you think this move is ethical?
not fully reflect the reduction in the company’s liquidity.
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/

Helpful Hint Some users evaluate
solvency using a ratio of liabilities
divided by stockholders’ equity.
The higher this “debt to equity”
ratio, the lower is a company’s
solvency.

Illustration 2-16 Debt
to total assets ratio

émm Accounting Across the Organization
‘ Can a Company Be Too Liquid?

There actually is a point where a company can be too liquid—that is, it can
have too much working capital. While it is important to be liquid enough to be able to
pay short-term bills as they come due, a company does not want to tie up its cash in
extra inventory or receivables that are not earning the company money.

By one estimate from the REL Consultancy Group, the thousand largest U.S. com-
panies have on their books cumulative excess working capital of $764 billion. Based on
this figure, companies could have reduced debt by 36% or increased net income by
9%. Given that managers throughout a company are interested in improving profitabil-
ity, it is clear that they should have an eye toward managing working capital. They need
to aim for a “Goldilocks solution”"—not too much, not too little, but just right.

Source: K. Richardson, “Companies Fall Behind in Cash Management,” Wall Street Journal (June 19, 2007).

What can various company managers do to ensure that working capital is man-
m aged efficiently to maximize net income? (See page 96.)

Solvency

Now suppose that instead of being a short-term creditor, you are interested in
either buying Best Buy’s stock or extending the company a long-term loan. Long-
term creditors and stockholders are interested in a company’s solvency—its abil-
ity to pay interest as it comes due and to repay the balance of a debt due at its
maturity. Solvency ratios measure the ability of the company to survive over a
long period of time.

DEBT TO TOTAL ASSETS RATIO. The debt to total assets ratio is one source of
information about long-term debt-paying ability. It measures the percentage of
total financing provided by creditors rather than stockholders. Debt financing is
more risky than equity financing because debt must be repaid at specific points
in time, whether the company is performing well or not. Thus, the higher the
percentage of debt financing, the riskier the company.

We compute the debt to total assets ratio as total debt (both current and
long-term liabilities) divided by total assets. The higher the percentage of total
liabilities (debt) to total assets, the greater the risk that the company may be un-
able to pay its debts as they come due. Hlustration 2-16 shows the debt to total
assets ratios for Best Buy and hhgregg, along with the 2009 industry average.

Total Liabilities
Total Assets

Debt to Total Assets Ratio =

Best Buy Industry
$ in millions) hhgregg Average
2009 2008 2009 2009
11,183
$—' =71% 65% 64% 57%
$15,826

The 2009 ratio of 71% means that every dollar of assets was financed by 71 cents
of debt. Best Buy’s ratio exceeds the industry average of 57% and is higher than
hhgregg’s ratio of 64%. The higher the ratio, the more reliant the company is
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on debt financing. This means the company has a lower equity “buffer” avail-
able to creditors if the company becomes insolvent. Thus, from the creditors’
point of view, a high ratio of debt to total assets is undesirable. Best Buy’s sol-
vency appears lower than hhgregg’s and lower than the average company in the
industry.

The adequacy of this ratio is often judged in the light of the company’s earn-
ings. Generally, companies with relatively stable earnings, such as public utili-
ties, can support higher debt to total assets ratios than can cyclical companies
with widely fluctuating earnings, such as many high-tech companies. In later
chapters, you will learn additional ways to evaluate solvency.

Investor Insight
When Debt Is Good

Debt financing differs greatly across industries and companies. Here are
some debt to total assets ratios for selected companies in a recent year:

Debt to Total
Assets Ratio

American Pharmaceutical Partners 19%
Callaway Golf Company 20%
Microsoft 21%
Sears Holdings Corporation 73%
Eastman Kodak Company 78%
General Motors Corporation 94%

Discuss the difference in the debt to total assets ratio of Microsoft and General
m Motors. (See page 96.)

DECISION TOOLKIT

DECISION CHECKPOINTS INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION

HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Current assets and current
liabilities

Can the company meet its
near-term obligations?

Current assets

Current ratio =
Current liabilities

Can the company meet its Total debt and total assets

long-term obligations?

Debt to total _ Total liabilities
assets ratio Total assets

In the statement of cash flows, cash provided by operating activities is intended
to indicate the cash-generating capability of the company. Analysts have noted,
however, that cash provided by operating activities fails to take into account
that a company must invest in new property, plant, and equipment (capi-
tal expenditures) just to maintain its current level of operations. Companies also
must at least maintain dividends at current levels to satisfy investors. A mea-
surement to provide additional insight regarding a company’s cash-generating
ability is free cash flow. Free cash flow describes the cash remaining from
operating activities after adjusting for capital expenditures and dividends paid.

Consider the following example: Suppose that MPC produced and sold 10,000
personal computers this year. It reported $100,000 cash provided by operating

Higher ratio suggests favorable
liquidity.

Lower value suggests favorable
solvency.

KEEPING AN EYE

ON CASH

study objective | 5§

Use the statement of cash
flows to evaluate solvency.
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activities. In order to maintain production at 10,000 computers, MPC invested
$15,000 in equipment. It chose to pay $5,000 in dividends. Its free cash flow was
$80,000 ($100,000 — $15,000 — $5,000). The company could use this $80,000 to
purchase new assets to expand the business, to pay off debts, or to increase its
dividend distribution. In practice, analysts often calculate free cash flow with
the formula shown below. (Alternative definitions also exist.)

Free Cash _ Cash Provided Capital Cash

Flow by Operations  Expenditures  Dividends

We can calculate Best Buy’s 2009 free cash flow as follows (dollars in millions).

Cash provided by operating activities $1,877
Less: Expenditures on property, plant, and equipment 1,303

Dividends paid 222
Free cash flow $ 352

Best Buy generated free cash flow of $352 million which is available for the
acquisition of new assets, the retirement of stock or debt, or the payment of ad-
ditional dividends. Long-term creditors consider a high free cash flow amount
an indication of solvency. hhgregg’s free cash flow for 2009 is $7.7 million. Given
that hhgregg is considerably smaller than Best Buy, we would expect its free cash
flow to be much lower.

DECISION TOOLKIT

DECISION CHECKPOINTS ' INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

How much cash did the Cash provided by operating Free Cash Capital Cash Significant free cash flow
company generate to activities, cash spent on cash — provided by _ expenditures — dividends indicates greater potential to
expand operations, pay fixed assets, and cash flow operations finance new investment and
off debts, or distribute dividends pay additional dividends.
dividends?

before you go on...

RATIO ANALYSIS m The following information is available for Ozone Inc.

2012 2011
Current assets $ 88,000 $ 60,800
Total assets 400,000 341,000
Current liabilities 40,000 38,000
Total liabilities 120,000 150,000
Net income 100,000 50,000
Cash provided by operating activities 110,000 70,000
Preferred stock dividends 10,000 10,000
Common stock dividends 5,000 2,500
Expenditures on property, plant, and equipment 45,000 20,000
Shares outstanding at beginning of year 60,000 40,000

Shares outstanding at end of year 120,000 60,000
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(a) Compute earnings per share for 2012 and 2011 for Ozone, and comment on the
change. Ozone’s primary competitor, Frost Corporation, had earnings per share of $2
in 2012. Comment on the difference in the ratios of the two companies.

(b) Compute the current ratio and debt to total assets ratio for each year, and comment
on the changes.

(c) Compute free cash flow for each year, and comment on the changes.
Solution

(a) Earnings per share
2012
($100,000 — $10,000) ($50,000 — $10,000)
(120,000 + 60,000)/2 (60,000 + 40,000)/2
Ozone’s profitability, as measured by the amount of income available to each share of
common stock, increased by 25% [($1.00 — $0.80) =+ $0.80] during 2012. Earnings per
share should not be compared across companies because the number of shares issued by

companies varies widely. Thus, we cannot conclude that Frost Corporation is more prof-
itable than Ozone based on its higher EPS.

2011

= $1.00 = $0.80

(b) 2012 2011
. $88,000 _ 220:1 $60,800 =1.60:1
Current ratio $40.000 AN $38,000 -0U:
Debt to total assets ratio $120,000 _ 30% $150,000 _ 449,
$400,000 $341,000

The company’s liquidity, as measured by the current ratio, improved from 1:60:1 to 2.20:1.
Its solvency also improved, as measured by the debt to total assets ratio, which declined
from 44% to 30%.
(c¢) Free cash flow

2012: $110,000 — $45,000 — ($10,000 + $5,000) = $50,000

2011: $70,000 — $20,000 — ($10,000 + $2,500) = $37,500
The amount of cash generated by the company above its needs for dividends and capi-
tal expenditures increased from $37,500 to $50,000.

Related exercise material: BE2-3, BE2-5, BE2-6, [2X:¥11] 2-3, E2-7, E2-9, E2-10, and E2-11.

Financial Reporting Concepts

In Chapter 1, you learned about the four financial statements, and in this chap-
ter, we introduced you to some basic ways to interpret those statements. In this
last section, we will discuss concepts that underly these financial statements. It
would be unwise to make business decisions based on financial statements with-
out understanding the implications of these concepts.

THE STANDARD-SETTING ENVIRONMENT

How does Best Buy decide on the type of financial information to disclose? What
format should it use? How should it measure assets, liabilities, revenues, and
expenses? Best Buy and all other U.S. companies get guidance from a set of rules
and practices that have authoritative support, referred to as generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Standard-setting bodies, in consultation with
the accounting profession and the business community, determine these account-
ing standards.

Action Plan

* Use the formula for earnings per
share (EPS): (Net income —
Preferred stock dividends) +
(Average common shares
outstanding).

e Use the formula for the current
ratio: Current assets + Current
liabilities.

* Use the formula for the debt
to total assets ratio: Total
liabilities + Total assets.

* Use the formula for free cash
flow: Cash provided by
operating activities — Capital
expenditures — Cash dividends.

Y the
navigator

study objective

Explain the meaning of
generally accepted
accounting principles.



64 chapter 2 A Further Look at Financial Statements

International Note Over 100
countries use international
standards (called IFRS). For
example, all companies in the
European Union follow international
standards. The differences
between U.S. and international
standards are not generally
significant. In this book, we
highlight any major differences
using International Notes like
this one, as well as a more in-
depth discussion in the A Look at
IFRS section at the end of each
chapter.

study objective 7

Discuss financial reporting
concepts.

The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) is the agency of the U.S.
government that oversees U.S. financial markets and accounting standard-
setting bodies. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) is the pri-
mary accounting standard-setting body in the United States. The International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issues standards called International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), which have been adopted by many
countries outside of the United States. Today, the FASB and IASB are working
closely together to minimize the differences in their standards. Recently, the
SEC announced that foreign companies that wish to have their shares traded
on U.S stock exchanges no longer have to prepare reports that conform with
GAAP, as long as their reports conform with IFRS. The SEC is currently eval-
uating whether the United States should eventually adopt IFRS as the required
set of standards for U.S. publicly traded companies. Another relatively recent
change to the financial reporting environment was that, as a result of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCAOB)
was created. Its job is to determine auditing standards and review the perform-
ance of auditing firms. If the United States adopts IFRS for its accounting stan-
dards, it will also have to coordinate its auditing regulations with those of other
countries.

« 7y International Insight
The Korean Discount

If you think that accounting standards don’t matter, consider recent events
in South Korea. For many years, international investors complained that the financial
reports of South Korean companies were inadequate and inaccurate. Accounting prac-
tices there often resulted in huge differences between stated revenues and actual rev-
enues. Because investors did not have faith in the accuracy of the numbers, they were
unwilling to pay as much for the shares of these companies relative to shares of com-
parable companies in different countries. This difference in share price was often re-
ferred to as the “Korean discount’

In response, Korean regulators decided that, beginning in 2011, companies will have
to comply with international accounting standards. This change was motivated by a de-
sire to “make the country’s businesses more transparent” in order to build investor con-
fidence and spur economic growth. Many other Asian countries, including China, India,
Japan, and Hong Kong, have also decided either to adopt international standards or to
create standards that are based on the international standards.

Source: Evan Ramstad, “End to ‘Korea Discount'?” Wall Street Journal (March 16, 2007).

What is meant by the phrase “make the country’s businesses more transparent”?
m Why would increasing transparency spur economic growth? (See page 96.)

QUALITIES OF USEFUL INFORMATION

Recently, the FASB and IASB completed the first phase of a joint project in which
they developed a conceptual framework to serve as the basis for future account-
ing standards. The framework begins by stating that the primary objective of
financial reporting is to provide financial information that is useful to investors
and creditors for making decisions about providing capital. According to the
FASB, useful information should possess two fundamental qualities, relevance
and faithful representation, as shown in Illustration 2-17.
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Illustration 2-17
Fundamental qualities of
useful information

Relevance Accounting information is considered relevant if
it would make a difference in a business decision. Information
is considered relevant if it provides information that has
predictive value, that is, helps provide accurate expectations
about the future, and has confirmatory value, that is,
confirms or corrects prior expectations.

Tell me what
| need to know.

Faithful Representation Faithful representation means that
information accurately depicts what really happened. To

N\ provide a faithful representation, information must be
| G complete (nothing important has been omitted) and neutral
" (is not biased toward one position or another).

Enhancing Qualities

In addition to the two fundamental qualities, the FASB and IASB also describe
a number of enhancing qualities of useful information. These include compara-
bility, consistency, verifiability, timeliness, and understandability. In account-
ing, comparability results when different companies use the same accounting
principles. Another characteristic that enhances comparability is consistency.
Consistency means that a company uses the same accounting principles and
methods from year to year. Information is verifiable if we are able to prove that
it is free from error. As noted in Chapter 1, certified public accountants (CPAs)
perform audits of financial statements to verify their accuracy. For accounting
information to be relevant, it must be timely. That is, it must be available to de-
cision makers before it loses its capacity to influence decisions. The SEC requires
that public companies provide their annual reports to investors within 60 days
of their year-end. Information has the quality of understandability if it is pre-
sented in a clear and concise fashion, so that reasonably informed users of that
information can interpret it and comprehend its meaning.

Accounting Across the Organization

What Do These Companies Have in Common?

Another issue related to comparability is the accounting time period. An ac-
counting period that is one-year long is called a fiscal year. But a fiscal year need not
match the calendar year. For example, a company could end its fiscal year on April 30,
rather than December 31.

Why do companies choose the particular year-ends that they do? For example, why
doesn't every company use December 31 as the accounting year-end? Many compa-
nies choose to end their accounting year when inventory or operations are at a low point.
This is advantageous because compiling accounting information requires much time and
effort by managers, so they would rather do it when they aren’t as busy operating the
business. Also, inventory is easier and less costly to count when its volume is low.

Some companies whose year-ends differ from December 31 are Delta Air Lines,
June 30; Walt Disney Productions, September 30; and Dunkin’ Donuts, Inc., October
31. In the notes to its financial statements, Best Buy states that its accounting year-end
is the Saturday nearest the end of February.

473 What problems might Best Buy's year-end create for analysts? (See page 96.)
=
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lllustration 2-18 Key
assumptions in financial
reporting

Ethics Note The importance of
the economic entity assumption is
illustrated by scandals involving
Adelphia. In this case, senior
company employees entered into
transactions that blurred the line
between the employees’ financial
interests and those of the
company. For example, Adelphia
guaranteed over $2 hillion of loans
to the founding family.

ASSUMPTIONS IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

To develop accounting standards, the FASB relies on some key assumptions, as
shown in Illustration 2-18. These include assumptions about the monetary unit,
economic entity, periodicity, going concern, and accrual basis.

Monetary Unit Assumption The monetary unit
assumption requires that only those things that can be
expressed in money are included in the accounting records.
This means that certain important information needed by
investors, creditors, and managers, such as customer
satisfaction, is not reported in the financial statements.

Measure of

Al ===
satisfaction

Percent of
international
employees

Total number
of employees

Economic Entity Assumption The economic entity

=7 assumption states that every economic entity can be

P separately identified and accounted for. In order to assess a

&E & company's performance and financial position accurately, it is
— important that we not blur company transactions with

personal transactions (especially those of its managers) or

transactions of other companies.

@ ® =
5 mm S -
A

Periodicity Assumption Notice that the income statement,
retained earnings statement, and statement of cash flows all
cover periods of one year, and the balance sheet is prepared
b — at the end of each year. The periodicity assumption states
business  mmnmm  business that the life of a business can be divided into artificial time
periods and that useful reports covering those periods can
be prepared for the business.

2004 . 2014

2006 008 201 2012

Going Concern Assumption The going concern
| assumption states that the business will remain in operation
for the foreseeable future. Of course, many businesses do

[ R e fail, but in general, it is reasonable to assume that the
N IRESE business will continue operating.

Accrual Basis Accrual-basis accounting means that
transactions that change a company’s financial statements
are recorded in the periods in which the events occur.
Accrual-basis accounting is addressed in more detail in

Purchased paint, painted building, paid employees Chapter 4

PRINCIPLES IN FINANCIAL REPORTING
Measurement Principles

GAAP generally uses one of two measurement principles, the cost principle or
the fair value principle. Selection of which principle to follow generally relates
to trade-offs between relevance and faithful representation.
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COST PRINCIPLE. The cost principle (or historical cost principle) dictates that
companies record assets at their cost. This is true not only at the time the asset
is purchased but also over the time the asset is held. For example, if land that
was purchased for $30,000 increases in value to $40,000, it continues to be re-
ported at $30,000.

FAIR VALUE PRINCIPLE. The fair value principle indicates that assets and lia-
bilities should be reported at fair value (the price received to sell an asset or settle
a liability). Fair value information may be more useful than historical cost for cer-
tain types of assets and liabilities. For example, certain investment securities are
reported at fair value because market price information is often readily avail-
able for these types of assets. In choosing between cost and fair value, the FASB
uses two qualities that make accounting information useful for decision making—
relevance and faithful representation. In determining which measurement prin-
ciple to use, the FASB weighs the factual nature of cost figures versus the rele-
vance of fair value. In general, the FASB indicates that most assets must follow
the cost principle because market values may not be representationally faithful.
Only in situations where assets are actively traded, such as investment securi-
ties, is the fair value principle applied.

Full Disclosure Principle

The full disclosure principle requires that companies disclose all circumstances
and events that would make a difference to financial statement users. If an im-
portant item cannot reasonably be reported directly in one of the four types of
financial statements, then it should be discussed in notes that accompany the
statements.

CONSTRAINTS IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

Efforts to provide useful financial information can be costly to a company. There-
fore, the profession has agreed upon constraints to ensure that companies ap-
ply accounting rules in a reasonable fashion, from the perspectives of both the
company and the user. The constraints are the materiality and cost constraints,
as shown in Hlustration 2-19.

Illustration 2-19
Materiality Constraint The materiality constraint relates to | Constraints in financial
a financial statement item’s impact on a company’s overall reporting

financial condition and operations. An item is material when
its size makes it likely to influence the decision of an investor
or creditor. It is immaterial if it is too small to impact a
decision maker. If the item does not make a difference, the
company does not have to follow GAAP in reporting it.

Cost Constraint The cost constraint relates to the fact that
providing information is costly. In deciding whether companies
should be required to provide a certain type of information,
accounting standard-setters weigh the cost that companies
will incur to provide the information against the benefit that
financial statement users will gain from having the information
available.

Benefits
Costs
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before you go on...

FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTING
CONCEPTS AND
PRINCIPLES

Action Plan

e Understand the need for
conceptual guidelines in
accounting.

e List the characteristics of useful
financial information.

* Review the assumptions, princi-
ples, and constraints that
comprise the guidelines in
accounting.

m The following are characteristics, assumptions, principles, or constraints

that guide the FASB when it creates accounting standards.

Relevance Periodicity assumption
Faithful representation Going concern assumption
Comparability Cost principle

Consistency Full disclosure principle

Monetary unit assumption

Materiality constraint

Economic entity assumption

Match each item above with a description below.

Ability to easily evaluate one company’s results relative to another’s.
Belief that a company will continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

The judgment concerning whether an item is large enough to matter to deci-
sion makers.

4. The reporting of all information that would make a difference to financial
statement users.
The practice of preparing financial statements at regular intervals.
6. The quality of information that indicates the information makes a differ-
ence in a decision.
7. A belief that items should be reported on the balance sheet at the price that
was paid to acquire the item.
8. A company’s use of the same accounting principles and methods from year
to year.
9. Tracing accounting events to particular companies.
10. The desire to minimize errors and bias in financial statements.
11. Reporting only those things that can be measured in dollars.
Solution
1. Comparability 7. Cost principle
2. Going concern assumption 8. Consistency
3. Materiality constraint 9. Economic entity assumption
4. Full disclosure principle 10. Faithful representation
5. Periodicity assumption 11. Monetary unit assumption
6. Relevance

Related exercise material: BE2-8, BE2-9, BE2-10, BE2-11, [3:¥77] 2-4, E2-12, and E2-13.

Vi
navigator
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‘ USING THE DECISION TOOLKIT

In this chapter, we evaluated a home electronics giant, Best Buy. Tweeter Home
Entertainment sold consumer electronics products from 154 stores on the East Coast
under various names. It specialized in products with high-end features. Tweeter filed
for bankruptcy in June 2007 and was acquired by another company in July 2007.
Financial data for Tweeter, prior to its bankruptcy, are provided below.

September 30

(amounts in millions) 2006 2005
Current assets $146.4 $158.2
Total assets 258.6 284.0
Current liabilities 107.1 119.0
Total liabilities 190.4 201.1
Total common stockholders’ equity 68.2 82.9
Net income (loss) (16.5) (74.4)
Cash provided (used) by operating activities 15.6 (26.7)
Capital expenditures (net) 17.4 22.2
Dividends paid 0 0
Average shares of common stock (millions) 25.2 24.6

Instructions

Using the data provided, answer the following questions and discuss how these
results might have provided an indication of Tweeter’s financial troubles.

1. Calculate the current ratio for Tweeter for 2006 and 2005 and discuss its liquid-
ity position.

2. Calculate the debt to total assets ratio and free cash flow for Tweeter for 2006
and 2005 and discuss its solvency.

3. Calculate the earnings per share for Tweeter for 2006 and 2005, and discuss its
change in profitability.
4. Best Buy’s accounting year-end was February 28, 2007; Tweeter’s was Septem-

ber 30, 2006. How does this difference affect your ability to compare their
profitability?

Solution

1. Current ratio:
2006: $146.4 =~ $107.1 = 1.37:1 2005: $158.2 + $119.0 = 1.33:1

Tweeter’s liquidity improved slightly from 2005 to 2006, but in both years it would
most likely have been considered inadequate. In 2006 Tweeter had only $1.37 in
current assets for every dollar of current liabilities. Sometimes larger compa-
nies, such as Best Buy, can function with lower current ratios because they have
alternative sources of working capital. But a company of Tweeter’s size would
normally want a higher ratio.

2. Debt to total assets:
2006: $190.4 + $258.6 = 73.6% 2005: $201.1 + $284.0 = 70.8%
Tweeter’s solvency, as measured by its debt to total assets ratio, declined from
2005 to 2006. Its ratio of 73.6% meant that every dollar of assets was financed by

73.6 cents of debt. For a retailer, this is extremely high reliance on debt. This low
solvency suggests Tweeter’s ability to meet its debt payments was questionable.

Free cash flow:

2006: $15.6 — $17.4 — $0 = —$1.8 million

2005: —$26.7 — $22.2 — $0 = —$48.9 million

Tweeter’s free cash flow was negative in both years. The company did not gen-
erate enough cash from operations even to cover its capital expenditures, and it
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was not paying a dividend. While this is not unusual for new companies in their
early years, it is also not sustainable for very long. Part of the reason that its
debt to assets ratio, discussed above, was so high was that it had to borrow
money to make up for its deficient free cash flow.

. Loss per share:

2006: —$16.5 + 25.2 = —$0.65 per share
2005: —$74.4 +~ 24.6 = —$3.02 per share

Tweeter’s loss per share declined substantially. However, this was little consola-
tion for its shareholders, who experienced losses in previous years as well. The
company’s lack of profitability, combined with its poor liquidity and solvency,
increased the likelihood that it would eventually file for bankruptcy.

. Tweeter’s income statement covers 7 months not covered by Best Buy’s. Suppose

that the economy changed dramatically during this 7-month period, either im-
proving or declining. This change in the economy would be reflected in Tweeter’s
income statement but would not be reflected in Best Buy's income statement until
the following March, thus reducing the usefulness of a comparison of the income

statements of the two companies.

Summary of Study Objectives

1

Identify the sections of a classified balance sheet. In
a classified balance sheet, companies classify assets as
current assets; long-term investments; property, plant,
and equipment; and intangibles. They classify liabilities
as either current or long-term. A stockholders’ equity
section shows common stock and retained earnings.

Identify and compute ratios for analyzing a company’s
profitability. Profitability ratios, such as earnings per
share (EPS), measure aspects of the operating success
of a company for a given period of time.

Explain the relationship between a retained earnings
statement and a statement of stockholders’ equity. The
retained earnings statement presents the factors that
changed the retained earnings balance during the pe-
riod. A statement of stockholders’ equity presents the
factors that changed stockholders’ equity during the
period, including those that changed retained earn-
ings. Thus, a statement of stockholders’ equity is more
inclusive.

Identify and compute ratios for analyzing a company’s
liquidity and solvency using a balance sheet. Liquidity
ratios, such as the current ratio, measure the short-
term ability of a company to pay its maturing obliga-
tions and to meet unexpected needs for cash. Solvency
ratios, such as the debt to total assets ratio, measure the
ability of a company to survive over a long period.

Use the statement of cash flows to evaluate solvency.
Free cash flow indicates a company’s ability to gener-
ate cash from operations that is sufficient to pay debts,
acquire assets, and distribute dividends.

Explain the meaning of generally accepted accounting
principles. Generally accepted accounting principles

7

are a set of rules and practices recognized as a gen-
eral guide for financial reporting purposes. The basic
objective of financial reporting is to provide informa-
tion that is useful for decision making.

Discuss financial reporting concepts. To be judged use-
ful, information should have the primary characteris-
tics of relevance and faithful representation. In addi-
tion, it should be comparable, consistent, verifiable,
timely, and understandable.

The monetary unit assumption requires that
companies include in the accounting records only
transaction data that can be expressed in terms of
money. The economic entity assumption states that
economic events can be identified with a particular
unit of accountability. The periodicity assumption
states that the economic life of a business can be di-
vided into artificial time periods and that meaning-
ful accounting reports can be prepared for each pe-
riod. The going concern assumption states that the
company will continue in operation long enough to
carry out its existing objectives and commitments.
Accrual-basis accounting means that transactions
are recorded in the periods in which the events
occur.

The cost principle states that companies should
record assets at their cost. The fair value principle indi-
cates that assets and liabilities should be reported at fair
value. The full disclosure principle requires that compa-
nies disclose circumstances and events that matter to fi-
nancial statement users.

The major constraints are materi-
ality and cost.
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DECISION TOOLKIT A SUMMARY
INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION

HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

How does the company’s  Net income available to Earnings
earnings performance common stockholders and per
compare with that of average common shares share

previous years?

Can the company meet
its near-term obligations?

Can the company meet
its long-term obligations?

outstanding

Current assets and current
liabilities

Total debt and total assets

Current _ Current assets
Current liabilities

ratio

Debt to total _ Total liabilities

assets ratio

_ Net income — Preferred stock dividends

A higher measure suggests
improved performance,

Average common shares outstanding although the number is

subject to manipulation.
Values should not be
compared across companies.

Higher ratio suggests
favorable liquidity.

Lower value suggests

~ Total assets favorable solvency.

How much cash did the Cash provided by operating  Free Cash . Significant free cash flow
company generate to activities, cash spent on cash — provided by _ Capl_tal _ _anh indicates greater potential to
expand operations, pay fixed assets, and cash flow  operations  expenditures dividends finance new investment and

off debts, or distribute

dividends

dividends?

Glossary

Accrual-basis accounting (p. 66) Transactions that
change a company’s financial statements are recorded in
the periods in which the events occur.

Classified balance sheet (p. 48) A balance sheet that
contains a number of standard classifications and sections.
Comparability (p. 65) Ability to compare the account-
ing information of different companies because they use
the same accounting principles.

Consistency (p. 65) Use of the same accounting prin-
ciples and methods from year to year within a company.
Cost constraint (p. 67) Constraint of determining
whether the cost that companies will incur to provide the
information will outweigh the benefit that financial state-
ment users will gain from having the information available.

Cost principle (p. 67) An accounting principle that
states that companies should record assets at their cost.
Current assets (p. 49) Cash and other resources that
companies reasonably expect to convert to cash or use
up within one year or the operating cycle, whichever is
longer.

Current liabilities (p. 52) Obligations that a company
reasonably expects to pay within the next year or oper-
ating cycle, whichever is longer.

Current ratio (p. 59) A measure used to evaluate a
company’s liquidity and short-term debt-paying ability;
computed as current assets divided by current liabilities.
Debt to total assets ratio (p. 60) Measures the per-
centage of total financing provided by creditors; com-
puted as total debt divided by total assets.

Earnings per share (EPS) (p. 55) A measure of the net
income earned on each share of common stock; com-
puted as net income minus preferred stock dividends di-
vided by the average number of common shares out-
standing during the year.

pay additional dividends.

Economic entity assumption (p. 66) An assumption
that every economic entity can be separately identified
and accounted for.

Fair value principle (p. 67) Assets and liabilities
should be reported at fair value (the price received to sell
an asset or settle a liability).

Faithful representation (p. 65) Information that is
complete, neutral, and free from error.

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) (p. 64)
The primary accounting standard-setting body in the
United States.

Free cash flow (p. 61) Cash remaining from operating
activities after adjusting for capital expenditures and div-
idends paid.

Full disclosure principle (p. 67) Accounting principle
that dictates that companies disclose circumstances and
events that make a difference to financial statement users.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) (p. 63)
A set of rules and practices, having substantial authoritative
support, that the accounting profession recognizes as a gen-
eral guide for financial reporting purposes.

Going concern assumption (p. 66) The assumption
that the company will continue in operation for the fore-
seeable future.

Intangible assets (p. 51) Assets that do not have phys-
ical substance.

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
(p. 64) An accounting standard-setting body that issues
standards adopted by many countries outside of the
United States.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
(p. 64) Accounting standards, issued by the IASB, that
have been adopted by many countries outside of the
United States.
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Liquidity (p. 58) The ability of a company to pay obli-
gations that are expected to become due within the next
year or operating cycle.

Liquidity ratios (p. 59) Measures of the short-term
ability of the company to pay its maturing obligations
and to meet unexpected needs for cash.

Long-term investments (p. 50) Generally, (1) invest-
ments in stocks and bonds of other corporations that
companies hold for more than one year, and (2) long-
term assets, such as land and buildings, not currently be-
ing used in the company’s operations.

Long-term liabilities (Long-term debt) (p. 52) Oblig-
ations that a company expects to pay after one year.
Materiality constraint (p. 67) The constraint of deter-
mining whether an item is large enough to likely influ-
ence the decision of an investor or creditor.

Monetary unit assumption (p. 66) An assumption that
requires that only those things that can be expressed in
money are included in the accounting records.

Operating cycle (p. 50) The average time required to
go from cash to cash in producing revenue.

Periodicity assumption (p. 66) An assumption that the
life of a business can be divided into artificial time peri-
ods and that useful reports covering those periods can be
prepared for the business.

Profitability ratios (p. 55) Measures of the operating
success of a company for a given period of time.
Property, plant, and equipment (p. 5/) Assets with
relatively long useful lives that companies use in operat-
ing the business.

Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(PCAOB) (p. 64) The group charged with determining

auditing standards and reviewing the performance of au-
diting firms.

Ratio (p. 54) An expression of the mathematical rela-
tionship between one quantity and another.

Ratio analysis (p. 54) A technique for evaluating finan-
cial statements that expresses the relationship among
selected items of financial statement data.

Relevance (p. 65) The quality of information that in-
dicates the information makes a difference in a decision.
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) (p. 64)
The agency of the U.S. government that oversees U.S. fi-
nancial markets and accounting standard-setting bodies.
Solvency (p. 60) The ability of a company to pay inter-
est as it comes due and to repay the balance of debt at
its maturity.

Solvency ratios (p. 60) Measures of the ability of the
company to survive over a long period of time.
Statement of stockholders’ equity (p. 57) A financial
statement that presents the factors that caused stock-
holders’ equity to change during the period, including
those that caused retained earnings to change.

Timely (p. 65) Information that is available to decision
makers before it loses its capacity to influence decisions.
Understandability (p. 65) Information presented in a
clear and concise fashion so that users can interpret it
and comprehend its meaning.

Verifiable (p. 65)
from error.
Working capital (p. 59) The difference between the
amounts of current assets and current liabilities.

Information that is proven to be free

Comprehensive m

Listed here are items taken from the income statement and balance sheet of Bargain
Electronics, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2012. Certain items have been com-
bined for simplification. Amounts are given in thousands.

Notes payable (due in 3 years) $ 505
Cash 141.1
Salaries and wages expense 2,933.6
Common stock 454.9
Accounts payable 922.2
Accounts receivable 723.3
Equipment, net 921.0
Cost of goods sold 9,501.4
Income taxes payable 7.2
Interest expense 1.5
Mortgage payable 451.5
Retained earnings 1,336.3
Inventory 1,636.5
Sales revenue 12,456.9
Short-term investments 382.6
Income tax expense 30.5
Goodwill 202.7
Notes payable (due in 6 months) 784.6



Instructions

use any item more than once.

Solution to Comprehensive XY

BARGAIN ELECTRONICS, INC.
Income Statement
For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Sales revenue

Cost of goods sold $9,501.4
Salaries and wages expense 2,933.6
Interest expense 1.5
Income tax expense 30.5

Total expenses
Net loss

BARGAIN ELECTRONICS, INC.
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 141.1
Short-term investments 382.6
Accounts receivable 723.3
Inventory 1,636.5

Total current assets

Equipment, net
Goodwill

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Notes payable $ 784.6
Accounts payable 922.2
Income taxes payable 7.2

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Mortgage payable 451.5
Notes payable 50.5

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 454.9
Retained earnings 1,336.3

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Comprehensive Do it! 73

Prepare an income statement and a classified balance sheet using the items listed. Do not Action Plan

* In preparing the income
statement, list revenues, then
EXPEnses.

* In preparing a classified balance
sheet, list current assets in
order of liquidity.

$12,456.9

12,467.0
$(10.1)

$2,883.5

921.0
202.7

$4,007.2

$1,714.0

502.0
2,216.0

1,791.2
$4,007.2
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Self-Test Questions

Answers are on page 96.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

In a classified balance sheet, assets are usually clas-
sified as:

(a) current assets; long-term assets; property, plant, 8
and equipment; and intangible assets.

(b) current assets; long-term investments; property,
plant, and equipment; and common stock.

(c) current assets; long-term investments; tangible
assets; and intangible assets.

(d) current assets; long-term investments; property, 9
plant, and equipment; and intangible assets.

Current assets are listed:

(a) by order of expected conversion to cash.

(b) by importance.

(c) by longevity.

(d) alphabetically.

The correct order of presentation in a classified bal-

ance sheet for the following current assets is:

(a) accounts receivable, cash, prepaid insurance,
inventory.

(b) cash, inventory, accounts receivable, prepaid
insurance.

(c) cash, accounts receivable, inventory, prepaid
insurance.

(d) inventory, cash, accounts receivable, prepaid
insurance.

A company has purchased a tract of land. It expects 10.

to build a production plant on the land in approxi-

mately 5 years. During the 5 years before construc-

tion, the land will be idle. The land should be re-

ported as:

(a) property, plant, and equipment.

(b) land expense. 11.

(c) along-term investment.

(d) an intangible asset.

@——€ Which is an indicator of profitability?

(a) Current ratio.

(b) Earnings per share.

(c) Debt to total assets ratio.

(d) Free cash flow. "

@——E For 2012, Ganos Corporation reported net

income $26,000; net sales $400,000; and average

shares outstanding 4,000. There were preferred

stock dividends of $2,000. What was the 2012 earn-

ings per share?

(a) $6.00 (c) $99.50 13.

(b) $6.50 (d) $100.00

The balance in retained earnings is not affected by:
(a) net income.
(b) net loss.

Self-Test, Brief Exercises, Exercises, Problem Set A, and many
P L U S more resources are available for practice in WileyPLUS

(¢) issuance of common stock.
(d) dividends.

. @€ Which of these measures is an evaluation (S014)

of a company’s ability to pay current liabilities?
(a) Earnings per share.

(b) Current ratio.

(¢) Both (a) and (b).

(d) None of the above.

. The following ratios are available for Bachus Inc. (802 4)

and Newton Inc.

Current Debt to Earnings

Ratio  Assets Ratio per Share
Bachus Inc. 2:1 75% $3.50
Newton Inc. 1.5:1 40% $2.75

Compared to Newton Inc., Bachus Inc. has:

(a) higher liquidity, higher solvency, and higher
profitability.

(b) lower liquidity, higher solvency, and higher
profitability.

(c) higher liquidity, lower solvency, and higher
profitability.

(d) higher liquidity and lower solvency, but prof-
itability cannot be compared based on informa-
tion provided.

Companies can use free cash flow to: (S0 5)
(a) pay additional dividends.

(b) acquire property, plant, and equipment.

(c) pay off debts.

(d) All of the above.

Generally accepted accounting principles are: (S0 6)
(a) a set of standards and rules that are recognized
as a general guide for financial reporting.
(b) usually established by the Internal Revenue
Service.
(c) the guidelines used to resolve ethical dilemmas.
(d) fundamental truths that can be derived from the

laws of nature.

What organization issues U.S. accounting standards? (S0 6)
(a) Financial Accounting Standards Board.

(b) International Accounting Standards Committee.

(¢) International Auditing Standards Committee.

(d) None of the above.

What is the primary criterion by which accounting (S07)
information can be judged?

(a) Consistency.

(b) Predictive value.

(c) Usefulness for decision making.

(d) Comparability.



(S07)

14. Neutrality is an ingredient of:
Faithful representation Relevance
(a) Yes Yes
(b) No No
(c) Yes No
(d) No Yes
Questions

10.

. What is meant by the term operating cycle?

. Define current assets. What basis is used for order-

ing individual items within the current assets
section?

. Distinguish between long-term investments and

property, plant, and equipment.

. How do current liabilities differ from long-term

liabilities?

. Identify the two parts of stockholders’ equity in a

corporation and indicate the purpose of each.

¢ m—C

(a) Julia Alter believes that the analysis of financial
statements is directed at two characteristics of a
company: liquidity and profitability. Is Julia cor-
rect? Explain.

(b) Are short-term creditors, long-term creditors,
and stockholders primarily interested in the same
characteristics of a company? Explain.

. @——& Name ratios useful in assessing (a) liquid-

ity, (b) solvency, and (c) profitability.

. - @——€ Jon Baird, the founder of Water-

boots Inc., needs to raise $500,000 to expand his
company’s operations. He has been told that raising
the money through debt will increase the riskiness
of his company much more than issuing stock. He
doesn’t understand why this is true. Explain it to
him.

. @&——€ What do these classes of ratios measure?

(a) Liquidity ratios.
(b) Profitability ratios.
(c) Solvency ratios.

@——& Holding all other factors constant,
indicate whether each of the following signals gen-
erally good or bad news about a company.

(a) Increase in earnings per share.

(b) Increase in the current ratio.

(¢) Increase in the debt to total assets ratio.
(d) Decrease in free cash flow.

15.

Go to the book’s companion website, www.
wiley.com/college/kimmel, to access addi-
tional Self-Test Questions.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Questions 75

What accounting constraint allows a company to ignore (S0 7)

GAAP if an item is too small to impact a decision?
(a) Comparability. (c) Cost.
(b) Materiality. (d) Consistency.

\4 : the
navigator

@——€ Which ratio or ratios from this chapter do

you think should be of greatest interest to:

(a) a pension fund considering investing in a corpo-
ration’s 20-year bonds?

(b) a bank contemplating a short-term loan?

(¢) an investor in common stock?

(a) What are generally accepted accounting princi-
ples (GAAP)?

(b) What body provides authoritative support for
GAAP?

(a) What is the primary objective of financial
reporting?

(b) Identify the characteristics of useful accounting
information.

Dan Fineman, the president of King Company, is

pleased. King substantially increased its net income
in 2012 while keeping its unit inventory relatively the
same. Howard Gross, chief accountant, cautions Dan,
however. Gross says that since King changed its
method of inventory valuation, there is a consistency
problem and it is difficult to determine whether King
is better off. Is Gross correct? Why or why not?

What is the distinction between comparability and
consistency?

Describe the two constraints inherent in the presen-
tation of accounting information.

Your roommate believes that international account-
ing standards are uniform throughout the world. Is
your roommate correct? Explain.

Laurie Belk is president of Better Books. She has no
accounting background. Belk cannot understand
why fair value is not used as the basis for all ac-
counting measurement and reporting. Discuss.

What is the economic entity assumption? Give an
example of its violation.

‘B What was Tootsie Roll’s largest current as-
set, largest current liability, and largest item under
“Other assets” at December 31, 2009?


http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
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Classify accounts on balance
sheet.

S01),K

Prepare the current assets
section of a balance sheet.

(S0°1), AP

Compute earnings per share.
(S0 2), AP

Identify items affecting
stockholders’ equity.

(S03),K

Calculate liquidity ratios.
(SO 4), AP
(o m—C

Calculate liquidity and
solvency ratios.

(S0 4, 5), AP

E@-‘

Recognize generally accepted
accounting principles.

(S0 6),K

Brief Exercises

BE2-1 The following are the major balance sheet classifications:
Current assets (CA) Current liabilities (CL)
Long-term investments (LTI) Long-term liabilities (LTL)
Property, plant, and equipment (PPE) Common stock (CS)
Intangible assets (IA) Retained earnings (RE)

Match each of the following accounts to its proper balance sheet classification.

Accounts payable
Accounts receivable

Income taxes payable
Investment in long-term bonds

Accumulated depreciation Land
Buildings Inventory
Cash Patent
Goodwill Supplies

BE2-2 A list of financial statement items for Georges Company includes the following:
accounts receivable $14,000; prepaid insurance $2,600; cash $10,400; supplies $3,800,
and short-term investments $8,200. Prepare the current assets section of the balance sheet
listing the items in the proper sequence.

BE2-3 The following information (in millions of dollars) is available for Limited Brands
for 2008: Sales revenue $9,043; net income $220; preferred stock dividend $0; average
shares outstanding 333 million. Compute the earnings per share for Limited Brands for
2008.

BE2-4 For each of the following events affecting the stockholders’ equity of Willis, indi-
cate whether the event would: increase retained earnings (IRE), decrease retained earn-
ings (DRE), increase common stock (ICS), or decrease common stock (DCS).

(a) Issued new shares of common stock.
(b) Paid a cash dividend.

(c) Reported net income of $75,000.

(d) Reported a net loss of $20,000.

BE2-5 These selected condensed data are taken from a recent balance sheet of Bob
Evans Farms (in millions of dollars).

Cash $ 29.3
Accounts receivable 20.5
Inventory 28.7
Other current assets 24.0
Total current assets $102.5
Total current liabilities $201.2

Compute working capital and the current ratio.

BE2-6 Kalb’s Books & Music Inc. reported the following selected information at
March 31.

2012
Total current assets $262,787
Total assets 439,832
Total current liabilities 293,625
Total liabilities 376,002
Cash provided by operating activities 62,300

Calculate (a) the current ratio, (b) the debt to total assets ratio, and (c) free cash flow for
March 31, 2012. The company paid dividends of $12,000 and spent $24,787 on capital
expenditures.

BE2-7 Indicate whether each statement is true or false.

(a) GAAP is a set of rules and practices established by accounting standard-setting bod-
ies to serve as a general guide for financial reporting purposes.

(b) Substantial authoritative support for GAAP usually comes from two standards-setting
bodies: the FASB and the IRS.



BE2-8 The accompanying chart shows the qualitative characteristics of useful account-
ing information. Fill in the blanks.

Fundamental B Useful - Enhancing
Qualities ‘ setuiness - Qualities
Y Y
Relevance Consistency
(a) (e)
(b) ()
v (&)
Faithful and
Representation
Understandability
()
Neutral
(d)

BE2-9 Given the characteristics of useful accounting information, complete each of the

following statements.

(a) For information to be , it should have predictive and confirmatory value.

(b) is the quality of information that gives assurance that it is free from error and
bias.

@)

means using the same accounting principles and methods from year to year
within a company.

BE2-10 Here are some qualitative characteristics of useful accounting information:
1. Predictive value 3. Verifiable
2. Neutral 4. Timely

Match each qualitative characteristic to one of the following statements.

(a) Accounting information should help provide accurate expectations about

future events.

Accounting information cannot be selected, prepared, or presented to favor

one set of interested users over another.

(¢c) Accounting information must be proved to be free of error.

———— (d) Accounting information must be available to decision makers before it loses
its capacity to influence their decisions.

—(b)

BE2-11 The full disclosure principle dictates that:

(a) financial statements should disclose all assets at their cost.

(b) financial statements should disclose only those events that can be measured in dollars.

(c¢) financial statements should disclose all events and circumstances that would matter
to users of financial statements.

(d) financial statements should not be relied on unless an auditor has expressed an
unqualified opinion on them.

XX Review

2-1 Heather Corporation has collected the following information related to its
December 31, 2012, balance sheet.

Accounts receivable $22,000 Equipment $180,000
Accumulated depreciation—equipment 50,000 Inventory 58,000
Cash 13,000 Supplies 7,000

Prepare the assets section of Heather Corporation’s balance sheet.

Do it! Review 77

Identify characteristics of
useful information.

S07),K

Identify characteristics of
useful information.

S0T7),K

Identify characteristics of
useful information.

S07),K

Define full disclosure
principle.

(S0 7), K
(@ m—

Prepare assets section of
balance sheet.

(S01), AP
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Classify financial statement
items by balance sheet
classification.

(S0°1), AP

Compute ratios and analyze.

(S04,5),K

Identify financial accounting
concepts and principles.

S07),K

m 2-2 The following financial statement items were taken from the financial state-
ments of Jing Corp.

__ Trademarks ____Inventory

____ Current maturities of long-term debt ___ Accumulated depreciation

__ Interest revenue ____ Land improvements

____ Income taxes payable ____ Common stock

____ Long-term marketable debt securities ____ Advertising expense

__ Unearned consulting fees __ Mortgage payable (due in 3 years)

Match each of the financial statement items to its proper balance sheet classification. (See
E2-1, on page 79, for a list of the balance sheet classifications.) If the item would not
appear on a balance sheet, use “NA.”

XXM 2-3  The following information is available for Gerard Corporation.

2012 2011
Current assets $ 54,000 $ 36,000
Total assets 240,000 205,000
Current liabilities 22,000 30,000
Total liabilities 72,000 100,000
Net income 80,000 40,000
Cash provided by operating activities 90,000 56,000
Preferred stock dividends 6,000 6,000
Common stock dividends 3,000 1,500
Expenditures on property, plant, and equipment 27,000 12,000
Shares outstanding at beginning of year 40,000 30,000
Shares outstanding at end of year 75,000 40,000

(a) Compute earnings per share for 2012 and 2011 for Gerard, and comment on the
change. Gerard’s primary competitor, Thorpe Corporation, had earnings per
share of $1 per share in 2012. Comment on the difference in the ratios of the two

companies.

(b) Compute the current ratio and debt to total assets ratio for each year, and comment
on the changes.
(c) Compute free cash flow for each year, and comment on the changes.

XX 24 The following are characteristics, assumptions, principles, or constraints
that guide the FASB when it creates accounting standards.

Relevance Periodicity assumption
Faithful representation Going concern assumption
Comparability Cost principle

Consistency Full disclosure principle
Monetary unit assumption Materiality constraint
Economic entity assumption Cost constraint

Match each item above with a description below.

1.

w

oW

®

10.

11.
12.

Items not easily quantified in dollar terms are not reported in the finan-
cial statements.

Accounting information must be complete, neutral, and free from error.
Personal transactions are not mixed with the company’s transactions.
The cost to provide information should be weighed against the benefit
that users will gain from having the information available.

A company’s use of the same accounting principles from year to year.
Assets are recorded and reported at original purchase price.

Accounting information should help users predict future events, and
should confirm or correct prior expectations.

The life of a business can be divided into artificial segments of time.
The reporting of all information that would make a difference to financial
statement users.

The judgment concerning whether an item’s size makes it likely to influ-
ence a decision maker.

Assumes a business will remain in operation for the foreseeable future.
Different companies use the same accounting principles.



Exercises

E2-1 The following are the major balance sheet classifications.

Current assets (CA) Current liabilities (CL)
Long-term investments (LTT) Long-term liabilities (LTL)
Property, plant, and equipment (PPE) Stockholders’ equity (SE)

Intangible assets (IA)

Instructions
Classify each of the following financial statement items taken from Inshore Corporation’s
balance sheet.

____ Accounts payable ____Income taxes payable

____ Accounts receivable ____Inventory

____ Accumulated depreciation— ____Investments
equipment ___Land

____ Buildings ____ Mortgage payable

____ Cash ____Supplies

____Interest payable ____ Equipment

____ Goodwill ____ Prepaid rent

E2-2 The major balance sheet classifications are listed in E2-1 above.

Instructions
Classify each of the following financial statement items based upon the major balance
sheet classifications listed in E2-1.

____ Prepaid advertising ____ Patents

____ Equipment ____ Bonds payable

____ Trademarks ____ Common stock

___ Salaries and wages payable __ Accumulated depreciation—
____Income taxes payable equipment

____ Retained earnings ___ Unearned sales revenue
____ Accounts receivable ____Inventory

Land held for future use

E2-3 The following items were taken from the December 31, 2009, assets section of the
Boeing Company balance sheet. (All dollars are in millions.)

Inventories $16,933 Other current assets $ 966
Notes receivable—due after Property, plant, and
December 31, 2010 5,466 equipment 21,579
Notes receivable—due before Cash and cash equivalents 9,215
December 31, 2010 368 Accounts receivable 5,785
Accumulated depreciation 12,795 Short-term investments 2,008
Intangible and other assets 12,528
Instructions

Prepare the assets section of a classified balance sheet, listing the current assets in order
of their liquidity.

E2-4 The following information (in thousands of dollars) is available for H.J. Heinz
Company—famous for ketchup and other fine food products—for the year ended April
29, 2009.

Prepaid expenses $ 125,765 Inventories $1,237,613
Land 76,193 Buildings and equipment 4,033,369
Other current assets 36,701 Cash and cash equivalents 373,145
Intangible assets 3,982,954 Accounts receivable 1,171,797
Other noncurrent assets 757,907 Accumulated depreciation 2,131,260
Instructions

Prepare the assets section of a classified balance sheet, listing the items in proper se-
quence and including a statement heading.

Exercises 79

Classify accounts on balance
sheet.

(S01), AP

Classify financial statement
items by balance sheet
classification.

(S0°1), AP

Classify items as current or
noncurrent, and prepare
assets section of balance
sheet.

(S01), AP

Prepare assets section of a
classified balance sheet.

(S0 1), AP
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Prepare a classified balance E2-5 These items are taken from the financial statements of Victory Co. at December
sheet. 31, 2012.
(S01), AP Buildings $105,800
Accounts receivable 12,600
Prepaid insurance 3,200
Cash 11,840
Equipment 82,400
Land 61,200
Insurance expense 780
Depreciation expense 5,300
Interest expense 2,600
Common stock 60,000
Retained earnings (January 1, 2012) 40,000
Accumulated depreciation—buildings 45,600
Accounts payable 9,500
Notes payable 93,600
Accumulated depreciation—equipment 18,720
Interest payable 3,600
Service revenue 14,700
Instructions
Prepare a classified balance sheet. Assume that $13,600 of the note payable will be paid
in 2013.
Prepare a classified balance E2-6 The following items were taken from the 2009 financial statements of Texas
sheet. Instruments, Inc. (All dollars are in millions.)
(S0 1), AP Common stock $2,826 Cash and cash equivalents $1,182
Prepaid expenses 164 Accumulated depreciation 3,547
Property, plant, and equipment 6,705 Accounts payable 1,344
Other current assets 546 Other noncurrent assets 2,210
Other current liabilities 115 Noncurrent liabilities 810
Long-term investments 637 Retained earnings 6,896
Short-term investments 1,743 Accounts receivable 1,277
Income taxes payable 128 Inventories 1,202
Instructions

Prepare a classified balance sheet in good form as of December 31, 2009.

Compute and interpret E2-7 The following information is available for Callaway Golf Company for the years
profitability ratio. 2008 and 2007. (Dollars are in thousands, except share information.)
(S02), AP 2008 2007

Net sales $ 1,117,204 $ 1,124,591

Net income (loss) 66,176 54,587

Total assets 855,338 838,078

Share information

Shares outstanding at year-end 64,507,000 66,282,000

Preferred dividends -0- -0-

There were 73,139,000 shares outstanding at the end of 2006.

Instructions

(a) What was the company’s earnings per share for each year?

(b) Based on your findings above, how did the company’s profitability change from 2007
to 2008?

(c) Suppose the company had paid dividends on preferred stock and on common stock
during the year. How would this affect your calculation in part (a)?

Prepare financial statements. ~ E2-8 These financial statement items are for Whitnall Corporation at year-end, July 31,
(S01,3,4),AP 2012.
- Salaries and wages payable $ 2,080

Salaries and wages expense 57,500
Supplies expense 15,600



Equipment $18,500
Accounts payable 4,100
Service revenue 66,100
Rent revenue 8,500
Notes payable (due in 2015) 1,800
Common stock 16,000
Cash 29,200
Accounts receivable 9,780
Accumulated depreciation—equipment 6,000
Dividends 4,000
Depreciation expense 4,000
Retained earnings (beginning of the year) 34,000

Instructions

(a) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the year. Whitnall

Corporation did not issue any new stock during the year.

Prepare a classified balance sheet at July 31.

Compute the current ratio and debt to total assets ratio.

Suppose that you are the president of Crescent Equipment. Your sales manager has
approached you with a proposal to sell $20,000 of equipment to Whitnall. He would
like to provide a loan to Whitnall in the form of a 10%, 5-year note payable. Evaluate
how this loan would change Whitnall’s current ratio and debt to total assets ratio, and
discuss whether you would make the sale.

(b)
(@)
(d)

E2-9 Nordstrom, Inc. operates department stores in numerous states. Selected finan-
cial statement data (in millions of dollars) for the year ended January 31, 2009, follow.

End of Year Beginning of Year
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72 $ 358
Receivables (net) 1,942 1,788
Merchandise inventory 900 956
Other current assets 303 259
Total current assets $3,217 $3,361
Total current liabilities $1,601 $1,635

Instructions

(a) Compute working capital and the current ratio at the beginning of the year and at the
end of the current year.

(b) Did Nordstrom’s liquidity improve or worsen during the year?

(c) Using the data in the chapter, compare Nordstrom’s liquidity with Best Buy’s.

E2-10 The chief financial officer (CFO) of Padilla Corporation requested that the ac-
counting department prepare a preliminary balance sheet on December 30, 2012, so that
the CFO could get an idea of how the company stood. He knows that certain debt agree-
ments with its creditors require the company to maintain a current ratio of at least 2:1.
The preliminary balance sheet is as follows.

PADILLA CORP.
Balance Sheet
December 30, 2012

Current assets Current liabilities

Cash $25,000 Accounts payable
Accounts receivable 30,000 Salaries and wages payable
Prepaid insurance 5,000 $ 60,000 Long-term liabilities
Equipment (net) 200,000 Notes payable
Total assets $260,000 Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock
Retained earnings

Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity

Exercises 81

Compute liquidity ratios and
compare results.

(S0 4), AP
e——=C

Compute liquidity measures
and discuss findings.

(S0 4), AP

<

$ 20,000
10,000 $ 30,000
80,000
110,000

100,000
50,000 150,000
$260,000
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Compute and interpret
solvency ratios.

(S0 4, 5), AP

<o

Identify accounting
assumptions and principles.

S07),K

Identify the assumption or
principle that has been
violated.

S07),0C

Instructions

(a) Calculate the current ratio and working capital based on the preliminary balance
sheet.

(b) Based on the results in (a), the CFO requested that $20,000 of cash be used to pay off
the balance of the accounts payable account on December 31, 2012. Calculate the
new current ratio and working capital after the company takes these actions.

(c) Discuss the pros and cons of the current ratio and working capital as measures of lig-
uidity.

(d) Was it unethical for the CFO to take these steps?

E2-11 The following data were taken from the 2009 and 2008 financial statements of
American Eagle Outfitters. (All dollars are in thousands.)

2009 2008
Current assets $ 925,359 $1,020,834
Total assets 1,963,676 1,867,680
Current liabilities 401,763 376,178
Total liabilities 554,645 527,216
Total stockholders’ equity 1,409,031 1,340,464
Cash provided by operating activities 302,193 464,270
Capital expenditures 265,335 250,407
Dividends paid 82,394 80,796

Instructions

Perform each of the following.

(a) Calculate the debt to total assets ratio for each year.

(b) Calculate the free cash flow for each year.

(c) Discuss American Eagle’s solvency in 2009 versus 2008.

(d) Discuss American Eagle’s ability to finance its investment activities with cash provided
by operating activities, and how any deficiency would be met.

E2-12 Presented below are the assumptions and principles discussed in this chapter.

1. Full disclosure principle. 4. Periodicity assumption.

2. Going concern assumption. 5. Cost principle.

3. Monetary unit assumption. 6. Economic entity assumption.
Instructions

Identify by number the accounting assumption or principle that is described below. Do
not use a number more than once.

(a) Is the rationale for why plant assets are not reported at liquidation value.
(Note: Do not use the cost principle.)

—— (b) Indicates that personal and business record-keeping should be separately
maintained.

(c) Assumes that the dollar is the “measuring stick” used to report on financial
performance.

———(d) Separates financial information into time periods for reporting purposes.

(e) Measurement basis used when a reliable estimate of fair value is not available.

—— (f) Dictates that companies should disclose all circumstances and events that

make a difference to financial statement users.

E2-13 Rosman Co. had three major business transactions during 2012.

(a) Reported at its fair value of $260,000 merchandise inventory with a cost of $208,000.

(b) The president of Rosman Co., Jay Rosman, purchased a truck for personal use and
charged it to his expense account.

(c) Rosman Co. wanted to make its 2012 income look better, so it added 2 more weeks to
the year (a 54-week year). Previous years were 52 weeks.

Instructions
In each situation, identify the assumption or principle that has been violated, if any, and
discuss what the company should have done.



Exercises: Set B and
Challenge Exercises

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose
the Student Companion site to access Exercise Set B and Challenge Exercises.

Problems: Set A

P2-1A The following items are taken from the 2008 balance sheet of Yahoo! Inc. (All

dollars are in thousands.)

Intangible assets

Common stock

Property and equipment, net

Accounts payable

Other assets

Long-term investments

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Short-term investments

Retained earnings

Cash and cash equivalents

Long-term debt

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Unearned revenue—current

Instructions
Prepare a classified balance sheet for Yahoo! Inc. as of December 31, 2008.

P2-2A  These items are taken from the financial statements of Xenox Corporation for

2012.

Retained earnings (beginning of year)
Utilities expense

Equipment

Accounts payable

Cash

Salaries and wages payable

Common stock

Dividends

Service revenue

Prepaid insurance

Maintenance and repairs expense
Depreciation expense

Accounts receivable

Insurance expense

Salaries and wages expense
Accumulated depreciation—equipment

Instructions

Prepare an income statement, a retained earnings statement, and a classified balance

sheet as of December 31, 2012.

P2-3A  You are provided with the following information for Merrell Enterprises, effec-

tive as of its April 30, 2012, year-end.

Accounts payable

Accounts receivable

Accumulated depreciation—equipment
Cash

Common stock

Cost of goods sold

$3,926,749
6,282,504
1,536,181
151,897
233,989
3,247,431
1,060,450
233,061
1,159,691
4,968,438
2,292,296
733,891
1,139,894
413,224

$31,000

2,000
66,000
18,300
10,100

3,000
12,000
12,000
68,000

3,500

1,800

3,600
11,700

2,200
37,000
17,600

§ 834
810
670

1,270
900
1,060

Problems: Set A 83

Prepare a classified balance
sheet.

(S0 1), AP
Tot. current assets $4,745,498
Tot. assets $13,689,848

Prepare financial statements.

(S01,3), AP

Net income $21,400
Tot. assets $73,700

Prepare financial statements.

(801, 3), AP
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Depreciation expense $ 335
Dividends 325
Equipment 2,420
Income tax expense 165
Income taxes payable 135
Insurance expense 210
Interest expense 400
Inventory 967
Land 3,100
Mortgage payable 3,500
Notes payable 61
Prepaid insurance 60
Retained earnings (beginning) 1,600
Sales revenue 5,100
Short-term investments 1,200
Salaries and wages expense 700
Salaries and wages payable 222
Instructions

Net income $2,230  (a) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for Merrell

Tot. current assets $4,307 Enterprises for the year ended April 30, 2012.

Tot. assets $9157  (b) Prepare a classified balance sheet for Merrell Enterprises as of April 30, 2012.

P2-4A Comparative financial statement data for Duran Corporation and Kiepert Cor-
poration, two competitors, appear below. All balance sheet data are as of December 31,

Compute ratios; comment on
relative profitability, liquidity,

and solvency. 2012.
(02,4, 5), AN
a—=C Duran Corporation Kiepert Corporation
2012 2012
Net sales $1,800,000 $620,000
Cost of goods sold 1,175,000 340,000
Operating expenses 283,000 98,000

Interest expense 9,000 3,800

Income tax expense 85,000 36,000
Current assets 407,200 190,336
Plant assets (net) 532,000 139,728
Current liabilities 66,325 33,716
Long-term liabilities 108,500 40,684
Cash from operating activities 138,000 36,000
Capital expenditures 90,000 20,000
Dividends paid on common stock 36,000 15,000
Average number of shares outstanding 80,000 50,000

Instructions

(a) Comment on the relative profitability of the companies by computing the net income
and earnings per share for each company for 2012.

(b) Comment on the relative liquidity of the companies by computing working capital
and the current ratios for each company for 2012.

(c) Comment on the relative solvency of the companies by computing the debt to total
assets ratio and the free cash flow for each company for 2012.

Compute and interpret P2-5A Here and on page 85 are financial statements of Batcha Company.

liquidity, solvency, and

profitability ratios.
(802, 4,5), AP
ae—=C

BATCHA COMPANY
Income Statement

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Selling and administrative expenses
Interest expense

Income tax expense

Net income

$2,218,500
1,012,400
906,000

78,000
69,000

$ 153,100



BATCHA COMPANY
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

Assets
Current assets
Cash $ 60,100
Short-term investments 84,000
Accounts receivable (net) 169,800
Inventory 145,000
Total current assets 458,900
Plant assets (net) 575,300
Total assets $1,034,200

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $ 160,000
Income taxes payable 35,500
Total current liabilities 195,500
Bonds payable 200,000
Total liabilities 395,500
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 350,000
Retained earnings 288,700
Total stockholders’ equity 638,700
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $1,034,200

Additional information: The cash provided by operating activities for 2012 was $190,800.
The cash used for capital expenditures was $92,000. The cash used for dividends was
$31,000. The average number of shares outstanding during the year was 50,000.

Instructions
(a) Compute the following values and ratios for 2012. (We provide the results from 2011
for comparative purposes.)
(i) Working capital. (2011:  $160,500)
(ii) Current ratio. (2011: 1.65:1)
(iii) Free cash flow. (2011: $48,700)
(iv) Debt to total assets ratio. (2011: 31%)
(v) Earnings per share. (2011: $3.15)
(b) Using your calculations from part (a), discuss changes from 2011 in liquidity, solvency,
and profitability.
P2-6A Condensed balance sheet and income statement data for Sievert Corporation are
presented here and on the next page.
SIEVERT CORPORATION

Balance Sheets
December 31

Assets _2012 _2011
Cash $ 28,000 $ 20,000
Receivables (net) 70,000 62,000
Other current assets 90,000 73,000
Long-term investments 62,000 60,000
Plant and equipment (net) 510,000 470,000
Total assets $760,000 $685,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities $ 75,000 $ 70,000
Long-term debt 80,000 90,000
Common stock 330,000 300,000
Retained earnings 275,000 225,000

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $760,000 $685,000

Problems: Set A 85

Compute and interpret
liquidity, solvency, and
profitability ratios.

(S0 2,4,5), AP
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SIEVERT CORPORATION
Income Statements
For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Sales $750,000 $680,000
Cost of goods sold 440,000 400,000
Operating expenses (including income taxes) 240,000 220,000
Net income $ 70,000 $ 60,000
Additional information:

Cash from operating activities $82,000 $56,000

Cash used for capital expenditures $45,000 $38,000

Dividends paid $20,000 $15,000

Average number of shares outstanding 33,000 30,000

Instructions
Compute these values and ratios for 2011 and 2012.

(a)

Earnings per share.

(b) Working capital.

(©

Current ratio.

(d) Debt to total assets ratio.

(e)

Free cash flow.

[ME==> (f) Based on the ratios calculated, discuss briefly the improvement or lack thereof in
financial position and operating results from 2011 to 2012 of Sievert Corporation.

Compute ratios and compare ~ P2-7A  Selected financial data of two competitors, Target and Wal-Mart, are presented

liquidity, solvency, and
profitability for two

companies. Target Wal-Mart
(802, 4,5), AP (1/31/09) (1/31/09)
(& m— Income Statement Data for Year
Net sales $64,948 $401,244
Cost of goods sold 44,157 306,158
Selling and administrative expenses 16,389 76,651
Interest expense 894 2,103
Other income 28 4,213
Income taxes 1,322 7,145
Net income $ 2,214 $ 13,400
Target Wal-Mart

here. (All dollars are in millions.)

(a)
(b)

Balance Sheet Data (End of Year)

Current assets $17,488 $ 48,949
Noncurrent assets 26,618 114,480
Total assets $44,106 $163,429
Current liabilities $10,512 $ 55,390
Long-term debt 19,882 42,754
Total stockholders’ equity 13,712 65,285
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $44,106 $163,429
Cash from operating activities $4,430 $23,147
Cash paid for capital expenditures 3,547 11,499
Dividends declared and paid on common stock 465 3,746
Average shares outstanding (millions) 774 3,951

Instructions

Working capital.
Current ratio.

For each company, compute these values and ratios.



(c) Debt to total assets ratio.

(d) Free cash flow.

(e) Earnings per share.

(f) Compare the liquidity and solvency of the two companies.

P2-8A A friend of yours, Ana Gehrig, recently completed an undergraduate degree in
science and has just started working with a biotechnology company. Ana tells you that
the owners of the business are trying to secure new sources of financing which are needed
in order for the company to proceed with development of a new health care product. Ana
said that her boss told her that the company must put together a report to present to po-
tential investors.

Ana thought that the company should include in this package the detailed scientific
findings related to the Phase I clinical trials for this product. She said, “I know that the
biotech industry sometimes has only a 10% success rate with new products, but if we re-
port all the scientific findings, everyone will see what a sure success this is going to be!
The president was talking about the importance of following some set of accounting prin-
ciples. Why do we need to look at some accounting rules? What they need to realize is
that we have scientific results that are quite encouraging, some of the most talented em-
ployees around, and the start of some really great customer relationships. We haven't
made any sales yet, but we will. We just need the funds to get through all the clinical
testing and get government approval for our product. Then these investors will be quite
happy that they bought in to our company early!”

Instructions

(a) What is accounting information? Explain to Ana what is meant by generally accept-
ed accounting principles.

(b) Comment on how Ana’s suggestions for what should be reported to prospective
investors conforms to the qualitative characteristics of accounting information. Do
you think that the things that Ana wants to include in the information for investors
will conform to financial reporting guidelines?

Problems: Set B

P2-1B The following items are from the 2009 balance sheet of Kellogg Company. (All
dollars are in millions.)

Common stock $ 577

Other assets 5,632

Notes payable—current 44

Other current assets 221
Cash and cash equivalents 334
Other long-term liabilities 1,802
Retained earnings 1,698
Accounts payable 1,077
Other current liabilities 1,167
Accounts receivable, net 1,093
Property, net 3,010
Inventories 910
Long-term debt 4,835

Instructions
Prepare a classified balance sheet for Kellogg Company as of December 31, 2009.

P2-2B These items are taken from the financial statements of Tilley, Inc.

Prepaid insurance $ 1,400
Equipment 31,000
Salaries and wages expense 36,000
Utilities expense 2,100
Accumulated depreciation—equipment 8,600
Accounts payable 8,200
Cash 5,100

Problems: Set B 87

Comment on the objectives
and qualitative characteris-
tics of financial reporting.
(S06,7),E

2 G—— I

Prepare a classified balance
sheet.

(S01), AP

Tot. current assets
Tot. assets

$2558
$11,200

Prepare financial statements.

(801, 3), AP
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Accounts receivable $ 4,900
Salaries and wages payable 2,000
Common stock 6,000
Depreciation expense 4,300
Retained earnings (beginning) 14,000
Dividends 2,600
Service revenue 53,000
Maintenance and repairs expense 2,600
Insurance expense 1,800
Instructions

Net income $6,200 Prepare an income statement, a retained earnings statement, and a classified balance

Tot. assets $33800  sheet as of December 31, 2012.

Prepare financial statements. ~ P2-3B  You are provided with the following information for Rapp Corporation, effective

(S01,3), AP as of its April 30, 2012, year-end.
Accounts payable $ 2,100
Accounts receivable 9,150
Accumulated depreciation—equipment 6,600
Depreciation expense 2,200
Cash 21,955
Common stock 20,000
Dividends 2,800
Equipment 24,250
Sales revenue 21,450
Income tax expense 1,600
Income taxes payable 300
Interest expense 350
Interest payable 175
Notes payable (due in 2016) 5,700
Prepaid rent 380
Rent expense 760
Retained earnings, beginning 13,960
Salaries and wages expense 6,840

Instructions

Net income $9700  (a) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for Rapp

Tot. current assets $31,485 Corporation for the year ended April 30, 2012.

Tot. assets $9135 (b) Prepare a classified balance sheet for Rapp as of April 30, 2012.

(¢) Explain how each financial statement interrelates with the others.

Compute ratios; comment on ~ P2-4B  Comparative statement data for Al Sharif Company and Weber Company, two

relative profitability, liquidity, ~— competitors, are presented below. All balance sheet data are as of December 31, 2012.
and solvency.

(802, 4,5), AN Al Sharif Company Weber Company

o—=C _2012 _2012
Net sales $450,000 $890,000
Cost of goods sold 260,000 620,000
Operating expenses 130,000 59,000
Interest expense 6,000 10,000
Income tax expense 10,000 65,000
Current assets 180,000 700,000
Plant assets (net) 600,000 800,000
Current liabilities 75,000 300,000
Long-term liabilities 190,000 200,000
Cash from operating activities 46,000 180,000
Capital expenditures 20,000 50,000
Dividends paid 4,000 15,000
Average number of shares outstanding 200,000 400,000

Instructions

(a) Compute the net income and earnings per share for each company for 2012.



(b) Comment on the relative liquidity of the companies by computing working capital

and the current ratio for each company for 2012.

(c) Comment on the relative solvency of the companies by computing the debt to total

assets ratio and the free cash flow for each company for 2012.

P2-5B The financial statements of DeVoe Company are presented here.

Instructions

(a) Compute the following values and ratios for 2012. (We provide the results from 2011

DEVOE COMPANY
Income Statement

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Selling and administrative expenses
Interest expense

Income tax expense

Net income

DEVOE COMPANY
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2012

Assets

Current assets
Cash
Short-term investments
Accounts receivable (net)
Inventory

Total current assets
Plant assets (net)

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities
Bonds payable
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity
Common stock
Retained earnings

Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Cash from operating activities

Capital expenditures

Dividends paid

Average number of shares outstanding

for comparative purposes.)

(i) Current ratio. (2011: 2.4:1)

(ii) Working capital. (2011: $178,000)
(iii) Debt to total assets ratio. (2011: 31%)
(iv) Free cash flow. (2011: $13,000)

(v) Earnings per share. (2011: $1.35)

(b) Using your calculations from part (a), discuss changes from 2011 in liquidity, solvency,

and profitability.

$700,000
400,000
150,000
7,800
43,000

$ 99,200

$ 18,100
34,800
90,700

155,000

298,600
465,300
$763,900

$119,700
29,000

148,700
110,000
258,700

170,000
335,200

505,200
$763,900

$ 71,300
$ 42,000
$ 10,000

65,000

Problems: Set B 89

Compute and interpret
liquidity, solvency, and
profitability ratios.
(802, 4,5), AP
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Compute and interpret P2-6B Condensed balance sheet and income statement data for Fellenz Corporation are

liquidity, solvency, and presented below.

profitability ratios.

(S0 2,4,5), AP FELLENZ CORPORATION

(@ m— ] Balance Sheets

December 31

Assets _2012 _2011
Cash $ 40,000 $ 24,000
Receivables (net) 90,000 55,000
Other current assets 74,000 73,000
Long-term investments 78,000 60,000
Plant and equipment (net) 520,000 407,000
Total assets $802,000 $619,000
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity 2012 2011
Current liabilities $ 88,000 $ 65,000
Long-term debt 90,000 70,000
Common stock 370,000 320,000
Retained earnings 254,000 164,000
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $802,000 $619,000

FELLENZ CORPORATION
Income Statements
For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011
Sales $770,000 $800,000
Cost of goods sold 420,000 400,000
Operating expenses (including income taxes) 200,000 237,000
Net income $150,000 $163,000
Cash from operating activities $165,000 $178,000
Cash used for capital expenditures 85,000 45,000
Dividends paid 50,000 43,000
Average number of shares outstanding 370,000 320,000

Instructions
Compute the following values and ratios for 2011 and 2012.
(a) Earnings per share.
(b) Working capital.
(¢) Current ratio.
(d) Debt to total assets ratio.
(e) Free cash flow.
[ME==> (f) Based on the ratios calculated, discuss briefly the improvement or lack thereof in the
financial position and operating results of Fellenz from 2011 to 2012.

Compute ratios and compare ~ P2-7B  Selected financial data of two competitors, Blockbuster Inc. and Movie Gallery,

liquidity, solvency, and profit-  Inc., in a recent year are presented below and on page 91. (All dollars are in millions.)
ability for two companies.

(802, 4,5), AP Blockbuster Inc. Movie Gallery, Inc.
e—= Income Statement Data for Year
Net sales $ 5,524 $2,542
Cost of goods sold 2,476 1,012
Selling and administrative expenses 2,755 1,431
Interest expense 102 120
Other expense 212 3
Income tax expense (refund) (76) 2

7

Net income (loss) 55 $ (26)
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Blockbuster Inc. Movie Gallery, Inc.
Balance Sheet Data (End of Year)
Current assets $ 1,566 $ 239
Property, plant, and equipment (net) 580 243
Intangible assets 835 297
Other assets 156 374
Total assets $ 3,137 $1,153
Current liabilities $ 1,395 $ 268
Long-term debt 851 1,122
Total stockholders’ equity 891 (237)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 3,137 $1,153
Cash from operating activities $329 $(10)
Cash used for capital expenditures 79 20
Dividends paid 11 -0-
Average shares outstanding 189.0 31.8

Instructions

For each company, compute these values and ratios.

(a) Working capital.

(b) Current ratio. (Round to two decimal places.)

(c) Debt to total assets ratio.

(d) Free cash flow.

(e) Earnings per share.

(f) Compare the liquidity, profitability, and solvency of the two companies.

P2-8B Net Nanny Software International Inc., headquartered in Vancouver, specializes
in Internet safety and computer security products for both the home and commercial
markets. In a recent balance sheet, it reported a deficit (negative retained earnings) of
US $5,678,288. It has reported only net losses since its inception. In spite of these losses,
Net Nanny’s common shares have traded anywhere from a high of $3.70 to a low of $0.32
on the Canadian Venture Exchange.

Net Nanny’s financial statements have historically been prepared in Canadian dollars.
Recently, the company adopted the U.S. dollar as its reporting currency.

Instructions

(a) What is the objective of financial reporting? How does this objective meet or not meet
Net Nanny’s investors’ needs?

(b) Why would investors want to buy Net Nanny’s shares if the company has consistently
reported losses over the last few years? Include in your answer an assessment of the
relevance of the information reported on Net Nanny’s financial statements.

(c) Comment on how the change in reporting information from Canadian dollars to U.S.
dollars likely affected the readers of Net Nanny’s financial statements. Include in your
answer an assessment of the comparability of the information.

Problems: Set C

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose the
Student Companion site to access Problem Set C.

Continuing Cookie Chronicle

(Note: This is a continuation of the Cookie Chronicle from Chapter 1.)

CCC2 After investigating the different forms of business organization, Natalie Koebel
decides to operate her business as a corporation, Cookie Creations Inc., and she begins
the process of getting her business running.

==

Comment on the objectives
and qualitative characteristics
of accounting information.

(806,7),E
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While at a trade show, Natalie is introduced to Gerry Richards, operations manager
of “Biscuits,” a national food retailer. After much discussion, Gerry asks Natalie to con-
sider being Biscuits’ major supplier of oatmeal chocolate chip cookies. He provides
Natalie with the most recent copy of the financial statements of Biscuits. He expects that
Natalie will need to supply Biscuits’” Watertown warehouse with approximately 1,500
dozen cookies a week. Natalie is to send Biscuits a monthly invoice, and she will be paid
approximately 30 days from the date the invoice is received in Biscuits’ Chicago office.

Natalie is thrilled with the offer. However, she has recently read in the newspaper
that Biscuits has a reputation for selling cookies and donuts with high amounts of sugar
and fat, and as a result, consumer demand for the company’s products has decreased.

Instructions

Natalie has several questions. Answer the following questions for Natalie.

(a) What type of information does each financial statement provide?

(b) What financial statements would Natalie need in order to evaluate whether Biscuits
will have enough cash to meet its current liabilities? Explain what to look for.

(c) What financial statements would Natalie need in order to evaluate whether Biscuits
will be able to survive over a long period of time? Explain what to look for.

(d) What financial statement would Natalie need in order to evaluate Biscuits’ profitabil-
ity? Explain what to look for.

(e) Where can Natalie find out whether Biscuits has outstanding debt? How can Natalie
determine whether Biscuits would be able to meet its interest and debt payments on
any debts it has?

(f) How could Natalie determine whether Biscuits pays a dividend?

(g) In deciding whether to go ahead with this opportunity, are there other areas of con-
cern that Natalie should be aware of?

broadening your perspective

Financial Reporting and Analysis

m FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll Industries Inc.

BYP2-1 The financial statements of Tootsie Roll Industries, Inc., appear in Appendix A at the
end of this book.

Instructions

Answer the following questions using the financial statements and the notes to the financial
statements.

(a) What were Tootsie Roll’s total current assets at December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008?
(b) Are the assets included in current assets listed in the proper order? Explain.

(c) How are Tootsie Roll’s assets classified?

(d) What were Tootsie Roll’s current liabilities at December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2008?

m 7 COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll vs. Hershey

BYP2-2 The financial statements of The Hershey Company appear in Appendix B, following the
financial statements for Tootsie Roll in Appendix A. Assume Hershey’s average number of shares
outstanding was 227,517,000, and Tootsie Roll’s was 56,072,000.

Instructions
(a) For each company calculate the following values for 2009.
(1) Working capital. (4) Free cash flow.
(2) Current ratio. (5) Earnings per share.

(3) Debt to total assets ratio
(Hint: When calculating free cash flow, do not consider business acquisitions to be part of
capital expenditures.)

(b) Based on your findings above, discuss the relative liquidity and solvency of the two companies.
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RESEARCH CASE

BYP2-3 The April 27, 2009, edition of the Wall Street Journal Online includes an article by Cari
Tuna entitled “Corporate Blogs and ‘Tweets’ Must Keep SEC in Mind.”

Instructions

Read the article and answer the following questions.

(a) At the time of the article, how many of the Fortune 500 companies sponsored public blogs?
Of these blogs, how many had links to corporate Twitter accounts?

(b) What potential advantages might Twitter provide to companies in their efforts to communi-
cate with investors?

(c) Why are some companies, such as Intel, wary of using Twitter and blogs to communicate to
investors?

(d) What recommendations does Lisa Wood, of Foley Hoag LLP, make to companies if they use
blogs or Twitter to communicate to investors?

INTERPRETING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BYP2-4 The following information was reported by Gap, Inc. in its 2009 annual report.

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Total assets (millions) $7,985 $7,564 $7,838 $ 8,544 $ 8,821
Working capital 2,533 1,847 1,653 $ 2,757 $ 3,297
Current ratio 2.19:1 1.86:1 1.68:1 2.21:1 2.70:1
Debt to total assets ratio .39:1 42:1 45:1 .39:1 .38:1
Earnings per share $1.59 $1.35 $1.05 $0.94 $1.26

(a) Determine the overall percentage decrease in Gap’s total assets from 2005 to 2009. What was
the average decrease per year?

(b) Comment on the change in Gap’s liquidity. Does working capital or the current ratio appear
to provide a better indication of Gap’s liquidity? What might explain the change in Gap’s lig-
uidity during this period?

(c) Comment on the change in Gap’s solvency during this period.

(d) Comment on the change in Gap’s profitability during this period. How might this affect your
prediction about Gap’s future profitability?

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS ON THE WEB

BYP2-5 Purpose: Identify summary liquidity, solvency, and profitability information about com-
panies, and compare this information across companies in the same industry.

Addpress: http://biz.yahoo.com/i, or go to www.wiley.com/college/kimmel

Steps

1. Type in a company name, or use the index to find a company name. Choose Profile. Choose
Key Statistics. Perform instruction (a) below.

2. Go back to Profile. Click on the company’s particular industry behind the heading “Industry.”
Perform instructions (b), (c), and (d).

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) What is the company’s name? What was the company’s current ratio and debt to equity ratio
(a variation of the debt to total assets ratio)?

(b) What is the company’s industry?

(c) What is the name of a competitor? What is the competitor’s current ratio and its debt to equity
ratio?

(d) Based on these measures: Which company is more liquid? Which company is more solvent?

BYP2-6 The opening story described the dramatic effect that investment bulletin boards are hav-

ing on the investment world. This exercise will allow you to evaluate a bulletin board discussing a

company of your choice.

Address: http://biz.yahoo.com/i, or go to www.wiley.com/college/kimmel


http://biz.yahoo.com/i
http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
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Steps

1. Type in a company name, or use the index to find a company name.
2. Choose Msgs or Message Board. (for messages).

3. Read the ten most recent messages.

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) State the nature of each of these messages (e.g., offering advice, criticizing company, predict-
ing future results, ridiculing other people who have posted messages).

(b) For those messages that expressed an opinion about the company, was evidence provided to
support the opinion?

(c) What effect do you think it would have on bulletin board discussions if the participants pro-
vided their actual names? Do you think this would be a good policy?

Critical Thinking

- DECISION MAKING ACROSS THE ORGANIZATION

BYP2-7 As a financial analyst in the planning department for Lindemann Industries, Inc., you
have been requested to develop some key ratios from the comparative financial statements. This
information is to be used to convince creditors that Lindemann Industries, Inc. is liquid, solvent,
and profitable, and that it deserves their continued support. Lenders are particularly concerned
about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Here are the data requested and the computations developed from the financial statements:

2012 2011
Current ratio 3.1 2.1
Working capital Up 22% Down 7%
Free cash flow Up 25% Up 18%
Debt to total assets ratio 0.60 0.70
Net income Up 32% Down 8%
Earnings per share $2.40 $1.15

Instructions

Lindemann Industries, Inc. asks you to prepare brief comments stating how each of these items
supports the argument that its financial health is improving. The company wishes to use these
comments to support presentation of data to its creditors. With the class divided into groups, pre-
pare the comments as requested, giving the implications and the limitations of each item regarding
Lindemann’s financial well-being.

COMMUNICATION ACTIVITY

BYP2-8 T.J. Cerrillo is the chief executive officer of Tomorrow’s Products. T. J. is an expert engi-
neer but a novice in accounting.

Instructions

Write a letter to T. J. Cerrillo that explains (a) the three main types of ratios; (b) examples of each,
how they are calculated, and what they measure; and (c) the bases for comparison in analyzing
Tomorrow’s Products’ financial statements.

ETHICS CASE

BYP2-9 At one time, Boeing closed a giant deal to acquire another manufacturer, McDonnell
Douglas. Boeing paid for the acquisition by issuing shares of its own stock to the stockhold-
ers of McDonnell Douglas. In order for the deal not to be revoked, the value of Boeing’s stock
could not decline below a certain level for a number of months after the deal.

=
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During the first half of the year, Boeing suffered significant cost overruns because of ineffi-
ciencies in its production methods. Had these problems been disclosed in the quarterly financial
statements during the first and second quarter of the year, the company’s stock most likely would
have plummeted, and the deal would have been revoked. Company managers spent considerable
time debating when the bad news should be disclosed. One public relations manager suggested
that the company’s problems be revealed on the date of either Princess Diana’s or Mother Teresa’s
funeral, in the hope that it would be lost among those big stories that day. Instead, the company
waited until October 22 of that year to announce a $2.6 billion write-off due to cost overruns.
Within one week, the company’s stock price had fallen 20%, but by this time the McDonnell
Douglas deal could not be reversed.

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) Who are the stakeholders in this situation?

(b) What are the ethical issues?

(c) What assumptions or principles of accounting are relevant to this case?

(d) Do you think it is ethical to try to “time” the release of a story so as to diminish its effect?

(e) What would you have done if you were the chief executive officer of Boeing?

(f) Boeing’s top management maintains that it did not have an obligation to reveal its problems
during the first half of the year. What implications does this have for investors and analysts
who follow Boeing’s stock?

“ALL ABOUT YOU” ACTIVITY

BYP2-10 Every company needs to plan in order to move forward. Its top management must con-
sider where it wants the company to be in three to five years. Like a company, you need to think
about where you want to be three to five years from now, and you need to start taking steps now
in order to get there.

Instructions

Provide responses to each of the following items.

(a) Where would you like to be working in three to five years? Describe your plan for getting there
by identifying between five and 10 specific steps that you need to take in order to get there.

(b) In order to get the job you want, you will need a résumé. Your résumé is the equivalent of a
company’s annual report. It needs to provide relevant and reliable information about your past
accomplishments so that employers can decide whether to “invest” in you. Do a search on the
Internet to find a good résumé format. What are the basic elements of a résumé?

(c) A company’s annual report provides information about a company’s accomplishments. In
order for investors to use the annual report, the information must be reliable; that is, users
must have faith that the information is accurate and believable. How can you provide assur-
ance that the information on your résumé is reliable?

(d) Prepare a résumé assuming that you have accomplished the five to 10 specific steps you iden-
tified in part (a). Also, provide evidence that would give assurance that the information is
reliable.

FASB CODIFICATION ACTIVITY

BYP2-11 If your school has a subscription to the FASB Codification, go to http://aaahq.org/
ascLogin.cfm to log in and prepare responses to the following.

Instructions

(a) Access the glossary (“Master Glossary”) at the FASB Codification website to answer the fol-
lowing.

(1) What is the definition of current assets?
(2) What is the definition of current liabilities?

(b) A company wants to offset its accounts payable against its cash account and show a cash
amount net of accounts payable on its balance sheet. Identify the criteria (found in the FASB
Codification) under which a company has the right of set off. Does the company have the right
to offset accounts payable against the cash account?


http://aaahq.org/
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Answers to Insight and Accounting Across the Organization Questions

p. 60 Can a Company Be Too Liquid? Q: What can various company managers do to ensure that
working capital is managed efficiently to maximize net income? A: Marketing and sales managers
must understand that by extending generous repayment terms, they are expanding the company’s
receivables balance and slowing the company’s cash flow. Production managers must strive to
minimize the amount of excess inventory on hand. Managers must coordinate efforts to speed up
the collection of receivables, while also ensuring that the company pays its payables on time but
never too early.

p. 61 When Debt Is Good Q: Discuss the difference in the debt to total assets ratio of Microsoft
and General Motors. A: Microsoft has a very low debt to total assets ratio. The company is in a rap-
idly changing industry and thus should try to minimize the risk associated with increased debt. Also,
because Microsoft generates significant amounts of cash and has minimal needs for large invest-
ments in plant assets, it does not need to borrow a lot of cash. General Motors needs to make huge
investments in plant assets, and it has a very large credit operation. Thus, it has large borrowing
needs.

p. 64 The Korean Discount Q: What is meant by the phrase “make the country’s businesses more
transparent”? Why would increasing transparency spur economic growth? A: Transparency refers
to the extent to which outsiders have knowledge regarding a company’s financial performance and
financial position. If a company lacks transparency, its financial reports do not adequately inform
investors of critical information that is needed to make investment decisions. If corporate trans-
parency is increased, investors will be more willing to supply the financial capital that businesses
need in order to grow, which would spur the country’s economic growth.

p. 65 What Do These Companies Have in Common? Q: What problems might Best Buy’s year-end
create for analysts? A: First, if Best Buy’s competitors use a different year-end, then when you
compare their financial results, you are not comparing performance over the same period of time
or financial position at the same point in time. Also, by not picking a particular date, the number
of weeks in Best Buy’s fiscal year will change. For example, fiscal years 2008 and 2009 had 52
weeks, but fiscal year 2007 had 53 weeks.

Answers to Self-Test Questions
1.d 2.a 3.¢ 4.¢c 5.b 6.a 7.¢c 8b 9.d 10.d 11.a 12.a 13.c 14.c 15.b

A Look at IFRS

The classified balance sheet, although generally required internationally, contains certain varia-
tions in format when reporting under IFRS.

KEY POINTS
e IFRS recommends but does not require the use of the title “statement of financial position”
rather than balance sheet.

e The format of statement of financial position information is often presented differently under
IFRS. Although no specific format is required, most companies that follow IFRS present state-
ment of financial position information in this order:

e Noncurrent assets

e Current assets

e Equity

e Noncurrent liabilities
e Current liabilities

e IFRS requires a classified statement of financial position except in very limited situations. IFRS
follows the same guidelines as this textbook for distinguishing between current and noncurrent
assets and liabilities.

e Under IFRS, current assets are usually listed in the reverse order of liquidity. For example,
under GAAP cash is listed first, but under IFRS it is listed last.

e Some companies report the subtotal net assets, which equals total assets minus total liabilities.
See, for example, the statement of financial position of Zetar plc in Appendix C.
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e IFRS has many differences in terminology that you will notice in this textbook. For example, in
the sample statement of financial position illustrated below, notice in the investment category that
stock is called shares, and in the equity section common stock is called share capital-ordinary.

FRANKLIN CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Position
October 31, 2012

Assets

Intangible assets

Patents $ 3,100
Property, plant, and equipment

Land $10,000

Office equipment $24,000

Less: Accumulated depreciation 5,000 19,000 29,000
Long-term investments

Investment in shares of Walters Corp. 5,200

Investment in real estate 2,000 7,200
Current assets

Prepaid insurance 400

Supplies 2,100

Inventories 3,000

Notes receivable 1,000

Accounts receivable 7,000

Short-term investments 2,000

Cash 6,600 22,100

Total assets $61,400

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital—ordinary $20,000

Retained earnings 14,050 $34,050
Non-current liabilities

Mortgage note payable 10,000

Notes payable 1,300 11,300
Current liabilities

Notes payable 11,000

Accounts payable 2,100

Salaries payable 1,600

Unearned revenue 900

Interest payable 450 16,050

Total equity and liabilities $61,400

e Both IFRS and GAAP require disclosures about (1) accounting policies followed, (2) judgments
that management has made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, and
(3) the key assumptions and estimation uncertainty that could result in a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

e Comparative prior-period information must be presented and financial statements must be pre-
pared annually.

e Both GAAP and IFRS are increasing the use of fair value to report assets. However, at this point
IFRS has adopted it more broadly. As examples, under IFRS companies can apply fair value to
property, plant, and equipment; natural resources; and in some cases intangible assets.

e Recently, the IASB and FASB completed the first phase of a jointly created conceptual frame-
work. In this first phase, they agreed on the objective of financial reporting and a common set
of desired qualitative characteristics. These were presented in the Chapter 2 discussion.
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¢ The monetary unit assumption is part of each framework. However, the unit of measure will
vary depending on the currency used in the country in which the company is incorporated (e.g.,
Chinese yuan, Japanese yen, and British pound).

e The economic entity assumption is also part of each framework although some cultural differ-
ences result in differences in its application. For example, in Japan many companies have
formed alliances that are so strong that they act similar to related corporate divisions although
they are not actually part of the same company.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

The TASB and the FASB are working on a project to converge their standards related to finan-
cial statement presentation. A key feature of the proposed framework is that each of the state-
ments will be organized in the same format, to separate an entity’s financing activities from its
operating and investing activities and, further, to separate financing activities into transactions
with owners and creditors. Thus, the same classifications used in the statement of financial posi-
tion would also be used in the income statement and the statement of cash flows. The project
has three phases. You can follow the joint financial presentation project at the following link:
http://www.fasb.org/project/financial_statement_presentation.shtml.

The TASB and the FASB face a difficult task in attempting to update, modify, and complete a
converged conceptual framework. For example, how do companies choose between information
that is highly relevant but difficult to verify versus information that is less relevant but easy to ver-
ify? How do companies define control when developing a definition of an asset? Is a liability the
future sacrifice itself or the obligation to make the sacrifice? Should a single measurement
method, such as historical cost or fair value, be used, or does it depend on whether it is an asset
or liability that is being measured? It appears that the new document will be a significant improve-
ment over its predecessors and will lead to principle-based standards, which will help financial
statement users make better decisions.

IFRS Self-Test Questions

1. Which of the following statements is false?
(a) The monetary unit assumption is used under IFRS.
(b) Under IFRS, companies sometimes net liabilities against assets to report “net assets.”
(c) The FASB and IASB are working on a joint conceptual framework project.
(d) Under IFRS, the statement of financial position is usually referred to as the statement of
assets and equity.

2. A company has purchased a tract of land and expects to build a production plant on the land
in approximately 5 years. During the 5 years before construction, the land will be idle. Under
IFRS, the land should be reported as:

(a) land expense.
(b) property, plant, and equipment.
(c) an intangible asset.
(d) a long-term investment.
3. Current assets under IFRS are listed generally:
(a) by importance.
(b) in the reverse order of their expected conversion to cash.
(c) by longevity.
(d) alphabetically.
4. Companies that use IFRS:
(a) may report all their assets on the statement of financial position at fair value.
(b) may offset assets against liabilities and show net assets and net liabilities on their statement
of financial positions, rather than the underlying detailed line items.
(c) may report noncurrent assets before current assets on the statement of financial position.
(d) do not have any guidelines as to what should be reported on the statement of financial
position.

5. Companies that follow IFRS to prepare a statement of financial position generally use the fol-

lowing order of classification:
(a) current assets, current liabilities, noncurrent assets, noncurrent liabilities, equity.
(b) noncurrent assets, noncurrent liabilities, current assets, current liabilities, equity.
(c) noncurrent assets, current assets, equity, noncurrent liabilities, current liabilities.
(d) equity, noncurrent assets, current assets, noncurrent liabilities, current liabilities.
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IFRS Concepts and Application

IFRS2-1 In what ways does the format of a statement of financial of position under IFRS often
differ from a balance sheet presented under GAAP?

IFRS2-2 Do the IFRS and GAAP conceptual frameworks differ in terms of the objective of finan-
cial reporting? Explain.

IFRS2-3 What terms commonly used under IFRS are synonymous with common stock and bal-
ance sheet?

IFRS2-4 The statement of financial position for Diaz Company includes the following accounts:
Accounts Receivable £12,500; Prepaid Insurance £3,600; Cash £15,400; Supplies £5,200; and
Short-Term Investments £6,700. Prepare the current assets section of the statement of financial
position, listing the accounts in proper sequence.

IFRS2-5 Zurich Company recently received the following information related to the company’s
December 31, 2012, statement of financial position.

Inventories CHF 2,900 Short-term investments CHF 120
Cash 13,400 Accumulated depreciation 5,700
Equipment 21,700 Accounts receivable 4,300
Investments in ordinary

shares (long-term) 6,500

Prepare the assets section of the company’s classified statement of financial position.

IFRS2-6 The following information is available for Karr Bowling Alley at December 31, 2012.

Buildings $128,800 Share Capital—Ordinary $100,000
Accounts Receivable 14,520 Retained Earnings 15,000
Prepaid Insurance 4,680 Accumulated Depreciation—Buildings 42,600
Cash 18,040 Accounts Payable 12,300
Equipment 62,400 Notes Payable 97,780
Land 64,000 Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment 18,720
Insurance Expense 780 Interest Payable 2,600
Depreciation Expense 7,360 Bowling Revenues 14,180
Interest Expense 2,600

Prepare a classified statement of financial position; assume that $13,900 of the notes payable will
be paid in 2013.

IFRS2-7 Brian Hopkins is interested in comparing the liquidity and solvency of a U.S. software
company with a Chinese competitor. Is this possible if the two companies report using different
currencies?

INTERNATIONAL COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll vs. Zetar plc

IFRS2-8 The financial statements of Zetar plc are presented in Appendix C. The company’s
complete annual report, including the notes to its financial statements, is available at
www.zetarplc.com.

Instructions

Identify five differences in the format of the statement of financial position used by Zetar plc com-
pared to a company, such as Tootsie Roll, that follows GAAP. (Tootsie Roll’s financial statements
are available in Appendix A.)

Answers to IFRS Self-Test Questions
1.d 2.d 3.b 4.c 5.c

Remember to go back to the navigator box on the chapter opening page and check off your completed work. ]
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study objectives
After studying this chapter, you should be able to:

1 Analyze the effect of business transactions on the basic
accounting equation.

2 Explain what an account is and how it helps in the recording
process.

3 Define debits and credits and explain how they are used to
record business transactions.

4 |dentify the basic steps in the recording process.

5 Explain what a journal is and how it helps in the recording
process.

6 Explain what a ledger is and how it helps in the recording
process.

7 Explain what posting is and how it helps in the recording
process.

8 Explain the purposes of a trial balance. ‘

9 Classify cash activities as operating, investing, or < the
financing. iz

vigator



How organized are you financially? Take a short quiz.

Answer yes or no to each question:

* Does your wallet contain so many cash machine
receipts that you've been declared a walking fire
hazard?

* Is your wallet such a mess that it is often faster to
fish for money in the crack of your car

seat than to dig around in your wallet?

* Was Steve Nash playing high school
basketball the last time you balanced

your bank account?

* Have you ever been tempted to burn down your
house so you don't have to try to find all of the re-
ceipts and records that you need to fill out your tax

returns?

If you think it is hard to keep track of the many
transactions that make up your life, imagine what it is
like for a major corporation like Fidelity Investments.
Fidelity is one of the largest mutual fund manage-
ment firms in the world. If you had your life savings
invested at Fidelity Investments, you might be just
slightly displeased if, when you called to find out
your balance, the representative said, “You know, |

kind of remember someone with a name like yours

INSIDE CHAPTER 3....

e Why Accuracy Matters (p. 709)
e Keeping Score (p. 115)
e Boosting Microsoft’s Profits (p. 779)

HAPPEN

feature story

sending us some money—now what did we do with
that?”

To ensure the accuracy of your balance and the
security of your funds, Fidelity Investments, like all
other companies large and small, relies on a sophisti-

cated accounting information system. That's not to say

that Fidelity or any other company is error-free. In fact,

AGGIDENTS

if you've ever really messed up your
checkbook register, you may take some
comfort from one accountant's mistake
at Fidelity Investments. The accountant
failed to include a minus sign while doing a calcula-
tion, making what was actually a $1.3 billion loss look
like a $1.3 billion gain—yes, billion! Fortunately, like
most accounting errors, it was detected before any
real harm was done.

No one expects that kind of mistake at a company
like Fidelity, which has sophisticated computer sys-
tems and top investment managers. In explaining the
mistake to shareholders, a spokesperson wrote,
“Some people have asked how, in this age of technol-
ogy, such a mistake could be made. While many of
our processes are computerized, accounting systems
are complex and dictate that some steps must be han-
dled manually by our managers and accountants, and

people can make mistakes!

@ the

navigator
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preview of chapter 3

As indicated in the Feature Story, a reliable information system is a necessity for any company. The purpose of
this chapter is to explain and illustrate the features of an accounting information system. The organization and
content of the chapter are as follows.

The Accounting Information System

Accounting Steps in the The Recording :
Transactions Recording Process Process lllustrated LD =2
* Analyzing * Debits and credits * The journal * Summary illustration  Limitations of a trial
transactions « Debit and credit + The ledger of journalizing and balance
» Summary of procedures o G 65 CETE posting

transactions « Stockholders’ equity

¢ Postin
relationships °

* Summary of
debit /credit rules

@ the
navigator

The Accounting Information System

The system of collecting and processing transaction data and communicating fi-
nancial information to decision makers is known as the accounting informa-
tion system. Factors that shape these systems include: the nature of the com-
pany’s business, the types of transactions, the size of the company, the volume
of data, and the information demands of management and others.

Most businesses use computerized accounting systems—sometimes referred
to as electronic data processing (EDP) systems. These systems handle all the
steps involved in the recording process, from initial data entry to preparation of
the financial statements. In order to remain competitive, companies continually
improve their accounting systems to provide accurate and timely data for deci-
sion making. For example, in a recent annual report, Tootsie Roll states, “We
also invested in additional processing and data storage hardware during the year.
We view information technology as a key strategic tool, and are committed to
deploying leading edge technology in this area.” In addition, many companies
have upgraded their accounting information systems in response to the require-
ments of Sarbanes-Oxley.

In this chapter, we focus on a manual accounting system because the ac-
counting concepts and principles do not change whether a system is computer-
ized or manual, and manual systems are easier to illustrate.

Accounting Transactions

To use an accounting information system, you need to know which economic
events to recognize (record). Not all events are recorded and reported in the fi-
nancial statements. For example, suppose General Motors hired a new employee
or purchased a new computer. Are these events entered in its accounting records?
The first event would not be recorded, but the second event would. We call eco-
nomic events that require recording in the financial statements accounting
transactions.

An accounting transaction occurs when assets, liabilities, or stockholders’
equity items change as a result of some economic event. The purchase of a
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computer by General Motors, the payment of rent by Microsoft, and the sale of
a multi-day guided trip by Sierra Corporation are examples of events that change
a company’s assets, liabilities, or stockholders’ equity. Illustration 3-1 summa-
rizes the decision process companies use to decide whether or not to record eco-

nomic events. lllustration 3-1

103

Transaction identification

process

Events

Purchase computer Discuss guided trip options Pay rent
with potential customer

Criterion Is the financial position (assets, liabilities, or stockholders’ equity) of the company changed?

Yes No Yes
Record Don't Record
record

Record/
Don’t Record g’

ANALYZING TRANSACTIONS

In Chapter 1, you learned the basic accounting equation:

Analyze the effect of
business transactions

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity i [ AEERL iy

equation.

In this chapter, you will learn how to analyze transactions in terms of their ef-
fect on assets, liabilities, and stockholders’ equity. Transaction analysis is the
process of identifying the specific effects of economic events on the accounting
equation.

The accounting equation must always balance. Each transaction has a dual
(double-sided) effect on the equation. For example, if an individual asset is in-
creased, there must be a corresponding:

Decrease in another asset, or

Increase in a specific liability, or
Increase in stockholders’ equity.

Two or more items could be affected when an asset is increased. For exam-
ple, if a company purchases a computer for $10,000 by paying $6,000 in cash
and signing a note for $4,000, one asset (equipment) increases $10,000, another
asset (cash) decreases $6,000, and a liability (notes payable) increases $4,000.
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The result is that the accounting equation remains in balance—assets increased
by a net $4,000 and liabilities increased by $4,000, as shown below.

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
+$10,000 +$4,000
- 6,000

$ 4,000 = $4,000

Chapter 1 presented the financial statements for Sierra Corporation for its
first month. You should review those financial statements (on page 17) at this
time. To illustrate how economic events affect the accounting equation, we will
examine events affecting Sierra Corporation during its first month.

In order to analyze the transactions for Sierra Corporation, we will expand
the basic accounting equation. This will allow us to better illustrate the impact
of transactions on stockholders” equity. Recall from the balance sheets in Chap-
ters 1 and 2 that stockholders’ equity is comprised of two parts: common stock
and retained earnings. Common stock is affected when the company issues new
shares of stock in exchange for cash. Retained earnings is affected when the com-
pany earns revenue, incurs expenses, or pays dividends. Illustration 3-2 shows
the expanded equation.

lllustration 3-2 Expanded
accounting equation

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders' Equity

'
v Y

Common Stock + Retained Earnings
Revenues  — Expenses —  Dividends

If you are tempted to skip ahead after you've read a few of the following trans-
action analyses, don’t do it. Each has something unique to teach, something you'll
need later. (We assure you that we've kept them to the minimum needed!)

EVENT (1). INVESTMENT OF CASH BY STOCKHOLDERS. On October 1, cash of
$10,000 is invested in the business by investors (primarily your friends and fam-
ily) in exchange for $10,000 of common stock. This event is an accounting trans-
action because it results in an increase in both assets and stockholders’ equity.

Basic The asset Cash is increased $10,000, and stockholders’ equity (specifically
Analysis Common Stock) is increased $10,000.
Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Equation Common
Analysis Cash = Stock

) +$10,000 +$10,000 Issued stock
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The equation is in balance after the issuance of common stock. Keeping track
of the source of each change in stockholders’ equity is essential for later account-
ing activities. In particular, items recorded in the revenue and expense columns
are used for the calculation of net income.

EVENT (2). NOTE ISSUED IN EXCHANGE FOR CASH. On October 1, Sierra borrowed
$5,000 from Castle Bank by signing a 3-month, 12%, $5,000 note payable. This
transaction results in an equal increase in assets and liabilities. The specific effect
of this transaction and the cumulative effect of the first two transactions are:

Basic The asset Cash is increased $5,000, and the liability Notes Payable

Analysis is increased $5,000.

Assets = Liabilities +  Stockholders’ Equity

Notes Common

Cash = Payable F Stock
Equation
Bias $10,000 $10,000

(2) +5,000 +$5,000
$15000 = $5,000 4 $10,000
$15,000

Total assets are now $15,000, and liabilities plus stockholders’ equity also total
$15,000.

EVENT (3). PURCHASE OF OFFICE EQUIPMENT FOR CASH. On October 2, Sierra
purchased equipment by paying $5,000 cash to Superior Equipment Sales Co.
This event is a transaction because an equal increase and decrease in Sierra’s as-
sets occur.

ABasic. The asset Equipment is increased $5,000; the asset Cash is decreased $5,000.
nalysis
Assets = Liabilities +  Stockholders’ Equity
Notes Common

Cash + Equipment = Payable + Stock

iq:;t';;‘ $15,000 $5,000 $10,000
4 (3)  —5,000 +$5,000
$10,000 + $5,000 = $5,000 ¥ $10,000
$15,000 $15,000

The total assets are now $15,000, and liabilities plus stockholders’ equity also
total $15,000.

EVENT (4). RECEIPT OF CASH IN ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMER. On October 2, Sierra
received a $1,200 cash advance from R. Knox, a client. This event is a transac-
tion because Sierra received cash (an asset) for guide services for multi-day trips
that are expected to be completed by Sierra in the future. Although Sierra re-
ceived cash, it does not record revenue until it has performed the work. In
some industries, such as the magazine and airline industries, customers are
expected to prepay. These companies have a liability to the customer until they
deliver the magazines or provide the flight. When the company eventually provides
the product or service, it records the revenue.
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Since Sierra received cash prior to performance of the service, Sierra has a
liability for the work due.

The asset Cash is increased $1,200; the liability Unearned Service Revenue is increased $1,200 because

Basic - . . . .
Analysis the service has not been provided yet. That is, when an advance payment is received, an unearned revenue
4 (a liability) should be recorded in order to recognize the obligation that exists.
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities +  Stockholders’ Equity
Equip- Notes Unearned Service Common
Cash + ment = Payable + Revenue + Stock
$10,000 $5,000 $5,000 $10,000
(4)  +1,200 +$1,200
$11,200 + $5,000 = $5000 + $1,200 4 $10,000
$16,200 $16,200
EVENT (5). SERVICES PROVIDED FOR CASH. On October 3, Sierra received $10,000
in cash from Copa Company for guide services performed for a corporate event.
This event is a transaction because Sierra received an asset (cash) in exchange
for services.

Guide service is the principal revenue-producing activity of Sierra. Revenue
increases stockholders’ equity. This transaction, then, increases both assets
and stockholders’ equity.

AE:?;:is The asset Cash is increased $10,000; the revenue Service Revenue is increased $10,000.
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities AF Stockholders’ Equity
Equip- Notes Unearned Common Retained Earnings
Cash + ment = Pay. + Serv.Rev. + Stock + Rev. — Exp. — Diw
$11,200 $5,000 $5,000 $1,200 $10,000
(5) +10,000 +$10,000 Service
$21200 + $5000 = $5000 +  $1,200 + $10000 +  $10,000 Revenue
$26,200 $26,200

Often companies provide services “on account.” That is, they provide ser-
vice for which they are paid at a later date. Revenue, however, is earned when
services are performed. Therefore, revenues would increase when services are
performed, even though cash has not been received. Instead of receiving cash,
the company receives a different type of asset, an account receivable. Accounts
receivable represent the right to receive payment at a later date. Suppose that
Sierra had provided these services on account rather than for cash. This event
would be reported using the accounting equation as:

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts
Receivable = Revenues
+$10,000 +$10,000 Service Revenue

Later, when Sierra collects the $10,000 from the customer, Accounts Receivable
declines by $10,000, and Cash increases by $10,000.
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Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity

Accounts
Cash Receivable

+$10,000 -—$10,000

Note that in this case, revenues are not affected by the collection of cash. Instead
we record an exchange of one asset (Accounts Receivable) for a different asset (Cash).

EVENT (6). PAYMENT OF RENT. On October 3, Sierra Corporation paid its office
rent for the month of October in cash, $900. This rent payment is a transaction
because it results in a decrease in an asset, cash.

Rent is an expense incurred by Sierra Corporation in its effort to generate
revenues. Expenses decrease stockholders’ equity. Sierra records the rent pay-
ment by decreasing cash and increasing expenses to maintain the balance of the
accounting equation.

Basic The expense account Rent Expense is increased $900 because the payment pertains only to the current
Analysis month; the asset Cash is decreased $900.
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Equip- Notes Unearned Common Retained Earnings
Cash +  ment = Pay. +  Serv.Rev. + Stock & Rev. — Exp. — Div
$21,200 $5,000 $5,000 $1,200 $10,000 $10,000
6 —900 -$900 Rent
$20300 + $5000 = $5000 +  $1200 + $I0000 +  $10000 —  $900 Expense
$25,300 $25,300

EVENT (7). PURCHASE OF INSURANCE POLICY FOR CASH. On October 4, Sierra
paid $600 for a one-year insurance policy that will expire next year on Septem-
ber 30. Payments of expenses that will benefit more than one accounting period
are identified as assets called prepaid expenses or prepayments.

Aﬁ:f}i‘;is The asset Cash is decreased $600. The asset Prepaid Insurance is increased $600.
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities aF Stockholders’ Equity
Prepaid Equip- Notes Unearned Common Retained Earnings
Cash + Insurance + ment = Pay. +  Serv.Rev. + Stock 4 Rev. - Exp. — Diw
$20,300 $5,000 $5,000 $1,200 $10,000 $10,000 $900
@ —600 +$600
$19,700 + $600 + $5000 = $5000 + $1,200 + $10000 + $10,000 — $900
$25,300 $25,300

The balance in total assets did not change; one asset account decreased by the
same amount that another increased.
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EVENT (8). PURCHASE OF SUPPLIES ON ACCOUNT. On October 5, Sierra purchased
supplies on account from Aero Supply for $2,500. In this case, “on account” means
that the company receives goods or services that it will pay for at a later date.

AE:T;;S The asset Supplies is increased $2,500; the liability Accounts Payable is increased $2,500.
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities aF Stockholders’ Equity
Prepd. Equip- Notes Accounts Unearned Common Retained Earnings
Cash  + Supplies + Insun + ment = Pay. +  Payable + Serv.Rev. + Stock IF Rev. - Exp. — Div.
$19,700 $600 $5,000 $5,000 $1,200 $10,000 $10,000 $900
(8) +$2,500 - +$2,500 -
$19,700 + $2,500 + $600 + $5000 = $5000 + $2,500 + $1,200 + $10000 + $10,000 — $900
$27,800 $27,800
EVENT (9). HIRING OF NEW EMPLOYEES. On October 9, Sierra hired four new em-
ployees to begin work on October 15. Each employee will receive a weekly salary
of $500 for a five-day work week, payable every two weeks. Employees will re-
ceive their first paychecks on October 26. On the date Sierra hires the employ-
ees, there is no effect on the accounting equation because the assets, liabilities,
and stockholders’ equity of the company have not changed.
Basic An accounting transaction has not occurred. There is only an agreement that the employees will begin
Analysis work on October 15. (See Event (I 1) for the first payment.)
EVENT (10). PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND. On October 20, Sierra paid a $500 dividend.
Dividends are a reduction of stockholders’ equity but not an expense. Dividends
are not included in the calculation of net income. Instead, a dividend is a distri-
bution of the company’s assets to its stockholders.
Basic' The dividends account is increased $500; the asset Cash is decreased $500.
Analysis
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities aF Stockholders’ Equity
Sup- Prepd.  Equip- Notes Accts. Unearned Common Retained Earnings
Cash + plies + Insun + ment = Pay. + Pay. + Serv.Rev. + Stock + Rev. — Exp. — Div.
$19,700  $2,500 $600  $5,000  $5,000  $2,500 $1,200 $10,000 $10,000 $900
(10) —500 — $500
$19,200 + $2,500 + $600 + $5,000 = $5,000 + $2,500 + $1,200 + $10,000 + $10,000 — $900 — $500
$27,300 $27,300

EVENT (11). PAYMENT OF CASH FOR EMPLOYEE SALARIES. Employees have
worked two weeks, earning $4,000 in salaries, which were paid on October 26.
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Salaries Expense is an expense that reduces stockholders’ equity. This event is a
transaction because assets and stockholders’ equity are affected.

AE:IS)I':is The asset Cash is decreased $4,000; the expense account Salaries Expense is increased $4,000.
Equation
Analysis
Assets = Liabilities A Stockholders’ Equity
Sup- Prepd. Equip- Notes Accts. Unearned Common Retained Earnings

Cash + oplies + Insur. + ment = Pay. + Pay + Serv.Rev. + Stock + Rev. — Exp. — Diw

$19,200  $2,500 $600 $5,000 $5,000 $2,500 $1,200 $10,000 $10,000 $ 900 $500
(1) —4,000 — 4,000 Salaries

$15200 + $2,500 + $600 + $5000 = $5000 + $2,500 + $1,200 + $I10,000 + $10,000 — $4,900 — $500 Expense

$23,300 $23,300

Investor Insight
Why Accuracy Matters

While most companies record transactions very carefully, the reality is that
mistakes still happen. For example, bank regulators fined Bank One Corporation (now
Chase) $1.8 million because they felt that the unreliability of the bank’s accounting sys-
tem caused it to violate regulatory requirements.

Also, in recent years Fannie Mae, the government-chartered mortgage association, an-
nounced a series of large accounting errors. These announcements caused alarm among
investors, regulators, and politicians because they fear that the errors may suggest larger,
undetected problems. This is important because the home-mortgage market depends on
Fannie Mae to buy hundreds of billions of dollars of mortgages each year from banks, thus
enabling the banks to issue new mortgages.

Finally, before a major overhaul of its accounting system, the financial records of Waste
Management Company were in such disarray that of the company’s 57,000 employees,
10,000 were receiving pay slips that were in error.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was created to minimize the occurrence of errors like
these by increasing every employee’s responsibility for accurate financial reporting.

In order for these companies to prepare and issue financial statements, their ac-
m counting equations (debits and credits) must have been in balance at year-end.
How could these errors or misstatements have occurred? (See page 158.)

SUMMARY OF TRANSACTIONS

Ilustration 3-3 (page 110) summarizes the transactions of Sierra Corporation to
show their cumulative effect on the basic accounting equation. It includes the
transaction number in the first column on the left. The right-most column shows
the specific effect of any transaction that affects stockholders’ equity. Remem-
ber that Event (9) did not result in a transaction, so no entry is included for that
event. The illustration demonstrates three important points:

1. Each transaction is analyzed in terms of its effect on assets, liabilities, and
stockholders’ equity.

2. The two sides of the equation must always be equal.

3. The cause of each change in stockholders’ equity must be indicated.
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Illustration 3-3 Summary

of transactions

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Sup- Prepd.  Equip- Notes Accts. Unearned Common Retained Earnings
Cash + plies + Insur. + ment = Pay. + Pay. + Serv.Rev. + Stock + Rev. — Exp. — Diw
(1) +$10,000 = +$10,000 Issued stock
(2) +5,000 +$5,000
(3) —5,000 +$5,000
(4) +1,200 +$1,200
(5) +10,000 +$10,000 Service Revenue
(6) -900 —-$ 900 Rent Expense
(7) —600 +$600
(8) +$2,500 + $2,500
(10) —500 —$500 Dividends
(11) —4,000 —4,000 Salaries Expense

$15,200 + $2,500 + $600+ $5,000 = $5,000 + $2,500 + $1,200 + $10,000 + $10,000 — $4,900 — $500

$23,300

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

$23,300

DECISION TOOLKIT
INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION  TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION  HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Has an accounting transaction
occurred?

Details of the event Accounting equation If the event affected assets,
liabilities, or stockholders’ equity,
then record as a transaction.

before you go on...

m A tabular analysis of the transactions made by Roberta Mendez & Co.,

TRANSACTION
ANALYSIS a certified public accounting firm, for the month of August is shown below. Each increase
and decrease in stockholders’ equity is explained.
Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts Common Retained Earnings
Cash + Equipment = Payable + Stock + Revenue — Expenses
1.+$25,000 +$25,000 Issued stock
2. +$7,000 = +$7,000
3. +8,000 +$8,000 Service Revenue
4 -850 —$850  Rent Expense
$32,150 + $7,000 = $7,000 + $25,000 + $8,000 — $850
$39,150 $39,150
Action Plan Describe each transaction that occurred for the month.

* Analyze the tabular analysis to
determine the nature and effect
of each transaction.

* Keep the accounting equation in
balance.

* Remember that a change in an
asset will require a change in
another asset, a liability, or in
stockholders equity.

Solution

. The company issued shares of stock to stockholders for $25,000 cash.
. The company purchased $7,000 of equipment on account.

. The company received $8,000 of cash in exchange for services performed.

B W N =

. The company paid $850 for this month’s rent.

Related exercise material: BE3-1, BE3-2, BE3-3, m 3-1, E3-1, E3-2, E3-3, and E3-4.

Cd.ihe

navigator



The Account

Rather than using a tabular summary like the one in Illustration 3-3 for Sierra
Corporation, an accounting information system uses accounts. An account is an
individual accounting record of increases and decreases in a specific asset, lia-
bility, stockholders’ equity, revenue, or expense item. For example, Sierra Cor-
poration has separate accounts for Cash, Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable,
Service Revenue, Salaries Expense, and so on. (Note that whenever we are re-
ferring to a specific account, we capitalize the name.)

In its simplest form, an account consists of three parts: (1) the title of the
account, (2) a left or debit side, and (3) a right or credit side. Because the align-
ment of these parts of an account resembles the letter T, it is referred to as a
T account. The basic form of an account is shown in Illustration 3-4.

Title of Account

Left or debit side | Right or credit side

Cr

We use this form of account often throughout this book to explain basic ac-
counting relationships.

DEBITS AND CREDITS

The term debit indicates the left side of an account, and credit indicates the
right side. They are commonly abbreviated as Dr. for debit and Cr. for credit.
They do not mean increase or decrease, as is commonly thought. We use the
terms debit and credit repeatedly in the recording process to describe where en-
tries are made in accounts. For example, the act of entering an amount on the
left side of an account is called debiting the account. Making an entry on the
right side is crediting the account.

When comparing the totals of the two sides, an account shows a debit balance
if the total of the debit amounts exceeds the credits. An account shows a credit
balance if the credit amounts exceed the debits. Note the position of the debit side
and credit side in Hlustration 3-4.

The procedure of recording debits and credits in an account is shown in
Ilustration 3-5 for the transactions affecting the Cash account of Sierra Corpo-
ration. The data are taken from the Cash column of the tabular summary in
Ilustration 3-3.

Tabular Summary Account Form

Cash Cash
$10,000 (Debits) 10,000 | (Credits) 5,000
5,000 5,000 900
-5,000 1,200 600
1,200 10,000 500
10,000 4,000
-900
600 Balance 15,200
-500 (Debit)
—4,000
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study objective | 2

Explain what an account is
and how it helps in the
recording process.

lllustration 3-4 Basic
form of account

study objective | 3

Define debits and credits
and explain how they are
used to record business

transactions.

Illustration 3-5 Tabular
summary and account form
for Sierra Corporation’s
Cash account
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International Note Rules for
accounting for specific events
sometimes differ across countries.
For example, European companies
rely less on historical cost and
more on fair value than U.S.
companies. Despite the differences,
the double-entry accounting
system is the basis of accounting
systems worldwide.

lllustration 3-6 Debit
and credit effects—assets
and liabilities

lllustration 3-7 Normal
balances—assets and
liabilities

Every positive item in the tabular summary represents a receipt of cash; every
negative amount represents a payment of cash. Notice that in the account form
we record the increases in cash as debits, and the decreases in cash as cred-
its. For example, the $10,000 receipt of cash (in red) is debited to Cash, and the
—$5,000 payment of cash (in blue) is credited to Cash.

Having increases on one side and decreases on the other reduces recording
errors and helps in determining the totals of each side of the account as well as
the account balance. The balance is determined by netting the two sides (sub-
tracting one amount from the other). The account balance, a debit of $15,200,
indicates that Sierra had $15,200 more increases than decreases in cash. That
is, since it started with a balance of zero, it has $15,200 in its Cash account.

DEBIT AND CREDIT PROCEDURES

Each transaction must affect two or more accounts to keep the basic account-
ing equation in balance. In other words, for each transaction, debits must
equal credits. The equality of debits and credits provides the basis for the double-
entry accounting system.

Under the double-entry system, the two-sided effect of each transaction is
recorded in appropriate accounts. This system provides a logical method for record-
ing transactions. The double-entry system also helps to ensure the accuracy of the
recorded amounts and helps to detect errors such as those at Fidelity Investments
as discussed in the Feature Story. If every transaction is recorded with equal debits
and credits, then the sum of all the debits to the accounts must equal the sum of all
the credits. The double-entry system for determining the equality of the accounting
equation is much more efficient than the plus/minus procedure used earlier.

Dr./Cr. Procedures for Assets and Liabilities

In Ilustration 3-5 for Sierra Corporation, increases in Cash—an asset—were en-
tered on the left side, and decreases in Cash were entered on the right side. We
know that both sides of the basic equation (Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’
Equity) must be equal. It therefore follows that increases and decreases in liabil-
ities will have to be recorded opposite from increases and decreases in assets. Thus,
increases in liabilities must be entered on the right or credit side, and decreases
in liabilities must be entered on the left or debit side. The effects that debits and
credits have on assets and liabilities are summarized in Illustration 3-6.

Debits Credits
Increase assets Decrease assets
Decrease liabilities Increase liabilities

Asset accounts normally show debit balances. That is, debits to a specific
asset account should exceed credits to that account. Likewise, liability accounts
normally show credit balances. That is, credits to a liability account should
exceed debits to that account. The normal balances may be diagrammed as in
Illustration 3-7.

Assets Liabilities
Debit for | Credit for Debit for |Credit for
increase | decrease decrease | increase
Normal Normal
balance balance




Knowing which is the normal balance in an account may help when you are
trying to identify errors. For example, a credit balance in an asset account, such
as Land, or a debit balance in a liability account, such as Salaries Payable, usu-
ally indicates errors in recording. Occasionally, however, an abnormal balance
may be correct. The Cash account, for example, will have a credit balance when
a company has overdrawn its bank balance (written a check that “bounced”). In
automated accounting systems, the computer is programmed to flag violations
of the normal balance and to print out error or exception reports. In manual sys-
tems, careful visual inspection of the accounts is required to detect normal bal-
ance problems.

Dr./Cr. Procedures for Stockholders’ Equity

In Chapter 1, we indicated that stockholders’ equity is comprised of two parts:
common stock and retained earnings. In the transaction events earlier in this
chapter, you saw that revenues, expenses, and the payment of dividends affect
retained earnings. Therefore, the subdivisions of stockholders’ equity are: com-
mon stock, retained earnings, dividends, revenues, and expenses.

COMMON STOCK. Common stock is issued to investors in exchange for the stock-
holders’ investment. The common stock account is increased by credits and de-
creased by debits. For example, when cash is invested in the business, cash is
debited and common stock is credited. The effects of debits and credits on the
common stock account are shown in Illustration 3-8.

Debits Credits

Decrease Common Stock Increase Common Stock

The normal balance in the Common Stock account may be diagrammed as
in Hlustration 3-9.

Common Stock

Debit for | Credit for
decrease | increase

Normal
balance

RETAINED EARNINGS. Retained earnings is net income that is retained in the
business. It represents the portion of stockholders’ equity that has been accumu-
lated through the profitable operation of the company. Retained earnings is in-
creased by credits (for example, by net income) and decreased by debits (for ex-
ample, by a net loss), as shown in Illustration 3-10.

Debits Credits

Decrease Retained Earnings Increase Retained Earnings
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Helpful Hint The normal balance
is the side where increases in the
account are recorded.

lllustration 3-8 Debit
and credit effects—Common
Stock

lllustration 3-9 Normal
balance—Common Stock

lllustration 3-10 Debit
and credit effects—Retained
Earnings
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The normal balance for Retained Earnings may be diagrammed as in Illus-
tration 3-11.

lllustration 3-11  Normal

balance—Retained Earnings Retained Earnings

Debit for | Credit for
decrease | increase
Normal
balance

DIVIDENDS. A dividend is a distribution by a corporation to its stockholders. The
most common form of distribution is a cash dividend. Dividends result in a re-
duction of the stockholders’ claims on retained earnings. Because dividends re-
duce stockholders’ equity, increases in the Dividends account are recorded with
debits. As shown in Hlustration 3-12, the Dividends account normally has a debit
balance.

lllustration 3-12 Normal
balance—Dividends Dividends

Debit for | Credit for
increase | decrease

Normal
balance

REVENUES AND EXPENSES. When a company earns revenues, stockholders’ eq-
uity is increased. Revenue accounts are increased by credits and decreased by
debits.

Expenses decrease stockholders’ equity. Thus, expense accounts are in-
creased by debits and decreased by credits. The effects of debits and credits on
revenues and expenses are shown in Illustration 3-13.

lllustration 3-13 Debit
and credit effects—revenues
and expenses

Credits

Increase revenue
Decrease expenses

Debits

Decrease revenue
Increase expenses

Credits to revenue accounts should exceed debits; debits to expense accounts
should exceed credits. Thus, revenue accounts normally show credit balances,
and expense accounts normally show debit balances. The normal balances
may be diagrammed as in Tllustration 3-14.

lllustration 3-14 Normal

balances—revenues and Expenses Revenues

expenses Debit for | Credit for Debit for | Credit for
increase | decrease decrease | increase
Normal Normal
balance balance
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Investor Insight
Keeping Score

The Chicago Cubs baseball team has these major revenue and expense

accounts:
Revenues Expenses
Admissions (ticket sales) Players’ salaries
Concessions Administrative salaries
Television and radio Travel
Advertising Ballpark maintenance

Do you think that the Chicago Bears football team would be likely to have the
m same major revenue and expense accounts as the Cubs? (See page 158.)

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY RELATIONSHIPS

Companies report the subdivisions of stockholders’ equity in various places in

the financial statements:

e Common stock and retained earnings: in the stockholders’ equity section of
the balance sheet.

¢ Dividends: on the retained earnings statement.

e Revenues and expenses: on the income statement.

Dividends, revenues, and expenses are eventually transferred to retained earn-

ings at the end of the period. As a result, a change in any one of these three

items affects stockholders’ equity. Illustration 3-15 shows the relationships of the
accounts affecting stockholders’ equity.

Illustration 3-15
Stockholders’ equity

Balance Sheet relationships
Assets
Liabilities
Stockholder’s equity
Common stock 3 Investments by stockholders
> Retained eamings - Net income retained in the business

Income Statement

Revenues

Less: Expenses
Net income or net loss

Retained Earnings Statement

Begining retained earnings
Add: Net income ==

Less: Dividends
Ending retained earnings
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lllustration 3-16 Summary
of debit/credit rules

chapter 3 The Accounting Information System

SUMMARY OF DEBIT/CREDIT RULES

Illustration 3-16 summarizes the debit/credit rules and effects on each type of
account. Study this diagram carefully. It will help you understand the funda-
mentals of the double-entry system. No matter what the transaction, total deb-
its must equal total credits in order to keep the accounting equation in balance.

Basic

. Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Equation
@ Retained
:);I:ii:n:::ation Assets = Liabilities 4 ‘;::)TI? " + E:r:li:Zs _ Dividends 4+ Revenues _  Expenses
Dr.| Cr. Dr.| Cr. Dr. | Cr. Dr. | Cr. Dr. | Cr. Dr. | Cr. Dr. | Cr.
Debit / Credit + _ _ + _ + _ + + _ _ + + _
Rules

before you go on...

DEBITS AND CREDITS
FOR BALANCE SHEET
ACCOUNTS

Action Plan

* First identify asset accounts for
each different type of asset
invested in the business.

« Then identify liability accounts
for debts incurred by the
business.

* Remember that Hair It Is Inc.
will need only one stockholders’
equity account for common stock
when it begins the business.
The other stockholders’ equity
accounts will be needed only
after the business is operating.

study objective 4

Identify the basic steps in
the recording process.

m Kate Browne, president of Hair It Is Inc., has just rented space in a shop-

ping mall for the purpose of opening and operating a beauty salon. Long before opening
day and before purchasing equipment, hiring assistants, and remodeling the space, Kate
was strongly advised to set up a double-entry set of accounting records in which to record
all of her business transactions.

Identify the balance sheet accounts that Hair It Is Inc. will likely need to record the
transactions necessary to establish and open for business. Also, indicate whether the nor-
mal balance of each account is a debit or a credit.

Solution

Hair It Is Inc. would likely need the following accounts in which to record the trans-
actions necessary to establish and ready the beauty salon for opening day: Cash (debit
balance); Equipment (debit balance); Supplies (debit balance); Accounts Payable (credit
balance); Notes Payable (credit balance), if the business borrows money; and Common
Stock (credit balance).

Related exercise material: BE3-4, BE3-5, [¥:¥17] 3-2, and E3-7.
Y the
navigator

Steps in the Recording Process

Although it is possible to enter transaction information directly into the accounts,
few businesses do so. Practically every business uses these basic steps in the
recording process:

1. Analyze each transaction in terms of its effect on the accounts.

2. Enter the transaction information in a journal.

3. Transfer the journal information to the appropriate accounts in the ledger.



Steps in the Recording Process

The actual sequence of events begins with the transaction. Evidence of the
transaction comes in the form of a source document, such as a sales slip, a
check, a bill, or a cash register tape. This evidence is analyzed to determine the
effect of the transaction on specific accounts. The transaction is then entered
in the journal. Finally, the journal entry is transferred to the designated ac-
counts in the ledger. The sequence of events in the recording process is shown
in Illustration 3-17.

The Recording Process

Analyze each transaction

Enter transaction in a journal

THE JOURNAL

Transactions are initially recorded in chronological order in journals before they
are transferred to the accounts. For each transaction the journal shows the debit
and credit effects on specific accounts. (In a computerized system, journals are
kept as files, and accounts are recorded in computer databases.)

Companies may use various kinds of journals, but every company has at least
the most basic form of journal, a general journal. The journal makes three
significant contributions to the recording process:

1. Tt discloses in one place the complete effect of a transaction.
2. It provides a chronological record of transactions.
3. Tt helps to prevent or locate errors because the debit and credit amounts

for each entry can be readily compared.

Entering transaction data in the journal is known as journalizing. To illus-
trate the technique of journalizing, let’s look at the first three transactions of
Sierra Corporation in equation form.

On October 1, Sierra issued common stock in exchange for $10,000 cash:

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Common
Cash = Stock

+$10,000 +$10,000 Issued stock

117

lllustration 3-17 The
recording process

Transfer journal information
to ledger accounts

5

Explain what a journal is
and how it helps in the
recording process.

study objective

Ethics Note Business documents
provide evidence that transactions
actually occurred. International
Outsourcing Services, LLC, was
accused of submitting fraudulent
documents (store coupons) to
companies such as Kraft Foods
and PepsiCo for reimbursement of
as much as $250 million. Ensuring
that all recorded transactions are
backed up by proper business doc-
uments reduces the likelihood of
fraudulent activity.
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Illustration 3-18
Recording transactions in
journal form

On October 1, Sierra borrowed $5,000 by signing a note:

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Notes
Cash =  Payable
+$5,000 +$5,000

On October 2, Sierra purchased equipment for $5,000:

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Cash Equipment
—$5,000 +$5,000

Sierra makes separate journal entries for each transaction. A complete en-
try consists of: (1) the date of the transaction, (2) the accounts and amounts to
be debited and credited, and (3) a brief explanation of the transaction. These
transactions are journalized in Illustration 3-18.

GENERAL JOURNAL

Date Account Titles and Explanation Debit Credit
2012
Oct. 1 Cash 10,000
Common Stock 10,000
(Issued stock for cash)
1 Cash 5,000
Notes Payable 5,000
(Issued 3-month, 12% note payable for cash)
2 Equipment 5,000
Cash 5,000
(Purchased equipment for cash)

Note the following features of the journal entries.

1. The date of the transaction is entered in the Date column.

2. The account to be debited is entered first at the left. The account to be cred-
ited is then entered on the next line, indented under the line above. The in-
dentation differentiates debits from credits and decreases the possibility of
switching the debit and credit amounts.

3. The amounts for the debits are recorded in the Debit (left) column, and the
amounts for the credits are recorded in the Credit (right) column.

4. A brief explanation of the transaction is given.

It is important to use correct and specific account titles in journalizing.
Erroneous account titles lead to incorrect financial statements. Some flexibility
exists initially in selecting account titles. The main criterion is that each title
must appropriately describe the content of the account. For example, a company
could use any of these account titles for recording the cost of delivery trucks:
Equipment, Delivery Equipment, Delivery Trucks, or Trucks. Once the company
chooses the specific title to use, however, it should record under that account
title all subsequent transactions involving the account.
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€@mm Accounting Across the Organization
Boosting Microsoft’s Profits

Bryan Lee is head of finance at Microsoft's Home and Entertainment Division.
In recent years the division lost over $4 billion, mostly due to losses on the original Xbox
videogame player. With the Xbox 360 videogame player, Mr. Lee hoped the division would
become profitable. He set strict goals for sales, revenue, and profit. “A manager seeking
to spend more on a feature such as a disk drive has to find allies in the group to cut
spending elsewhere, or identify new revenue to offset the increase,’ he explains.

For example, Microsoft originally designed the new Xbox to have 256 megabytes
of memory. But the design department said that amount of memory wouldn't support
the best special effects. The purchasing department said that adding more memory
would cost $30—which was 10% of the estimated selling price of $300. But the mar-
keting department “determined that adding the memory would let Microsoft reduce
marketing costs and attract more game developers, boosting royalty revenue. It would
also extend the life of the console, generating more sales’” Microsoft doubled the memory
to 512 megabytes.

Source: Robert A. Guth, “New Xbox Aim for Microsoft: Profitability! Wall Street Journal (May 24, 2005), p. C1.

In what ways is this Microsoft division using accounting to assist in its effort to
m become more profitable? (See page 158.)

m The following events occurred during the first month of business of Hair

It Is Inc., Kate Browne’s beauty salon:

1. Issued common stock to shareholders in exchange for $20,000 cash.
2. Purchased $4,800 of equipment on account (to be paid in 30 days).
3. Interviewed three people for the position of beautician.

In what form (type of record) should the company record these three activities? Prepare
the entries to record the transactions.

Solution

Each transaction that is recorded is entered in the general journal. The three activities
are recorded as follows.

1. Cash 20,000
Common Stock 20,000
(Issued stock for cash)
2. Equipment 4,800
Accounts Payable 4,800

(Purchased equipment on account)

3. No entry because no transaction occurred.

Related exercise material: BE3-6, BE3-9, m 3-3, E3-6, E3-8, and E3-9.

THE LEDGER

The entire group of accounts maintained by a company is referred to collectively
as the ledger. The ledger keeps in one place all the information about changes
in specific account balances.

Companies may use various kinds of ledgers, but every company has a general
ledger. A general ledger contains all the assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity,
revenue, and expense accounts, as shown in Illustration 3-19 (page 120). Whenever
we use the term ledger in this textbook without additional specification, it will mean
the general ledger.

before you go on...

JOURNAL ENTRIES

Action Plan

« Record the transactions in a
journal, which is a chronological
record of the transactions.

* Make sure to provide a
complete and accurate
representation of the
transactions’ effects on the
assets, liabilities, and
stockholders’ equity of the
business.

@ the
navigator

study objective B

Explain what a ledger is
and how it helps in the
recording process.
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lllustration 3-19 The

general ledger
Individual Individual Individual
Asset Liability Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts Accounts Accounts

FSalaries Expense
Service Revenue
Dividends

I Retained Earnings

Common Stock

Interest Payable
Salaries Payable
Accounts Payable

Notes Payable

ii Supplies

Cash

CHART OF ACCOUNTS

The number and type of accounts used differ for each company, depending on the
size, complexity, and type of business. For example, the number of accounts de-
pends on the amount of detail desired by management. The management of one
company may want one single account for all types of utility expense. Another may
keep separate expense accounts for each type of utility expenditure, such as gas,
electricity, and water. A small corporation like Sierra Corporation will not have
many accounts compared with a corporate giant like Ford Motor Company. Sierra
may be able to manage and report its activities in 20 to 30 accounts, whereas Ford
requires thousands of accounts to keep track of its worldwide activities.

Most companies list the accounts in a chart of accounts. They may create new
accounts as needed during the life of the business. Illustration 3-20 shows the chart

lllustration 3-20 Chart of accounts for Sierra Corporation in the order that they are typically listed (assets,
of accounts for Sierra liabilities, stockholders’ equity, revenues, and expenses). Accounts shown in red
Corporation are used in this chapter; accounts shown in black are explained in later chapters.

SIERRA CORPORATION—CHART OF ACCOUNTS

Stockholders’

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Expenses
Cash Notes Payable Common Stock Service Revenue Salaries Expense
Accounts Receivable Accounts Payable Retained Earnings Supplies Expense
Supplies Interest Payable Dividends Rent Expense
Prepaid Insurance Unearned Income Summary Insurance Expense
Equipment Service Revenue Interest Expense
Accumulated Depreciation— Salaries Payable Depreciation Expense

Equipment

POSTING

study objective | '@ The Procedlfre of transferring jourr}al entry amounts to ledger accounts is c.alled
posting. This phase of the recording process accumulates the effects of jour-
nalized transactions in the individual accounts. Posting involves these steps:

Explain what posting is
and how it helps in the
recording process. 1. In the ledger, enter in the appropriate columns of the debited account(s) the

date and debit amount shown in the journal.

2. In the ledger, enter in the appropriate columns of the credited account(s) the
date and credit amount shown in the journal.

The Recording Process lllustrated

Ilustrations 3-21 through 3-31 on the following pages show the basic steps in
the recording process using the October transactions of Sierra Corporation.
Sierra’s accounting period is a month. A basic analysis and a debit—credit analysis
precede the journalizing and posting of each transaction. Study these transaction



The Recording Process lllustrated

analyses carefully. The purpose of transaction analysis is first to identify the
type of account involved and then to determine whether a debit or a credit
to the account is required. You should always perform this type of analysis be-
fore preparing a journal entry. Doing so will help you understand the journal en-
tries discussed in this chapter as well as more complex journal entries to be de-
scribed in later chapters.

&

Assets =

Accounting Gycle Tutorial |

THE ACCOUNTING EQUATION

Accounting Equation - lllustrated
Purchased delivery truck by paying $20,000 in cash,

$50,000
+20,000

$50,000

List @)

-20,000

Previous @ @ MNext

Stop @ Replay @

&

Event |

Basic
Analysis

Equation
Analysis

Debit—Credit
Analysis

Journal
Entry

Posting

On October |, stockholders invest $10,000 cash in an outdoor
guide service company to be known as Sierra Corporation.

The asset Cash is increased $10,000, and stockholders’ equity
(specifically Common Stock) is increased $10,000.

Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Common
Cash = Stock
(n +$10,000 +$10,000 Issued stock

Debits increase assets: debit Cash $10,000.
Credits increase stockholders’ equity: credit Common Stock $10,000.

Oct. | | Cash 10,000
Common Stock 10,000
(Issued stock for cash)
Cash Common Stock
Oct. | 10,000 Oct. | 10,000

121

PLUS
Accounting Cycle Tutorial

The diagrams in lllustrations
3-21 to 3-31 review the
accounting cycle. If you
would like additional
practice, an Accounting
Cycle Tutorial is available
on WileyPLUS. The
illustration to the left is an
example of a screen from
the tutorial.

lllustration 3-21
Investment of cash
by stockholders
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Illustration 3-22 Issue
of note payable

lllustration 3-23
Purchase of equipment

Event 2 On October |, Sierra borrows cash of $5,000 by signing
a 3-month, 12%, $5,000 note payable.
Basic The asset Cash is increased $5,000, and the liability Notes
Analysis Payable is increased $5,000.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equation - Notes
Analysis Cash = Payable
@) +$5,000 +$5,000
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Cash $5,000.
Analysis Credits increase liabilities: credit Notes Payable $5,000.
Journal Oct. | Cash 5,000
Notes Payable 5,000
S (Issued 3-month, 12% note
payable for cash)
Cash Notes Payable
Posting Oct. | 10,000 Oct. | 5,000
| 5,000
Event 3 On October 2, Sierra used $5,000 cash to purchase equipment.
Basic The asset Equipment is increased $5,000; the asset Cash
Analysis is decreased $5,000.
Stockholders’
Assets = Liabilities *+ Equity
E:ualtlo_n Cash  + Equipment
nalysts 3) —$5000 +$5,000
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Equipment $5,000.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Cash $5,000.
Journal Oct. 2 | Equipment 5,000
Entry Cash 5,000
(Purchased equipment
for cash)
Cash Equipment
Posting Oct. | 10,000 Oct.2 5,000 Oct. 2 5,000

| 5,000
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Event 4 On October 2, Sierra received a $1,200 cash advance from
R. Knox, a client, for guide services for multi-day trips that
are expected to be completed in the future.
The asset Cash is increased $1,200; the liability Unearned
Basi Service Revenue is increased $1,200 because the service has
An:flgis not been provided yet. That is, when an advance payment is
v received, an unearned revenue (a liability) should be recorded
in order to recognize the obligation that exists.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
EquatiO_n Unearned
Analysis Cash = Serv. Rev.
“) +$1,200 +$1,200
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Cash $1,200.
Analysis Credits increase liabilities: credit Unearned Service
Revenue $1,200.
Journal Oct.2 | Cash 1,200
Entry Unearned Service Revenue 1,200
(Received advance from
R. Knox for future service)
Cash Unearned Service Revenue
i Oct.|  10,000{Oct.2 5000 Oct.2 1,200
Posting | 5000
2 1,200
Event 5 On October 3, Sierra received $10,000 in cash from
Copa Company for guide services provided in October.
Basic The asset Cash is increased $10,000; the revenue Service
Analysis Revenue is increased $10,000.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equatlo.n Cash = Revenues
Analysis —_— — )
(5) +$10,000 +$10,000 Service Revenue
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Cash $10,000.
Analysis Credits increase revenues: credit Service Revenue $10,000.
Journal Oct. 3 |Cash 10,000
Entry Service Revenue 10,000
(Received cash for services
provided)
Cash Service Revenue
. Oct. | 10,000 | Oct. 2 5,000 Oct. 3 10,000
Posting | 5,000
2 1,200
3 10,000

lllustration 3-24
Receipt of cash in advance
from customer

Helpful Hint Many liabilities have
the word “payable” in their title.
But, note that Unearned Service
Revenue is considered a liability
even though the word payable is
not used.

Illustration 3-25
Services provided for cash
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lllustration 3-26
Payment of rent with cash

Illlustration 3-27
Purchase of insurance
policy with cash

Event 6 On October 3, Sierra paid office rent for October in cash, $900.
Basic The expense account Rent Expense is increased $900 because
Analysis the payment pertains only to the current month; the asset
Cash is decreased $900.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equatlo.n Cash = Expenses
Analysis —_— —_—
(6) -$900 —$900 Rent Expense
Debit—Credit Debits increase expenses: debit Rent Expense $900.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Cash $900.
Journal Oct. 3 | Rent Expense 900
Entry Cash 900
(Paid cash for October office
rent)
Cash Rent Expense
) Oct.|  10,000|Oct.2 5000 Oct.3 900
Posting | 5,000 3 900
2 1,200
3 10,000
Event 7 On October 4, Sierra paid $600 for a |-year insurance
policy that will expire next year on September 30.
The asset Cash is decreased $600. Payments of expenses that
will benefit more than one accounting period are identified as
Basic prepaid expenses or prepayments. When a payment is made,
Analysis an asset account is debited in order to show the service or
benefit that will be received in the future. Therefore, the
asset Prepaid Insurance is increased $600.
Stockholders’
Assets = Liabilities *+ Equity
Equation Prepaid
Analysis Cash *+ Insurance
7 -$600 +$600
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Prepaid Insurance $600.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Cash $600.
Journal Oct. 4 |Prepaid Insurance 600
Entry Cash 600
(Paid I-year policy; effective
date October 1)
Cash Prepaid Insurance
Oct. | 10,000 [Oct. 2 5000 Oct. 4 600
Posting I 5,000 8 900
2 1,200 4 600
3 10,000
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Event 8 On October 5, Sierra purchased an estimated 3 months of
supplies on account from Aero Supply for $2,500.
Basic The asset Supplies is increased $2,500; the liability Accounts
Analysis Payable is increased $2,500.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equation Accounts
Analysis Supplies = Payable
® +$2,500 +$2,500
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Supplies $2,500.
Analysis Credits increase liabilities: credit Accounts Payable $2,500.
Journal Oct. 5 | Supplies 2,500
Entry Accounts Payable 2,500
(Purchased supplies on
account from Aero Supply)
Supplies Accounts Payable
Posting Oct.5 2500 Oct.5 2,500
Event 9 On October 9, Sierra hired four employees to begin work on
October |5. Each employee will receive a weekly salary
of $500 for a 5-day work week, payable every 2 weeks—first
payment made on October 26.
An accounting transaction has not occurred. There is only an
Basi agreement that the employees will begin work on October |5.
asic : . o .
Analysis Thus, a debit—credit analysis is not needed because there is no

accounting entry. (See transaction of October 26 (Event Il) for
first payment.)

Illustration 3-28
Purchase of supplies on
account

lllustration 3-29 Hiring
of new employees
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lllustration 3-30
Payment of dividend

lllustration 3-31 Payment
of cash for employee
salaries

Event 10 On October 20, Sierra paid a $500 cash dividend to stockholders.
Basic The Dividends account is increased $500; the asset Cash is
Analysis decreased $500.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equatic?n Cash = Dividends
el (10) ~$500 ~$500
Debit—Credit Debits increase dividends: debit Dividends $500.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Cash $500.
Journal Oct. 20 Dividends 500
Cash 500
%57 (Declared and paid a cash
dividend)
Cash Dividends
X Oct. | 10,000 | Oct. 2 5000 Oct. 20 500
Posting | 5,000 3 900
2 1,200 4 600
3 10,000 20 500
Event | | On October 26, Sierra paid employee salaries of $4,000 in cash.
(See October 9 event.)
Basic The expense account Salaries Expense is increased $4,000; the
Analysis asset Cash is decreased $4,000.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equation Cash = Expenses
Analysis Py T4 (O Gl
(1 —$4,000 —$4,000 Salaries Expense
Debit—Credit Debits increase expenses: debit Salaries Expense $4,000.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Cash $4,000.
Journal Oct. 26 | Salaries Expense 4,000
Entry Cash 4,000
(Paid salaries to date)
Cash Salaries Expense
Oct. | 10,000 | Oct. 2 5000 Oct. 26 4,000
Pl | 5,000 3 900
8 2 1,200 4 600
3 10,000 20 500

26 4,000




SUMMARY ILLUSTRATION OF
JOURNALIZING AND POSTING

The journal for Sierra Corporation for the month of October is summarized in
Ilustration 3-32. The ledger is shown in Tllustration 3-33 (on page 128) with all

balances highlighted in red.

Date

GENERAL JOURNAL

Account Titles and Explanation

The Recording Process lllustrated 127

Debit

Credit

2012
Oct.

20

26

Cash
Common Stock
(Issued stock for cash)

Cash
Notes Payable
(Issued 3-month, 12% note payable for cash)
Equipment
Cash
(Purchased equipment for cash)

Cash
Unearned Service Revenue
(Received advance from R. Knox for future
service)

Cash
Service Revenue
(Received cash for services provided)

Rent Expense
Cash
(Paid cash for October office rent)

Prepaid Insurance
Cash
(Paid 1-year policy; effective date October 1)

Supplies
Accounts Payable
(Purchased supplies on account from Aero
Supply)
Dividends
Cash
(Paid a cash dividend)

Salaries Expense
Cash
(Paid salaries to date)

10,000

5,000

5,000

1,200

10,000

900

600

2,500

500

4,000

10,000

5,000

5,000

1,200

10,000

900

600

2,500

500

4,000

lllustration 3-32 General
journal for Sierra Corporation
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Illustration 3-33 General

ledger for Sierra Corporation GENERAL LEDGER
Cash Unearned Service Revenue
Oct. 1 10,000 | Oct. 2 5,000 Oct. 2 1,200
1 Gt
3 10,000 20 500
26 4,000
Bal. 15,200
Supplies Common Stock
Oct. 5 2,500 Oct. 1 10,000
Bal. 2,500 Bal. 10,000
Prepaid Insurance Dividends
Oct. 4 600 Oct. 20 500
Bal. 600 Bal. 500
Equipment Service Revenue
Oct. 2 5,000 Oct. 3 10,000
Bal. 5,000 Bal. 10,000
Notes Payable Salaries Expense
Oct. 1 5,000  Oct. 26 4,000
Bal. 5,000 Bal. 4,000
Accounts Payable Rent Expense
Oct. 5 2,500 Oct. 3 900
Bal. 2,500 Bal. 900

before you go on...

POSTING m Selected transactions from the journal of Faital Inc. during its first

month of operations are presented below. Post these transactions to T accounts.

Date Account Titles Debit Credit
July 1 Cash 30,000
Common Stock 30,000
9 Accounts Receivable 6,000
Service Revenue 6,000
24 Cash 4,000
Action Plan Accounts Receivable 4,000
« Journalize transactions to keep
track of financial activities Solution
(receipts, payments, receivables,
payables, etc.). Cash Accounts Receivable
* To make entries useful, classify ) ) | 1
and summarize them by posting 9 "Y 2‘1‘ 32883 July 9 GALY | lully 25 L

the entries to specific ledger
accounts. Common Stock Service Revenue

| July 1 30,000 | July 9 6,000
\UT-El!
prvan e Related exercise material: BE3-10, [2X-¥17] 3-4, and E3-11.




The Trial Balance

A trial balance lists accounts and their balances at a given time. A company
usually prepares a trial balance at the end of an accounting period. The accounts
are listed in the order in which they appear in the ledger. Debit balances are
listed in the left column and credit balances in the right column. The totals of
the two columns must be equal.

The trial balance proves the mathematical equality of debits and cred-
its after posting. Under the double-entry system this equality occurs when the
sum of the debit account balances equals the sum of the credit account balances.
A trial balance may also uncover errors in journalizing and posting. For ex-
ample, a trial balance may well have detected the error at Fidelity Investments
discussed in the Feature Story. In addition, a trial balance is useful in the
preparation of financial statements.

These are the procedures for preparing a trial balance:

. List the account titles and their balances.
Total the debit column and total the credit column.
Verify the equality of the two columns.

Illustration 3-34 presents the trial balance prepared from the ledger of Sierra
Corporation. Note that the total debits, $28,700, equal the total credits, $28,700.

SIERRA CORPORATION
Trial Balance
October 31, 2012

_Debit Credit
Cash $15,200
Supplies 2,500
Prepaid Insurance 600
Equipment 5,000
Notes Payable $ 5,000
Accounts Payable 2,500
Unearned Service Revenue 1,200
Common Stock 10,000
Dividends 500
Service Revenue 10,000
Salaries Expense 4,000
Rent Expense 900

$28,700 $28,700

LIMITATIONS OF A TRIAL BALANCE

A trial balance does not prove that all transactions have been recorded or that
the ledger is correct. Numerous errors may exist even though the trial balance
column totals agree. For example, the trial balance may balance even when any
of the following occurs: (1) a transaction is not journalized, (2) a correct journal
entry is not posted, (3) a journal entry is posted twice, (4) incorrect accounts are
used in journalizing or posting, or (5) offsetting errors are made in recording the
amount of a transaction. In other words, as long as equal debits and credits are
posted, even to the wrong account or in the wrong amount, the total debits will
equal the total credits. Nevertheless, despite these limitations, the trial balance is
a useful screen for finding errors and is frequently used in practice.

The Trial Balance 129

study objective

Explain the purposes of a
trial balance.

lllustration 3-34 Sierra
Corporation trial balance

Helpful Hint Note that the order
of presentation in the trial
balance is:

Assets

Liabilities

Stockholders’ equity

Revenues

Expenses

Ethics Note An error is the
result of an unintentional mistake;
it is neither ethical nor unethical.
An irregularity is an intentional
misstatement, which /s viewed

as unethical.



130 chapter 3 The Accounting Information System

DECISION TOOLKIT

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

How do you determine that debits  All account balances Trial balance List the account titles and their

equal credits?

KEEPING AN EYE

ON CASH

balances; total the debit and
credit columns; verify equality.

The Cash account shown below reflects all of the inflows and outflows of cash
that occurred during October. We have also provided a description of each trans-
action that affected the Cash account.

1. Oct. 1 Issued stock for $10,000 cash.

Cash 2. Oct. 1 Issued note payable for $5,000 cash.
Oct. i 1(5)888 Oct g 5 ggg 3. Oct. 2 Purchased equipment for $5,000 cash.
2 11200 4 600 4. Oct. 2 Received $1,200 cash in advance from customer.
3 10,000 20 500 5. Oct. 3 Received $10,000 cash for services provided.
A SL 6. Oct. 3 Paid $900 cash for October rent.
Bal. 15,200 7. Oct. 4 Paid $600 cash for one-year insurance policy.
8. Oct. 20 Paid $500 cash dividend to stockholders.

study objective | €

Classify cash activities as
operating, investing, or
financing.

9. Oct. 26 Paid $4,000 cash salaries.

The Cash account and the related cash transactions indicate why cash
changed during October. However, to make this information useful for analysis,
it is summarized in a statement of cash flows. The statement of cash flows clas-
sifies each transaction as an operating activity, an investing activity, or a financ-
ing activity. A user of this statement can then determine the amount of cash
provided by operations, the amount of cash used for investing purposes, and the
amount of cash provided by financing activities.

Operating activities are the types of activities the company performs to gen-
erate profits. Sierra Corporation is an outdoor guide business, so its operating
activities involve providing guide services. Activities 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9 relate to
cash received or spent to directly support its guide services.

Investing activities include the purchase or sale of long-lived assets used in
operating the business, or the purchase or sale of investment securities (stocks
and bonds of companies other than Sierra). Activity 3, the purchase of equip-
ment, is an investment activity.

The primary types of financing activities are borrowing money, issuing shares
of stock, and paying dividends. The financing activities of Sierra Corporation
are activities 1, 2, and 8.

d USING THE DECISION TOOLKIT

The Kansas Farmers’ Vertically Integrated Cooperative, Inc. (K-VIC) was formed by
over 200 northeast Kansas farmers in the late 1980s. Its purpose is to use raw ma-
terials, primarily grain and meat products grown by K-VIC's members, to process
this material into end-user food products, and to distribute the products nationally.
Profits not needed for expansion or investment are returned to the members annu-
ally, on a pro-rata basis, according to the fair value of the grain and meat products
received from each farmer.
Assume that the following trial balance was prepared for K-VIC.
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KANSAS FARMERS’ VERTICALLY INTEGRATED COOPERATIVE, INC.
Trial Balance
December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Debit Credit

Accounts Receivable $ 712,000
Accounts Payable $ 673,000
Buildings 365,000
Cash 32,000
Cost of Goods Sold 2,384,000
Notes Payable (due in 2013) 12,000
Inventory 1,291,000
Land 110,000
Mortgage Payable 873,000
Equipment 63,000
Retained Earnings 822,000
Sales Revenue 3,741,000
Salaries and Wages Payable 62,000
Salaries and Wages Expense 651,000
Maintenance and Repairs Expense 500,000

$6,108,000 $6,183,000

Because the trial balance is not in balance, you have checked with various people
responsible for entering accounting data and have discovered the following.

1. The purchase of 35 new trucks, costing $7 million and paid for with cash, was
not recorded.

2. A data entry clerk accidentally deleted the account name for an account with a
credit balance of $472 million, so the amount was added to the Mortgage Payable
account in the trial balance.

3. December cash sales revenue of $75 million was credited to the Sales Revenue
account, but the other half of the entry was not made.

4. $50 million of salaries expenses were mistakenly charged to Maintenance and
Repairs Expense.
Instructions

Answer these questions.

(a) Which mistake(s) have caused the trial balance to be out of balance?
(b) Should all of the items be corrected? Explain.
(c) What is the name of the account the data entry clerk deleted?

(d) Make the necessary corrections and prepare a correct trial balance with accounts
listed in proper order.

(e) On your trial balance, write BAL beside the accounts that go on the balance sheet
and INC beside those that go on the income statement.

Solution

(a) Only mistake #3 has caused the trial balance to be out of balance.

(b) All of the items should be corrected. The misclassification error (mistake #4) on
the salaries expense would not affect bottom-line net income, but it does affect
the amounts reported in the two expense accounts.

(¢) There is no Common Stock account, so that must be the account that was deleted
by the data entry clerk.

131
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(d) and (e):
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KANSAS FARMERS’ VERTICALLY INTEGRATED COOPERATIVE, INC.

Cash ($32,000 — $7,000 + $75,000)

Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Land

Equipment ($63,000 + $7,000)

Buildings
Accounts Payable

Salaries and Wages Payable
Notes Payable (due in 2013)
Mortgage Payable ($873,000 — $472,000)

Common Stock
Retained Earnings
Sales Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold

Salaries and Wages Expense
Maintenance and Repairs Expense

J the

Trial Balance
December 31, 2012
(in thousands)

Debit Credit

$ 100,000 BAL
712,000 BAL
1,291,000 BAL
110,000 BAL
70,000 BAL
365,000 BAL
$ 673,000 BAL
62,000 BAL
12,000 BAL
401,000 BAL
472,000 BAL
822,000 BAL
3,741,000 INC
2,384,000 INC
701,000 INC
450,000 INC

$6,183,000 $6,183,000

Summary of Study Objectives

1

Analyze the effect of business transactions on the basic
accounting equation. Each business transaction must
have a dual effect on the accounting equation. For
example, if an individual asset is increased, there must
be a corresponding (a) decrease in another asset, or
(b) increase in a specific liability, or (c) increase in
stockholders’ equity.

Explain what an account is and how it helps in the
recording process. An account is an individual ac-
counting record of increases and decreases in specific
asset, liability, and stockholders’ equity items.

Define debits and credits and explain how they are used
to record business transactions. The terms debit and
credit are synonymous with left and right. Assets, div-
idends, and expenses are increased by debits and de-
creased by credits. Liabilities, common stock, retained
earnings, and revenues are increased by credits and
decreased by debits.

Identify the basic steps in the recording process. The
basic steps in the recording process are: (a) analyze
each transaction in terms of its effect on the accounts,
(b) enter the transaction information in a journal, and
(¢) transfer the journal information to the appropri-
ate accounts in the ledger.

5 Explain what a journal is and how it helps in the record-

ing process. The initial accounting record of a trans-
action is entered in a journal before the data are
entered in the accounts. A journal (a) discloses in one
place the complete effect of a transaction, (b) provides
a chronological record of transactions, and (c) pre-
vents or locates errors because the debit and credit
amounts for each entry can be readily compared.

Explain what a ledger is and how it helps in the record-
ing process. The entire group of accounts maintained
by a company is referred to collectively as a ledger.
The ledger keeps in one place all the information
about changes in specific account balances.

Explain what posting is and how it helps in the record-
ing process. Posting is the procedure of transferring
journal entries to the ledger accounts. This phase of
the recording process accumulates the effects of jour-
nalized transactions in the individual accounts.

Explain the purposes of a trial balance. A trial balance is
a list of accounts and their balances at a given time. The
primary purpose of the trial balance is to prove the math-
ematical equality of debits and credits after posting. A
trial balance also uncovers errors in journalizing and
posting and is useful in preparing financial statements.



9 Classify cash activities as operating, investing, or
financing. Operating activities are the types of activi-
ties the company uses to generate profits. Investing
activities relate to the purchase or sale of long-lived
assets used in operating the business, or to the pur-
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chase or sale of investment securities (stock and bonds
of other companies). Financing activi-

ties are borrowing money, issuing g

shares of stock, and paying dividends. \4' the

navigator

DECISION TOOLKIT A SUMMARY

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION

Has an accounting transaction Details of the event

occurred?

How do you determine that All account balances

debits equal credits?

Glossary

Account (p. 111) An individual accounting record of
increases and decreases in specific asset, liability, stock-
holders’ equity, revenue or expense items.

Accounting information system (p. 102) The system
of collecting and processing transaction data and com-
municating financial information to decision makers.
Accounting transactions (p. 102) Events that require
recording in the financial statements because they affect
assets, liabilities, or stockholders’ equity.

Chart of accounts (p. 120) Alist of a company’s accounts.
Credit (p. 111) The right side of an account.

Debit (p. 111)
Double-entry system (p. /12) A system that records the
two-sided effect of each transaction in appropriate ac-
counts.

Comprehensive m

The left side of an account.

TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

If the event affected assets,
liahilities, or stockholders’ equity,
then record as a transaction.

Accounting equation

List the account titles and their
balances; total the debit and
credit colums; verify equality.

Trial balance

General journal (p. 11/7) The most basic form of journal.
General ledger (p. 119) A ledger that contains all as-
set, liability, stockholders’ equity, revenue, and expense
accounts.

Journal (p. 117) An accounting record in which trans-
actions are initially recorded in chronological order.
Journalizing (p. 117) The procedure of entering trans-
action data in the journal.

Ledger (p. 119) The group of accounts maintained by
a company.

Posting (p. 120) The procedure of transferring journal
entry amounts to the ledger accounts.

T account (p. 111) The basic form of an account.
Trial balance (p. 129) A list of accounts and their bal-
ances at a given time.

Bob Sample and other student investors opened Campus Carpet Cleaning, Inc. on
September 1, 2012. During the first month of operations, the following transactions

occurred.

Sept. 1

Stockholders invested $20,000 cash in the business.

2 Paid $1,000 cash for store rent for the month of September.
3 Purchased industrial carpet-cleaning equipment for $25,000, paying $10,000
in cash and signing a $15,000 6-month, 12% note payable.
4 Paid $1,200 for 1-year accident insurance policy.
10 Received bill from the Daily News for advertising the opening of the cleaning

service, $200.
15 Performed services on account for $6,200.
20 Paid a $700 cash dividend to stockholders.

30 Received $5,000 from customers billed on September 15.
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The chart of accounts for the company is the same as for Sierra Corporation except for
the following additional account: Advertising Expense.

Instructions

(a) Journalize the September transactions.
(b) Open ledger accounts and post the September transactions.

Action Plan (c) Prepare a trial balance at September 30, 2012.

* Proceed through the accounting
cycle in the following sequence:

1. Make separate journal entries

Solution to Comprehensive X4

for each transaction. (a) GENERAL JOURNAL
2. Note that all debits precede all Date Account Titles and Explanation Debit Credit
credit entries.
. o 2012
3.1 lizing, mak
s equal oredrs. Common Stock 20,000
4. In journalizing, use specific (Issued stock for cash)
account titles taken from the 2 | Rent Expense 1,000
chart of accounts. Cash 1,000
. Provide an appropriate explana- (Paid September rent)
tion of each journal entry. 3 | Equipment 25,000
6 A ledaer i Cash 10,000
. Arrange e. ggr in s.tatement Notes Payable 15,000
order, beginning with the (Purchased cleaning equipment for cash
balance sheet accounts. and 6-month, 12% note payable)
7. Post in chronological order. 4 Prepaid Insurance 1,200
8. Prepare a trial halance, which Cash " _ i 1,200
lists accounts in the order in (Paid 1-year insurance policy)
which they appear in the 10 | Advertising Expense 200
led Accounts Payable 200
edger. (Received bill from Daily News for
9. List debit balances in the left advertising)
column and credit balances in 15 Accounts Receivable 6,200
the right column. Service Revenue 6,200
(Services performed on account)
20 Dividends 700
Cash 700
(Declared and paid a cash dividend)
30 Cash 5,000
Accounts Receivable 5,000
(Collection of accounts receivable)
(b) GENERAL LEDGER
Cash Common Stock
Sept. 1 20,000 Sept. 2 1,000 Sept. 1 20,000
30 5,000 3 10,000
4 1’200 Bal. 20,000
20 700
Bal. 12,100
Accounts Receivable Dividends
Sept. 15 6,200 Sept. 30 5,000 Sept. 20 700
Bal. 1,200 Bal. 700
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Service Revenue

Sept. 4 1,200 Sept. 15 6,200
Bal. 1,200 Bal. 6,200
Equipment Advertising Expense
Sept. 3 25,000 Sept. 10 200
Bal. 25,000 Bal. 200
Notes Payable Rent Expense
Sept. 3 15,000 Sept. 2 1,000
Bal. 15,000 Bal. 1,000
Accounts Payable
Sept. 10 200
Bal. 200
() CAMPUS CARPET CLEANING, INC.
Trial Balance
September 30, 2012
Debit Credit
Cash $12,100
Accounts Receivable 1,200
Prepaid Insurance 1,200
Equipment 25,000
Notes Payable $15,000
Accounts Payable 200
Common Stock 20,000
Dividends 700
Service Revenue 6,200
Advertising Expense 200
Rent Expense 1,000
$41,400 $41,400

Self-Test Questions

Answers are on page 159.

1. The effects on the basic accounting equation of per-
forming services for cash are to:
(a) increase assets and decrease stockholders’ equity.
(b) increase assets and increase stockholders’ equity.
(c) increase assets and increase liabilities.
(d) increase liabilities and increase stockholders’
equity.

W the
navigator

Self-Test, Brief Exercises, Exercises, Problem Set A, and many

more resources are available for practice in WileyPLUS

2. Genesis Company buys a $900 machine on credit. (S0 1)

This transaction will affect the:

(a) income statement only.

(b) balance sheet only.

(c) income statement and retained earnings state-
ment only.

(d) income statement, retained earnings statement,
and balance sheet.



(S0 1)

(S0 1)

(S02)

(S03)

(S03)

(S03)

(S03)
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3.

4.

5.

7.

8.

Which of the following events is not recorded in the
accounting records?

(a) Equipment is purchased on account.

(b) An employee is terminated.

(c) A cash investment is made into the business.
(d) Company pays dividend to stockholders.

During 2012, Gibson Company assets decreased
$50,000 and its liabilities decreased $90,000. Its stock-
holders’ equity therefore:

(a) increased $40,000.

(b) decreased $140,000.

(c) decreased $40,000.

(d) increased $140,000.

Which statement about an account is true?

(a) In its simplest form, an account consists of two
parts.

(b) An account is an individual accounting record of

increases and decreases in specific asset, liability,

and stockholders’ equity items.

There are separate accounts for specific assets

and liabilities but only one account for stockhold-

ers’ equity items.

The left side of an account is the credit or de-

crease side.

(©)

(d)

. Debits:

(a) increase both assets and liabilities.
(b) decrease both assets and liabilities.
(c) increase assets and decrease liabilities.
(d) decrease assets and increase liabilities.

A revenue account:

(a) is increased by debits.

(b) is decreased by credits.

(¢) has a normal balance of a debit.
(d) is increased by credits.

Which accounts normally have debit balances?
(a) Assets, expenses, and revenues.

(b) Assets, expenses, and retained earnings.

(c) Assets, liabilities, and dividends.

(d) Assets, dividends, and expenses.

. Paying an account payable with cash affects the com-

ponents of the accounting equation in the following

way:

(a) Decreases stockholders’ equity and decreases
liabilities.

(b) Increases assets and decreases liabilities.

(c) Decreases assets and increases stockholders’ equity.

(d) Decreases assets and decreases liabilities.

Questions

1.
2.

3.

Describe the accounting information system.

Can a business enter into a transaction that affects
only the left side of the basic accounting equation?
If so, give an example.

@——C Are the following events recorded in the
accounting records? Explain your answer in each
case.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

4.

Which is not part of the recording process?
(a) Analyzing transactions.

(b) Preparing a trial balance.

(c) Entering transactions in a journal.

(d) Posting transactions.

Which of these statements about a journal is false?
(a) It contains only revenue and expense accounts.
(b) It provides a chronological record of transactions.
(c) It helps to locate errors because the debit and
credit amounts for each entry can be readily
compared.

It discloses in one place the complete effect of a
transaction.

A ledger:

(a) contains only asset and liability accounts.

(b) should show accounts in alphabetical order.

(c) is a collection of the entire group of accounts
maintained by a company.

(d) provides a chronological record of transactions.

(d)

Posting:

(a) normally occurs before journalizing.

(b) transfers ledger transaction data to the journal.
(c) is an optional step in the recording process.

(d) transfers journal entries to ledger accounts.

@——& A trial balance:

(a) is alist of accounts with their balances at a given
time.

(b) proves that proper account titles were used.

(c) will not balance if a correct journal entry is
posted twice.

(d) proves that all transactions have been recorded.

@——C A trial balance will not balance if:

(a) a correct journal entry is posted twice.

(b) the purchase of supplies on account is debited to
Supplies and credited to Cash.

(c) a $100 cash dividend is debited to Dividends for
$1,000 and credited to Cash for $100.

(d) a $450 payment on account is debited to
Accounts Payable for $45 and credited to Cash
for $45.

Go to the book’s companion website,
www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, to access
additional Self-Test Questions.

J the
navigator

(a) A major stockholder of the company dies.

(b) Supplies are purchased on account.

(c) An employee is fired.

(d) The company pays a cash dividend to its stock-
holders.

Indicate how each business transaction affects the
basic accounting equation.

(a) Paid cash for janitorial services.

(b) Purchased equipment for cash.

(S0 4)

(S0 5)

(S0 6)

(S07)

(80 8)

(80 8)
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10.

11.

12.

13.

(c) Issued common stock to investors in exchange
for cash.
(d) Paid an account payable in full.

. Why is an account referred to as a T account?

. The terms debit and credit mean “increase” and “de-
crease,” respectively. Do you agree? Explain.

. James Quest, a fellow student, contends that the
double-entry system means each transaction must
be recorded twice. Is James correct? Explain.

. Gayle Weir, a beginning accounting student, believes
debit balances are favorable and credit balances are
unfavorable. Is Gayle correct? Discuss.

. State the rules of debit and credit as applied to (a)
asset accounts, (b) liability accounts, and (c) the
common stock account.

What is the normal balance for each of these
accounts?

(a) Accounts Receivable.

(b) Cash.

(c) Dividends.

(d) Accounts Payable.

(e) Service Revenue.

(f) Salaries and Wages Expense.

(g) Common Stock.

Indicate whether each account is an asset, a liabil-
ity, or a stockholders’ equity account, and whether
it would have a normal debit or credit balance.

(a) Accounts Receivable. (d) Dividends.

(b) Accounts Payable. (e) Supplies.

(c) Equipment.

For the following transactions, indicate the account
debited and the account credited.

(a) Supplies are purchased on account.

(b) Cash is received on signing a note payable.

(c) Employees are paid salaries in cash.

For each account listed here, indicate whether it
generally will have debit entries only, credit entries
only, or both debit and credit entries.

(a) Cash.

(b) Accounts Receivable.

(¢) Dividends.

(d) Accounts Payable.

Brief Exercises

BE3-1

assets, liabilities, and stockholders’ equity.
(a) Purchased supplies on account.
(b) Received cash for providing a service.

(©

BE3-2 During 2012, Gavin Corp. entered into the following transactions.

BN

Expenses paid in cash.

. Borrowed $60,000 by issuing bonds.
Paid $9,000 cash dividend to stockholders.

. Purchased supplies on account for $3,100.

14.

15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

20.
21.

22.

Presented below are three economic events. On a sheet of paper, list the letters
(a), (b), and (c) with columns for assets, liabilities, and stockholders’ equity. In each col-
umn, indicate whether the event increased (+), decreased (—), or had no effect (NE) on

Received $13,000 cash from a previously billed customer for services provided.
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(e) Salaries and Wages Expense.
(f) Service Revenue.

7" What are the normal balances for the
following accounts of Tootsie Roll Industries? (a) Ac-
counts Receivable, (b) Income Taxes Payable, (c) Sales,
and (d) Selling, Marketing, and Administrative
Expenses.

What are the basic steps in the recording process?

(a) When entering a transaction in the journal,
should the debit or credit be written first?
(b) Which should be indented, the debit or the credit?

(a) Should accounting transaction debits and credits
be recorded directly in the ledger accounts?

(b) What are the advantages of first recording transac-
tions in the journal and then posting to the ledger?

Journalize these accounting transactions.

(a) Stockholders invested $12,000 in the business in
exchange for common stock.

(b) Insurance of $800 is paid for the year.

(c) Supplies of $1,800 are purchased on account.

(d) Cash of $7,500 is received for services rendered.

(a) What is a ledger?
(b) Why is a chart of accounts important?

What is a trial balance and what are its purposes?

Kevin Haden is confused about how accounting in-
formation flows through the accounting system. He
believes information flows in this order:

(a) Debits and credits are posted to the ledger.

(b) Accounting transaction occurs.

(c) Information is entered in the journal.

(d) Financial statements are prepared.

(e) Trial balance is prepared.

Indicate to Kevin the proper flow of the information.

€&——C€ Two students are discussing the use of a
trial balance. They wonder whether the following
errors, each considered separately, would prevent
the trial balance from balancing. What would you
tell them?
(a) The bookkeeper debited Cash for $600 and cred-
ited Wages Expense for $600 for payment of wages.
(b) Cash collected on account was debited to Cash for
$800, and Service Revenue was credited for $80.

Determine effect of
transactions on basic
accounting equation.

(S01),C
(& m—

Determine effect of
transactions on basic
accounting equation.

(S01), AP
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Determine effect of
transactions on basic
accounting equation.

(S0 1), AP

Indicate debit and credit
effects.

(803), K

Identify accounts to be
debited and credited.

S03),C

Journalize transactions.
(S0 5), AP

Identify steps in the
recording process.

(S04),C

Indicate basic debit—credit
analysis.

(S04),C

Journalize transactions.

(S0 5), AP

Post journal entries to
T accounts.

(S0 7), AP

Using the following tabular analysis, show the effect of each transaction on the account-
ing equation. Put explanations for changes to Stockholders’ Equity in the right-hand mar-
gin. For Retained Earnings, use separate columns for Revenues, Expenses, and Dividends
if necessary. Use Illustration 3-3 (page 110) as a model.

Liabilities
Accounts Accounts Bonds
Cash + Receivable + Supplies = Payable + Payable +

Assets + Stockholders’ Equity

Common Retained
Stock + Earnings

BE3-3 During 2012, Newberry Company entered into the following transactions.
1. Purchased equipment for $286,176 cash.
2. Issued common stock to investors for $137,590 cash.
3. Purchased inventory of $68,480 on account.

Using the following tabular analysis, show the effect of each transaction on the account-
ing equation. Put explanations for changes to Stockholders’ Equity in the right-hand mar-
gin. For Retained Earnings, use separate columns for Revenues, Expenses, and Dividends
if necessary. Use Illustration 3-3 (page 110) as a model.

Assets Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity

Retained
+ Earnings

Accounts Common

Cash + Inventory + Equipment = Payable +  Stock

BE3-4 For each of the following accounts, indicate the effect of a debit or a credit on
the account and the normal balance.

(a) Accounts Payable. (d) Accounts Receivable.

(b) Advertising Expense. (e) Retained Earnings.

(c¢) Service Revenue. (f) Dividends.

BE3-5 Transactions for Marlin Company for the month of June are presented below.
Identify the accounts to be debited and credited for each transaction.

June 1 Issues common stock to investors in exchange for $5,000 cash.
2 Buys equipment on account for $1,100.
3 Pays $740 to landlord for June rent.
12 Bills Matt Wilfer $700 for welding work done.

BE3-6 Use the data in BE3-5 and journalize the transactions. (You may omit explanations.)

BE3-7 Eugenie Steckler, a fellow student, is unclear about the basic steps in the record-
ing process. Identify and briefly explain the steps in the order in which they occur.

BE3-8 Acker Corporation has the following transactions during August of the current
year. Indicate (a) the basic analysis and (b) the debit-credit analysis illustrated on
pages 121-126.
Aug. 1 Issues shares of common stock to investors in exchange for $10,000.
4 Pays insurance in advance for 3 months, $1,500.
16 Receives $900 from clients for services rendered.
27 Pays the secretary $620 salary.

BE3-9 Use the data in BE3-8 and journalize the transactions. (You may omit explanations.)

BE3-10 Selected transactions for Rojas Company are presented below in journal form
(without explanations). Post the transactions to T accounts.

Date Account Title Debit | Credit

May 5 | Accounts Receivable 3,800
Service Revenue 3,800

12 | Cash 1,600
Accounts Receivable 1,600

15 | Cash 2,000
Service Revenue 2,000




BE3-11 From the ledger balances below, prepare a trial balance for Lyndon Company
at June 30, 2012. All account balances are normal.

Accounts Payable $ 1,000 Service Revenue $8,600
Cash 5,400 Accounts Receivable 3,000
Common Stock 18,000 Salaries and Wages Expense 4,000
Dividends 1,200 Rent Expense 1,000
Equipment 13,000

BE3-12 An inexperienced bookkeeper prepared the following trial balance that does not
balance. Prepare a correct trial balance, assuming all account balances are normal.

PELICAN COMPANY
Trial Balance
December 31, 2012

Debit Credit

Cash $20,800
Prepaid Insurance $ 3,500
Accounts Payable 2,500

Unearned Service Revenue 1,800
Common Stock 10,000
Retained Earnings 6,600
Dividends 5,000
Service Revenue 25,600

Salaries and Wages Expense 14,600
Rent Expense 2,600
$37,200 $55,800

XX Review

m 3-1 Transactions made by Leonardo Bloom Co. for the month of March are
shown below. Prepare a tabular analysis that shows the effects of these transactions on
the expanded accounting equation, similar to that shown in Illustration 3-3 (page 110).

1. The company provided $20,000 of services for customers on account.

2. The company received $20,000 in cash from customers who had been billed for ser-
vices [in transaction (1)].

3. The company received a bill for $1,800 of advertising but will not pay it until a later date.

4. Leonardo Bloom Co. paid a cash dividend of $3,000.

XX 3-2  Phil Eubanks has just rented space in a strip mall. In this space, he will open
a photography studio, to be called Picture This! A friend has advised Phil to set up a double-
entry set of accounting records in which to record all of his business transactions.

Identify the balance sheet accounts that Phil will likely need to record the transac-
tions needed to open his business (a corporation). Indicate whether the normal balance
of each account is a debit or credit.

m 3-3  Phil Eubanks engaged in the following activities in establishing his photog-
raphy studio, Picture This!:

1. Opened a bank account in the name of Picture This! and deposited $8,000 of his own
money into this account in exchange for common stock.

2. Purchased photography supplies at a total cost of $950. The business paid $400 in
cash, and the balance is on account.

3. Obtained estimates on the cost of photography equipment from three different man-
ufacturers.

In what form (type of record) should Phil record these three activities? Prepare the en-
tries to record the transactions.

Do it! Review 139

Prepare a trial balance.

(S0 8), AP

Prepare a corrected trial
balance.

(S0 8), AP
ae—=C

Prepare tabular analysis.

(801),C

Identify normal balances.

(8023),C

Record business activities.

(S0 4, 5), AP
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Post transactions.
(S0 6,7), AP

Analyze the effect of
transactions.

(S01),C

Analyze the effect of
transactions on assets,
liabilities, and stockholders’
equity.

(S0 1), AP

XX 3-4  Phil Eubanks recorded the following transactions during the month of April.

Apr. 3 Cash 3,400
Service Revenue 3,400

16 Rent Expense 500
Cash 500

20 Salaries and Wages Expense 300
Cash 300

Post these entries to the Cash account of the general ledger to determine the ending bal-
ance in cash. The beginning balance in cash on April 1 was $1,900.

Exercises

E3-1 Selected transactions for Arnett Advertising Company, Inc., are listed here.

—_

Issued common stock to investors in exchange for cash received from investors.
Paid monthly rent.

Received cash from customers when service was provided.

Billed customers for services performed.

Paid dividend to stockholders.

Incurred advertising expense on account.

Received cash from customers billed in (4).

Purchased additional equipment for cash.

Purchased equipment on account.

VPN kW

Instructions
Describe the effect of each transaction on assets, liabilities, and stockholders’ equity. For
example, the first answer is: (1) Increase in assets and increase in stockholders’ equity.

E3-2 Delmont Company entered into these transactions during May 2012.

1. Purchased computers for office use for $30,000 from Dell on account.

Paid $4,000 cash for May rent on storage space.

Received $12,000 cash from customers for contracts billed in April.

Provided computer services to Lawton Construction Company for $5,000 cash.
Paid Southern States Power Co. $8,000 cash for energy usage in May.

Stockholders invested an additional $40,000 in the business in exchange for com-
mon stock of the company.

7. Paid Dell for the computers purchased in (1).

8. Incurred advertising expense for May of $1,300 on account.

ounbhwd

Instructions

Using the following tabular analysis, show the effect of each transaction on the account-
ing equation. Put explanations for changes to Stockholders’ Equity in the right-hand mar-
gin. Use Illustration 3-3 (page 110) as a model.

Assets = Liabilities  + Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts Accounts Common Retained Earnings
Cash + Receivable + Equipment = Payable + Stock + Revenues —  Expenses — Dividends

Determine effect of
transactions on basic
accounting equation.

(S0°1), AP

E3-3 During 2012, its first year of operations as a delivery service, Underwood Corp.
entered into the following transactions.

1. Issued shares of common stock to investors in exchange for $100,000 in cash.
Borrowed $45,000 by issuing bonds.

Purchased delivery trucks for $60,000 cash.

Received $16,000 from customers for services provided.

Purchased supplies for $4,700 on account.

Paid rent of $5,200.

Performed services on account for $10,000.

Nounbhwhb



Exercises 141

8. Paid salaries of $28,000.
9. Paid a dividend of $11,000 to shareholders.

Instructions

Using the following tabular analysis, show the effect of each transaction on the account-
ing equation. Put explanations for changes to Stockholders’ Equity in the right-hand mar-
gin. Use Illustration 3-3 (page 110) as a model.

Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts Equip- Accounts Bonds Common Retained Earnings
Cash + Receivable + Supplies + ment = Payable + Payable + Stock 4+ Revenues — Expenses — Dividends

E3-4 A tabular analysis of the transactions made during August 2012 by Nigel Com-  Analyze transactions and
pany during its first month of operations is shown below. Each increase and decrease in ~ compute net income.

stockholders’ equity is explained. (S0 1), AP
Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Accounts Common Retained Earnings
Cash + A/R + Supp. + Equip. = Payable + Stock + Rev. - Exp. - Diw
1. +$20,000 +$20,000 Com. Stock
2. —1,000 +$5,000 +$4,000
3. =750 +$750
4. +4,100 +$5,400 +$9,500 Serv. Rev.
5. —1,500 -1,500
6. —2,000 —$2,000 Div.
7. —800 -$ 800 Rent Exp.
8. +450 —450
9. —3,000 —3,000 Sal. Exp.
10. +300 -300 Util. Exp.
Instructions

(a) Describe each transaction.
(b) Determine how much stockholders’ equity increased for the month.
(c) Compute the net income for the month.

E3-5 The tabular analysis of transactions for Nigel Company is presented in E3-4. Prepare an income

statement, retained earnings

Instructions statement, and balance sheet.
Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for August and a classi- (S0 1), AP

fied balance sheet at August 31, 2012.

E3-6 Selected transactions for Home Place, an interior decorator corporation, in its Identify debits, credits,

first month of business, are as follows. qnd nor.mal balanc.es and
1. Issued stock to investors for $15,000 in cash. ]( cs)ggmﬁz)lzieptmnsacnons.

Purchased used car for $10,000 cash for use in business.
Purchased supplies on account for $300.

Billed customers $3,700 for services performed.

Paid $200 cash for advertising start of the business.

Received $1,100 cash from customers billed in transaction (4).
Paid creditor $300 cash on account.

8. Paid dividends of $400 cash to stockholders.

Instructions

(a) For each transaction indicate (a) the basic type of account debited and credited (as-
set, liability, stockholders’ equity); (b) the specific account debited and credited (Cash,
Rent Expense, Service Revenue, etc.); (¢c) whether the specific account is increased
or decreased; and (d) the normal balance of the specific account. Use the format
shown on page 142, in which transaction 1 is given as an example.

Nounbkwhbh
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Analyze transactions and
determine their effect on
accounts.

(803),C

Journalize transactions.
(S0 5), AP

Journalize a series of
transactions.

(803, 4,5), AP

Post journal entries and
prepare a trial balance.

(807, 8), AP

Analyze transactions, prepare
journal entries, and post
transactions to T accounts.

(801,5,7), AP

Journalize transactions from
T accounts and prepare a
trial balance.

(S0 5, 8), AP
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Account Debited Account Credited
(a) (b) (c) (d) (a) (b) (c) (d)

Trans- Basic Specific Normal Basic Specific Normal
action Type Account Effect Balance Type Account Effect Balance
1 Asset Cash  Increase Debit  Stock- Common Increase  Credit
holders’”  Stock
equity

(b) Journalize the transactions. Do not provide explanations.
E3-7 This information relates to Plunkett Real Estate Agency.

Oct. 1 Stockholders invest $30,000 in exchange for common stock of the corporation.
2 Hires an administrative assistant at an annual salary of $36,000.
3 Buys office furniture for $3,800, on account.
6 Sells a house and lot for M.E. Petty; commissions due from Petty, $10,800
(not paid by Petty at this time).
10 Receives cash of $140 as commission for acting as rental agent renting an
apartment.
27 Pays $700 on account for the office furniture purchased on October 3.
30 Pays the administrative assistant $3,000 in salary for October.

Instructions
Prepare the debit-credit analysis for each transaction, as illustrated on pages 121-126.

E3-8 Transaction data for Plunkett Real Estate Agency are presented in E3-7.

Instructions
Journalize the transactions. Do not provide explanations.

E3-9 The May transactions of StepAside Corporation were as follows.

May 4 Paid $700 due for supplies previously purchased on account.
7 Performed advisory services on account for $6,800.
8 Purchased supplies for $850 on account.
9 Purchased equipment for $1,000 in cash.
17 Paid employees $530 in cash.
22 Received bill for equipment repairs of $900.
29 Paid $1,200 for 12 months of insurance policy. Coverage begins June 1.

Instructions
Journalize the transactions. Do not provide explanations.

E3-10 Transaction data and journal entries for Plunkett Real Estate Agency are pre-
sented in E3-7 and E3-8.

Instructions
(a) Post the transactions to T accounts.
(b) Prepare a trial balance at October 31, 2012.

E3-11 Selected transactions for Charlotte Corporation during its first month in busi-
ness are presented below.

Sept. 1 Issued common stock in exchange for $20,000 cash received from investors.
5 Purchased equipment for $9,000, paying $3,000 in cash and the balance
on account.
25 Paid $4,000 cash on balance owed for equipment.
30 Paid $500 cash dividend.

Charlotte’s chart of accounts shows: Cash, Equipment, Accounts Payable, Common Stock,
and Dividends.

Instructions

(a) Prepare a tabular analysis of the September transactions. The column headings
should be: Cash + Equipment = Accounts Payable + Stockholders’ Equity. For trans-
actions affecting stockholders’ equity, provide explanations in the right margin, as
shown on page 110.

(b) Journalize the transactions. Do not provide explanations.

(c) Post the transactions to T accounts.

E3-12 The T accounts on the next page summarize the ledger of McGregor Gardening
Company, Inc. at the end of the first month of operations.



Cash Unearned Service Revenue
Apr. 1 15,000 | Apr. 15 800 Apr. 30 900
12 700 25 3,500
29 800
30 900
Accounts Receivable Common Stock
Apr. 7 3,400 | Apr. 29 800 | Apr. 1 15,000
Supplies Service Revenue
Apr. 4 5200 Apr. 7 3,400
12 700
Accounts Payable Salaries and Wages Expense
Apr. 25 3500 | Apr 4 5200 Apr 15 800 |
Instructions

(a) Prepare in the order they occurred the journal entries (including explanations) that

resulted in the amounts posted to the accounts.

(b) Prepare a trial balance at April 30, 2012. (Hint: Compute ending balances of T accounts

first.)

E3-13 Selected transactions from the journal of Galaxy Inc. during its first month of

operations are presented here.

Date Account Titles Debit Credit
Aug. 1 Cash 8,000
Common Stock 8,000
10 Cash 1,700
Service Revenue 1,700
12 Equipment 6,200
Cash 1,200
Notes Payable 5,000
25 Accounts Receivable 3,400
Service Revenue 3,400
31 Cash 600
Accounts Receivable 600
Instructions
(a) Post the transactions to T accounts.
(b) Prepare a trial balance at August 31, 2012.
E3-14 Here is the ledger for Stampfer Co.
Cash Common Stock
Oct. 1 7,000 | Oct. 4 400 Oct. 1 7,000
10 980 12 1,500 25 2,000
10 8,000 15 250
20 700 30 300
25 2,000 31 500
Accounts Receivable Dividends
Oct. 6 800 | Oct. 20 700  Oct. 30 300
20 920
Supplies Service Revenue
Oct. 4 400 | Oct. 31 180 Oct. 6 800
10 980
20 920
Equipment Salaries and Wages Expense
Oct. 3 3,000 | Oct. 31 500 |
Notes Payable Supplies Expense
| Oct. 10 8,000 Oct. 31 180 |
Accounts Payable Rent Expense
Oct. 12 1500 | Oct. 3 3,000 Oct. 15 250 |

Exercises 143

Post journal entries and
prepare a trial balance.

(S0°T7,8), AP

Journalize transactions from
T accounts and prepare a
trial balance.

(805, 8), AP
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Analyze errors and their
effects on trial balance.

(S0 8), AN
(@ m—

Prepare a trial balance and
financial statements.

(S0 8), AP
(@ m—

Identify normal account
balance and corresponding
financial statement.

(803), K

Classify transactions as
cash-flow activities.

(S0 9), AP

Classify transactions as
cash-flow activities.

(S0°9), AP

Instructions

(a) Reproduce the journal entries for only the transactions that occurred on October 1,
10, and 20, and provide explanations for each.

(b) Prepare a trial balance at October 31, 2012. (Hint: Compute ending balances of T ac-
counts first.)

E3-15 The bookkeeper for Bullwinkle Corporation made these errors in journalizing
and posting.
1. A credit posting of $400 to Accounts Receivable was omitted.
2. A debit posting of $750 for Prepaid Insurance was debited to Insurance Expense.
3. A collection on account of $100 was journalized and posted as a debit to Cash $100
and a credit to Accounts Payable $100.
4. A credit posting of $300 to Property Taxes Payable was made twice.
5. A cash purchase of supplies for $250 was journalized and posted as a debit to Sup-
plies $25 and a credit to Cash $25.
6. A debit of $395 to Advertising Expense was posted as $359.

Instructions

For each error, indicate (a) whether the trial balance will balance; if the trial balance will
not balance, indicate (b) the amount of the difference, and (c) the trial balance column
that will have the larger total. Consider each error separately. Use the following form, in
which error 1 is given as an example.

(a) (b) (c)
Error In Balance Difference Larger Column
1 No $400 Debit

E3-16 The accounts in the ledger of Roshek Delivery Service contain the following
balances on July 31, 2012.

Accounts Receivable $13,400 Prepaid Insurance $ 2,200
Accounts Payable 8,400 Service Revenue 15,500
Cash ? Dividends 700
Equipment 59,360 Common Stock 40,000
Maintenance and Salaries and Wages Expense 7,428
Repairs Expense 1,958 Salaries and Wages Payable 820
Insurance Expense 900 Retained Earnings 5,200
Notes Payable (due 2015) 28,450 (July 1, 2012)
Instructions

(a) Prepare a trial balance with the accounts arranged as illustrated in the chapter, and
fill in the missing amount for Cash.

(b) Prepare an income statement, a retained earnings statement, and a classified balance
sheet for the month of July 2012.

E3-17 The following accounts, in alphabetical order, were selected from recent financial
statements of Krispy Kreme Doughnuts, Inc.

Accounts payable Interest income
Accounts receivable Inventories

Common stock Prepaid expenses
Depreciation expense Property and equipment
Interest expense Revenues

Instructions
For each account, indicate (a) whether the normal balance is a debit or a credit, and (b)
the financial statement—balance sheet or income statement—where the account should
be presented.

E3-18 Review the transactions listed in E3-1 for Arnett Advertising Company, and clas-
sify each transaction as either an operating activity, investing activity, or financing activ-
ity, or if no cash is exchanged, as a noncash event.

E3-19 Review the transactions listed in E3-3 for Underwood Corp. and classify each trans-
action as either an operating activity, investing activity, or financing activity, or if no cash
is exchanged, as a noncash event.



Exercises: Set B and
Challenge Exercises

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose the
Student Companion site to access Exercise Set B and Challenge Exercises.

Problems: Set A

P3-1A  On April 1, Vagabond Travel Agency Inc. was established. These transactions
were completed during the month.

Stockholders invested $30,000 cash in the company in exchange for common stock.
Paid $900 cash for April office rent.
Purchased office equipment for $3,400 cash.
Purchased $200 of advertising in the Chicago Tribune, on account.
Paid $500 cash for office supplies.
Earned $12,000 for services provided: Cash of $3,000 is received from customers,
and the balance of $9,000 is billed to customers on account.
7. Paid $400 cash dividends.
8. Paid Chicago Tribune amount due in transaction (4).
9. Paid employees’ salaries $1,800.
10. Received $9,000 in cash from customers billed previously in transaction (6).

SUnbhwN =

Instructions

(a) Prepare a tabular analysis of the transactions using these column headings: Cash,
Accounts Receivable, Supplies, Equipment, Accounts Payable, Common Stock, and
Retained Earnings (with separate columns for Revenues, Expenses, and Dividends).
Include margin explanations for any changes in Retained Earnings.

(b) From an analysis of the Retained Earnings columns, compute the net income or net
loss for April.

P3-2A  Susan Taylor started her own consulting firm, Taylor Made Consulting Inc., on
May 1, 2012. The following transactions occurred during the month of May.

May 1 Stockholders invested $15,000 cash in the business in exchange
for common stock.
2 Paid $600 for office rent for the month.
3 Purchased $500 of supplies on account.
5 Paid $150 to advertise in the County News.

9  Received $1,400 cash for services provided.

12 Paid $200 cash dividend.

15  Performed $4,200 of services on account.

17  Paid $2,500 for employee salaries.

20  Paid for the supplies purchased on account on May 3.

23 Received a cash payment of $1,200 for services provided on ac-
count on May 15.

26  Borrowed $5,000 from the bank on a note payable.

29  Purchased office equipment for $2,000 paying $200 in cash and
the balance on account.

30 Paid $180 for utilities.

Instructions

(a) Show the effects of the previous transactions on the accounting equation using the
following format. Assume the note payable is to be repaid within the year.

Problems: Set A 145

Analyze transactions and
compute net income.

(S0°1), AP

E ==

(a) Cash
Total assets

$34,800
$38,700

Analyze transactions and
prepare financial statements.

(S0 1), AP

E

(a) Cash
Total assets

$18,270
$23.170

Stockholders’
Assets = Liabilities + Equity
Accounts Notes Accounts Common Retained Earnings

Date Cash + Receivable + Supplies + Equipment = Payable + Payable + Stock

+ Revenues — Expenses — Dividends
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(b) Net income $2,170

Analyze transactions and
prepare an income statement,
retained earnings statement,
and balance sheet.

(S0°1), AP

(a) Cash $7150

(b) Ret. earnings $3,470
Net income $2,570

Journalize a series of

transactions.

(S0 3, 5), AP

(615

Include margin explanations for any changes in Retained Earnings.
(b) Prepare an income statement for the month of May 2012.
(c) Prepare a classified balance sheet at May 31, 2012.

P3-3A  Robin Klann created a corporation providing legal services, Robin Klann Inc.,
on July 1, 2012. On July 31 the balance sheet showed: Cash $4,000; Accounts Receiv-
able $2,500; Supplies $500; Equipment $5,000; Accounts Payable $4,200; Common
Stock $6,200; and Retained Earnings $1,600. During August the following transactions
occurred.

Aug. 1  Collected $1,100 of accounts receivable due from customers.
4 Paid $2,700 cash for accounts payable due.
9  Earned revenue of $5,400, of which $3,600 is collected in cash
and the balance is due in September.
15  Purchased additional office equipment for $4,000, paying $700
in cash and the balance on account.
19  Paid salaries $1,400, rent for August $700, and advertising expenses
$350.
23 Paid a cash dividend of $700.
26  Received $5,000 from Standard Federal Bank; the money was
borrowed on a 4-month note payable.
31  Incurred utility expenses for the month on account $380.
Instructions

(a) Prepare a tabular analysis of the August transactions beginning with July 31 bal-
ances. The column heading should be: Cash + Accounts Receivable + Supplies +
Equipment = Notes Payable + Accounts Payable + Common Stock + Retained
Earnings + Revenues — Expenses — Dividends. Include margin explanations for any
changes in Retained Earnings.

(b) Prepare an income statement for August, a retained earnings statement for August,
and a classified balance sheet at August 31.

P3-4A Clear View Miniature Golf and Driving Range Inc. was opened on March 1 by
Roger Prince. These selected events and transactions occurred during March.

Mar. 1 Stockholders invested $50,000 cash in the business in exchange
for common stock of the corporation.

3 Purchased Arnie’s Golf Land for $38,000 cash. The price con-
sists of land $23,000, building $9,000, and equipment $6,000.
(Record this in a single entry.)

5  Advertised the opening of the driving range and miniature golf
course, paying advertising expenses of $1,200 cash.

6  Paid cash $2,400 for a 1-year insurance policy.

10  Purchased golf clubs and other equipment for $5,500 from
Golden Bear Company, payable in 30 days.

18  Received golf fees of $1,600 in cash from customers for golf fees
earned.

19 Sold 100 coupon books for $25 each in cash. Each book con-
tains ten coupons that enable the holder to play one round of
miniature golf or to hit one bucket of golf balls. (Hint: The rev-
enue is not earned until the customers use the coupons.)

25  Paid a $500 cash dividend.

30 Paid salaries of $800.

30 Paid Golden Bear Company in full for equipment purchased on
March 10.

31  Received $900 in cash from customers for golf fees earned.

The company uses these accounts: Cash, Prepaid Insurance, Land, Buildings, Equipment,
Accounts Payable, Unearned Service Revenue, Common Stock, Retained Earnings, Divi-
dends, Service Revenue, Advertising Expense, and Salaries and Wages Expense.

Instructions
Journalize the March transactions, including explanations. Clear View records golf fees
as service revenue.



P3-5A Towne Architects incorporated as licensed architects on April 1, 2012. During
the first month of the operation of the business, these events and transactions occurred:

Apr. 1 Stockholders invested $18,000 cash in exchange for common
stock of the corporation.
1  Hired a secretary-receptionist at a salary of $375 per week,
payable monthly.
Paid office rent for the month $900.
3 Purchased architectural supplies on account from Spring Green
Company $1,300.
10  Completed blueprints on a carport and billed client $1,900 for

\S)

services.

11 Received $700 cash advance from J. Madison to design a new
home.

20  Received $2,800 cash for services completed and delivered to
M. Svetlana.

30  Paid secretary-receptionist for the month $1,500.
30 Paid $300 to Spring Green Company for accounts payable due.

The company uses these accounts: Cash, Accounts Receivable, Supplies, Accounts Payable,
Unearned Service Revenue, Common Stock, Service Revenue, Salaries and Wages Expense,
and Rent Expense.

Instructions

(a) Journalize the transactions, including explanations.
(b) Post to the ledger T accounts.

(c) Prepare a trial balance on April 30, 2012.

P3-6A This is the trial balance of Mimosa Company on September 30.

MIMOSA COMPANY

Trial Balance
September 30, 2012

Debit Credit
Cash $ 8,200
Accounts Receivable 2,600
Supplies 2,100
Equipment 8,000
Accounts Payable $ 4,800
Unearned Service Revenue 1,100
Common Stock 15,000

$20,900 $20,900

The October transactions were as follows.

Oct. 5  Received $1,300 in cash from customers for accounts receivable due.
10  Billed customers for services performed $5,100.
15  Paid employee salaries $1,200.
17 Performed $600 of services for customers who paid in advance
in August.
20  Paid $1,900 to creditors for accounts payable due.
29  Paid a $300 cash dividend.
31 Paid utilities $400.

Instructions

(a) Prepare a general ledger using T accounts. Enter the opening balances in the ledger
accounts as of October 1. Provision should be made for these additional accounts:
Dividends, Service Revenue, Salaries and Wages Expense, and Utilities Expense.

(b) Journalize the transactions, including explanations.

(c) Post to the ledger accounts.

(d) Prepare a trial balance on October 31, 2012.

Problems: Set A 147

Journalize transactions, post,
and prepare a trial balance.

(803,5,6,78),AP

6L

(c) Cash $18,800
Tot. trial
balance $24.400

Journalize transactions, post,
and prepare a trial balance.

(803,5,6,7,8), AP

6L

(d) Cash $ 5,700
Tot. trial
balance $24.100
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Prepare a correct trial
balance.

(S0 8), AN

Tot. trial balance $16,900

Journalize transactions, post,
and prepare a trial balance.

(803,5,6,7,8), AP

(615

P3-7A This trial balance of Michels Co. does not balance.

MICHELS CO.
Trial Balance
June 30, 2012
Debit Credit
Cash $ 3,090
Accounts Receivable $ 3,190
Supplies 800
Equipment 3,000
Accounts Payable 3,686
Unearned Service Revenue 1,200
Common Stock 9,000
Dividends 800
Service Revenue 3,480
Salaries and Wages Expense 3,600
Utilities Expense 910

$13,500 $19,256

Each of the listed accounts has a normal balance per the general ledger. An examination
of the ledger and journal reveals the following errors:

1. Cash received from a customer on account was debited for $780, and Accounts
Receivable was credited for the same amount. The actual collection was for $870.

2. The purchase of a printer on account for $340 was recorded as a debit to Supplies
for $340 and a credit to Accounts Payable for $340.

3. Services were performed on account for a client for $900. Accounts Receivable was
debited for $90 and Service Revenue was credited for $900.

4. A debit posting to Salaries and Wages Expense of $700 was omitted.

5. A payment on account for $206 was credited to Cash for $206 and credited to Accounts
Payable for $260.

6. Payment of a $600 cash dividend to Michels’ stockholders was debited to Salaries
and Wages Expense for $600 and credited to Cash for $600.

Instructions
Prepare the correct trial balance. (Hint: All accounts have normal balances.)

P3-8A The SciFi Theater Inc. was recently formed. It began operations in March 2012.
The SciFi is unique in that it will show only triple features of sequential theme movies.
On March 1, the ledger of The SciFi showed: Cash $16,000; Land $38,000; Buildings (con-
cession stand, projection room, ticket booth, and screen) $22,000; Equipment $16,000;
Accounts Payable $12,000; and Common Stock $80,000. During the month of March the
following events and transactions occurred.

Mar. 2  Rented the three Star Wars movies (Star Wars®, The Empire
Strikes Back, and The Return of the Jedi) to be shown for the first
three weeks of March. The film rental was $10,000; $2,000 was
paid in cash and $8,000 will be paid on March 10.

3 Ordered the first three Star Trek movies to be shown the last
10 days of March. It will cost $500 per night.
9  Received $9,900 cash from admissions.
10  Paid balance due on Star Wars movies rental and $2,900 on
March 1 accounts payable.
11 Hired J. Carne to operate the concession stand. Carne agrees
to pay The SciFi Theater 15% of gross receipts, payable monthly.
12 Paid advertising expenses $500.
20  Received $8,300 cash from customers for admissions.
20  Received the Star Trek movies and paid rental fee of $5,000.
31  Paid salaries of $3,800.



31  Received statement from J. Carne showing gross receipts from
concessions of $10,000 and the balance due to The SciFi of
$1,500 for March. Carne paid half the balance due and will remit
the remainder on April 5.

31  Received $20,000 cash from customers for admissions.

In addition to the accounts identified above, the chart of accounts includes: Accounts
Receivable, Service Revenue, Sales Revenue, Advertising Expense, Rent Expense, and
Salaries and Wages Expense.

Instructions

(@)
(b)

(©
d

Using T accounts, enter the beginning balances to the ledger.

Journalize the March transactions, including explanations. SciFi records admission
revenue as service revenue, concession revenue as sales revenue, and film rental ex-
pense as rent expense.

Post the March journal entries to the ledger.

Prepare a trial balance on March 31, 2012.

P3-9A The bookkeeper for Fred Kelley’s dance studio made the following errors in jour-
nalizing and posting.

1.
2.

3.

7.

8.

A credit to Supplies of $600 was omitted.

A debit posting of $300 to Accounts Payable was inadvertently debited to Accounts
Receivable.

A purchase of supplies on account of $450 was debited to Supplies for $540 and cred-
ited to Accounts Payable for $540.

A credit posting of $680 to Interest Payable was posted twice.

A debit posting to Income Taxes Payable for $250 and a credit posting to Cash for
$250 were made twice.

A debit posting for $1,200 of Dividends was inadvertently posted to Salaries and
Wages Expense instead.

A credit to Service Revenue for $450 was inadvertently posted as a debit to Service
Revenue.

A credit to Accounts Receivable of $250 was credited to Accounts Payable.

Instructions

For each error, indicate (a) whether the trial balance will balance; (b) the amount of the
difference if the trial balance will not balance; and (c¢) the trial balance column that will
have the larger total. Consider each error separately. Use the following form, in which
error 1 is given as an example.

(a) (b) (c)
Error In Balance Difference Larger Column
1. No $600 Debit

Problems: Set B

P3-1B New Dawn Window Washing Inc. was started on May 1. Here is a summary of
the May transactions.

ROV XNONEWN -

—_

Stockholders invested $20,000 cash in the company in exchange for common stock.
Purchased equipment for $9,000 cash.

Paid $700 cash for May office rent.

Paid $300 cash for supplies.

Purchased $750 of advertising in the Beacon News on account.
Received $7,200 in cash from customers for service.

Paid a $500 cash dividend.

Paid part-time employee salaries $1,700.

Paid utility bills $140.

Provided service on account to customers $1,000.

Collected cash of $650 for services billed in transaction (10).

Problems: Set B 149

(d) Cash $ 32,750
Tot. trial
balance $128,800

Analyze errvors and their
effects on the trial balance.

(S0 8), AN

Analyze transactions and
compute net income.

(S01), AP
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Instructions

(a) Prepare a tabular analysis of the transactions using these column headings: Cash,
Accounts Receivable, Supplies, Equipment, Accounts Payable, Common Stock, and
Retained Earnings (with separate columns for Revenues, Expenses, and Dividends).
Revenue is called Service Revenue. Include margin explanations for any changes in
Retained Earnings.

(b) Net income $4,910 (b) From an analysis of the Retained Earnings columns, compute the net income or net

loss for May.

Analyze transactions and P3-2B Samuel Aldrich started his own delivery service, Aldrich Service Inc., on June 1,
prepare financial statements. ~ 2012. The following transactions occurred during the month of June.
(S0°1), AP June 1 Stockholders invested $15,000 cash in the business in exchange
; ‘"3 for common stock.
2 Purchased a used van for deliveries for $15,000. Samuel paid

$2,000 cash and signed a note payable for the remaining balance.
3 Paid $600 for office rent for the month.
5  Performed $2,400 of services on account.
9  Paid $300 in cash dividends.
12 Purchased supplies for $240 on account.
15  Received a cash payment of $750 for services provided on June 5.
17  Received a bill for $200 to cover advertisements in Tii-State News.
20  Received a cash payment of $1,500 for services provided.
23 Made a cash payment of $500 on the note payable.
26  Paid $180 for utilities.
29  Paid for the supplies purchased on account on June 12.
30 Paid $750 for employee salaries.

Instructions
(a) Cash $12,680 (a) Show the effects of the previous transactions on the accounting equation using the
following format. Assume the note payable is to be repaid within the year.

Stockholders’
Assets = Liabilities + Equity
Accounts Notes Accounts Common Retained Earnings

Date Cash + Receivable + Supplies + Equipment = Payable + Payable + Stock + Revenues — Expenses — Dividends

Include margin explanations for any changes in Retained Earnings.
(b) Net income $2,170 (b) Prepare an income statement for the month of June.
(c) Prepare a classified balance sheet at June 30, 2012.

Analyze transactions and P3-3B Joy Tiede opened Tiede Company, a veterinary business in Neosho, Wisconsin, on
prepare an income statement,  August 1, 2012. On August 31, the balance sheet showed: Cash $9,000; Accounts Receivable
retained earnings statement, $1,700; Supplies $600; Equipment $5,000; Accounts Payable $3,600; Common Stock $12,000;

and balance sheet. and Retained Earnings $700. During September, the following transactions occurred.

(S0°1), AP Sept. 2 Paid $3,400 cash for accounts payable due.

E 5  Received $1,200 from customers in payment of accounts receivable.
8  Purchased additional office equipment for $5,100, paying $1,000
in cash and the balance on account.
13 Earned revenue of $10,600, of which $2,300 is paid in cash and
the balance is due in October.
17  Paid a $600 cash dividend.
22 Paid salaries $900, rent for September $1,100, and advertising
expense $250.
26 Incurred utility expenses for the month on account $220.
30  Received $5,000 from Hilldale Bank on a 6-month note payable.

Instructions

(a) Cash $10,250 (a) Prepare a tabular analysis of the September transactions beginning with August 31
balances. The column headings should be: Cash + Accounts Receivable + Supplies +
Equipment = Notes Payable + Accounts Payable + Common Stock + Retained Earn-
ings + Revenues — Expenses — Dividends. Include margin explanations for any
changes in Retained Earnings.

(b) Ret. earnings $ 8,230 (b) Prepare an income statement for September, a retained earnings statement for
September, and a classified balance sheet at September 30, 2012.



P3-4B RV Oasis was started on April 1 by Taras Dankert. These selected events and
transactions occurred during April.

Apr. 1 Stockholders invested $70,000 cash in the business in exchange for
common stock.
4 Purchased land costing $50,000 for cash.

8 Purchased advertising in local newspaper for $1,200 on account.

11 Paid salaries to employees $2,700.

12 Hired park manager at a salary of $3,600 per month, effective May 1.

13 Paid $7,200 for a 1-year insurance policy.

17 Paid $600 cash dividends.

20 Received $6,000 in cash from customers for admission fees.

25 Sold 100 coupon books for $90 each. Each book contains ten coupons
that entitle the holder to one admission to the park. (Hint: The rev-
enue is not earned until the coupons are used.)

30 Received $7,900 in cash from customers for admission fees.

30 Paid $400 of the balance owed for the advertising purchased on ac-

count on April 8.

The company uses the following accounts: Cash, Prepaid Insurance, Land, Accounts Payable,
Unearned Service Revenue, Common Stock, Dividends, Service Revenue, Advertising Ex-
pense, and Salaries and Wages Expense.

Instructions

Journalize the April transactions, including explanations. (Note: RV QOasis records admis-
sion revenue as service revenue.)

P3-5B Troy Ridgell incorporated Ridgell Consulting, an accounting practice, on May 1,

2012. During the first month of operations, these events and transactions occurred.
May 1 Stockholders invested $40,000 cash in exchange for common stock of

the corporation.

2 Hired a secretary-receptionist at a salary of $2,000 per month.

3 Purchased $800 of supplies on account from Fleming Supply Company.

7 Paid office rent of $1,400 for the month.

11 Completed a tax assignment and billed client $1,500 for services provided.
12 Received $4,200 advance on a management consulting engagement.
17 Received cash of $3,300 for services completed for Goodman Co.

31 Paid secretary-receptionist $2,000 salary for the month.

31 Paid 50% of balance due Fleming Supply Company.

The company uses the following chart of accounts: Cash, Accounts Receivable, Supplies,
Accounts Payable, Unearned Service Revenue, Common Stock, Service Revenue, Salaries
and Wages Expense, and Rent Expense.

Instructions

(a) Journalize the transactions, including explanations.
(b) Post to the ledger T accounts.

(c) Prepare a trial balance on May 31, 2012.

P3-6B The trial balance of Kinnear Dry Cleaners on June 30 is given here.

KINNEAR DRY CLEANERS

Trial Balance
June 30, 2012
Debit Credit
Cash $12,532
Accounts Receivable 10,536
Supplies 3,592
Equipment 25,950
Accounts Payable $15,800
Unearned Service Revenue 1,810
Common Stock 35,000
$52,610 $52,610

Problems: Set B 151

Journalize a series of
transactions.

(80 3, 5), AP

6L

Journalize transactions, post,
and prepare a trial balance.

(803,5,6,7,8), AP

6L

(c) Cash $43,700
Tot. trial
balance $49,400

Journalize transactions, post,
and prepare a trial balance.

(803,5,6,7,8), AP

6L



152 chapter 3 The Accounting Information System

(d) Cash $ 7464
Tot. trial
balance $55,540

Prepare a correct trial
balance.

(S0 8), AN

Cash $ 6,249
Tot. trial balance $25,220

The July transactions were as follows.

July 8 Received $5,189 in cash on June 30 accounts receivable.
9  Paid employee salaries $2,100.
11 Received $7,320 in cash for services provided.
14 Paid creditors $9,810 of accounts payable.
17 Purchased supplies on account $720.
22 Billed customers for services provided $4,700.
30  Paid employee salaries $3,114, utilities $1,767, and repairs $386.
31  Paid $400 cash dividend.

Instructions

(@)

(b)
(©
(d

Prepare a general ledger using T accounts. Enter the opening balances in the ledger
accounts as of July 1. Provision should be made for the following additional accounts:
Dividends, Service Revenue, Maintenance and Repairs Expense, Salaries and Wages
Expense, and Utilities Expense.

Journalize the transactions, including explanations.

Post to the ledger accounts.

Prepare a trial balance on July 31, 2012.

P3-7B This trial balance of Lagerstrom Company does not balance.

LAGERSTROM COMPANY
Trial Balance
May 31, 2012

Debit Credit
Cash $ 6,340
Accounts Receivable $ 2,750
Prepaid Insurance 700
Equipment 8,000
Accounts Payable 4,100
Income Taxes Payable 850
Common Stock 5,700
Retained Earnings 6,000
Service Revenue 7,690
Salaries and Wages Expense 4,200
Advertising Expense 1,100
Income Tax Expense 900

$28,680 $19,650

Your review of the ledger reveals that each account has a normal balance. You also dis-
cover the following errors.

1.

2.

The totals of the debit sides of Prepaid Insurance, Accounts Payable, and Income Tax
Expense were each understated $100.

Transposition errors were made in Accounts Receivable and Service Revenue. Based
on postings made, the correct balances were $2,570 and $7,960, respectively.

A debit posting to Salaries and Wages Expense of $500 was omitted.

A $600 cash dividend was debited to Common Stock for $600 and credited to Cash
for $600.

A $350 purchase of supplies on account was debited to Equipment for $350 and cred-
ited to Cash for $350.

. A cash payment of $490 for advertising was debited to Advertising Expense for $49

and credited to Cash for $49.
A collection from a customer for $240 was debited to Cash for $240 and credited to
Accounts Payable for $240.

Instructions

Prepare the correct trial balance, assuming all accounts have normal balances. (Note: The
chart of accounts also includes the following: Dividends and Supplies.)

P3-8B Riviera Theater Inc. was recently formed. All facilities were completed on March
31. On April 1, the ledger showed: Cash $6,300; Land $10,000; Buildings (concession stand,



projection room, ticket booth, and screen) $8,000; Equipment $6,000; Accounts Payable
$2,300; Mortgage Payable $8,000; and Common Stock $20,000. During April, the follow-
ing events and transactions occurred.

Apr. 2 Paid film rental fee of $800 on first movie.

3 Ordered two additional films at $750 each.
9 Received $4,700 cash from admissions.
10 Paid $2,000 of mortgage payable and $1,200 of accounts payable.
11 Hired M. Gavin to operate the concession stand. Gavin agrees to pay
Riviera Theater 17% of gross receipts, payable monthly.
12 Paid advertising expenses $410.
20 Received one of the films ordered on April 3 and was billed $750. The
film will be shown in April.
25 Received $3,000 cash from customers for admissions.
29 Paid salaries $1,900.
30 Received statement from M. Gavin showing gross receipts of $2,000
and the balance due to Riviera Theater of $340 for April. Gavin paid
half of the balance due and will remit the remainder on May 5.
30 Prepaid $1,200 rental fee on special film to be run in May.

In addition to the accounts identified above, the chart of accounts shows: Accounts Re-
ceivable, Prepaid Rent, Service Revenue, Sales Revenue, Advertising Expense, Rent Ex-
pense, Salaries and Wages Expense.

Instructions

(@)
(b)

@)
(d)

Enter the beginning balances in the ledger T accounts as of April 1.

Journalize the April transactions, including explanations. (Note: Riviera records ad-
mission revenue as service revenue, concession revenue as sales revenue, and film
rental expense as rent expense.)

Post the April journal entries to the ledger T accounts.

Prepare a trial balance on April 30, 2012.

P3-9B A first year co-op student working for Solutions.com recorded the transactions
for the month. He wasn'’t exactly sure how to journalize and post, but he did the best he
could. He had a few questions, however, about the following transactions.

1.

2.

Cash received from a customer on account was recorded as a debit to Cash of $360
and a credit to Accounts Receivable of $630, instead of $360.

A service provided for cash was posted as a debit to Cash of $2,000 and a credit to
Service Revenue of $2,000.

A debit of $880 for services provided on account was neither recorded nor posted.
The credit was recorded correctly.

The debit to record $1,000 of cash dividends was posted to the Salaries and Wages Ex-
pense account.

The purchase, on account, of a computer that cost $2,500 was recorded as a debit
to Supplies and a credit to Accounts Payable.

A cash payment of $495 for salaries was recorded as a debit to Dividends and a credit
to Cash.

Payment of month’s rent was debited to Rent Expense and credited to Cash, $850.
Issue of $5,000 of common shares was credited to the Common Stock account, but
no debit was recorded.

Instructions

(a)
(b)

Indicate which of the above transactions are correct, and which are incorrect.

For each error identified in (a), indicate (1) whether the trial balance will balance;
(2) the amount of the difference if the trial balance will not balance; and (3) the trial
balance column that will have the larger total. Consider each error separately. Use
the following form, in which transaction 1 is given as an example.

(1) (2) 3)

Error In Balance Difference Larger Column
1. No $270 Credit

Problems: Set B 153

Journalize transactions, post,
and prepare a trial balance.

(803,5,6,78),AP

(615

(d) Cash $ 6,660
Tot. trial
balance $35,890

Analyze errvors and their
effects on the trial balance.

(S0 8), AN
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(c) Trial balance total

3,910

Problems: Set C

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose the
Student Companion site to access Problem Set C.

Continuing Cookie Chronicle

(Note: This is a continuation of the Cookie Chronicle from Chapters 1 and 2.)

CCC3 1In November 2011, after having incorporated Cookie Creations Inc., Natalie be-
gins operations. She has decided not to pursue the offer to supply cookies to Biscuits.
Instead, she will focus on offering cooking classes. The following events occur.

Nov. 8 Natalie cashes in her U.S. Savings Bonds and receives $520, which she deposits
in her personal bank account.
8 Natalie opens a bank account for Cookie Creations Inc.
8 Natalie purchases $500 of Cookie Creations’ common stock.

11 Cookie Creations purchases paper and other office supplies for $95. (Use
Supplies.)

14  Cookie Creations pays $125 to purchase baking supplies, such as flour, sugar,
butter, and chocolate chips. (Use Supplies.)

15 Natalie starts to gather some baking equipment to take with her when teach-
ing the cookie classes. She has an excellent top-of-the-line food processor and
mixer that originally cost her $550. Natalie decides to start using it only in her
new business. She estimates that the equipment is currently worth $300, and
she transfers the equipment into the business in exchange for additional com-
mon stock.

16 The company needs more cash to sustain its operations. Natalie’s grandmother
lends the company $2,000 cash, in exchange for a two-year, 9% note payable.
Interest and the principal are repayable at maturity.

17 Cookie Creations pays $900 for additional baking equipment.

18 Natalie schedules her first class for November 29. She will receive $100 on the
date of the class.

25 Natalie books a second class for December 5 for $150. She receives a $60 cash
down payment, in advance.

29 Natalie teaches her first class, booked on November 18, and collects the $100
cash.

30 Natalie’s brother develops a website for Cookie Creations Inc. that the com-
pany will use for advertising. He charges the company $600 for his work,
payable at the end of December. (Because the website is expected to have a
useful life of two years before upgrades are needed, it should be treated as
an asset called Website.)

30 Cookie Creations pays $1,200 for a one-year insurance policy.

30 Natalie teaches a group of elementary school students how to make Santa Claus
cookies. At the end of the class, Natalie leaves an invoice for $300 with the
school principal. The principal says that he will pass it along to the business
office and it will be paid some time in December.

30 Natalie receives a $50 invoice for use of her cell phone. She uses the cell phone
exclusively for Cookie Creations Inc. business. The invoice is for services pro-
vided in November, and payment is due on December 15.

Instructions

(a) Prepare journal entries to record the November transactions.
(b) Post the journal entries to the general ledger accounts.

(c) Prepare a trial balance at November 30, 2011.
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Financial Reporting and Analysis
FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll Industries Inc.

BYP3-1 The financial statements of Tootsie Roll in Appendix A at the back of this book contain b m <
the following selected accounts, all in thousands of dollars.
Common Stock $ 24,862
Accounts Payable 9,140
Accounts Receivable 37,512
Selling, Marketing, and Administrative Expenses 103,755
Prepaid Expenses 8,562
Net Property, Plant, and Equipment 220,721
Net Product Sales 495,592
Instructions
(a) What is the increase and decrease side for each account? What is the normal balance for each
account?

(b) Identify the probable other account in the transaction and the effect on that account when:
(1) Accounts Receivable is decreased.
(2) Accounts Payable is decreased.
(3) Prepaid Expenses is increased.
(c) Identify the other account(s) that ordinarily would be involved when:
(1) Interest Expense is increased.
(2) Property, Plant, and Equipment is increased.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS PROBLEM: Tootsie Roll vs. Hershey

BYP3-2 The financial statements of The Hershey Company appear in Appendix B, following the m b
financial statements for Tootsie Roll in Appendix A.

Instructions
(a) Based on the information contained in these financial statements, determine the normal bal-
ance for:
Tootsie Roll Industries The Hershey Company
(1) Accounts Receivable (1) Inventories
(2) Net Property, Plant, and Equipment (2) Provision for Income Taxes
(3) Accounts Payable (3) Accrued Liabilities
(4) Retained Earnings (4) Common Stock
(5) Net Product Sales (5) Interest Expense

(b) Identify the other account ordinarily involved when:
(1) Accounts Receivable is increased.
(2) Notes Payable is decreased.
(3) Machinery is increased.
(4) Interest Revenue is increased.

RESEARCH CASE

BYP3-3 Sid Cato provides critiques of corporate annual reports. He maintains a website at
www.sidcato.com that provides many useful resources for those who are interested in preparing
or using annual reports.

Instructions

Go to the website and answer the following questions.

(a) Read the section, “What makes a good annual report?” and choose which three factors you
think are most important. Explain why you think each item is important.

(b) For the most recent year presented, which companies were listed in the section “Producers
of the best annuals for (most recent year)”?

(c) What potential benefits might a company gain by receiving a high rating from Sid Cato’s
organization?
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INTERPRETING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BYP3-4 Chieftain International, Inc., is an oil and natural gas exploration and production com-
pany. A recent balance sheet reported $208 million in assets with only $4.6 million in liabilities, all
of which were short-term accounts payable.

During the year, Chieftain expanded its holdings of oil and gas rights, drilled 37 new wells,
and invested in expensive 3-D seismic technology. The company generated $19 million cash from
operating activities and paid no dividends. It had a cash balance of $102 million at the end of
the year.

Instructions

(a) Name at least two advantages to Chieftain from having no long-term debt. Can you think of
disadvantages?

(b) What are some of the advantages to Chieftain from having this large a cash balance? What
is a disadvantage?

(c) Why do you suppose Chieftain has the $4.6 million balance in accounts payable, since it ap-
pears that it could have made all its purchases for cash?

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS ON THE WEB

BYP3-5 Purpose: This activity provides information about career opportunities for CPAs.

Address: www.icpas.org, or go to www.wiley.com/college/kimmel

Steps
1. Go to the address shown above and click on Students/Educators.
2. Click on High School, then CPA101 for parts a, b, and c.
3. Click College to answer part d.

Instructions

Answer the following questions.

(a) What does CPA stand for? Where do CPAs work?

(b) What is meant by “public accounting”?

(c) What skills does a CPA need?

(d) What is the salary range for a CPA at a large firm during the first three years? What is the
salary range for chief financial officers and treasurers at large corporations?

Critical Thinking

- DECISION MAKING ACROSS THE ORGANIZATION

BYP3-6 Donna Dye operates Double D Riding Academy, Inc. The academy’s primary sources of
revenue are riding fees and lesson fees, which are provided on a cash basis. Donna also boards
horses for owners, who are billed monthly for boarding fees. In a few cases, boarders pay in
advance of expected use. For its revenue transactions, the academy maintains these accounts:
Cash, Accounts Receivable, Unearned Revenue, Riding Revenue, Lesson Revenue, and Boarding
Revenue.

The academy owns 10 horses, a stable, a riding corral, riding equipment, and office equip-
ment. These assets are accounted for in the following accounts: Horses, Building, Riding Corral,
Riding Equipment, and Office Equipment.

The academy employs stable helpers and an office employee, who receive weekly salaries. At
the end of each month, the mail usually brings bills for advertising, utilities, and veterinary ser-
vice. Other expenses include feed for the horses and insurance. For its expenses, the academy
maintains the following accounts: Hay and Feed Supplies, Prepaid Insurance, Accounts Payable,
Salaries Expense, Advertising Expense, Utilities Expense, Veterinary Expense, Hay and Feed
Expense, and Insurance Expense.

Donna Dye’s sole source of personal income is dividends from the academy. Thus, the corpo-
ration declares and pays periodic dividends. To account for stockholders” equity in the business
and dividends, two accounts are maintained: Common Stock and Dividends.

During the first month of operations an inexperienced bookkeeper was employed. Donna Dye
asks you to review the following eight entries of the 50 entries made during the month. In each
case, the explanation for the entry is correct.
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May 1 Cash 15,000

Unearned Revenue 15,000
(Issued common stock in exchange for
$15,000 cash)

5 Cash 250
Lesson Revenue 250
(Received $250 cash for lesson fees)

7 Cash 500
Boarding Revenue 500

(Received $500 for boarding of horses

beginning June 1)

9 | Hay and Feed Expense 1,500

Cash 1,500
(Purchased estimated 5 months’ supply
of feed and hay for $1,500 on account)

14 | Riding Equipment 80

Cash 800
(Purchased desk and other office
equipment for $800 cash)

15 | Salaries Expense 400

Cash 400
(Issued check to Donna Dye for
personal use)

20 Cash 145
Riding Revenue 154
(Received $154 cash for riding fees)
31 Veterinary Expense 75
Accounts Receivable 75

(Received bill of $75 from veterinarian
for services provided)

Instructions

With the class divided into groups, answer the following.

(a) For each journal entry that is correct, so state. For each journal entry that is incorrect, pre-
pare the entry that should have been made by the bookkeeper.

(b) Which of the incorrect entries would prevent the trial balance from balancing?

(c) What was the correct net income for May, assuming the bookkeeper originally reported net
income of $4,500 after posting all 50 entries?

(d) What was the correct cash balance at May 31, assuming the bookkeeper reported a balance
of $12,475 after posting all 50 entries?

COMMUNICATION ACTIVITY

BYP3-7 Clean Sweep Company offers home cleaning service. Two recurring transactions for the
company are billing customers for services provided and paying employee salaries. For example,
on March 15 bills totaling $6,000 were sent to customers, and $2,000 was paid in salaries to
employees.

Instructions

Write a memorandum to your instructor that explains and illustrates the steps in the recording
process for each of the March 15 transactions. Use the format illustrated in the text under the
heading “The Recording Process Illustrated” (pp. 121-126).

ETHICS CASES —

BYP3-8 Courtney Delacey is the assistant chief accountant at BIT Company, a manufacturer of |& u -
computer chips and cellular phones. The company presently has total sales of $20 million. It is the
end of the first quarter and Courtney is hurriedly trying to prepare a general ledger trial balance
so that quarterly financial statements can be prepared and released to management and the regu-
latory agencies. The total credits on the trial balance exceed the debits by $1,000.
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In order to meet the 4 .M. deadline, Courtney decides to force the debits and credits into bal-
ance by adding the amount of the difference to the Equipment account. She chose Equipment
because it is one of the larger account balances; percentage-wise it will be the least misstated.
Courtney plugs the difference! She believes that the difference is quite small and will not affect
anyone’s decisions. She wishes that she had another few days to find the error but realizes that the
financial statements are already late.

Instructions

(a) Who are the stakeholders in this situation?
(b) What ethical issues are involved?

(c) What are Courtney’s alternatives?

BYP3-9 The July 28, 2007, issue of the Wall Street Journal includes an article by Kathryn Kranhold
entitled “GE’s Accounting Draws Fresh Focus on News of Improper Sales Bookings.”

Instructions

Read the article and answer the following questions.

(a) What improper activity did the employees at GE engage in?

(b) Why might the employees have engaged in this activity?

(c) What were the implications for the employees who engaged in this activity?

(d) What does it mean to “restate” financial results? Why didn’t GE restate its results to correct
for the improperly reported locomotive sales?

“ALL ABOUT YOU” ACTIVITY

BYP3-10 In their annual reports to stockholders, companies must report or disclose information
about all liabilities, including potential liabilities related to environmental clean-up. There are
many situations in which you will be asked to provide personal financial information about your
assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. Sometimes you will face difficult decisions regarding
what to disclose and how to disclose it.

Instructions

Suppose that you are putting together a loan application to purchase a home. Based on your
income and assets, you qualify for the mortgage loan, but just barely. How would you address each
of the following situations in reporting your financial position for the loan application? Provide
responses for each of the following questions.

(a) You signed a guarantee for a bank loan that a friend took out for $20,000. If your friend doesn’t
pay, you will have to pay. Your friend has made all of the payments so far, and it appears he
will be able to pay in the future.

(b) You were involved in an auto accident in which you were at fault. There is the possibility that
you may have to pay as much as $50,000 as part of a settlement. The issue will not be re-
solved before the bank processes your mortgage request.

(¢) The company at which you work isn’t doing very well, and it has recently laid off employees.
You are still employed, but it is quite possible that you will lose your job in the next few
months.

Answers to Insight and Accounting Across the Organization Questions

p. 109 Why Accuracy Matters Q: In order for these companies to prepare and issue financial
statements, their accounting equations (debit and credits) must have been in balance at year-end.
How could these errors or misstatements have occurred? A: A company’s accounting equation (its
books) can be in balance yet its financial statements have errors or misstatements because of the
following: entire transactions were not recorded; transactions were recorded at wrong amounts;
transactions were recorded in the wrong accounts; transactions were recorded in the wrong account-
ing period. Audits of financial statements uncover some, but obviously not all, errors or misstatements.

p. 115 Keeping Score Q: Do you think that the Chicago Bears football team would be likely to
have the same major revenue and expense accounts as the Cubs? A: Because their businesses are
similar—professional sports—many of the revenue and expense accounts for the baseball and foot-
ball teams might be similar.

p. 119 Boosting Microsoft’s Profits Q: In what ways is this Microsoft division using accounting
to assist in its effort to become more profitable? A: The division has used accounting to set very
strict sales, revenue, and profit goals. In addition, the managers in this division use accounting
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to keep a tight reign on product costs. Also, accounting serves as the basis of communication so
that the marketing managers and product designers can work with production managers, engi-
neers, and accountants to create an exciting product within specified cost constraints.

Answers to Self-Test Questions

1.b 2.b 3.b 4.a(—$50,000 = —$90,000 + $40,000)0 5.b 6.c 7.d 8.d 9.d 10.b 11l.a
12.¢ 13.d 14.a 15.c

A Look at IFRS

International companies use the same set of procedures and records to keep track of transaction
data. Thus, the material in Chapter 3 dealing with the account, general rules of debit and credit,
and steps in the recording process—the journal, ledger, and chart of accounts—is the same under
both GAAP and IFRS.

KEY POINTS

e Transaction analysis is the same under IFRS and GAAP but, as you will see in later chapters,
different standards sometimes impact how transactions are recorded.

e Rules for accounting for specific events sometimes differ across countries. For example,
European companies rely less on historical cost and more on fair value than U.S. companies.
Despite the differences, the double-entry accounting system is the basis of accounting systems
worldwide.

e Both the IASB and FASB go beyond the basic definitions provided in this textbook for the key
elements of financial statements, that is, assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, and expenses. The
more substantive definitions, using the IASB definitional structure, are provided in the Chapter 1
A Look at IFRS discussion.

e A trial balance under IFRS follows the same format as shown in the textbook.

¢ As shown in the textbook, dollars signs are typically used only in the trial balance and the finan-
cial statements. The same practice is followed under IFRS, using the currency of the country
that the reporting company is headquartered.

e In February 2010, the SEC expressed a desire to continue working toward a single set of high-
quality standards. In deciding whether the United States should adopt IFRS, some of the issues
the SEC said should be considered are:
¢ Whether IFRS is sufficiently developed and consistent in application.
¢ Whether the TASB is sufficiently independent.

Whether IFRS is established for the benefit of investors.

The issues involved in educating investors about IFRS.

The impact of a switch to IFRS on U.S. laws and regulations.

* & o o

The impact on companies including changes to their accounting systems, contractual
arrangements, corporate governance, and litigation.

¢ The issues involved in educating accountants, so they can prepare statements under IFRS.

LOOKING TO THE FUTURE

The basic recording process shown in this textbook is followed by companies across the globe. Tt
is unlikely to change in the future. The definitional structure of assets, liabilities, equity, revenues,
and expenses may change over time as the IASB and FASB evaluate their overall conceptual frame-
work for establishing accounting standards.
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IFRS Self-Test Questions

1. Which statement is correct regarding IFRS?
(a) IFRS reverses the rules of debits and credits, that is, debits are on the right and credits are
on the left.
(b) IFRS uses the same process for recording transactions as GAAP.
(c) The chart of accounts under IFRS is different because revenues follow assets.
(d) None of the above statements are correct.
2. The expanded accounting equation under IFRS is as follows:
(a) Assets = Liabilities + Share Capital + Dividends + Revenues — Expenses.
(b) Assets + Liabilities = Share Capital + Dividends + Revenues — Expenses.
(c) Assets = Liabilities + Share Capital — Dividends + Revenues — Expenses.
(d) Assets = Liabilities + Share Capital + Dividends — Revenues — Expenses.
3. A trial balance:
(a) is the same under IFRS and GAAP.
(b) proves that transactions are recorded correctly.
(c) proves that all transactions have been recorded.
(d) will not balance if a correct journal entry is posted twice.
4. One difference between IFRS and GAAP is that:
(a) GAAP uses accrual-accounting concepts and IFRS uses primarily the cash basis of
accounting.
(b) TIFRS uses a different posting process than GAAP.
(¢) IFRS uses more fair value measurements than GAAP.
(d) the limitations of a trial balance are different between IFRS and GAAP.
5. The general policy for using proper currency signs (dollar, yen, pound, etc.) is the same for both
IFRS and this textbook. This policy is as follows:
(a) Currency signs only appear in ledgers and journal entries.
(b) Currency signs are only shown in the trial balance.
(c) Currency signs are shown for all compound journal entries.
(d) Currency signs are shown in trial balances and financial statements.

IFRS Concepts and Application

IFRS3-1 Describe some of the issues the SEC must consider in deciding whether the United
States should adopt IFRS.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING PROBLEM: Zetar plc

IFRS3-2 The financial statements of Zetar plc are presented in Appendix C. The company’s
complete annual report, including the notes to its financial statements, is available at
www.zetarplc.com.

Instructions
Describe in which statement each of the following items is reported, and the position in the state-
ment (e.g., current asset).

(a) Share capital.

(b) Goodwill.

(c) Borrowings and overdrafts.

(d) Amortisation of intangible assets.

(e) Derivative financial asset.

Answers to IFRS Self-Test Questions @ the
1.b 2. ¢ 3.a 4.c 5.d

Remember to go back to the navigator box on the chapter opening page and check off your completed work. }
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study objectives

After studying this chapter, you should be able to:

1 Explain the revenue recognition principle and the expense
recognition principle.

2 Differentiate between the cash basis and the accrual basis of
accounting.

3 Explain why adjusting entries are needed, and identify the
major types of adjusting entries.

Prepare adjusting entries for deferrals.
Prepare adjusting entries for accruals.
Describe the nature and purpose of the adjusted trial balance.
Explain the purpose of closing entries.

Describe the required steps in the accounting cycle.

© 00N O G Hh

Understand the causes of differences between net
income and cash provided by operating activities.




The accuracy of the financial reporting system de-
pends on answers to a few fundamental questions. At
what point has revenue been earned? At what point
is the earnings process complete? When have ex-
penses really been incurred?

During the 1990s, the stock prices of dot-com com-

panies boomed. Many dot-com companies earned most

WHAT WAS

of their revenue from selling advertising
space on their websites. To boost re-
ported revenue, some dot-coms began
swapping website ad space. Company
A would put an ad for its website on company B’s web-
site, and company B would put an ad for its website on
company A's website. No money ever changed hands,
but each company recorded revenue (for the value of
the space that it gave up on its site). This practice did
little to boost net income and resulted in no additional
cash flow—but it did boost reported revenue. Regula-
tors eventually put an end to the practice.

Another type of transgression results from compa-
nies recording revenue or expenses in the wrong year.

In fact, shifting revenues and expenses is one of the

INSIDE CHAPTER 4 . ..

e Cooking the Books? (p. 166)

YOUR PROFIT?

feature story

most common abuses of financial accounting. Xerox
admitted reporting billions of dollars of lease revenue
in periods earlier than it should have been reported.
And WorldCom stunned the financial markets with its
admission that it had boosted net income by billions
of dollars by delaying the recognition of expenses un-
til later years.

Unfortunately, revelations such as
these have become all too common in
the corporate world. It is no wonder that
the U.S. Trust Survey of affluent Ameri-
cans reported that 85 percent of its respondents be-
lieved that there should be tighter regulation of finan-
cial disclosures, and 66 percent said they did not trust
the management of publicly traded companies.

Why did so many companies violate basic financial
reporting rules and sound ethics? Many speculate that
as stock prices climbed, executives were under increas-
ing pressure to meet higher and higher earnings expec-
tations. If actual results weren't as good as hoped for,
some gave in to temptation and “adjusted” their num-

@ the
navigator

bers to meet market expectations.

e Reporting Revenue Accurately (p. 167)
e Turning Gift Cards into Revenue (p. 174)
e Cashing In on Accrual Accounting (p. 7178)
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preview of chapter 4

As indicated in the Feature Story, making adjustments is necessary to avoid misstatement of revenues and
expenses such as those at Xerox and WorldCom. In this chapter, we introduce you to the accrual accounting
concepts that make such adjustments possible.

The organization and content of the chapter are as follows.

Accrual Accounting Concepts

Timing Issues

¢ Revenue recognition

Adjusting Entries

¢ Types of adjusting

The Adjusted Trial
Balance and Financial
Statements

The Basics of

Closing the Books

Quality of Earnings

* Preparing the * Preparing closing * Earnings management

principle entries adjusted trial balance entries + Sarbanes-Oxley
* Expense recognition ¢ Adjusting entries for * Preparing financial * Preparing a post-
principle deferrals statements closing trial balance

¢ Accrual versus cash
basis of accounting

¢ Adjusting entries for
accruals

* Summary of the
accounting cycle

¢ Summary of basic

study objective [ ]

Explain the revenue
recognition principle and
the expense recognition
principle.

Helpful Hint An accounting time
period that is one year long is
called a fiscal year.

Revenue Recognition

Service
performed

& =

Customer Cash
requests received
service

Revenue should be recog-
nized in the accounting
period in which it is earned
(generally when service is
performed).
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Timing Issues

Most businesses need immediate feedback about how well they are doing. For
example, management usually wants monthly reports on financial results, most
large corporations are required to present quarterly and annual financial state-
ments to stockholders, and the Internal Revenue Service requires all businesses
to file annual tax returns. Accounting divides the economic life of a business
into artificial time periods. As indicated in Chapter 2, this is the periodicity
assumption. Accounting time periods are generally a month, a quarter, or
a year.

Many business transactions affect more than one of these arbitrary time pe-
riods. For example, a new building purchased by Citigroup or a new airplane
purchased by Delta Air Lines will be used for many years. It doesn’t make
sense to expense the full cost of the building or the airplane at the time of
purchase because each will be used for many subsequent periods. Instead, we
determine the impact of each transaction on specific accounting periods.

Determining the amount of revenues and expenses to report in a given ac-
counting period can be difficult. Proper reporting requires an understanding of
the nature of the company’s business. Two principles are used as guidelines: the
revenue recognition principle and the expense recognition principle.

THE REVENUE RECOGNITION PRINCIPLE

The revenue recognition principle requires that companies recognize revenue
in the accounting period in which it is earned. In a service company, revenue
is considered to be earned at the time the service is performed. To illustrate, as-
sume Conrad Dry Cleaners cleans clothing on June 30, but customers do not
claim and pay for their clothes until the first week of July. Under the revenue
recognition principle, Conrad earns revenue in June when it performs the ser-
vice, not in July when it receives the cash. At June 30, Conrad would report a
receivable on its balance sheet and revenue in its income statement for the ser-
vice performed. The journal entries for June and July would be as follows.



June Accounts Receivable XXX

Service Revenue XXX
July Cash XXX

Accounts Receivable XXX
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HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Record revenue when earned. A
service business earns revenue
when it performs a service.

Need to understand the nature of
the company’s business

At what point should the company
record revenue?

THE EXPENSE RECOGNITION PRINCIPLE

In recognizing expenses, a simple rule is followed: “Let the expenses follow the
revenues.” Thus, expense recognition is tied to revenue recognition. Applied to
the preceding example, this means that the salary expense Conrad incurred in
performing the cleaning service on June 30 should be reported in the same pe-
riod in which it recognizes the service revenue. The critical issue in expense
recognition is determining when the expense makes its contribution to revenue.
This may or may not be the same period in which the expense is paid. If Con-
rad does not pay the salary incurred on June 30 until July, it would report salaries
payable on its June 30 balance sheet.

The practice of expense recognition is referred to as the expense recogni-
tion principle (often referred to as the matching principle). It dictates that
efforts (expenses) be matched with results (revenues). Illustration 4-1 shows
these relationships.

Periodicity Assumption

Economic life of business
can be divided into
artificial time periods

Expense Recognition
Principle

Revenue Recognition
Principle

Revenue recognized in
the accounting period in
which it is earned

Expenses matched with revenues
in the period when efforts are
expended to generate revenues

Revenue and Expense
Recognition

In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles

(GAAP)

Recognizing revenue too early
overstates current period revenue;
recognizing it too late understates
current period revenue.

lllustration 4-1 GAAP
relationships in revenue
and expense recognition
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DECISION TOOLKIT
DECISION CHECKPOINTS

INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

At what point should the company

record expenses?

study objective 2

Differentiate between the
cash basis and the accrual
basis of accounting.

International Note Although
different accounting standards are
often used by companies in other
countries, the accrual basis of
accounting is central to all of
these standards.

Need to understand the nature of
the company’s business

Expenses should “follow”
revenues—that is, match the
effort (expense) with the result
(revenue).

Recognizing expenses too early
overstates current period
expense; recognizing them too
late understates current period
expense.

—&—  Ethics Insight

u? Cooking the Books?

>

Allegations of abuse of the revenue recognition principle have become all too
common in recent years. For example, it was alleged that Krispy Kreme sometimes dou-
bled the number of doughnuts shipped to wholesale customers at the end of a quarter
to boost quarterly results. The customers shipped the unsold doughnuts back after the
beginning of the next quarter for a refund. Conversely, Computer Associates International
was accused of backdating sales—that is, saying that a sale that occurred at the begin-
ning of one quarter occurred at the end of the previous quarter in order to achieve the
previous quarter's sales targets.

What motivates sales executives and finance and accounting executives to participate
m in activities that result in inaccurate reporting of revenues? (See page 223.)

ACCRUAL VERSUS CASH BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Accrual-basis accounting means that transactions that change a company’s fi-
nancial statements are recorded in the periods in which the events occur,
even if cash was not exchanged. For example, using the accrual basis means that
companies recognize revenues when earned (the revenue recognition princi-
ple), even if cash was not received. Likewise, under the accrual basis, com-
panies recognize expenses when incurred (the expense recognition principle),
even if cash was not paid.

An alternative to the accrual basis is the cash basis. Under cash-basis
accounting, companies record revenue only when cash is received. They
record expense only when cash is paid. The cash basis of accounting is pro-
hibited under generally accepted accounting principles. Why? Because it
does not record revenue when earned, thus violating the revenue recognition
principle. Similarly, it does not record expenses when incurred, which violates
the expense recognition principle.

Ilustration 4-2 compares accrual-based numbers and cash-based numbers.
Suppose that Fresh Colors paints a large building in 2011. In 2011, it incurs and
pays total expenses (salaries and paint costs) of $50,000. It bills the customer
$80,000, but does not receive payment until 2012. On an accrual basis, Fresh Col-
ors reports $80,000 of revenue during 2011 because that is when it is earned. The
company matches expenses of $50,000 to the $80,000 of revenue. Thus, 2011 net
income is $30,000 ($80,000 — $50,000). The $30,000 of net income reported for
2011 indicates the profitability of Fresh Colors’ efforts during that period.

If, instead, Fresh Colors were to use cash-basis accounting, it would report
$50,000 of expenses in 2011 and $80,000 of revenues during 2012. As shown in
Ilustration 4-2, it would report a loss of $50,000 in 2011 and would report net
income of $80,000 in 2012. Clearly, the cash-basis measures are misleading be-
cause the financial performance of the company would be misstated for both
2011 and 2012.



The Basics of Adjusting Entries

167

lllustration 4-2 Accrual-
versus cash-basis

accounting
2011 2012
Activity
Purchased paint, painted building, paid employees Received payment for work done in 201 |
Revenue $80,000 Revenue $ 0
Ccc.rual Expense 50,000 Expense 0
asis Net income $30,000 Net income $ 0
Revenue $ 0 Revenue $80,000
bCas.h Expense 50,000 Expense 0
asts Net loss $(50,000) Net income $80,000

Investor Insight

Reporting Revenue Accurately

Until recently, electronics manufacturer Apple was required to spread the
revenues earned from iPhone sales over the two-year period following the sale of the
phone. Accounting standards required this because it was argued that Apple was ob-
ligated to provide software updates after the phone was sold. Therefore, since Apple
had service obligations after the initial date of sale, it was forced to spread the revenue
over a two-year period. However, since the company received full payment upfront, the
cash flows from iPhones significantly exceeded the revenue reported from iPhone sales
in each accounting period. It also meant that the rapid growth of iPhone sales was not
fully reflected in the revenue amounts reported in Apple's income statement. A new ac-
counting standard now enables Apple to report nearly all of its iPhone revenue at the
point of sale. It was estimated that 2009 revenues would have been about 17% higher,
and earnings per share would have been almost 50% higher, under the new rule.

In the past, why was it argued that Apple should spread the recognition of iPhone

m revenue over a two-year period, rather than recording it upfront? (See page 223.)

The Basics of Adjusting Entries

In order for revenues to be recorded in the period in which they are earned, and
for expenses to be recognized in the period in which they are incurred, compa-
nies make adjusting entries. Adjusting entries ensure that the revenue recog-
nition and expense recognition principles are followed.

Adjusting entries are necessary because the trial balance—the first pulling
together of the transaction data—may not contain up-to-date and complete data.
This is true for several reasons:

1. Some events are not recorded daily because it is not efficient to do so. Exam-
ples are the use of supplies and the earning of wages by employees.

study objective |3

Explain why adjusting
entries are needed, and
identify the major types of
adjusting entries.
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International Note Internal
controls are a system of checks
and halances designed to detect
and prevent fraud and errors. The
Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires U.S.
companies to enhance their
systems of internal control.
However, many foreign companies
do not have to meet strict internal
control requirements. Some U.S.
companies believe that this gives
foreign firms an unfair advantage
because developing and maintaining
internal controls can be very
expensive.

lllustration 4-3
Categories of adjusting
entries

lllustration 4-4 Trial
balance

2. Some costs are not recorded during the accounting period because these
costs expire with the passage of time rather than as a result of recurring
daily transactions. Examples are charges related to the use of buildings and
equipment, rent, and insurance.

3. Some items may be unrecorded. An example is a utility service bill that will
not be received until the next accounting period.

Adjusting entries are required every time a company prepares financial
statements. The company analyzes each account in the trial balance to deter-
mine whether it is complete and up to date for financial statement purposes.
Every adjusting entry will include one income statement account and one
balance sheet account.

TYPES OF ADJUSTING ENTRIES

Adjusting entries are classified as either deferrals or accruals. As Illustration 4-3
shows, each of these classes has two subcategories.

Deferrals:

1. Prepaid expenses: Expenses paid in cash and recorded as assets before they are
used or consumed.

2. Unearned revenues: Cash received and recorded as liabilities before revenue is
earned.
Accruals:
1. Accrued revenues: Revenues earned but not yet received in cash or recorded.

2. Accrued expenses: Expenses incurred but not yet paid in cash or recorded.

Subsequent sections give examples of each type of adjustment. Each example
is based on the October 31 trial balance of Sierra Corporation, from Chapter 3,
reproduced in Illustration 4-4. Note that Retained Earnings, with a zero balance,
has been added to this trial balance. We will explain its use later.

SIERRA CORPORATION
Trial Balance
October 31, 2012

Debit Credit
Cash $15,200
Supplies 2,500
Prepaid Insurance 600
Equipment 5,000
Notes Payable $ 5,000
Accounts Payable 2,500
Unearned Service Revenue 1,200
Common Stock 10,000
Retained Earnings 0
Dividends 500
Service Revenue 10,000
Salaries Expense 4,000
Rent Expense 900
$28,700 $28,700

We assume that Sierra Corporation uses an accounting period of one month.
Thus, monthly adjusting entries are made. The entries are dated October 31.
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ADJUSTING ENTRIES FOR DEFERRALS

To defer means to postpone or delay. Deferrals are costs or revenues that are
recognized at a date later than the point when cash was originally exchanged.
Companies make adjusting entries for deferrals to record the portion of the de-
ferred item that was incurred as an expense or earned as revenue during the
current accounting period. The two types of deferrals are prepaid expenses and
unearned revenues.

Prepaid Expenses

Companies record payments of expenses that will benefit more than one ac-
counting period as assets called prepaid expenses or prepayments. When ex-
penses are prepaid, an asset account is increased (debited) to show the service
or benefit that the company will receive in the future. Examples of common pre-
payments are insurance, supplies, advertising, and rent. In addition, companies
make prepayments when they purchase buildings and equipment.

Prepaid expenses are costs that expire either with the passage of time
(e.g., rent and insurance) or through use (e.g., supplies). The expiration of these
costs does not require daily entries, which would be impractical and unneces-
sary. Accordingly, companies postpone the recognition of such cost expirations
until they prepare financial statements. At each statement date, they make ad-
justing entries to record the expenses applicable to the current accounting pe-
riod and to show the remaining amounts in the asset accounts.

Prior to adjustment, assets are overstated and expenses are understated.
Therefore, as shown in Illustration 4-5, an adjusting entry for prepaid expenses
results in an increase (a debit) to an expense account and a decrease
(a credit) to an asset account.

Prepaid Expenses

Asset Expense
Unadjusted| Credit » Debit
Balance Adjusting Adjusting
Entry (-) Entry (+)

Let’s look in more detail at some specific types of prepaid expenses, begin-
ning with supplies.

SUPPLIES. The purchase of supplies, such as paper and envelopes, results in an
increase (a debit) to an asset account. During the accounting period, the com-
pany uses supplies. Rather than record supplies expense as the supplies are used,
companies recognize supplies expense at the end of the accounting period. At
the end of the accounting period, the company counts the remaining supplies.
The difference between the unadjusted balance in the Supplies (asset) account
and the actual cost of supplies on hand represents the supplies used (an expense)
for that period.

Recall from Chapter 3 that Sierra Corporation purchased supplies cost-
ing $2,500 on October 5. Sierra recorded the purchase by increasing (debiting)
the asset Supplies. This account shows a balance of $2,500 in the October 31
trial balance. An inventory count at the close of business on October 31 reveals
that $1,000 of supplies are still on hand. Thus, the cost of supplies used is

study objective

Prepare adjusting entries
for deferrals.

Illustration 4-5 Adjusting
entries for prepaid expenses

Supplies
Oct. 5

L

Supplies purchased;
record asset

Oct. 31
Supplies used;
record supplies expense
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Illustration 4-6
Adjustment for supplies
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$1,500 ($2,500 — $1,000). This use of supplies decreases an asset, Supplies.
It also decreases stockholders’ equity by increasing an expense account, Sup-
plies Expense. This is shown in Illustration 4-6.

Basic The expense Supplies Expense is increased $1,500, and the asset
Analysis Supplies is decreased $1,500.
! Assets = Liabilities *+ Stockholders’ Equity
Equation (M “Supnlies Supplies E
Analysis upplies _ upplies Expense
-$1,500 -$1,500
Debit—Credit Debits increase expenses: debit Supplies Expense $1,500.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Supplies $1,500.
Journal Oct. 31| Supplies Expense 1,500
E Supplies 1,500
nery (To record supplies used)
Supplies Supplies Expense
Posting Oct. 5 2,500 |Oct. 31 Adj. 1,500 Oct.31  Adj. 1,500
Oct. 31 Bal. 1,000 Oct. 31 Bal. 1,500

Insurance

&

Oct. 4

4
o
p:’":a:"’

Jsagi’)» >
Insurance purchased;
record asset

Insurance Policy
Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan
$50 | $50 | $50 | $50
Feb | March| April | May
$50 | $50 50 | $50
June | July | Aug | Sept
$50 | $50 | $50 | $50
| YEAR $600
Oct. 31

Insurance expired;
record insurance expense

After adjustment, the asset account Supplies shows a balance of $1,000,
which is equal to the cost of supplies on hand at the statement date. In addi-
tion, Supplies Expense shows a balance of $1,500, which equals the cost of sup-
plies used in October. If Sierra does not make the adjusting entry, October
expenses will be understated and net income overstated by $1,500. More-
over, both assets and stockholders’ equity will be overstated by $1,500 on
the October 31 balance sheet.

INSURANCE. Companies purchase insurance to protect themselves from losses
due to fire, theft, and unforeseen events. Insurance must be paid in advance, often
for more than one year. The cost of insurance (premiums) paid in advance is
recorded as an increase (debit) in the asset account Prepaid Insurance. At the
financial statement date, companies increase (debit) Insurance Expense and
decrease (credit) Prepaid Insurance for the cost of insurance that has expired
during the period.

On October 4, Sierra Corporation paid $600 for a one-year fire insurance pol-
icy. Coverage began on October 1. Sierra recorded the payment by increasing (deb-
iting) Prepaid Insurance. This account shows a balance of $600 in the October 31
trial balance. Insurance of $50 ($600 + 12) expires each month. The expiration of
prepaid insurance decreases an asset, Prepaid Insurance. It also decreases stock-
holders’ equity by increasing an expense account, Insurance Expense.

As shown in Illustration 4-7, the asset Prepaid Insurance shows a balance of
$550, which represents the unexpired cost for the remaining 11 months of cov-
erage. At the same time, the balance in Insurance Expense equals the insurance
cost that expired in October. If Sierra does not make this adjustment, October
expenses are understated by $50 and net income is overstated by $50. Moreover,
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as the accounting equation shows, both assets and stockholders’ equity will be
overstated by $50 on the October 31 balance sheet.

lllustration 4-7
Adjustment for insurance

Basic The expense Insurance Expense is increased $50, and the asset
Analysis Prepaid Insurance is decreased $50.
; Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equation @ -
. Prepaid Insurance Insurance Expense
Analysis _— = _
—$50 —$50
Debit—Credit Debits increase expenses: debit Insurance Expense $50.
Analysis Credits decrease assets: credit Prepaid Insurance $50.
Journal Oct. 31| Insurance Expense 50
Entry Prepaid Insurance 50
(To record insurance expired)
Prepaid Insurance Insurance Expense
Posting Oct. 4 600 | Oct. 31 Adj. 50 Oct. 31 Adj. 50
Oct. 31 Bal. 550 Oct. 31 Bal. 50

DEPRECIATION. A company typically owns a variety of assets that have long lives,
such as buildings, equipment, and motor vehicles. The period of service is re-
ferred to as the useful life of the asset. Because a building is expected to pro-
vide service for many years, it is recorded as an asset, rather than an expense,
on the date it is acquired. As explained in chapter 2, companies record such as-
sets at cost, as required by the cost principle. To follow the expense recognition
principle, companies allocate a portion of this cost as an expense during each
period of the asset’s useful life. Depreciation is the process of allocating the cost
of an asset to expense over its useful life.

Need for adjustment. The acquisition of long-lived assets is essentially a
long-term prepayment for the use of an asset. An adjusting entry for depreciation
is needed to recognize the cost that has been used (an expense) during the period
and to report the unused cost (an asset) at the end of the period. One very
important point to understand: Depreciation is an allocation concept, not a
valuation concept. That is, depreciation allocates an asset’s cost to the
periods in which it is used. Depreciation does not attempt to report the
actual change in the value of the asset.

For Sierra Corporation, assume that depreciation on the equipment is $480
a year, or $40 per month. As shown in Illustration 4-8 (page 172), rather than de-
crease (credit) the asset account directly, Sierra instead credits Accumulated De-
preciation—Equipment. Accumulated Depreciation is called a contra asset account.
Such an account is offset against an asset account on the balance sheet. Thus, the
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment account offsets the asset Equipment. This
account keeps track of the total amount of depreciation expense taken over the life
of the asset. To keep the accounting equation in balance, Sierra decreases stockhold-
ers’ equity by increasing an expense account, Depreciation Expense.

The balance in the Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment account will in-
crease $40 each month, and the balance in Equipment remains $5,000.

Depreciation

Equipment purchased;
record asset

Equipment

Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan
$40 | $40 | $40 | $40
Feb | March| April | May
$40 | $40 40 | $40
June | July | Aug | Sept
$40 | $40 | $40 | $40
Depreciation = $480/year

Oct. 31

Depreciation recognized;
record depreciation expense
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lllustration 4-8
Adjustment for depreciation

Basic The expense Depreciation Expense is increased $40, and the contra asset
Analysis Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment is increased $40.
Assets = Liabilities * Stockholders’ Equity
Equation Accumulated
Analysis Depreciation—Equipment Depreciation Expense
—$40 - —$40
Debit—Credit Debits increase expenses: debit Depreciation Expense $40.
Analysis Credits increase contra assets: credit Accumulated
Y Depreciation—Equipment $40.
Oct. 31| Depreciation Expense 40
Journal Accumulated Depreciation— 40
Entry Equipment
(To record monthly
depreciation)
Equipment
Oct. 2 5,000
Oct. 31 Bal. 5,000
Posting
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment Depreciation Expense
Oct. 31 Adj. 40  Oct. 3l Adj. 40
Oct. 31 Bal. 40  Oct. 31 Bal. 40

Helpful Hint All contra accounts
have increases, decreases, and
normal balances opposite to the
account to which they relate.

lllustration 4-9 Balance
sheet presentation of
accumulated depreciation

Book
value is also referred to as
carrying value.

Statement presentation. As noted above, Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment is a contra asset account. It is offset against Equipment on the
balance sheet. The normal balance of a contra asset account is a credit. A
theoretical alternative to using a contra asset account would be to decrease
(credit) the asset account by the amount of depreciation each period. But using
the contra account is preferable for a simple reason: It discloses both the original
cost of the equipment and the total cost that has expired to date. Thus, in the
balance sheet, Sierra deducts Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment from the
related asset account, as shown in Hlustration 4-9.

Equipment $5,000
Less: Accumulated depreciation—equipment 40
$4,960

Book value is the difference between the cost of any depreciable asset and
its related accumulated depreciation. In Illustration 4-9, the book value of the
equipment at the balance sheet date is $4,960. The book value and the fair value
of the asset are generally two different values. As noted earlier, the purpose of
depreciation is not valuation but a means of cost allocation.

Depreciation expense identifies the portion of an asset’s cost that expired
during the period (in this case, in October). The accounting equation shows that
without this adjusting entry, total assets, total stockholders’ equity, and net in-
come are overstated by $40 and depreciation expense is understated by $40.

Illustration 4-10 summarizes the accounting for prepaid expenses.

Unearned Revenues

Companies record cash received before revenue is earned by increasing (crediting) a
liability account called unearned revenues. Items like rent, magazine subscriptions,
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ACCOUNTING FOR PREPAID EXPENSES

Reason for Accounts Before Adjusting
Examples Adjustment Adjustment Entry
Insurance, supplies, Prepaid expenses Assets Dr. Expenses
advertising, rent, recorded in asset overstated. Cr. Assets
depreciation accounts have Expenses

been used. understated.

and customer deposits for future service may result in unearned revenues. Airlines
such as United, American, and Delta, for instance, treat receipts from the sale of tick-
ets as unearned revenue until the flight service is provided.

Unearned revenues are the opposite of prepaid expenses. Indeed, unearned
revenue on the books of one company is likely to be a prepaid expense on the books
of the company that has made the advance payment. For example, if identical
accounting periods are assumed, a landlord will have unearned rent revenue
when a tenant has prepaid rent.

When a company receives payment for services to be provided in a future ac-
counting period, it increases (credits) an unearned revenue (a liability) account to
recognize the liability that exists. The company subsequently earns revenues by pro-
viding service. During the accounting period it is not practical to make daily entries
as the company earns the revenue. Instead, we delay recognition of earned revenue
until the adjustment process. Then the company makes an adjusting entry to record
the revenue earned during the period and to show the liability that remains at the
end of the accounting period. Typically, prior to adjustment, liabilities are overstated
and revenues are understated. Therefore, as shown in Illustration 4-11, the adjust-
ing entry for unearned revenues results in a decrease (a debit) to a liability ac-
count and an increase (a credit) to a revenue account.

Unearned Revenues

Liability Revenue
Debit Unadjusted Credit
Adjusting | Balance Adjusting
Entry (-) Entry (+)

I 1

Sierra Corporation received $1,200 on October 2 from R. Knox for guide ser-
vices for multi-day trips expected to be completed by December 31. Sierra credited
the payment to Unearned Service Revenue, and this liability account shows a bal-
ance of $1,200 in the October 31 trial balance. From an evaluation of the service
Sierra performed for Knox during October, the company determines that it has
earned $400 in October. The liability (Unearned Service Revenue) is therefore de-
creased, and stockholders’ equity (Service Revenue) is increased.

As shown in Illustration 4-12 (page 174), the liability Unearned Service Rev-
enue now shows a balance of $800. That amount represents the remaining guide
services expected to be performed in the future. At the same time, Service Rev-
enue shows total revenue earned in October of $10,400. Without this adjustment,
revenues and net income are understated by $400 in the income statement.
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Illustration 4-10
Accounting for prepaid
expenses

Unearned Revenues

Thank you
in advance for

| will finish
" by Dec. 31

Oct. 2

\ 381
)

Cash is received in advance;
liability is recorded

Oct. 31
Some service has been
provided; some revenue
is recorded

lllustration 4-11
Adjusting entries for
unearned revenues
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Moreover, liabilities are overstated and stockholders’ equity is understated
Illustration 4-12 Service Dy $400 on the October 31 balance sheet.
revenue accounts after

adjustment
Basic The liability Unearned Service Revenue is decreased $400, and the revenue
Analysis Service Revenue is increased $400.
Assets = Liabilities + Stockholders’ Equity
Equatlc?n Unearned
Analysis Service Revenue Service Revenue
—$400 +$400
Debit—Credit Debits decrease liabilities: debit Unearned Service Revenue $400.
Analysis Credits increase revenues: credit Service Revenue $400.
Journal Oct. 31| Unearned Service Revenue 400
Entry Service Revenue 400
(To record revenue earned)
Unearned Service Revenue Service Revenue
: Oct. 31  Adj. 400 | Oct. 2 1,200 Oct. 3 10,000
Posting 31 Adj. 400
Oct. 31 Bal. 800 Oct. 31 Bal. 10,400

Illustration 4-13 summarizes the accounting for unearned revenues.

lllustration 4-13

Accounting for unearned ACCOUNTING FOR UNEARNED REVENUES

revenues Reason for Accounts Before Adjusting
Examples Adjustment Adjustment Entry
Rent, magazine Unearned revenues  Liabilities Dr. Liabilities
subscriptions, recorded in liability overstated. Cr. Revenues
customer deposits accounts have been Revenues
for future service earned. understated.

4émm Accounting Across the Organization
q Turning Gift Cards into Revenue

Those of you who are marketing majors (and even most of you who are not)
know that gift cards are among the hottest marketing tools in merchandising today. Cus-
tomers purchase gift cards and give them to someone for later use. In a recent year,
gift-card sales topped $95 billion.

Although these programs are popular with marketing executives, they create ac-
counting questions. Should revenue be recorded at the time the gift card is sold, or
when it is exercised? How should expired gift cards be accounted for? In its 2009 bal-
ance sheet, Best Buy reported unearned revenue related to gift cards of $479 million.

Source: Robert Berner, “Gift Cards: No Gift to Investors,” Business Week (March 14, 2005), p. 86.

Suppose that Robert Jones purchases a $100 gift card at Best Buy on December 24,

m 2011, and gives it to his wife, Mary Jones, on December 25, 2011. On January 3,
2012, Mary uses the card to purchase $100 worth of CDs. When do you think
Best Buy should recognize revenue and why? (See page 223.)
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m The ledger of Hammond, Inc., on March 31, 2012, includes these se-

lected accounts before adjusting entries are prepared.

Debit
$ 3,600
2,800
25,000

Credit

Prepaid Insurance

Supplies

Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment
Unearned Service Revenue

$5,000
9,200

An analysis of the accounts shows the following.

1. Insurance expires at the rate of $100 per month.

2. Supplies on hand total $800.

3. The equipment depreciates $200 a month.

4. One-half of the unearned service revenue was earned in March.

Prepare the adjusting entries for the month of March.
Solution

1. Insurance Expense 100
Prepaid Insurance

(To record insurance expired)

100

2. Supplies Expense 2,000
Supplies

(To record supplies used)

2,000

3. Depreciation Expense 200
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment

(To record monthly depreciation)

200

4. Unearned Service Revenue 4,600
Service Revenue

(To record revenue earned)

4,600

Related exercise material: BE4-4, BE4-5, BE4-6, BE4-7, and [2X-¥[H 4-1.

ADJUSTING ENTRIES FOR ACCRUALS

The second category of adjusting entries is accruals. Prior to an accrual adjust-
ment, the revenue account (and the related asset account) or the expense account
(and the related liability account) are understated. Thus, the adjusting entry for
accruals will increase both a balance sheet and an income statement account.

Accrued Revenues

Revenues earned but not yet recorded at the statement date are accrued revenues.
Accrued revenues may accumulate (accrue) with the passing of time, as in the
case of interest revenue. These are unrecorded because the earning of interest
does not involve daily transactions. Companies do not record interest revenue
on a daily basis because it is often impractical to do so. Accrued revenues also
may result from services that have been performed but not yet billed nor col-
lected, as in the case of commissions and fees. These may be unrecorded be-
cause only a portion of the total service has been provided and the clients won'’t
be billed until the service has been completed.

An adjusting entry records the receivable that exists at the balance sheet date
and the revenue earned during the period. Prior to adjustment, both assets and
revenues are understated. As shown in Illustration 4-14 (page 176), an adjust-
ing entry for accrued revenues results in an increase (a debit) to an asset
account and an increase (a credit) to a revenue account.
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before you go on...

ADJUSTING ENTRIES
FOR DEFERRALS

Action Plan

 Make adjusting entries at the
end of the period for revenues
earned and expenses incurred
in the period.

* Don't forget to make adjusting
entries for deferrals. Failure to
adjust for deferrals leads to
overstatement of the asset or
liability and understatement of
the related expense or revenue.

W the
na

vigator

study objective

Prepare adjusting entries
for accruals.

Accrued Revenues

Oct. 31

Revenue and receivable
are recorded for
unbilled services

Nov. 10

Cash is received;
receivable is reduced
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lllustration 4-14  Adjusting
entries for accrued revenues

Helpful Hint For accruals, there
may have been no prior entry, and
the accounts requiring adjustment
may hoth have zero balances prior
to adjustment.

Ethics Note Computer Associates
International was accused of
backdating sales-that is, saying
that a sale that occurred at the
beginning of one quarter occurred
at the end of the previous quarter,
in order to achieve the previous
quarter’s sales targets.

Accrued Revenues

Asset Revenue
Debit Credit
Adjusting Adjusting
Entry (+) Entry (+)

1 1

In October, Sierra Corporation earned $200 for guide services that were not
billed to clients on or before October 31. Because these services are not billed,
they are not recorded. The accrual of unrecorded service revenue increases an
asset account, Accounts Receivable. It also increases stockholders’ equity by in-
creasing a revenue account, Service Revenue, as shown in Illustration 4-15.

lllustration 4-15
Adjustment for
accrued revenue

Basic The asset Accounts Receivable is increased $200, and the revenue Service
Analysis Revenue is increased $200.
Assets = Liabilities *+ Stockholders’ Equity
Equation Accounts
Analysis Receivable Service Revenue
+$200 +$200
Debit—Credit Debits increase assets: debit Accounts Receivable $200.
Analysis Credits increase revenues: credit Service Revenue $200.
Journal Oct. 31| Accounts Receivable 200
Entry Service Revenue 200
(To record revenue earned)
Accounts Receivable Service Revenue
Oct. 31 Adj. 200 Oct. 3 10,000
Posting 31 400
31 Adj. 200
Oct. 31 Bal. 200 Oct. 31 Bal. 10,600

Equation analyses
summarize the effects

of transactions on the three elements
of the accounting equation, as well as
the effect on cash flows.

+200
—-200

Cash Flows 2

+200 4
he

The asset Accounts Receivable shows that clients owe Sierra $200 at the bal-
ance sheet date. The balance of $10,600 in Service Revenue represents the total
revenue Sierra earned during the month ($10,000 + $400 + $200). Without the
adjusting entry, assets and stockholders’ equity on the balance sheet and
revenues and net income on the income statement are understated.

On November 10, Sierra receives cash of $200 for the services performed in
October and makes the following entry.

Nov. 10 | Cash 200
Accounts Receivable 200
(To record cash collected on account)
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The company records the collection of the receivables by a debit (increase)
to Cash and a credit (decrease) to Accounts Receivable.
Illustration 4-16 summarizes the accounting for accrued revenues.

ACCOUNTING FOR ACCRUED REVENUES

Reason for Accounts Before  Adjusting
Examples Adjustment Adjustment Entry
Interest, rent, Revenues have been Assets Dr. Assets
services performed earned but not yet understated. Cr. Revenues
but not collected received in cash Revenues

or recorded. understated.

Accrued Expenses

Expenses incurred but not yet paid or recorded at the statement date are called
accrued expenses. Interest, taxes, and salaries are common examples of accrued
expenses.

Companies make adjustments for accrued expenses to record the obligations
that exist at the balance sheet date and to recognize the expenses that apply to
the current accounting period. Prior to adjustment, both liabilities and expenses
are understated. Therefore, an adjusting entry for accrued expenses results
in an increase (a debit) to an expense account and an increase (a credit)
to a liability account.

Accrued Expenses

Expense Liability
Debit Credit
Adjusting Adjusting
Entry (+) Entry (+)

1 1

Let’s look in more detail at some specific types of accrued expenses, begin-
ning with accrued interest.

ACCRUED INTEREST. Sierra Corporation signed a three-month note payable in
the amount of $5,000 on October 1. The note requires Sierra to pay interest at
an annual rate of 12%.

The amount of the interest recorded is determined by three factors: (1) the
face value of the note; (2) the interest rate, which is always expressed as an
annual rate; and (3) the length of time the note is outstanding. For Sierra, the
total interest due on the $5,000 note at its maturity date three months in the
future is $150 ($5,000 X 12% X 3), or $50 for one month. Illustration 4-18 shows
the formula for computing interest and its application to Sierra Corporation for
the month of October.

Annual Time in
Face Value x Interest X Terms of = Interest
of Note Rate One Year
$5,000 X 12% X & = $50
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lllustration 4-16
Accounting for accrued
revenues

Ethics Note A report released by
Fannie Mae’s board of directors
stated that improper adjusting
entries at the mortgage-finance
company resulted in delayed
recognition of expenses caused
by interest-rate changes. The
motivation for such accounting
apparently was the desire to hit
earnings estimates.

lllustration 4-17
Adjusting entries for
accrued expenses

lllustration 4-18 Formula
for computing interest
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Helpful Hint In computing As Tllustration 4-19 shows, the accrual of interest at October 31 increases a
interest, we express the time liability account, Interest Payable. It also decreases stockholders’ equity by in-
period as a fraction of a year. creasing an expense account, Interest Expense.

Illustration 4-19
Adjustment for Basic The expense Interest Expense is increased $50, and the liability Interest
accrued interest Analysis Payable is increased $50.
; Assets = Liabilities *+ Stockholders’ Equity
Equation
. Interest Payable Interest Expense
Analysis _ —_
+$50 —$50
Debit—Credit Debits increase expenses: debit Interest Expense $50.
Analysis Credits increase liabilities: credit Interest Payable $50.
Journal Oct. 31| Interest Expense 50
Ent Interest Payable 50
4 (To record interest on notes
payable)
Interest Expense Interest Payable
Posting Oct. 31 Adj. 50 Oct. 31 Adj. 50
Oct. 31 Bal. 50 Oct. 31 Bal. 50

Interest Expense shows the interest charges for the month of October. Inter-
est Payable shows the amount of interest the company owes at the statement
date. Sierra will not pay the interest until the note comes due at the end of three
months. Companies use the Interest Payable account, instead of crediting Notes
Payable, to disclose the two different types of obligations—interest and principal—
in the accounts and statements. Without this adjusting entry, liabilities and
interest expense are understated, and net income and stockholders’ equity
are overstated.

- <7, International Insight
. l Cashing In on Accrual Accounting

The Chinese government, like most governments, uses cash accounting. It
was therefore interesting when it was recently reported that for about $38 billion of ex-
penditures in a recent budget projection, the Chinese government decided to use ac-
crual accounting versus cash accounting. It decided to expense the amount in the year
in which it was originally allocated rather than when the payments would be made. Why
did it do this? It enabled the government to keep its projected budget deficit below a
3% threshold. While it was able to keep its projected shortfall below 3%, China did suf-
fer some criticism for its inconsistent accounting. Critics charge that this inconsistent
treatment reduces the transparency of China's accounting information. That is, it is not
easy for outsiders to accurately evaluate what is really going on.

Source: Andrew Batson, “China Altered Budget Accounting to Reduce Deficit Figure” Wall Street Journal
Online (March 15, 2010).

Accrual accounting is often considered superior to cash accounting. Why, then,
m were some people critical of China’s use of accrual accounting in this instance? (See
page 223.)
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ACCRUED SALARIES. Companies pay for some types of expenses, such as em-
ployee salaries and commissions, after the services have been performed. Sierra
paid salaries on October 26 for its employees’ first two weeks of work; the next
payment of salaries will not occur until November 9. As Illustration 4-20 shows,
three working days remain in October (October 29-31).

October November
S M TuWTh E § S M TuWTh E §
I 2 3 4 5 6 I 2 3
7 8 9 10 Il 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Start of 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 112 13 14 15|16 17
pay period ———

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22|23 24

28 29 ,30 31 25 26 27 28 29|30

Adjustment period Payday Payday

At October 31, the salaries for these three days represent an accrued expense
and a related liability to Sierra. The employees receive total salaries of $2,000
for a five-day work week, or $400 per day. Thus, accrued salaries at October 31
are $1,200 ($400 X 3). This accrual increases a liability, Salaries Payable. It also
decreases stockholders’ equity by increasing an expense account, Salaries
Expense, as shown in Illustration 4-21.

lllustration 4-20 Calendar
showing Sierra Corporation’s
pay periods

lllustration 4-21
Adjustment for accrued
salaries

Basic
Analysis

Equation
Analysis

Debit—Credit
Analysis

Journal
Entry

Posting

The expense Salaries Expense is increased $1,200, and the liability account
Salaries Payable is decreased $1,200.

Assets = Liabilities *+  Stockholders’ Equity
Salaries Payable Salaries Expense
+$1,200 —$1,200

Debits increase expenses: debit Salaries Expense $1,200.
Credits increase liabilities: credit Salaries Payable $1,200.

Oct. 31| Salaries Expense 1,200
Salaries Payable 1,200
(To record accrued salaries)

Salaries Expense Salaries Payable
Oct. 26 4,000 Oct. 31  Adj. 1,200
31 Adj. 1,200
Oct. 31 Bal. 5,200 Oct. 31 Bal. 1,200

After this adjustment, the balance in Salaries Expense of $5,200 (13 days X
$400) is the actual salary expense for October. The balance in Salaries Payable
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lllustration 4-22
Accounting for accrued
expenses

before you go on...

ADJUSTING ENTRIES
FOR ACCRUALS

Action Plan

* Make adjusting entries at the
end of the period for revenues
earned and expenses incurred
in the period.

* Don't forget to make adjusting
entries for accruals. Adjusting
entries for accruals will increase
both a balance sheet and an
income statement account.

chapter 4 Accrual Accounting Concepts

of $1,200 is the amount of the liability for salaries Sierra owes as of October 31.
Without the $1,200 adjustment for salaries, Sierra’s expenses are under-
stated $1,200 and its liabilities are understated $1,200.

Sierra Corporation pays salaries every two weeks. Consequently, the next pay-
day is November 9, when the company will again pay total salaries of $4,000. The
payment consists of $1,200 of salaries payable at October 31 plus $2,800 of salaries
expense for November (7 working days, as shown in the November calendar X
$400). Therefore, Sierra makes the following entry on November 9.

Nov. 9 Salaries Payable
Salaries Expense

Cash
(To record November 9 payroll)

1,200
2,800
4,000

This entry eliminates the liability for Salaries Payable that Sierra recorded in
the October 31 adjusting entry, and it records the proper amount of Salaries
Expense for the period between November 1 and November 9.

Illustration 4-22 summarizes the accounting for accrued expenses.

ACCOUNTING FOR ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accounts Before
Adjustment

Reason for
Adjustment

Adjusting

Examples Entry

Interest, rent,
salaries

Expenses have been Expenses understated. Dr. Expenses
incurred but not yet paid Liabilities understated.  Cr. Liabilities
in cash or recorded.

m Micro Computer Services Inc. began operations on August 1, 2012. At

the end of August 2012, management attempted to prepare monthly financial statements.
The following information relates to August.

1. At August 31, the company owed its employees $800 in salaries that will be paid on
September 1.

2. On August 1, the company borrowed $30,000 from a local bank on a 15-year mort-
gage. The annual interest rate is 10%.

3. Revenue earned but unrecorded for August totaled $1,100.

Prepare the adjusting entries needed at August 31, 2012.
Solution

1. Salaries Expense 800
Salaries Payable

(To record accrued salaries)

800

2. Interest Expense 250
Interest Payable
(To record accrued interest:

$30,000 X 10% X {5 = $250)

3. Accounts Receivable
Service Revenue
(To record revenue earned)

250

1,100
1,100

Related exercise material: BE4-8, [2Y:¥i4 4-2, E4-8, E4-9, E4-10, and E4-11.
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SUMMARY OF BASIC RELATIONSHIPS

Illustration 4-23 summarizes the four basic types of adjusting entries. Take some
time to study and analyze the adjusting entries. Be sure to note that each ad-
justing entry affects one balance sheet account and one income statement
account.

lllustration 4-23

Type of Adjustment Accounts Before Adjustment Adjusting Entry Summary of adjusting
Prepaid expenses Assets overstated Dr. Expenses entries
Expenses understated Cr. Assets
Unearned revenues Liabilities overstated Dr. Liabilities
Revenues understated Cr. Revenues
Accrued revenues Assets understated Dr. Assets
Revenues understated Cr. Revenues
Accrued expenses Expenses understated Dr. Expenses
Liabilities understated Cr. Liabilities

Illustrations 4-24 and 4-25 (page 182) show the journalizing and posting of
adjusting entries for Sierra Corporation on October 31. When reviewing the gen-
eral ledger in Illustration 4-25, note that for learning purposes, we have high-
lighted the adjustments in color.

lllustration 4-24 General
GENERAL JOURNAL journal showing adjusting

entries
Date Account Titles and Explanation Debit | Credit

2010 Adjusting Entries

Oct. 31 Supplies Expense 1,500
Supplies 1,500
(To record supplies used)

31 Insurance Expense 50
Prepaid Insurance 50
(To record insurance expired)

31 Depreciation Expense 40
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment 40
(To record monthly depreciation)

31 Unearned Service Revenue 400
Service Revenue 400
(To record revenue earned)
31 Accounts Receivable 200
Service Revenue 200
(To record revenue earned)
31 Interest Expense 50
Interest Payable 50
(To record interest on notes payable)
31 Salaries Expense 1,200
Salaries Payable 1,200
(To record accrued salaries)
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lllustration 4-25 General
ledger after adjustments

chapter 4 Accrual Accounting Concepts

GENERAL LEDGER

Cash Common Stock
Oct. 1 10,000 | Oct. 2 5,000 Oct. 1 10,000
1 5,000 3 900
2 1,200 4 600 Oct. 31 Bal. 10,000
3 10,000 20 500 Retained Earnings
26 4000 Oct. 31 Bal. 0
Oct. 31 Bal. 15,200 Dividends
Accounts Receivable Oct. 20 500
Oct. 31 240 Oct. 31 Bal. 500
Oct. 31 Bal. 200 Service Revenue
Supplies Oct. 3 10,000
Oct. 5 2,500 | Oct. 31 1,500 31 400
31 200
Oct. 31 Bal. 1,000
. Oct. 31 Bal. 10,600
Prepaid Insurance
Salaries Expense
Oct. 4 600 | Oct. 31 50
Oct. 26 4,000
Oct. 31 Bal. 550 31 1,200
Equipment Oct. 31 Bal. 5,200
Oct. 2 5,000 Supplies Expense
Oct. 31 Bal. 5,000 Oct. 31 1,500
Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment Oct. 31 Bal. 1,500
Rent Expense
Oct. 31 40
Oct. 3 900
Oct. 31 Bal. 40
Oct. 31  Bal. 900
Notes Payable Insurance Expense
Oct. 1 5,000 Ot 31 50
Oct. 31 Bal. 5,000 Oct. 31 Bal. 50
Accounts Payable Interest Expense
Oct. 5 2,500 Oct. 31 50
Oct. 31 Bal. 2,500 Oct. 31 Bal. 50
Interest Payable Depreciation Expense
Oct. 31 50 Oct. 31 40
Oct. 31 Bal.50 Q¢ 31  Bal 40
Unearned Service Revenue
Oct. 31 400 | Oct. 2 1,200
Oct. 31 Bal. 800
Salaries Payable
Oct. 31 1,200
Oct. 31 Bal. 1,200



The Adjusted Trial Balance and Financial Statements 183

The Adjusted Trial Balance and
Financial Statements

After a company has journalized and posted all adjusting entries, it prepares
another trial balance from the ledger accounts. This trial balance is called an
adjusted trial balance. It shows the balances of all accounts, including those
adjusted, at the end of the accounting period. The purpose of an adjusted trial
balance is to prove the equality of the total debit balances and the total credit
balances in the ledger after all adjustments. Because the accounts contain all
data needed for financial statements, the adjusted trial balance is the primary
basis for the preparation of financial statements.

PREPARING THE ADJUSTED TRIAL BALANCE

Illustration 4-26 presents the adjusted trial balance for Sierra Corporation pre-
pared from the ledger accounts in Illustration 4-25. The amounts affected by the
adjusting entries are highlighted in color.

SIERRA CORPORATION
Adjusted Trial Balance
October 31, 2012

Dr. Cr.
Cash $ 15,200
Accounts Receivable 200
Supplies 1,000
Prepaid Insurance 550
Equipment 5,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment $ 40
Notes Payable 5,000
Accounts Payable 2,500
Interest Payable 50
Unearned Service Revenue 800
Salaries Payable 1,200
Common Stock 10,000
Retained Earnings 0
Dividends 500
Service Revenue 10,600
Salaries Expense 5,200
Supplies Expense 1,500
Rent Expense 900
Insurance Expense 50
Interest Expense 50
Depreciation Expense 40

$30,190 $30,190

study objective 6

Describe the nature and
purpose of the adjusted
trial balance.

Illustration 4-26
Adjusted trial balance
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PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Companies can prepare financial statements directly from an adjusted trial
balance. Illustrations 4-27 and 4-28 present the interrelationships of data in the
adjusted trial balance of Sierra Corporation. As Illustration 4-27 shows, compa-
nies prepare the income statement from the revenue and expense accounts. Sim-
ilarly, they derive the retained earnings statement from the retained earnings ac-
count, dividends account, and the net income (or net loss) shown in the income
statement. As Illustration 4-28 shows, companies then prepare the balance sheet
from the asset, liability, and stockholders’ equity accounts. They obtain the
amount reported for retained earnings on the balance sheet from the ending bal-
ance in the retained earnings statement.

lllustration 4-27
Preparation of the income
statement and retained
earnings statement from
the adjusted trial balance

F*" SIERRA CORPORATION
Adjusted Trial Balance

October 31, 2012 SIERRA CORPORATION

Income Statement
For the Month Ended October 31, 2012

Account Debit  Credit
Cash $15,200 Revenues
Accounts Receivable 200 —— Service revenue $10,600
Supplies 1,000
Prepaid Insurance 550 Expenses
Equipment 5,000 — Salaries expense $5,200
Accumulated Depreciation— Supplies expense 1,500
Equipment $ 40 Rent expense 900
Notes Payable 5,000 Insurance expense 50
Accounts Payable 2,500 Interest expense 50
Interest Payable 50 Depreciation expense 40
Unearned Service Revenue 800
Salaries Payable 1,200 Total expenses 7,740
Common Stock 10,000 N finasme $ 2,86() m—
= Retained Earnings 0 =
= Dividends 500
Service Revenue 10,600
Salaries Expense 5,200
Supplies Expense 1,500
Rent Expense 900
Insurance Expense 50 SIERRA CORPORATION
Interest Expense 50 Retained Earnings Statement
Depreciation Expense 40 For the Month Ended October 31, 2012
$30,190  $30,190
P Retained earnings, October 1 $ 0
Add: Net income 2,860 e
2,860
» Less: Dividends 500

Retained earnings, October 31 $ 2,360
To balance sheet
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lllustration 4-28
Preparation of the balance
sheet from the adjusted
trial balance

SIERRA CORPORATION
Adjusted Trial Balance
October 31, 2012

Account Debit

Cash $15,200

Accounts Receivable 200

Supplies 1,000

Prepaid Insurance 550

Equipment 5,000

Accumulated Depreciation—

Equipment

Notes Payable

Accounts Payable

Interest Payable

Unearned Service Revenue

Salaries Payable

Common Stock

Retained Earnings

Dividends 500

Service Revenue

Salaries Expense 5,200

Supplies Expense 1,500

Rent Expense 900

Insurance Expense 50

Interest Expense 50

Depreciation Expense 40
$30,190

Credit

5,000
2,500

800

1,200
10,000

10,600

$30,190

\

—

SIERRA CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
October 31, 2012

Assets

Cash $15,200
Accounts receivable 200
Supplies 1,000
Prepaid insurance 550
Equipment $5,000
Less: Accumulated

depreciation—equipment 40 4,960
Total assets $21,910

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Liabilities
Notes payable $ 5,000
Accounts payable 2,500
Salaries payable 1,200
Unearned service revenue 800
Interest payable 50
Total liabilities $ 9,550
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock 10,000
Retained earnings 2,360
Total stockholders' equity 12,360
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $21,910

Balance at Oct. 31 from

Retained Earnings Statement
in lllustration 4-27

before you go on...

m Skolnick Co. was organized on April 1, 2012. The company prepares TRIAL BALANCE
quarterly financial statements. The adjusted trial balance amounts at June 30 are shown

below:

Debits
Cash $ 6,700
Accounts Receivable 600
Prepaid Rent 900
Supplies 1,000
Equipment 15,000
Dividends 600
Salaries and Wages Expense 9,400
Rent Expense 1,500
Depreciation Expense 850
Supplies Expense 200
Utilities Expense 510

Interest Expense 50
Total debits $37,310

Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment $

Notes Payable

Accounts Payable

Salaries and Wages Payable
Interest Payable

Unearned Rent Revenue
Common Stock

Service Revenue

Rent Revenue

Total credits

Credits

850
5,000
1,510

400

50

500

14,000
14,200
800

$37,310
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Action Plan

* In an adjusted trial balance, all
asset, liability, revenue, and
expense accounts are properly
stated.

* To determine the ending
balance in Retained Earnings,
add net income and subtract
dividends.

Alternative Terminology
Temporary accounts are sometimes
called nominal accounts, and
permanent accounts are sometimes
called real accounts.

study objective | @

Explain the purpose of
closing entries.

chapter 4 Accrual Accounting Concepts

(a) Determine the net income for the quarter April 1 to June 30.
(b) Determine the total assets and total liabilities at June 30, 2012 for Skolnick Co.

(c) Determine the amount that appears for Retained Earnings.
Solution

(a) The net income is determined by adding revenues and subtracting expenses. The net
income is computed as follows.

Revenues
Service revenue $14,200
Rent revenue 800
Total revenues $15,000
Expenses
Salaries and wages expense $ 9,400
Rent expense 1,500
Depreciation expense 850
Utilities expense 510
Supplies expense 200
Interest expense 50
Total expenses 12,510
Net income $ 2,490

(b) Total assets and liabilities are computed as follows.

Assets Liabilities

Cash $ 6,700 Notes payable $5,000
Accounts receivable 600 Accounts payable 1,510
Supplies 1,000 Unearned rent revenue 500
Prepaid rent 900 Salaries and wages
Equipment 15,000 payable 400
Less: Accumulated Interest payable 50

depreciation—

equipment 850 14,150
Total assets $23,350 Total liabilities $7,460

(c) Retained earnings, April 1 $ 0

Add: Net income 2,490
Less: Dividends 600
Retained earnings, June 30 $1,890

Related exercise material: BE4-9, BE4-10, BE4-11, BE4-12, m 4-3, E4-12, E4-13, E4-15,
and E4-16.

Closing the Books

In previous chapters, you learned that revenue and expense accounts and the div-
idends account are subdivisions of retained earnings, which is reported in the
stockholders’ equity section of the balance sheet. Because revenues, expenses, and
dividends relate to only a given accounting period, they are considered tempo-
rary accounts. In contrast, all balance sheet accounts are considered permanent
accounts because their balances are carried forward into future accounting
periods. Illustration 4-29 identifies the accounts in each category.

PREPARING CLOSING ENTRIES

At the end of the accounting period, companies transfer the temporary account
balances to the permanent stockholders’ equity account—Retained Earnings—
through the preparation of closing entries. Closing entries transfer net income

@ the
navigator
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Temporary Permanent
All revenue accounts All asset accounts
All expense accounts All liability accounts
Dividends Stockholders’ equity accounts

(or net loss) and dividends to Retained Earnings, so the balance in Retained
Earnings agrees with the retained earnings statement. For example, notice that
in the adjusted trial balance in Illustration 4-24 (page 183). Retained Earnings
has a balance of zero. Prior to the closing entries, the balance in Retained Earn-
ings will be its beginning-of-the-period balance. (For Sierra, this is zero because
it is Sierra’s first month of operations.)

In addition to updating Retained Earnings to its correct ending balance, clos-
ing entries produce a zero balance in each temporary account. As a result,
these accounts are ready to accumulate data about revenues, expenses, and div-
idends that occur in the next accounting period. Permanent accounts are not
closed.

When companies prepare closing entries, they could close each income state-
ment account directly to Retained Earnings. However, to do so would result in
excessive detail in the retained earnings account. Accordingly, companies close
the revenue and expense accounts to another temporary account, Income Sum-
mary, and they transfer only the resulting net income or net loss from this ac-
count to Retained Earnings. Illustration 4-30 depicts the closing process. While
it still takes the average large company seven days to close, some companies
such as Cisco employ technology that allows them to do a so-called “virtual close”
almost instantaneously any time during the year. Besides dramatically reducing
the cost of closing, the virtual close provides companies with accurate data for
decision making whenever they desire it.

Revenue
Accounts \
Income
——
Summary

Expense /
Accounts Retained
Earnings

Dividends

A 4

Illustration 4-29
Temporary versus
permanent accounts

Illustration 4-30 The
closing process
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Illustration 4-31 shows the closing entries for Sierra Corporation. Illustra-
tion 4-32 diagrams the posting process for Sierra Corporation’s closing entries.

lllustration 4-31 Closing

entries journalized GENERAL JOURNAL
Date Account Titles and Explanation Debit | Credit
Closing Entries
2012 (1)
Helpful Hint Income Summary is Oct. 31 Service Revenue 10,600
a very descriptive title: Companies Income Summary 10,600
close total revenues to Income (To close revenue account)
Summary and total expenses to @)
31 Income Summary 7,740

Income Summary. The balance in

. Salaries Expense 5,200

the Income Summary is a net .
. l Supplies Expense 1,500
Income or net 108s. Rent Expense 900
Insurance Expense 50
Interest Expense 50
Depreciation Expense 40

(To close expense accounts)

(3)

31 Income Summary 2,860
Retained Earnings 2,860
(To close net income to retained earnings)
4)
31 Retained Earnings 500
Dividends 500

(To close dividends to retained earnings)

PREPARING A POST-CLOSING TRIAL BALANCE

After a company journalizes and posts all closing entries, it prepares another trial
balance, called a post-closing trial balance, from the ledger. A post-closing trial
balance is a list of all permanent accounts and their balances after closing entries
are journalized and posted. The purpose of this trial balance is to prove the
equality of the permanent account balances that the company carries for-
ward into the next accounting period. Since all temporary accounts will have
zero balances, the post-closing trial balance will contain only permanent—
balance sheet—accounts.



Illustration 4-32 Posting
of closing entries

Insurance
Expense

Retained

50 |(2) 50 Earnings
4 500 X o
\ () 2860
Interest Fl \ Bal. 2,360
Expense
50 |(2) 50
Depreciation
Expense Dividends
0 [0 40 — 500 |(4) 500

Salaries
Expense
4,000 [(2) 5200 =
1,200
5,200 5,200
(2]
Supplies
Expense
1,500 [(2) 1,500 Income Service
Summary Revenue
>—> @ 7,740 |(l) 10,600 <=1} (I) 10,600 10,000
Rent 3 28 400
Expense 10,600 10,600 16.600 T6.:600
900 |[(2) 900 . -

m After making entries to close its revenue and expense accounts to Income

Summary, Hancock Company has the following balances.

Dividends
Retained Earnings
Income Summary

Solution

Dec. 31 Income Summary
Retained Earnings
(To close net income to retained
earnings)
31 Retained Earnings
Dividends
(To close dividends to retained
earnings)

$15,000
42,000
18,000 (credit balance)

Prepare the closing entries at December 31 that affect the stockholders’ equity accounts.

18,000

15,000

Related exercise material: BE4-13, BE4-14, [:Y:¥11] 4-4, E4-14, and E4-18.

before you go on...

CLOSING ENTRIES

Action Plan

e Close Income Summary to
Retained Earnings.

« Close Dividends to Retained

18,000 Earnings.

15,000
@ the
navigator

189



190

study objective [ &

Describe the required steps
in the accounting cycle.

lllustration 4-33
Required steps in the
accounting cycle

Helpful Hint Some companies
prefer to reverse certain adjusting
entries at the beginning of a new
accounting period. The company
makes a reversing entry at the
beginning of the next accounting
period; this entry is the exact
opposite of the adjusting entry
made in the previous period.

chapter 4 Accrual Accounting Concepts

SUMMARY OF THE ACCOUNTING CYCLE

Illustration 4-33 shows the required steps in the accounting cycle. You can see
that the cycle begins with the analysis of business transactions and ends with
the preparation of a post-closing trial balance. Companies perform the steps in
the cycle in sequence and repeat them in each accounting period.

Analyze business
transactions

i
|

Journalize the
transactions

Prepare a post-closing
trial balance

]

Post to
ledger accounts

Journalize and post
closing entries

]

Prepare financial
statements:
Income statement
Retained earnings statement
Balance sheet

Prepare a
trial balance

I<_

Journalize and post
adjusting entries:
Deferrals/Accruals

]

Prepare an adjusted
trial balance

{

Steps 1-3 may occur daily during the accounting period, as explained in
Chapter 3. Companies perform Steps 4-7 on a periodic basis, such as monthly,
quarterly, or annually. Steps 8 and 9, closing entries and a post-closing trial
balance, usually take place only at the end of a company’s annual accounting
period.

Quality of Earnings

“Did you make your numbers today?” is a question asked often in both large and
small businesses. Companies and employees are continually under pressure to
“make the numbers”—that is, to have earnings that are in line with expectations.
As a consequence it is not surprising that many companies practice earnings
management. Earnings management is the planned timing of revenues, ex-
penses, gains, and losses to smooth out bumps in net income. The quality of
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earnings is greatly affected when a company manages earnings up or down to
meet some targeted earnings number. A company that has a high quality of
earnings provides full and transparent information that will not confuse or mis-
lead users of the financial statements. A company with questionable quality of
earnings may mislead investors and creditors, who believe they are relying on
relevant and reliable information. As a consequence, investors and creditors lose
confidence in financial reporting, and it becomes difficult for our capital mar-
kets to work efficiently.

Companies manage earnings in a variety of ways. One way is through the
use of one-time items to prop up earnings numbers. For example, ConAgra
Foods recorded a nonrecurring gain from the sale of Pilgrim’s Pride stock for
$186 million to help meet an earnings projection for the quarter.

Another way is to inflate revenue numbers in the short-run to the detri-
ment of the long-run. For example, Bristol-Myers Squibb provided sales incen-
tives to its wholesalers to encourage them to buy products at the end of the quar-
ter (often referred to as channel-stuffing). As a result Bristol-Myers was able to
meet its sales projections. The problem was that the wholesalers could not sell
that amount of merchandise and ended up returning it to Bristol-Myers. The re-
sult was that Bristol-Myers had to restate its income numbers.

Companies also manage earnings through improper adjusting entries. Reg-
ulators investigated Xerox for accusations that it was booking too much revenue
up-front on multi-year contract sales. Financial executives at Office Max resigned
amid accusations that the company was recognizing rebates from its vendors
too early and therefore overstating revenue. Finally, WorldCom'’s abuse of adjust-
ing entries to meet its net income targets is unsurpassed: It used adjusting en-
tries to increase net income by reclassifying liabilities as revenue and reclassi-
fying expenses as assets. Investigations of the company’s books after it went
bankrupt revealed adjusting entries of more than a billion dollars that had no
supporting documentation.

The good news is that, as a result of investor pressure as well as the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, many companies are trying to improve the quality of their financial
reporting. For example, hotel operator Marriott is now providing detailed infor-
mation on the write-offs it has on loan guarantees it gives hotels. General Electric
has decided to provide more detail on its revenues and operating profits for
individual businesses it owns. IBM is attempting to provide a better breakdown
of its earnings. At the same time, regulators are taking a tough stand on the is-
sue of quality of earnings. For example, one regulator noted that companies may
be required to restate their financials every single time that they account for any
transaction that had no legitimate purpose but was done solely for an account-
ing purpose, such as to smooth net income.

In this chapter, you learned that adjusting entries are used to adjust numbers
that would otherwise be stated on a cash basis. Sierra Corporation’s income
statement (Illustration 4-27, page 184) shows net income of $2,860. The state-
ment of cash flows reports a form of cash basis income referred to as “Net cash
provided by operating activities.” For example, Illustration 1-8 (page 15), which
shows a statement of cash flows, reports net cash provided by operating activi-
ties of $5,700 for Sierra. Net income and net cash provided by operating activ-
ities often differ. The difference for Sierra is $2,840 ($5,700 — $2,860). The fol-
lowing summary shows the causes of this difference of $2,840.

KEEPING AN EYE

ON CASH

study objective E

Understand the causes of
differences between net
income and cash provided
by operating activities.
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(1) Cash received in advance from customer
(2) Cash received from customers for services
provided
(3) Services provided for cash received
previously in (1)
(4) Services provided on account
(5) Payment of rent
(6) Purchase of insurance
(7) Payment of employee salaries
(8) Use of supplies
(9) Use of insurance
(10) Depreciation
(11) Interest cost incurred, but not paid
(12) Salaries incurred, but not paid

Computation of

Computation

Net Cash Provided by of

Operating Activities Net Income

$ 1,200 $ 0

10,000 10,000

0 400

0 200

(900) (900)

(600) 0

(4,000) (4,000)

0 (1,500)

0 (50)

0 (40)

0 (50)

0 (1,200)

$ 5,700 $ 2,860

For each item included in the computation of net cash provided by operating
activities, you should confirm that cash was either received or paid. For each
item in the income statement, the company should confirm that revenue was
earned (even when cash was not received) or that an expense was incurred (even

when cash was not paid).

d USING THE DECISION TOOLKIT

Humana Corporation provides managed health care services to approximately 7
million people. Headquartered in Louisville, Kentucky, it has over 13,700 employees
in 15 states and Puerto Rico. A simplified version of Humana’s December 31, 2009,
adjusted trial balance is shown at the top of the next page.

Instructions

From the trial balance, prepare an income statement, retained earnings statement,
and classified balance sheet. Be sure to prepare them in that order, since each
statement depends on information determined in the preceding statement.
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HUMANA CORPORATION
Adjusted Trial Balance

=
é&-‘gﬁ December 31, 2009

(in millions)
Account Dr. Cr.
Cash $1,613
Short-Term Investments 6,190
Receivables 824
Other Current Assets 626
Property and Equipment, Net 679
Long-Term Investments 1,307
Goodwill 1,993
Other Long-Term Assets 921
Benefits Payable $ 3,222
Accounts Payable 1,308
Other Current Liabilities 730
Long-Term Debt 3,117
Common Stock 1,690
Dividends 0
Retained Earnings 3,046
Revenues 30,960
Medical Cost Expense 24,775
Selling, General, and Administrative Expense 4,227
Depreciation Expense 250
Interest Expense 106
Income Tax Expense 562
$44,073 $44,073
Solution
HUMANA CORPORATION
!"i*f" i Income Statement
él_—g,:;; For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(in millions)
Revenues $30,960
Medical cost expense $24,775
Selling, general, and administrative expense 4,227
Depreciation expense 250
Interest expense 106
Income tax expense 562 29,920
Net income $ 1,040

HUMANA CORPORATION
!"i’f" - Retained Earnings Statement
é&-“gﬂ For the Year Ended December 31, 2009

(in millions)
Beginning retained earnings $3,046
Add: Net income 1,040

(=)

Less: Dividends

Ending retained earnings $4,086
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HUMANA CORPORATION
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2009

(in millions)
Assets
Current assets
Cash $1,613
Short-term investments 6,190
Receivables 824
Other current assets 626

Total current assets $9,253
Long-term investments 1,307
Property and equipment,

net of accumulated depreciation 679
Goodwill 1,993
Other long-term assets 921
Total assets $14,153

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts payable $1,308

Benefits payable 3,222

Other current liabilities 730

Total current liabilities $5,260

Long-term debt 3,117

Total liabilities 8,377

Stockholders’ equity

Common stock 1,690
Retained earnings 4,086

Total stockholders’ equity 5,776

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $14,153

Summary of Study Objectives

1 Explain the revenue recognition principle and the
expense recognition principle. The revenue recognition
principle dictates that companies recognize revenue
in the accounting period in which it is earned. The ex-
pense recognition principle dictates that companies
recognize expenses when expenses make their contri-
bution to revenues.

2 Differentiate between the cash basis and the accrual
basis of accounting. Under the cash basis, companies
record events only in the periods in which the com-
pany receives or pays cash. Accrual-based accounting
means that companies record, in the periods in which
the events occur, events that change a company’s
financial statements even if cash has not been
exchanged.

3 Explain why adjusting entries are needed, and identify
the major types of adjusting entries. Companies make
adjusting entries at the end of an accounting period.

These entries ensure that companies record revenues
in the period in which they are earned and that com-
panies recognize expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. The major types of adjusting entries are
prepaid expenses, unearned revenues, accrued rev-
enues, and accrued expenses.

q Prepare adjusting entries for deferrals. Deferrals are
either prepaid expenses or unearned revenues. Com-
panies make adjusting entries for deferrals at the state-
ment date to record the portion of the deferred item
that represents the expense incurred or the revenue
earned in the current accounting period.

5 Prepare adjusting entries for accruals. Accruals are
either accrued revenues or accrued expenses. Ad-
justing entries for accruals record revenues earned
and expenses incurred in the current accounting pe-
riod that have not been recognized through daily
entries.
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6 Describe the nature and purpose of the adjusted trial

balance. An adjusted trial balance is a trial balance
that shows the balances of all accounts, including
those that have been adjusted, at the end of an ac-
counting period. The purpose of an adjusted trial bal-
ance is to show the effects of all financial events that
have occurred during the accounting period.

Explain the purpose of closing entries. One purpose of
closing entries is to transfer net income or net loss for
the period to Retained Earnings. A second purpose is
to “zero-out” all temporary accounts (revenue ac-
counts, expense accounts, and dividends) so that they
start each new period with a zero balance. To accom-
plish this, companies “close” all temporary accounts
at the end of an accounting period. They make sepa-
rate entries to close revenues and expenses to Income
Summary; Income Summary to Retained Earnings;

and Dividends to Retained Earnings. Only temporary
accounts are closed.

Describe the required steps in the accounting cycle. The
required steps in the accounting cycle are: (a) analyze
business transactions, (b) journalize the transactions,
(c) post to ledger accounts, (d) prepare a trial balance,
(e) journalize and post adjusting entries, (f) prepare
an adjusted trial balance, (g) prepare financial state-
ments, (h) journalize and post closing entries, and
(i) prepare a post-closing trial balance.

Understand the causes of differences between net in-
come and net cash provided by operating activities. Net
income is based on accrual accounting, which relies on
the adjustment process. Net cash provided by operating
activities is determined by adding cash received from
operating the business and subtracting
cash expended during operations.

@ the
navigator

DECISION TOOLKIT A SUMMARY
INFO NEEDED FOR DECISION TOOL TO USE FOR DECISION

DECISION CHECKPOINTS

HOW TO EVALUATE RESULTS

Record revenue when earned. A
service business earns revenue
when it performs a service.

At what point should the company  Need to understand the nature of
record revenue? the company’s business

Recognizing revenue too early
overstates current period revenue;
recognizing it too late understates
current period revenue.

At what point should the company  Need to understand the nature of
record expenses? the company’s business

Expenses should “follow” Recognizing expenses too early

revenues—that is, match the effort  overstates current period

(expense) with the result expense; recognizing them too

(revenue). late understates current period
expense.

Adjusting Entries in an Automated
World—Using a Worksheet

In the previous discussion, we used T accounts and trial balances to arrive at the study objective ] O

amounts used to prepare financial statements. Accountants frequently use a
device known as a worksheet to determine these amounts. A worksheet is a
multiple-column form that may be used in the adjustment process and in prepar-
ing financial statements. Accountants can prepare worksheets manually, but today
most use computer spreadsheets.

As its name suggests, the worksheet is a working tool for the accountant. A
worksheet is not a permanent accounting record; it is neither a journal nor
a part of the general ledger. The worksheet is merely a supplemental device used
to make it easier to prepare adjusting entries and the financial statements. Small
companies with relatively few accounts and adjustments may not need a work-
sheet. In large companies with numerous accounts and many adjustments, a
worksheet is almost indispensable.

Describe the purpose
and the basic form of a
worksheet.
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Illustration 4A-1
and procedure for a

Form
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worksheet -
= BB x
File Exit View Insert Format  Tools Data Window  Help
A B (& D = F G H | J K :
| SIERRA CORPORATION N
2 Worksheet
3 For the Month Ended October 31, 2012
4 "
) ) Adjusted Income Balance
2 Trial Balance Adjustments Trial Balance Statement Sheet
7 Account Titles Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
8| Cash 15,200 15,200 15,200
9 | Supplies 2,500 (a) 1,500 1,000 1,000
10| Prepaid Insurance 600 (b) 50/ 550 550
I'l| Equipment 5,000 5,000 5,000
12| Notes Payable 5,000 5,000 5,000
13| Accounts Payable 2,500 2,500 2,500
14| Unearned Service Revenue 1,200 (d) 400 800 800
15| Common Stock 10,000 10,000 10,000
16| Retained Earnings —0- —0- —0-
17| Dividends 500 500 500
18| Service Revenue 10,000 (d) 400 10,600 10,600
19 (e) 200
20| Salaries Expense 4,000 (g) 1,200 5,200 5,200
21| Rent Expense 900 900 900
22 Totals 28,700 28,700
23
24| Supplies Expense (a) 1,500 1,500 1,500
25| Insurance Expense (b) 50 50 50
26| Accum. Depreciation—
27| Equipment (c) 40 40 40
28| Depreciation Expense (c) 40 40 40
29| Interest Expense (f) 50 50 50
30| Accounts Receivable (e) 200 200 200
31| Interest Payable (f) 50 50 50
32| Salaries Payable (g) 1,200 1,200 1,200
33 Totals 3,440 3,440/30,190 30,190 7,740 | 10,600 22,450 19,590
34
35| Net Income 2,860 2,860
36 Totals 10,600 | 10,600 22,450 22,450
« I >
/
1. 2. 3. 4.
Prepare a Enter Enter Extend adjusted
trial balance adjustment adjusted balances to appropriate
on the data balances statement columns
worksheet

5

Total the statement columns,

compute net income
(or net loss), and
complete worksheet

Illustration 4A-1 shows the basic form of a worksheet. Note the headings:
The worksheet starts with two columns for the Trial Balance. The next two
columns record all Adjustments. Next is the Adjusted Trial Balance. The last two
sets of columns correspond to the Income Statement and the Balance Sheet. All
items listed in the Adjusted Trial Balance columns are included in either the In-
come Statement or the Balance Sheet columns.

Summary of Study Objective for Appendix 4A

10 Describe the purpose and the basic form of a work-
sheet. The worksheet is a device to make it easier to
prepare adjusting entries and the financial state-
ments. Companies often prepare a worksheet on a

computer spreadsheet. The sets of columns of the
worksheet are, from left to right, the unadjusted trial
balance, adjustments, adjusted trial balance, income
statement, and balance sheet.



Glossary

Accrual-basis accounting (p. /66) Accounting basis in
which companies record, in the periods in which the
events occur, transactions that change a company’s finan-
cial statements, even if cash was not exchanged.

Accrued expenses (p. 177) Expenses incurred but not
yet paid in cash or recorded.

Accrued revenues (p. 175) Revenues earned but not
yet received in cash or recorded.

Adjusted trial balance (p. 183) A list of accounts and
their balances after all adjustments have been made.

Adjusting entries (p. 167) Entries made at the end of
an accounting period to ensure that the revenue recog-
nition and expense recognition principles are followed.

Book value (p. 172) The difference between the cost of a
depreciable asset and its related accumulated depreciation.

Cash-basis accounting (p. 166) Accounting basis in
which a company records revenue only when it receives
cash, and an expense only when it pays cash.

Closing entries (p. 186) Entries at the end of an ac-
counting period to transfer the balances of temporary ac-
counts to a permanent stockholders’ equity account, Re-
tained Earnings.

Contra asset account (p. /71) An account that is off-
set against an asset account on the balance sheet.

Depreciation (p. 171) The process of allocating the
cost of an asset to expense over its useful life.

Earnings management (p. /90) The planned timing of
revenues, expenses, gains, and losses to smooth out
bumps in net income.

Expense recognition principle (matching principle)
(p. 165) The principle that dictates that companies
match efforts (expenses) with results (revenues).

Fiscal year (p. 164, in margin) An accounting period
that is one year long.

Comprehensive m
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Income Summary (p. 187) A temporary account used
in closing revenue and expense accounts.

Periodicity assumption (p. 164) An assumption that
the economic life of a business can be divided into arti-
ficial time periods.

Permanent accounts (p. /86) Balance sheet accounts
whose balances are carried forward to the next account-
ing period.

Post-closing trial balance (p. 188) A list of permanent
accounts and their balances after a company has jour-
nalized and posted closing entries.

Prepaid expenses (prepayments) (p. 169) Assets that
result from the payment of expenses that benefit more
than one accounting period.

Quality of earnings (p. /97) Indicates the level of full
and transparent information that a company provides to
users of its financial statements.

Revenue recognition principle (p. 164) The principle
that companies recognize revenue in the accounting pe-
riod in which it is earned.

Reversing entry (p. 190, in margin) An entry made at
the beginning of the next accounting period; the exact op-
posite of the adjusting entry made in the previous period.

Temporary accounts (p. /186) Revenue, expense, and
dividend accounts whose balances a company transfers
to Retained Earnings at the end of an accounting period.

Unearned revenues (p. 172) Cash received before a
company earns revenues and recorded as a liability until
earned.

Useful life (p. 171) The length of service of a produc-
tive asset.

Worksheet (p. 195) A multiple-column form that com-
panies may use in the adjustment process and in prepar-
ing financial statements.

Terry Thomas and a group of investors incorporate the Green Thumb Lawn Care
Corporation on April 1. At April 30, the trial balance shows the following balances for

selected accounts.

Prepaid Insurance
Equipment

Notes Payable

Unearned Service Revenue
Service Revenue

$ 3,600
28,000
20,000

4,200
1,800

Analysis reveals the following additional data pertaining to these accounts.

1. Prepaid insurance is the cost of a 2-year insurance policy, effective April 1.

2. Depreciation on the equipment is $500 per month.

3. The note payable is dated April 1. It is a 6-month, 12% note.
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4. Seven customers paid for the company’s 6-month lawn service package of $600 begin-
ning in April. These customers received the first month of services in April.

5. Lawn services performed for other customers but not billed at April 30 totaled $1,500.

Instructions

Action Plan Prepare the adjusting entries for the month of April. Show computations.
* Note that adjustments are being

matle for one mefith. Solution to Comprehensive XY
* Make computations carefully.
« Select account titles carefully. GENERAL JOURNAL
* Make sur_e deblt_s are made first Date Account Titles and Explanation Debit Credit

and credits are indented.
» Check that debits equal credits Adjusting Entries

for each entry. Apr. 30 | Insurance Expense 150

Prepaid Insurance 150

(To record insurance expired:
$3,600 +~ 24 = $150 per month)

30 | Depreciation Expense 500
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment 500
(To record monthly depreciation)
30 | Interest Expense 200
Interest Payable 200

(To accrue interest on notes payable:

$20,000 X 12% X 5 = $200)

30 | Unearned Service Revenue 700

Service Revenue 700
(To record revenue earned: $600 =~ 6 = $100;
$100 per month X 7 = $700)

30 | Accounts Receivable 1,500

Service Revenue 1,500

(To accrue revenue earned but not billed Vi o=
or collected) navigator

Self-Test, Brief Exercises, Exercises, Problem Set A, and many

"u".fll..'—."r b
." P L U S more resources are available for practice in WileyPLUS

Self-Test Questions

Answers are on page 223. 3. &8 Which one of these statements about the (S02)

accrual basis of accounting is false?

(a) Companies record events that change their fi-
nancial statements in the period in which events
occur, even if cash was not exchanged.

(S01) 1. What is the periodicity assumption?
(a) Companies should recognize revenue in the
accounting period in which it is earned.
(b) Companies should match expenses with revenues.
(c) The economic life of a business can be divided (b) Companies recognize revenue in the period in
into artificial time periods. which it is earned.
(d) The fiscal year should correspond with the (c) This basis is in accord with generally accepted
calendar vear. accountipg principles.
(S01) 2. Which principle dictates that efforts (expenses) be (d) Com.panlesh record revenue onlylwhen tﬁey
recorded with accomplishments (revenues)? receive cash, and record expense only when they
(a) Expense recognition principle. pay out cash.
(b) Cost principle. 4. Adjusting entries are made to ensure that: (S03)
(c) Periodicity principle. (a) expenses are recognized in the period in which
(d) Revenue recognition principle. they are incurred.
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(S04) 6.

(S04) 7.

(S04) 8.

(S04) 9.

(805 10.

(b) revenues are recorded in the period in which
they are earned.

(¢) balance sheet and income statement accounts
have correct balances at the end of an accounting
period.

(d) All of the above.

Each of the following is a major type (or category)
of adjusting entry except:
(a) prepaid expenses.
(b) accrued revenues.

(c) accrued expenses.
(d) earned expenses.

The trial balance shows Supplies $1,350 and Sup-
plies Expense $0. If $600 of supplies are on hand at
the end of the period, the adjusting entry is:

(a) Supplies 600
Supplies Expense 600
(b) Supplies 750
Supplies Expense 750
(c) Supplies Expense 750
Supplies 750
(d) Supplies Expense 600
Supplies 600

Adjustments for unearned revenues:

(a) decrease liabilities and increase revenues.
(b) increase liabilities and increase revenues.
(c) increase assets and increase revenues.

(d) decrease revenues and decrease assets.

Adjustments for prepaid expenses:

(a) decrease assets and increase revenues.
(b) decrease expenses and increase assets.
(c) decrease assets and increase expenses.
(d) decrease revenues and increase assets.

Queenan Company computes depreciation on delivery
equipment at $1,000 for the month of June. The ad-
justing entry to record this depreciation is as follows:
(a) Depreciation Expense 1,000
Accumulated Depreciation—
Queenan Company
(b) Depreciation Expense
Equipment
(c) Depreciation Expense
Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment
(d) Equipment Expense
Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment

1,000
1,000

1,000
1,000

1,000
1,000

1,000

Adjustments for accrued revenues:

(a) increase assets and increase liabilities.
(b) increase assets and increase revenues.

(c) decrease assets and decrease revenues.
(d) decrease liabilities and increase revenues.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Go to the book’s companion website,
www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, to access
additional Self-Test Questions.

Questions 199

Colleen Mooney earned a salary of $400 for the last
week of September. She will be paid on October 1.
The adjusting entry for Colleen’s employer at Sep-
tember 30 is:

(a) No entry is required.

(b) Salaries and Wages Expense 400

Salaries and Wages Payable 400
(c) Salaries and Wages Expense 400

Cash 400
(d) Salaries and Wages Payable 400

Cash 400

Which statement is incorrect concerning the ad-
justed trial balance?

(a) An adjusted trial balance proves the equality of
the total debit balances and the total credit bal-
ances in the ledger after all adjustments are made.
The adjusted trial balance provides the primary
basis for the preparation of financial statements.
The adjusted trial balance does not list tempo-
rary accounts.

The company prepares the adjusted trial bal-
ance after it has journalized and posted the
adjusting entries.

(b)
(©
(d)

Which account will have a zero balance after a com-
pany has journalized and posted closing entries?

(a) Service Revenue.

(b) Supplies.

(c) Prepaid Insurance.

(d) Accumulated Depreciation.

Which types of accounts will appear in the post-
closing trial balance?

(a) Permanent accounts.

(b) Temporary accounts.

(c) Expense accounts.

(d) None of the above.

All of the following are required steps in the account-
ing cycle except:

(a) journalizing and posting closing entries.

(b) preparing an adjusted trial balance.

(c) preparing a post-closing trial balance.

(d) reversing entries.

Y the
navigator

Note: All asterisked Questions relate to material in the appendix to the chapter.

Questions

1.

(a) How does the periodicity assumption affect an
accountant’s analysis of accounting transactions?
(b) Explain the term fiscal year.

2.

Identify and state two generally accepted accounting
principles that relate to adjusting the accounts.

(S0 5)

(S0 6)

(S07)

(S07)

(S0 8)
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3.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.
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@——= Don Wishne, a lawyer, accepts a legal en-
gagement in March, performs the work in April, and
is paid in May. If Wishne’s law firm prepares monthly
financial statements, when should it recognize rev-
enue from this engagement? Why?

. @&—— In completing the engagement in question

3, Wishne pays no costs in March, $2,500 in April,
and $2,200 in May (incurred in April). How much ex-
pense should the firm deduct from revenues in the
month when it recognizes the revenue? Why?

. “The cost principle of accounting requires adjusting

entries.” Do you agree? Explain.

. Why may the financial information in an unadjusted

trial balance not be up-to-date and complete?

. Distinguish between the two categories of adjusting

entries, and identify the types of adjustments appli-
cable to each category.

. What types of accounts does a company debit and

credit in a prepaid expense adjusting entry?

. “Depreciation is a process of valuation that results in

the reporting of the fair value of the asset.” Do you
agree? Explain.

Explain the differences between depreciation expense
and accumulated depreciation.

Greenstreet Company purchased equipment for
$15,000. By the current balance sheet date, the com-
pany had depreciated $7,000. Indicate the balance
sheet presentation of the data.

What types of accounts are debited and credited in
an unearned revenue adjusting entry?

Data Technologies provides maintenance service for
computers and office equipment for companies
throughout the Northeast. The sales manager is
elated because she closed a $300,000 three-year main-
tenance contract on December 29, 2011, two days
before the company’s year-end. “Now we will hit this
year’s net income target for sure,” she crowed. The
customer is required to pay $100,000 on December 29
(the day the deal was closed). Two more payments of
$100,000 each are also required on December 29,
2012 and 2013. Discuss the effect that this event will
have on the company’s financial statements.

ValuMart, a large national retail chain, is nearing its
fiscal year-end. It appears that the company is not go-
ing to hit its revenue and net income targets. The
company’s marketing manager, Chris Ahrentzen, sug-
gests running a promotion selling $50 gift cards for
$45. He believes that this would be very popular and
would enable the company to meet its targets for rev-
enue and net income. What do you think of this idea?

@——E A company fails to recognize revenue
earned but not yet received. Which of the following
types of accounts are involved in the adjusting entry:
(a) asset, (b) liability, (c) revenue, or (d) expense? For
the accounts selected, indicate whether they would
be debited or credited in the entry.

@——€ A company fails to recognize an expense in-
curred but not paid. Indicate which of the following

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

types of accounts is debited and which is credited in
the adjusting entry: (a) asset, (b) liability, (c) revenue,
or (d) expense.

@——€ A company makes an accrued revenue ad-
justing entry for $780 and an accrued expense adjust-
ing entry for $510. How much was net income under-
stated prior to these entries? Explain.

On January 9 a company pays $6,200 for salaries, of
which $1,100 was reported as Salaries and Wages
Payable on December 31. Give the entry to record the
payment.

For each of the following items before adjustment,
indicate the type of adjusting entry—prepaid expense,
unearned revenue, accrued revenue, and accrued ex-
pense—that is needed to correct the misstatement. If
an item could result in more than one type of adjust-
ing entry, indicate each of the types.

(a) Assets are understated.

(b) Liabilities are overstated.

(c¢) Liabilities are understated.

(d) Expenses are understated.

(e) Assets are overstated.

(f) Revenue is understated.

One-half of the adjusting entry is given below. Indi-
cate the account title for the other half of the entry.
(a) Salaries and Wages Expense is debited.

(b) Depreciation Expense is debited.

(c) Interest Payable is credited.

(d) Supplies is credited.

(e) Accounts Receivable is debited.

(f) Unearned Service Revenue is debited.

“An adjusting entry may affect more than one bal-
ance sheet or income statement account.” Do you
agree? Why or why not?

Bl Which balance sheet account provides evi-
dence that Tootsie Roll records sales on an accrual
basis rather than a cash basis? Explain.

Why is it possible to prepare financial statements di-
rectly from an adjusted trial balance?

e—C

(a) What information do accrual basis financial state-
ments provide that cash basis statements do not?

(b) What information do cash basis financial state-
ments provide that accrual basis statements do
not?

What is the relationship, if any, between the amount

shown in the adjusted trial balance column for an ac-

count and that account’s ledger balance?

Identify the account(s) debited and credited in each
of the four closing entries, assuming the company has
net income for the year.

@, Some companies employ technologies that al-
low them to do a so-called “virtual close.” This enables
them to close their books nearly instantaneously any
time during the year. What advantages does a “virtual
close” provide?

Describe the nature of the Income Summary account,
and identify the types of summary data that may be
posted to this account.



29. What items are disclosed on a post-closing trial bal-
ance, and what is its purpose?

30. Which of these accounts would not appear in the counting cycle.

post-closing  trial balance? Interest Payable, 33.
Equipment, Depreciation Expense, Dividends, Un-
earned Service Revenue, Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment, and Service Revenue.

quality of earnings.

earnings.

31. Indicate, in the sequence in which they are made, the
three required steps in the accounting cycle that
involve journalizing.

Brief Exercises

BE4-1 Transactions that affect earnings do not necessarily affect cash. Identify the ef-
fect, if any, that each of the following transactions would have upon cash and net income.
The first transaction has been completed as an example.

Net
Cash Income
(a) Purchased $100 of supplies for cash. —$100 $0

(b) Recorded an adjusting entry to record use of $20 of the above supplies.
(c) Made sales of $1,300, all on account.

(d) Received $800 from customers in payment of their accounts.

(e) Purchased equipment for cash, $2,500.

(f) Recorded depreciation of building for period used, $600.

BE4-2 The ledger of Hubbard Company includes the following accounts. Explain why
each account may require adjustment.

(a) Prepaid Insurance.

(b) Depreciation Expense.

(c) Unearned Service Revenue.

(d) Interest Payable.

BE4-3 Dicker Company accumulates the following adjustment data at December 31.
Indicate (1) the type of adjustment (prepaid expense, accrued revenue, and so on) and
(2) the status of the accounts before adjustment (overstated or understated).

(a) Supplies of $400 are on hand. Supplies account shows $1,600 balance.

(b) Service Revenue earned but unbilled total $700.

(c) Interest of $300 has accumulated on a note payable.

(d) Rent collected in advance totaling $1,100 has been earned.

BE4-4 Stagg Advertising Company’s trial balance at December 31 shows Supplies $8,800
and Supplies Expense $0. On December 31 there are $1,100 of supplies on hand. Prepare
the adjusting entry at December 31 and, using T accounts, enter the balances in the ac-
counts, post the adjusting entry, and indicate the adjusted balance in each account.

BE4-5 At the end of its first year, the trial balance of Jules Company shows Equipment
$22,000 and zero balances in Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment and Depreciation
Expense. Depreciation for the year is estimated to be $2,750. Prepare the adjusting en-
try for depreciation at December 31, post the adjustments to T accounts, and indicate
the balance sheet presentation of the equipment at December 31.

BE4-6 On July 1, 2012, Ryhn Co. pays $12,400 to Craig Insurance Co. for a 2-year in-
surance contract. Both companies have fiscal years ending December 31. For Ryhn Co.,
journalize and post the entry on July 1 and the adjusting entry on December 31.

BE4-7 Using the data in BE4-6, journalize and post the entry on July 1 and the adjust-
ing entry on December 31 for Craig Insurance Co. Craig uses the accounts Unearned
Service Revenue and Service Revenue.

BE4-8 The bookkeeper for Forseth Company asks you to prepare the following accrual
adjusting entries at December 31.

Brief Exercises 201

32. Identify, in the sequence in which they are prepared,
the three trial balances that are required in the ac-

Explain the terms earnings management and
34. @B Give examples of how companies manage

*35. What is the purpose of a worksheet?
*36. What is the basic form of a worksheet?

Identify impact of
transactions on cash and net
income.

(802,9,C

Indicate why adjusting
entries are needed.

(803),C

Identify the major types
of adjusting entries.

(S0 3), AN
[ m—

Prepare adjusting entry
for supplies.

(S0 4), AP

Prepare adjusting entry
for depreciation.

(S0 4), AP

Prepare adjusting entry
for prepaid expense.

(S0 4), AP

Prepare adjusting entry
for unearned revenue.

(S0 4), AP

Prepare adjusting entries
for accruals.

(S0 5), AP
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Analyze accounts in an
adjusted trial balance.

(S0 6), AN
(& m—

Prepare an income statement

from an adjusted trial
balance.

(S0 6), AP

Prepare a retained earnings
statement from an adjusted
trial balance.

(S0 6), AP

Identify financial statement
for selected accounts.

(S0 6),K

Identify post-closing trial
balance accounts.

S07), K

Prepare and post closing
entries.

S0T7), AP

List required steps in the
accounting cycle sequence.

(S08), K

Prepare adjusting entries

for deferrals.
(SO 4), AP

(a) Interest on notes payable of $300 is accrued.

(b) Service revenue earned but unbilled totals $1,700.

(c) Salaries of $780 earned by employees have not been recorded.

Use these account titles: Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable, Interest Expense, Inter-
est Payable, Salaries and Wages Expense, and Salaries and Wages Payable.

BE4-9 The trial balance of LaGrace Company includes the following balance sheet
accounts. Identify the accounts that might require adjustment. For each account that
requires adjustment, indicate (1) the type of adjusting entry (prepaid expenses, unearned
revenues, accrued revenues, and accrued expenses) and (2) the related account in the
adjusting entry.

(a) Accounts Receivable.

(b) Prepaid Insurance.

(¢) Equipment.

(d) Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment.

(e) Notes Payable.
(f) Interest Payable.
(g) Unearned Service Revenue.

BE4-10 The adjusted trial balance of Hanlon Corporation at December 31, 2012, includes
the following accounts: Retained Earnings $17,200; Dividends $6,000; Service Revenue
$32,000; Salaries and Wages Expense $14,000; Insurance Expense $1,800; Rent Expense
$3,900; Supplies Expense $1,500; and Depreciation Expense $1,000. Prepare an income
statement for the year.

BE4-11 Partial adjusted trial balance data for Hanlon Corporation are presented in BE4-
10. The balance in Retained Earnings is the balance as of January 1. Prepare a retained
earnings statement for the year assuming net income is $10,400.

BE4-12 The following selected accounts appear in the adjusted trial balance for Cohen
Company. Indicate the financial statement on which each account would be reported.
(a) Accumulated Depreciation. (e) Service Revenue.

(b) Depreciation Expense. (f) Supplies.

(¢) Retained Earnings (beginning). (g) Accounts Payable.

(d) Dividends.

BE4-13 Using the data in BE4-12, identify the accounts that would be included in a
post-closing trial balance.

BE4-14 The income statement for the Timberline Golf Club Inc. for the month ended
July 31 shows Service Revenue $16,000; Salaries and Wages Expense $8,400; Maintenance
and Repairs Expense $2,500; and Income Tax Expense $1,000. The statement of retained
earnings shows an opening balance for Retained Earnings of $20,000 and Dividends $1,300.
(a) Prepare closing journal entries.

(b) What is the ending balance in Retained Earnings?

BE4-15 The required steps in the accounting cycle are listed in random order below.
List the steps in proper sequence.

(a) Prepare a post-closing trial balance.
(b) Prepare an adjusted trial balance.

(c) Analyze business transactions.

(d) Prepare a trial balance.

(e) Journalize the transactions.

(f) Journalize and post closing entries.
(g) Prepare financial statements.

(h) Journalize and post adjusting entries.
(i) Post to ledger accounts.

XX Review

XX 41 The ledger of Witzling, Inc. on March 31, 2012, includes the following
selected accounts before adjusting entries.

Debit Credit
Prepaid Insurance 2,400
Supplies 2,500
Equipment 30,000
Unearned Service Revenue 10,000



An analysis of the accounts shows the following:

1. Insurance expires at the rate of $300 per month.

2. Supplies on hand total $900.

3. The office equipment depreciates $200 per month.

4. 2/5 of the unearned service revenue was earned in March.

Prepare the adjusting entries for the month of March.

XX 42 Tammy Krause is the new owner of Tammy’s Computer Services. At the
end of July 2012, her first month of ownership, Tammy is trying to prepare monthly fi-
nancial statements. She has the following information for the month.

1. At July 31, Krause owed employees $1,100 in salaries that the company will pay in
August.

2. On July 1, Krause borrowed $20,000 from a local bank on a 10-year note. The an-
nual interest rate is 9%.

3. Service revenue unrecorded in July totaled $1,600.

Prepare the adjusting entries needed at July 31, 2012.
XX 4-3  Indicate in which financial statement each of the following adjusted trial
balance accounts would be presented.

Accounts Receivable
Accumulated Depreciation
Utilities Expense

Service Revenue
Notes Payable
Common Stock

XX 4-4  After closing revenues and expense, Natraj Company shows the following
account balances.
Dividends
Retained Earnings
Income Summary

$22,000
70,000
36,000 (credit balance)

Prepare the remaining closing entries at December 31.

Exercises

E4-1 The following independent situations require professional judgment for determin-

ing when to recognize revenue from the transactions.

(a) Southwest Airlines sells you an advance-purchase airline ticket in September for your
flight home at Christmas.

(b) Ultimate Electronics sells you a home theatre on a “no money down and full pay-
ment in three months” promotional deal.

(¢) The Toronto Blue Jays sell season tickets online to games in the Skydome. Fans can
purchase the tickets at any time, although the season doesn’t officially begin until
April. The major league baseball season runs from April through October.

(d) You borrow money in August from RBC Financial Group. The loan and the interest
are repayable in full in November.

(e) In August, you order a sweater from Sears using its online catalog. The sweater ar-
rives in September, and you charge it to your Sears credit card. You receive and pay
the Sears bill in October.

Instructions
Identify when revenue should be recognized in each of the above situations.

E4-2 These are the assumptions, principles, and constraints discussed in this and pre-
vious chapters.

1. Economic entity assumption.

Expense recognition principle.

Monetary unit assumption.

Periodicity assumption.

Cost principle. 1

Materiality constraint.

Full disclosure principle.
Going concern assumption.
Revenue recognition principle.
Cost constraint.

vk
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Exercises 203

Prepare adjusting entries
for accruals.

(S0 5), AP

Prepare financial statements
from adjusted trial balance.

(806),C

Prepare closing entries.

(S07), AP

Identify point of revenue
recognition.

(S01),C
e——=C

Identify accounting
assumptions, principles,
and constraints.

S0 1),K
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Identify the violated
assumption, principle,
or constraint.

801),0C

Convert earnings from cash
to accrual basis.

(802,4,5,9), AP

Determine cash-basis and
accrual-basis earnings.

(S0°2,9), AP
ae—=0

Instructions
Identify by number the accounting assumption, principle, or constraint that describes
each situation below. Do not use a number more than once.

(a) Is the rationale for why plant assets are not reported at liquidation value. (Do
not use the cost principle.)

(b) Indicates that personal and business record-keeping should be separately
maintained.

(c) Ensures that all relevant financial information is reported.

(d) Assumes that the dollar is the “measuring stick” used to report on financial
performance.

(e) Requires that accounting standards be followed for all significant items.

(f) Separates financial information into time periods for reporting purposes.

(g) Requires recognition of expenses in the same period as related revenues.

(h) Indicates that fair value changes subsequent to purchase are not recorded in
the accounts.

E4-3 Here are some accounting reporting situations.

(a) Dorfner Company recognizes revenue at the end of the production cycle but before
sale. The price of the product, as well as the amount that can be sold, is not certain.

(b) Rayms Company is in its fifth year of operation and has yet to issue financial state-
ments. (Do not use the full disclosure principle.)

(¢c) Tariq, Inc. is carrying inventory at its original cost of $100,000. Inventory has a fair
value of $110,000.

(d) Leer Hospital Supply Corporation reports only current assets and current liabilities
on its balance sheet. Property, plant, and equipment and bonds payable are reported
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively. Liquidation of the company is
unlikely.

(e) Kim Company has inventory on hand that cost $400,000. Kim reports inventory on
its balance sheet at its current fair value of $425,000.

(f) Kris Piwek, president of Classic Music Company, bought a computer for her personal
use. She paid for the computer by using company funds and debited the “Computers”
account.

Instructions

For each situation, list the assumption, principle, or constraint that has been violated, if
any. Some of these assumptions, principles, and constraints were presented in earlier
chapters. List only one answer for each situation.

E4-4 Your examination of the records of a company that follows the cash basis of ac-
counting tells you that the company’s reported cash basis earnings in 2012 are $33,640.
If this firm had followed accrual basis accounting practices, it would have reported the
following year-end balances.

2012 2011
Accounts receivable $3,400 $2,800
Supplies on hand 1,300 1,460
Unpaid wages owed 2,000 2,400
Other unpaid amounts 1,400 1,100

Instructions
Determine the company’s net earnings on an accrual basis for 2012. Show all your cal-
culations in an orderly fashion.

E4-5 1In its first year of operations, Lazirko Company earned $28,000 in service revenue,
$6,000 of which was on account and still outstanding at year-end. The remaining $22,000
was received in cash from customers.

The company incurred operating expenses of $15,800. Of these expenses, $12,000
were paid in cash; $3,800 was still owed on account at year-end. In addition, Lazirko
prepaid $2,400 for insurance coverage that would not be used until the second year of
operations.

Instructions
(a) Calculate the first year’s net earnings under the cash basis of accounting, and calcu-
late the first year’s net earnings under the accrual basis of accounting.



(b) Which basis of accounting (cash or accrual) provides more useful information for
decision makers?

E4-6 Mt. Horeb Company, a ski tuning and repair shop, opened in November 2011. The
company carefully kept track of all its cash receipts and cash payments. The following
information is available at the end of the ski season, April 30, 2012.

Cash Cash
Receipts Payments

Issue of common shares $20,000
Payment for repair equipment $ 9,200
Rent payments 1,225
Newspaper advertising payment 375
Utility bills payments 970
Part-time helper’s wages payments 2,600
Income tax payment 10,000
Cash receipts from ski and

snowboard repair services 32,150
Subtotals 52,150 24,370
Cash balance 27,780
Totals $52,150 $52,150

You learn that the repair equipment has an estimated useful life of 4 years. The com-
pany rents space at a cost of $175 per month on a one-year lease. The lease contract
requires payment of the first and last months’ rent in advance, which was done. The
part-time helper is owed $420 at April 30, 2012, for unpaid wages. At April 30, 2012,
customers owe Mt. Horeb Company $420 for services they have received but have not
yet paid for.

Instructions
(a) Prepare an accrual-basis income statement for the 6 months ended April 30, 2012.
(b) Prepare the April 30, 2012, classified balance sheet.

E4-7 KidVid, a maker of electronic games for kids, has just completed its first year of
operations. The company’s sales growth was explosive. To encourage large national stores
to carry its products, KidVid offered 180-day financing—meaning its largest customers do
not pay for nearly 6 months. Because KidVid is a new company, its components suppli-
ers insist on being paid cash on delivery. Also, it had to pay up front for 2 years of insur-
ance. At the end of the year, KidVid owed employees for one full month of salaries, but
due to a cash shortfall, it promised to pay them the first week of next year.

Instructions

(a) Explain how cash and accrual accounting would differ for each of the events listed
above and describe the proper accrual accounting.

(b) Assume that at the end of the year KidVid reported a favorable net income, yet the
company’s management is concerned because the company is very short of cash. Ex-
plain how KidVid could have positive net income and yet run out of cash.

E4-8 Peng Company accumulates the following adjustment data at December 31.
(a) Service Revenue earned but unbilled totals $600.

(b) Store supplies of $160 are on hand. Supplies account shows $1,900 balance.
(c) Utility expenses of $275 are unpaid.

(d) Service revenue of $490 collected in advance has been earned.

(e) Salaries of $620 are unpaid.

(f) Prepaid insurance totaling $400 has expired.

Instructions

For each item, indicate (1) the type of adjustment (prepaid expense, unearned revenue,
accrued revenue, or accrued expense) and (2) the status of the accounts before adjust-
ment (overstated or understated).

E4-9 The ledger of Sagovic Rental Agency on March 31 of the current year includes the
selected accounts on page 206 before adjusting entries have been prepared.

Exercises 205

Convert earnings from cash
to accrual basis; prepare
accrual-based financial
statements.

(S02,4,5,9), AP ==&

Identify differences between
cash and accrual accounting.

(802,3,9),C

Identify types of adjustments
and accounts before
adjustment.

(803, 4,5), AN

=

Prepare adjusting entries
from selected account data.

(S0 4, 5), AP
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Prepare adjusting entries.

(S0 4, 5), AP

Prepare adjusting entries.

(S0 4, 5), AP

Prepare a correct income
statement.

(801, 4,5,6), AP

Debits Credits
Prepaid Insurance $ 3,600
Supplies 3,000
Equipment 25,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment $ 8,400
Notes Payable 20,000
Unearned Rent Revenue 12,400
Rent Revenue 60,000
Interest Expense 0
Salaries and Wages Expense 14,000

An analysis of the accounts shows the following.

1. The equipment depreciates $280 per month.

Half of the unearned rent revenue was earned during the quarter.
Interest of $400 is accrued on the notes payable.

Supplies on hand total $850.

Insurance expires at the rate of $400 per month.

e W

Instructions

Prepare the adjusting entries at March 31, assuming that adjusting entries are made quar-
terly. Additional accounts are: Depreciation Expense, Insurance Expense, Interest Payable,
and Supplies Expense.

E4-10 Adam Singh, D.D.S., opened an incorporated dental practice on January 1, 2012.
During the first month of operations the following transactions occurred:

1. Performed services for patients who had dental plan insurance. At January 31, $760

of such services was earned but not yet billed to the insurance companies.

2. Utility expenses incurred but not paid prior to January 31 totaled $450.

3. Purchased dental equipment on January 1 for $80,000, paying $20,000 in cash and
signing a $60,000, 3-year note payable (Interest is paid each December 31). The equip-
ment depreciates $400 per month. Interest is $500 per month.

Purchased a 1-year malpractice insurance policy on January 1 for $24,000.
5. Purchased $1,750 of dental supplies (recorded as increase to Supplies). On January
31 determined that $550 of supplies were on hand.

>

Instructions

Prepare the adjusting entries on January 31. Account titles are: Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment, Depreciation Expense, Service Revenue, Accounts Receivable, Insurance Ex-
pense, Interest Expense, Interest Payable, Prepaid Insurance, Supplies, Supplies Expense,
Utilities Expense, and Utilities Payable.

E4-11 The unadjusted trial balance for Sierra Corp. is shown in Illustration 4-4 (page 168).
In lieu of the adjusting entries shown in the text at October 31, assume the following
adjustment data.

1. Supplies on hand at October 31 total $500.

Expired insurance for the month is $100.

Depreciation for the month is $75.

As of October 31, $800 of the previously recorded unearned revenue had been earned.
Services provided but unbilled (and no receivable has been recorded) at October 31
are $280.

6. Interest expense accrued at October 31 is $70.

7. Accrued salaries at October 31 are $1,400.

e W

Instructions
Prepare the adjusting entries for the items above.

E4-12 The income statement of Kaleta Co. for the month of July shows net income of $1,500
based on Service Revenue $5,500; Salaries and Wages Expense $2,100; Supplies Expense $900,
and Utilities Expense $500. In reviewing the statement, you discover the following:

1. Insurance expired during July of $350 was omitted.

Supplies expense includes $200 of supplies that are still on hand at July 31.
Depreciation on equipment of $150 was omitted.

Accrued but unpaid wages at July 31 of $360 were not included.

Revenue earned but unrecorded totaled $700.

vk wN



Instructions
Prepare a correct income statement for July 2012.

E4-13 This is a partial adjusted trial balance of Fenske Company.
FENSKE COMPANY

Adjusted Trial Balance
January 31, 2012

Debit Credit
Supplies $ 700
Prepaid Insurance 1,560
Salaries and Wages Payable $1,060
Unearned Service Revenue 750
Supplies Expense 950
Insurance Expense 520
Salaries and Wages Expense 1,800
Service Revenue 2,000

Instructions

Answer these questions, assuming the year begins January 1.

(a) If the amount in Supplies Expense is the January 31 adjusting entry, and $300 of
supplies was purchased in January, what was the balance in Supplies on January 1?
If the amount in Insurance Expense is the January 31 adjusting entry, and the orig-
inal insurance premium was for 1 year, what was the total premium and when was
the policy purchased?

(c) If $2,500 of salaries was paid in January, what was the balance in Salaries and Wages
Payable at December 31, 2011?

If $1,800 was received in January for services performed in January, what was the
balance in Unearned Service Revenue at December 31, 2011?

(b)

(d)

E4-14 A partial adjusted trial balance for Fenske Company is given in E4-13.

Instructions
Prepare the closing entries at January 31, 2012.

E4-15 Selected accounts of Sandin Company are shown here.

Supplies Expense Salaries and Wages Payable
July 31 750 | | July 31 1,000
Salaries and Wages Expense Accounts Receivable
July 15 1,000 July 31 500 |
31 1,000
Service Revenue Unearned Service Revenue
July 14 3,800 July 31 900 | July 1 Bal. 1,500
31 900 20 600
31 500
Supplies
July 1 Bal. 1,100 | July 31 750
10 200
Instructions

After analyzing the accounts, journalize (a) the July transactions and (b) the adjusting
entries that were made on July 31. (Hint: July transactions were for cash.)

E4-16 The trial balances shown on page 208 are before and after adjustment for Amit
Company at the end of its fiscal year.

Exercises 207

Analyze adjusted data.
(S01,4,5,6), AN

Prepare closing entries.

S0T7), AP

Journalize basic transactions
and adjusting entries.

(S0 4,5, 6), AN

Prepare adjusting entries
from analysis of trial balance.

(S0 4, 5,6), AP =
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Prepare financial statements
from adjusted trial balance.

(S0 6), AP

Prepare closing entries.

S0T7), AP

Record transactions on
accrual basis; convert
revenue to cash receipts.

(802,4,9), AP

AMIT COMPANY
Trial Balance
August 31, 2012

Cash

Accounts Receivable
Supplies

Prepaid Insurance
Equipment

Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment
Accounts Payable

Salaries and Wages Payable
Unearned Rent Revenue
Common Stock

Retained Earnings
Dividends

Service Revenue

Rent Revenue

Salaries and Wages Expense
Supplies Expense

Rent Expense

Insurance Expense
Depreciation Expense

Instructions

Prepare the adjusting entries that were made.

Before After
Adjustment Adjustment
Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.

$10,900 $10,900
8,800 9,400
2,500 500
4,000 2,500
16,000 16,000
$ 3,600 $ 4,800
5,800 5,800
0 1,100
1,800 800
10,000 10,000
5,500 5,500
2,800 2,800
34,000 34,600
12,100 13,100
17,000 18,100
0 2,000
10,800 10,800
0 1,500
0 1,200
$72,800 $72,800 $75,700 $75,700

E4-17 The adjusted trial balance for Amit Company is given in E4-16.

Instructions

Prepare the income and retained earnings statements for the year and the classified bal-

ance sheet at August 31.

E4-18 The adjusted trial balance for Amit Company is given in E4-16.

Instructions

Prepare the closing entries for the temporary accounts at August 31.

Exercises: Set B and
Challenge Exercises

Visit the book’s companion website, at www.wiley.com/college/kimmel, and choose
the Student Companion site to access Exercise Set B and Challenge Exercises.

Problems: Set A

P4-1A The following selected data are taken from the comparative financial statements
of Superior Curling Club. The club prepares its financial statements using the accrual

basis of accounting.
September 30

Accounts receivable for member dues

Unearned sales revenue

Service revenue (from member dues)

2012 2011
$ 15,000 $ 19,000
20,000 23,000
151,000 $135,000

Dues are billed to members based upon their use of the club’s facilities. Unearned sales
revenues arise from the sale of tickets to events, such as the Skins Game.


http://www.wiley.com/college/kimmel
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Instructions
(Hint: You will find it helpful to use T accounts to analyze the following data. You
must analyze these data sequentially, as missing information must first be deduced
before moving on. Post your journal entries as you progress, rather than waiting until
the end.)
(a) Prepare journal entries for each of the following events that took place during 2012.
1. Dues receivable from members from 2011 were all collected during 2012.
2. Unearned sales revenue at the end of 2011 was all earned during 2012.
3. Additional tickets were sold for $44,000 cash during 2012; a portion of these were
used by the purchasers during the year. The entire balance remaining in Unearned
Sales Revenue relates to the upcoming Skins Game in 2012.
4. Dues for the 2011-2012 fiscal year were billed to members.
5. Dues receivable for 2012 (i.e., those billed in item (4) above) were partially
collected.
(b) Determine the amount of cash received by the Club from the above transactions dur-  (h) Cash received $199,000
ing the year ended September 30, 2012.

P4-2A  Gil Vogel started his own consulting firm, Vogel Consulting, on June 1, 2012.  Prepare adjusting entries,

The trial balance at June 30 is as follows. post to ledger accounts, and
prepare adjusted trial
bal, .
VOGEL CONSULTING (S“O‘zngeﬁ) 45
Trial Balance i
June 30, 2012 |. Aa \L
Debit Credit
Cash $ 6,850
Accounts Receivable 7,000
Prepaid Insurance 2,880
Supplies 2,000
Equipment 15,000
Accounts Payable $ 4,230
Unearned Service Revenue 5,200
Common Stock 22,000
Service Revenue 8,300
Salaries and Wages Expense 4,000
Rent Expense 2,000
$39,730 $39,730
In addition to those accounts listed on the trial balance, the chart of accounts for Vogel
also contains the following accounts: Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment, Utilities
Payable, Salaries and Wages Payable, Depreciation Expense, Insurance Expense, Utilities
Expense, and Supplies Expense.
Other data:
1. Supplies on hand at June 30 total $720.
2. A utility bill for $180 has not been recorded and will not be paid until next month.
3. The insurance policy is for a year.
4. $4,100 of unearned service revenue has been earned at the end of the month.
5. Salaries of $1,250 are accrued at June 30.
6. The equipment has a 5-year life with no salvage value and is being depreciated at
$250 per month for 60 months.
7. Invoices representing $3,900 of services performed during the month have not been
recorded as of June 30.
Instructions
(a) Prepare the adjusting entries for the month of June.
(b) Post the adjusting entries to the ledger accounts. Enter the totals from the trial bal- () Senice rev. $16,300
ance as beginning account balances. Use T accounts. (c) Tot. trial

(c) Prepare an adjusted trial balance at June 30, 2012. balance $45,310
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Prepare adjusting entries, P4-3A The Vang Hotel opened for business on May 1, 2012. Here is its trial balance be-
adjusted trial balance, and fore adjustment on May 31.

financial statements.

(S0 4,5,6,7), AP VANG HOTEL

Trial Balance

E May 31, 2012

Debit Credit
Cash $ 2,500
Prepaid Insurance 1,800
Supplies 2,600
Land 15,000
Buildings 70,000
Equipment 16,800
Accounts Payable $ 4,700
Unearned Rent Revenue 3,300
Mortgage Payable 36,000
Common Stock 60,000
Rent Revenue 9,000
Salaries and Wages Expense 3,000
Utilities Expense 800
Advertising Expense 500

$113,000 $113,000

Other data:
1. Insurance expires at the rate of $450 per month.
A count of supplies shows $1,050 of unused supplies on May 31.
Annual depreciation is $3,600 on the building and $3,000 on equipment.
The mortgage interest rate is 6%. (The mortgage was taken out on May 1.)

vt N

Unearned rent of $2,500 has been earned.
6. Salaries of $900 are accrued and unpaid at May 31.

Instructions

(a) Journalize the adjusting entries on May 31.

(b) Prepare a ledger using T accounts. Enter the trial balance amounts and post the ad-
justing entries.

(c) Rent revenue $11,500  (c) Prepare an adjusted trial balance on May 31.
Tot. adj. trial (d) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the month of
balance §114,630 May and a classified balance sheet at May 31.
(d) Net income $3,570 (e) Identify which accounts should be closed on May 31.

Prepare adjusting entries and ~ P4-4A  Rolling Hills Golf Inc. was organized on July 1, 2012. Quarterly financial statements
financial statements; identify  are prepared. The trial balance and adjusted trial balance on September 30 are shown here.

accounts to be closed.
(S04,5,6,7), AP ROLLING HILLS GOLF INC.

Trial Balance
E September 30, 2012
Unadjusted Adjusted
Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
Cash $ 6,700 $ 6,700
Accounts Receivable 400 1,000
Prepaid Rent 1,800 900
Supplies 1,200 180
Equipment 15,000 15,000
Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment $ 350
Notes Payable $ 5,000 5,000
Accounts Payable 1,070 1,070
Salaries and Wages Payable 600
Interest Payable 50
Unearned Rent Revenue 1,000 800
Common Stock 14,000 14,000
Retained Earnings 0 0

Dividends 600 600
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Unadjusted Adjusted
Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
Service Revenue 14,100 14,700
Rent Revenue 700 900
Salaries and Wages Expense 8,800 9,400
Rent Expense 900 1,800
Depreciation Expense 350
Supplies Expense 1,020
Utilities Expense 470 470
Interest Expense 50

$35,870 $35,870 $37,470 $37,470

Instructions

(a) Journalize the adjusting entries that were made.

(b) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the 3 months  (b) Net income $2,510
ending September 30 and a classified balance sheet at September 30. Tot. assets $23,430

(c) Identify which accounts should be closed on September 30.
(d) If the note bears interest at 12%, how many months has it been outstanding?

P4-5A A review of the ledger of Terrell Company at December 31, 2012, produces these  Prepare adjusting entries.
data pertaining to the preparation of annual adjusting entries. (S0 4, 5), AP

1. Prepaid Insurance $15,200. The company has separate insurance policies on its build-
ings and its motor vehicles. Policy B4564 on the building was purchased on July 1,
2011, for $9,600. The policy has a term of 3 years. Policy A2958 on the vehicles was
purchased on January 1, 2012, for $7,200. This policy has a term of 18 months.

2. Unearned Sales Revenue $22,800: The company began selling magazine subscrip-
tions on October 1, 2012, on an annual basis. The selling price of a subscription is
$24. A review of subscription contracts reveals the following.

Subscription Start Date Number of Subscriptions
October 1 250
November 1 300
December 1 400
950

3. Notes Payable, $40,000: This balance consists of a note for 6 months at an annual
interest rate of 7%, dated October 1.

4. Salaries Payable $0: There are eight salaried employees. Salaries are paid every Friday
for the current week. Five employees receive a salary of $600 each per week, and three
employees earn $700 each per week. Assume December 31 is a Wednesday. Employees
do not work weekends. All employees worked the last 3 days of December.

Instructions
Prepare the adjusting entries at December 31, 2012.

P4-6A Open Road Travel Court was organized on July 1, 2011, by Tiffany Lampkins.  Prepare adjusting entries
Tiffany is a good manager but a poor accountant. From the trial balance prepared by a and a corrected income
part-time bookkeeper, Tiffany prepared the following income statement for her fourth statement.

quarter, which ended June 30, 2012. (S0 4, 5), AN

OPEN ROAD TRAVEL COURT
Income Statement
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues

Rent revenues $212,000
Operating expenses

Advertising $ 3,800

Salaries and wages 80,500

Utilities 900

Depreciation 2,700

Maintenance and repairs 4,300

Total operating expenses 92,200

Net income $119,800
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(b) Net income $33,285

Journalize transactions and
follow through accounting
cycle to preparation of
financial statements.

(S0 4,5, 6), AP

(615

Tiffany suspected that something was wrong with the statement because net income
had never exceeded $30,000 in any one quarter. Knowing that you are an experienced ac-
countant, she asks you to review the income statement and other data.

You first look at the trial balance. In addition to the account balances reported above
in the income statement, the trial balance contains the following additional selected bal-
ances at June 30, 2012.

Supplies $ 8,200
Prepaid Insurance 14,400
Note Payable 14,000

You then make inquiries and discover the following.

1. Travel court rental revenues include advanced rental payments received for summer
occupancy, in the amount of $57,000.

2. There were $1,800 of supplies on hand at June 30.
3. Prepaid insurance resulted from the payment of a one-year policy on April 1, 2012.

4. The mail in July 2012 brought the following bills: advertising for the week of June 24,
$110; repairs made June 18, $4,450; and utilities for the month of June, $215.

5. There are three employees who receive wages that total $300 per day. At June 30,
four days’ wages have been incurred but not paid.

6. The note payable is a 6% note dated May 1, 2012, and due on July 31, 2012.
7. Income tax of $13,400 for the quarter is due in July but has not yet been recorded.

Instructions

(a) Prepare any adjusting journal entries required at June 30, 2012.

(b) Prepare a correct income statement for the quarter ended June 30, 2012.

(c) Explain to Tiffany the generally accepted accounting principles that she did not rec-
ognize in preparing her income statement and their effect on her results.

P4-7A On November 1, 2012, the following were the account balances of Tate Equip-
ment Repair.

Debits Credits

Cash $ 2,790 Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment § 500
Accounts Receivable 2,910 Accounts Payable 2,300
Supplies 1,120 Unearned Service Revenue 400
Equipment 10,000 Salaries and Wages Payable 620
Common Stock 10,000

Retained Earnings 3,000

$16,820 $16,820

During November, the following summary transactions were completed.

Nov. 8 Paid $1,220 for salaries due employees, of which $600 is for November

and $620 is for October salaries payable.

10  Received $1,800 cash from customers in payment of account.

12 Received $1,700 cash for services performed in November.

15 Purchased store equipment on account $3,600.

17  Purchased supplies on account $1,300.

20 Paid creditors $2,500 of accounts payable due.

22 Paid November rent $480.

25 Paid salaries $1,000.

27  Performed services on account and billed customers for services provided
$900.

29 Received $750 from customers for services to be provided in the future.

Adjustment data:
Supplies on hand are valued at $1,100.

Accrued salaries payable are $480.
Depreciation for the month is $250.

BN =

Unearned service revenue of $500 is earned.



Instructions

(a) Enter the November 1 balances in the ledger accounts. (Use T accounts.)

(b) Journalize the November transactions.

(c) Post to the ledger accounts. Use Service Revenue, Depreciation Expense, Supplies
Expense, Salaries and Wages Expense, and Rent Expense.

(d) Prepare a trial balance at November 30.

(e) Journalize and post adjusting entries.

(f) Prepare an adjusted trial balance.

(g) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for November and
a classified balance sheet at November 30.

P4-8A Dana La Fontsee opened Pro Window Washing Inc. on July 1, 2012. During July
the following transactions were completed.

July 1 TIssued 12,000 shares of common stock for $12,000 cash.
1 Purchased used truck for $8,000, paying $2,000 cash and the balance on
account.
3 Purchased cleaning supplies for $900 on account.
5 Paid $1,800 cash on 1-year insurance policy effective July 1.
12 Billed customers $3,700 for cleaning services.
18 Paid $1,000 cash on amount owed on truck and $500 on amount owed on
cleaning supplies.
20 Paid $2,000 cash for employee salaries.
21  Collected $1,600 cash from customers billed on July 12.
25 Billed customers $2,500 for cleaning services.
31 Paid $290 for maintenance of the truck during month.
31 Declared and paid $600 cash dividend.

The chart of accounts for Pro Window Washing contains the following accounts: Cash,
Accounts Receivable, Supplies, Prepaid Insurance, Equipment, Accumulated Depreciation—
Equipment, Accounts Payable, Salaries and Wages Payable, Common Stock, Retained
Earnings, Dividends, Income Summary, Service Revenue, Maintenance and Repairs Ex-
pense, Supplies Expense, Depreciation Expense, Insurance Expense, Salaries and Wages
Expense.

Instructions

(a) Journalize the July transactions.

(b) Post to the ledger accounts. (Use T accounts.)

(c) Prepare a trial balance at July 31.

(d) Journalize the following adjustments.
(1) Services provided but unbilled and uncollected at July 31 were $1,700.
(2) Depreciation on equipment for the month was $180.
(3) One-twelfth of the insurance expired.
(4) An inventory count shows $320 of cleaning supplies on hand at July 31.
(5) Accrued but unpaid employee salaries were $400.

(e) Post adjusting entries to the T accounts.

(f) Prepare an adjusted trial balance.

(g) Prepare the income statement and a retained earnings statement for July and a clas-
sified balance sheet at July 31.

(h) Journalize and post closing entries and complete the closing process.

(i) Prepare a post-closing trial balance at July 31.

Problems: Set B

P4-1B The following data are taken from the comparative balance sheets of Glenview
Club, which prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of accounting.

December 31 2012 2011
Accounts receivable for member fees $12,000 $18,000
Unearned service revenue 17,000 11,000

Fees are billed to members based upon their use of the club’s facilities. Unearned service
revenues arise from the sale of gift certificates, which members can apply to their future

Problems: Set B 213

(f) Cash $1,840
Tot. adj. trial

balance $22,680

(g) Net loss $1,030

Complete all steps in
accounting cycle.

(S04,5,6,7,8),AP

6L

(f) Cash $5,410
(g) Tot. assets $21,500

Record transactions on
accrual basis; convert
revenue to cash receipts.

(802,4,9), AP



214

(b) Cash

received $184,000
Prepare adjusting entries,
post to ledger accounts, and
prepare an adjusted trial
balance.

(S0 4,5, 6), AP

(c) Tot. trial

halance $37500
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use of club facilities. The 2012 income statement for the club showed that service revenue
of $172,000 was earned during the year.

Instructions

(Hint: You will find it helpful to use T accounts to analyze these data.)
(a) Prepare journal entries for each of the following events that took place during 2012.

1. Fees receivable from 2011 were all collected during 2012.

2. Gift certificates outstanding at the end of 2011 were all redeemed during 2012.

3. An additional $40,000 worth of gift certificates were sold during 2012; a portion
of these were used by the recipients during the year; the remainder were still out-
standing at the end of 2012.

4. Fees for 2012 were billed to members.

5. Fees receivable for 2012 (i.e., those billed in item (4) above) were partially collected.

(b) Determine the amount of cash received by the club with respect to fees during 2012.

P4-2B Pamela Quinn started her own consulting firm, Quinn Consulting, on May 1,
2012. The trial balance at May 31 is as shown below.

QUINN CONSULTING
Trial Balance
May 31, 2012

Debit Credit
Cash $ 7,500
Accounts Receivable 3,000
Prepaid Insurance 3,600
Supplies 2,500
Equipment 12,000
Accounts Payable $ 3,500
Unearned Service Revenue 4,000
Common Stock 19,100
Service Revenue 7,500
Salaries and Wages Expense 4,000
Rent Expense 1,500
$34,100 $34,100

In addition to those accounts listed on the trial balance, the chart of accounts for Quinn
Consulting also contains the following accounts: Accumulated Depreciation—Equipment,
Salaries and Wages Payable, Depreciation Expense, Insurance Expense, Utilities Expense,
and Supplies Expense.

Other data:
$750 of supplies have been used during the month.

Utility costs incurred but not paid are $260.
The insurance policy is for 2 years.

B

$1,500 of the balance in the Unearned Service Revenue account remains unearned
at the end of the month.

5. Assume May 31 is a Thursday and employees are paid on Fridays. Quinn Consulting
has two employees that are paid $600 each for a 5-day work week.

6. The equipment has a 5-year life with no salvage value and is being depreciated at
$200 per month for 60 months.

7. Invoices representing $1,980 of services performed during the month have not been
recorded as of May 31.

Instructions

(a) Prepare the adjusting entries for the month of May.

(b) Post the adjusting entries to the ledger accounts. Enter the totals from the trial bal-
ance as beginning account balances. Use T accounts.

(c) Prepare an adjusted trial balance at May 31, 2012.



P4-3B Maquoketa Valley Resort opened for business on June 1 with eight air-conditioned
units. Its trial balance before adjustment on August 31 is presented here.

MAQUOKETA VALLEY RESORT
Trial Balance
August 31, 2012

Debit Credit
Cash $ 24,600
Prepaid Insurance 5,400
Supplies 4,300
Land 40,000
Buildings 132,000
Equipment 36,000
Accounts Payable $ 6,500
Unearned Rent Revenue 6,800
Mortgage Payable 120,000
Common Stock 100,000
Dividends 5,000
Rent Revenue 80,000
Salaries and Wages Expense 53,000
Utilities Expense 9,400
Maintenance and Repairs Expense 3,600

$313,300 $313,300

Other data:

1. Insurance expires at the rate of $450 per month.

A count of supplies on August 31 shows $700 of supplies on hand.

Annual depreciation is $6,600 on buildings and $4,000 on equipment.

Unearned rent of $5,000 was earned prior to August 31.

Salaries of $600 were unpaid at August 31.

Rentals of $1,600 were due from tenants at August 31. (Use Accounts Receivable.)
7. The mortgage interest rate is 9% per year. (The mortgage was taken out August 1.)

ok whb

Instructions

(a) Journalize the adjusting entries on August 31 for the 3-month period June 1-August 31.

(b) Prepare a ledger using T accounts. Enter the trial balance amounts and post the
adjusting entries.

(c) Prepare an adjusted trial balance on August 31.

(d) Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the 3 months
ended August 31 and a classified balance sheet as of August 31.

(e) Identify which accounts should be closed on August 31.

P4-4B Vedula Advertising Agency was founded by Murali Vedula in January 2007. Pre-
sented here are both the adjusted and unadjusted trial balances as of December 31, 2012.

VEDULA ADVERTISING AGENCY
Trial Balance
December 31, 2012

Unadjusted Adjusted
Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.

Cash $ 11,000 $ 11,000
Accounts Receivable 16,000 19,500
Supplies 9,400 6,500
Prepaid Insurance 3,350 1,790
Equipment 60,000 60,000
Accumulated Depreciation—

Equipment $ 25,000 $ 30,000
Notes Payable 8,000 8,000
Accounts Payable 2,000 2,000

Interest Payable 0 560
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Prepare adjusting entries,
adjusted trial balance, and
financial statements.

(S0 4,5,6,7), AP

6L

(c) Tot. adj. trial
balance $319,050
(d) Net income $11,500

Prepare adjusting entries and
financial statements; identify
accounts to be closed.

(S0 4,5,6,7), AP

6L
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(b) Net income $38,810
Tot. assets $68,790

Prepare adjusting entries.

(S0 4, 5), AP

Unadjusted Adjusted
Dr. Cr. Dr. Cr.
Unearned Service Revenue 5,000 3,100
Salaries and Wages Payable 0 820
Common Stock 20,000 20,000
Retained Earnings 5,500 5,500
Dividends 10,000 10,000
Service Revenue 57,600 63,000
Salaries and Wages Expense 9,000 9,820
Insurance Expense 1,560
Interest Expense 560
Depreciation Expense 5,000
Supplies Expense 2,900
Rent Expense 4,350 4,350

$123,100 $123,100 $132,980 $132,980

Instructions

(@)
(b)

@)
(d)

(e)

Journalize the annual adjusting entries that were made.

Prepare an income statement and a retained earnings statement for the year ended
December 31, and a classified balance sheet at December 31.

Identify which accounts should be closed on December 31.

If the note has been outstanding 10 months, what is the annual interest rate on that
note?

If the company paid $10,500 in salaries in 2012, what was the balance in Salaries
and Wages Payable on December 31, 2011?

P4-5B A review of the ledger of Felipe Company at December 31, 2012, produces the
following data pertaining to the preparation of annual adjusting entries.

1. Salaries and Wages Payable $0: There are eight salaried employees. Salaries are
paid every Friday for the current week. Six employees receive a salary of $800 each
per week, and two employees earn $600 each per week. Assume December 31 is a
Tuesday. Employees do not work weekends. All employees worked the last 2 days
of December.

2. Unearned Rent Revenue $300,000: The company began subleasing office space in its
new building on November 1. Each tenant is required to make a $5,000 security deposit
that is not refundable until occupancy is terminated. At December 31 the company had
the following rental contracts that are paid in full for the entire term of the lease.

Term Monthly Number
Date (in months) Rent of Leases
Now. 1 6 $4,000 5
Dec. 1 6 7,500 4

3. Prepaid Advertising $13,200: This balance consists of payments on two advertising
contracts. The contracts provide for monthly advertising in two trade magazines. The
terms of the contracts are as follows.

Number of
Magazine
Contract Date Amount Issues
A650 May 1 $6,000 12
B974 Sept. 1 7,200 18
The first advertisement runs in the month in which the contract is signed.

4. Notes Payable $80,000: This balance consists of a note for 1 year at an annual inter-

est rate of 8%, dated April 1, 2012.
Instructions

Prepare the adjusting entries at December 31, 2012. Show all computations.



P4-6B The Fly Right Travel Agency was organized on January 1, 2010, by Joe Kirkpatrick.
Joe is a good manager but a poor accountant. From the trial balance prepared by a part-
time bookkeeper, Joe prepared the following income statement for the quarter that ended
March 31, 2012.
FLY RIGHT TRAVEL AGENCY
Income Statement
For the Quarter Ended March 31, 2012

Revenues

Service revenue $50,000
Operating expenses

Advertising $ 2,600

Depreciation 400

Income tax 1,500

Salaries and wages 11,000

Utilities 400 15,900
Net income $34,100

Joe knew that something was wrong with the statement because net income had
never exceeded $8,000 in any one quarter. Knowing that you are an experienced account-
ant, he asks you to review the income statement and other data.

You first look at the trial balance. In addition to the account balances reported above
in the income statement, the trial balance contains the following additional selected bal-
ances at March 31, 2012.

Supplies $ 2,900
Prepaid insurance 3,360
Notes payable 12,000

You then make inquiries and discover the following:

Travel service revenue includes advance payments for cr